
LOCAL REVIEW BODY
MONDAY, 17 AUGUST 2020

A MEETING of the LOCAL REVIEW BODY will be held on MONDAY, 17 AUGUST 2020 at 

10.00 am. The meeting will be conducted remotely by Microsoft Teams live event.  

Arrangements are in place to stream the meeting for public viewing.  Further information 

and a link will be provided on the Council's website before the meeting.

J. J. WILKINSON,
Clerk to the Council,

6 August 2020

BUSINESS

1. Apologies for Absence. 

2. Order of Business. 

3. Declarations of Interest. 

4. Continuation: Consider request for review of refusal of application for 
part change of use from garage/storage and alterations to form 
workshop and storage for joinery business at Buccleuch Hotel, Trinity 
Street, Hawick. 19/01784/FUL. 20/00004/RREF. 

Copies of the following papers attached:-
(a)  Additional information provided by applicant (Pages 5 - 

18)
(b)  Comment from officers on additional information (Pages 19 - 

20)
(c)  Review Papers (Pages 21 - 

102)
Copies of papers re-circulated as follows:-

Notice of Review - page 21
Decision Notice - page 50
Officer’s Report - page 53
Papers referred to in Officer’s Report - page 63
Consultations - page 87
Representation - page 95
List of Policies - page 97 

5. Consider request for review of refusal of application for erection of 
treehouse and walkway for use as holiday let accommodation and 
associated works on land SW of Sandystones Farmhouse, Ancrum, 

Public Document Pack



Jedburgh. 20/00132/PPP. 20/00017/RREF. 

Copies of the following papers attached:-
(a)  Notice of Review (Pages 103 - 

166)
Including:-

Decision Notice - page 130
(b)  Officer's Report (Pages 167 - 

172)
(c)  Papers referred to in Officer's Report (Pages 173 - 

192)
(d)  Consultations (Pages 193 - 

206)
(e)  List of Policies (Pages 207 - 

214)
6. Consider request for review of refusal of application for demolition of 

garage and erection of dwellinghouse in garden ground of Clifton 
Cottage, High Street, Kirk Yetholm. 20/00453/FUL. 20/00018/RREF. 

Copies of the following papers attached:-
(a)  Notice of Review (Pages 215 - 

354)
Including:-

Officer’s Report - page 339
Decision Notice - page 352

(b)  Papers referred to in Officer's Report (Pages 355 - 
410)

(c)  Consultations (Pages 411 - 
430)

(d)  Support Comments (Pages 431 - 
436)

(e)  Objection Comments (Pages 437 - 
450)

(f)  General Comment (Pages 451 - 
452)

(g)  Additional representation from objector and 
response from applicant 

(Pages 453 - 
480)

(h)  List of Policies (Pages 481 - 
488)

7. Any Other Items Previously Circulated 

8. Any Other Items which the Chairman Decides are Urgent 



NOTE
Members are reminded that, if they have a pecuniary or non-pecuniary interest in any item 
of business coming before the meeting, that interest should be declared prior to 
commencement of discussion on that item. Such declaration will be recorded in the Minute 
of the meeting.

Membership of Committee:- Councillors T. Miers (Chairman), A. Anderson, J. A. Fullarton, 
S. Hamilton, H. Laing, S. Mountford, C. Ramage, N. Richards, E. Small. 

Please direct any enquiries to Fiona Walling  01835 826504
email fwalling@scotborders.gov.uk



This page is intentionally left blank



Stuart Patterson 
Building & Timber Frame Design 

5 Burnflat Lane, Hawick, Roxburghshire, TD9 0DZ 

phone – 01450 375772 

email – stuartpattersondesign@gmail.com 

 
 
Appeal to Local Review Body – Request for Further Information 
 
S J Cranston Joinery 
7 Wilton Hill 
Hawick 
TD9 8BA 
 
Proposed Change of Use & Alteration at Former Buccleuch Hotel, 1 Trinity Street, Hawick, TD9 9NR 
Planning Reference – 19/01784/FUL 
Appeal Reference – 20/00004/RREF 
 
See enclosed information – 
Proposed Basement Layout  (19-673-2001, Revision A) 
Proposed Elevations   (19-673-2002, Revision A) 
Proposed Section & Details  (19-673-3002, Revision A) 
Project Specification   (19-673-3003) 
Proposed Ground & First Floor Layouts (19-673-4001) 
Bat Survey Report 
 
Further to our Local Review Body hearing dated 25

th
 May 2020, and the subsequent letter received requesting 

additional information for consideration, please find attached the relevant amended drawings, new drawings and 
bat survey report which hopefully covers the remaining areas of concern. 
 
I would like to take this opportunity to cover each item raised to highlight the relevant information where 
applicable. 
 
Bat Survey 
 
Please find enclosed a copy of the bat survey report, as requested by the council ecology officer (Dr Andy 
Tharme), prepared by Findlay Ecology Services. The survey was carried out across several weeks and has 
identified a single live roost at the property, located outwith the proposed development area. The survey reports 
that only a single bat was witnessed, and the roost is of non-breeding variety. 
 
The report suggests that a Bat Low Impact License (BLIMP) should be applied for to allow removal/relocation of 
the lone bat, of which the survey company will be instructed to carry out these works. 
 
The report also notes there are no signs of breeding birds at the time of the survey. 
 
Upper Floor Development 
 
As briefly stated in our original appeal statement, the applicant has already considered further development to the 
upper floors of the property. While this does not form part of our original planning application, we have prepared 
and enclosed a draft proposal drawing (19-673-4001) indicating the proposed layouts and type of development 
intended for the future. 
 
The existing ground floor of the building (accessed from street level) was originally a public bar to the front and 
hotel accommodation to the rear. The initial idea was to form a small shop area, selling timber products and other 
giftwares, not necessarily linked to the joinery business, but Mr Cranston does make small items of furniture as a 
side line hobby. 
 
The floor area is large enough to also accommodate a small coffee shop/café to the rear of the ground floor, 
incorporating all facilities required for such a premise. Although there are a couple of steps from pavement to 

Page 5

Agenda Item 4a

mailto:stuartpattersondesign@gmail.com


internal floor height, making wheelchair access difficult, we have been considering some sort of improvement in 
this area, and the internal split-level nature of the property would be accommodated with provision of a platform 
lift on the basis that wheelchair access will be possible. 
 
The intention is for Mr Cranston and his family retain ownership of the commercial side of the business, potentially 
involved with the day-to-day running of it. 
 
The first floor formerly consisted of hotel accommodation, comprising mainly bedroom and bathroom provision. As 
indicated on the existing floor layout plans, the internal walls have been removed by a previous owner and leave a 
blank canvas to form two flats over the footprint of the first floor. Access to the flats would be from the existing 
external door to a masonry built internal staircase, which also provides additional emergency escape from the 
coffee shop/café area. The exact layout for each flat may alter prior to submitting a full planning application for 
this phase of the works, but generally most of the existing façade of the property would be retained in its current 
form. 
 
Each of these proposals would be applied for under separate planning and building warrant applications. 
 
Sound Transmission/Noise Suppression 
 
A building warrant application was submitted at the same time as our original planning application which identified 
the sound transmission and noise reduction designs for the proposed conversion works. Generally this 
information is not required for a planning application, but could have been supplied if requested during the course 
of the application. Please find enclosed a copy of our Project Specification drawing (19-673-3003) which specifies 
the framing, insulation and sound deadening construction works for the walls and ceiling/separating floor. These 
designs have been deemed to meet the current building standards for noise transmission. 
 
There is potentially more information in the project specification than necessary, so I would like to clarify the 
construction, as follows- 
 
Walls (Existing) 
The existing solid stone walls to the property are 470-640mm thick, the majority of which are below 
street/pavement level. The walls are to be framed out with timber framing, allowing for a minimum 50mm air gap 
between frame and walls. The cavity is important to help prevent flanking sound transmission between each 
component of the wall. The framing is then insulated with a dense insulation board, not only for its thermal 
properties, but the denser the insulation, the more sound it absorbs. The internal face of the framing is then 
boarded with plasterboard and plastered. 
 
Walls (New) 
The new infill walls to the original openings overlooking the courtyard are also formed with the same framing and 
insulation but boarded internally with two layers of plasterboard instead of one, with the boards having an 
increased density specifically designed to improve sound deadening (Gyproc Soundbloc). 
 
We also propose to reduce the size of the windows in the new wall construction between courtyard and workshop, 
which is now shown on the revised floor layout, elevation and section drawings submitted. The smaller windows 
will reduce the opening area, increasing the dense wall structure to the benefit of sound deadening. The smaller 
windows also represent an increase in security to the workshop. 
 
The perimeter of the courtyard also benefits from a 3m high stone wall reducing any potential noise disruption 
across the supermarket and veterinary car parks, and with the new fence between courtyard and adjoining 
property, any potential noise should be dissipated vertically. 
 
Ceiling/Separating Floor 
The existing ground floor/basement ceiling is formed with mainly timber joists, but some areas with a concrete 
slab. There is already approximately 150mm ash deadening on timber boards between the joists, providing a 
significant amount of suppression on its own. The underside of the joists are to be brandered with battens fitted 
perpendicular to the joists (where applicable), with metal resilient bars provided to reduce any sound resonance 
across the ceiling. 
 
The ceiling is boarded with the same dense plasterboard to the walls (Gyproc Soundbloc) on a thicker 19mm 
layer plasterboard for fire resistance, but providing increased mass against sound transmission. We have also 
specified a high performance acoustic membrane fitted between the layers of plasterboard, further increasing the 
mass. The perimeter of the floor/ceiling is also to be checked for gaps and filled with acoustic granular material to 
increase the seal between floors. 

Page 6



 
As noted from our original appeal, the workshop is separated from the adjoining property with the use of staff 
canteen, lobby, toilet and boiler house, effectively forming a `quiet zone’ from the workshop. The dividing walls 
also require the same amount of thermal properties to meet the building regulations so are constructed to the 
same standard as the walls noted above. 
 
All measures are being taken to reduce any potential sound impact throughout the property, and with the 
applicant retaining ownership of the building, including operation of any businesses, it is in his best interest to 
ensure there is no disruption from his joinery business. 
 
Along with meeting the building standards for insulation and sound for this project, a similar requirement will also 
need to be applied when the applications are submitted for the first floor flats, further increasing sound deadening 
between the various sections of the building. 
 
Stuart Patterson 
On behalf of Mr S. Cranston. 

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



Stuart Patterson

email - stuartpattersondesign@gmail.com
phone - 01450 375772

Roxburghshire, TD9 0DZ

Building & Timber Frame Design

5 Burnflat Lane, Hawick,

³

³

³

P
age 9

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1
SCALES

AutoCAD SHX Text_2
30/8/19

AutoCAD SHX Text_3
19-673-3003

AutoCAD SHX Text_4
-

AutoCAD SHX Text_5
REVISION

AutoCAD SHX Text_6
DRAWING No.

AutoCAD SHX Text_7
/

AutoCAD SHX Text_8
S J Cranston Joinery

AutoCAD SHX Text_9
PROPOSED CHANGE OF USE & ALTERATION AT

AutoCAD SHX Text_10
FORMER BUCCLEUCH HOTEL,

AutoCAD SHX Text_11
1 TRINITY STREET, HAWICK.

AutoCAD SHX Text_12
DRAWING TITLE

AutoCAD SHX Text_13
PROJECT

AutoCAD SHX Text_14
CLIENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_15
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_16
REVISION

AutoCAD SHX Text_17
INDEX

AutoCAD SHX Text_18
PROJECT SPECIFICATION

AutoCAD SHX Text_19
Specification GENERAL ALL NEW WORKS TO BE CARRIED OUT IN FULL ACCORDANCE WITH THE BUILDING (SCOTLAND) REGULATIONS 2004 AND ALL CURRENT AMENDMENTS. ALL NEW WORKS TO BE CARRIED OUT IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE RELEVANT BRITISH STANDARDS AND MANUFACTURERS GUIDANCE WHERE REQUIRED. THE ACCREDITED CONSTRUCTION DETAILS (SCOTLAND) 2015, PREPARED BY THE BUILDING STANDARDS DIVISION, SHOULD BE USED IN RELATION TO ALL CONSTRUCTION DETAIL, TO AVOID/LIMIT POTENTIAL THERMAL BRIDGING AND AIR INFILTRATION THROUGH THE CONSTRUCTION OF THE PROPOSED WORKS. OCCUPANCY LEVELS THE APPLICANT IS CURRENTLY A SOLE TRADER, WITH NO ADDITIONAL STAFF. HAVING PREVIOUSLY EMPLOYED ADDITIONAL STAFF, THE PROPERTY SHOULD BE CONSIDERED FOR A MAXIMUM OCCUPANCY OF 2-3 PEOPLE. EXISTING STRUCTURE ALL EXISTING BUILDING STRUCTURES TO BE RETAINED. CONTRACTOR TO CARRY OUT INSPECTIONS TO CHECK FOR ANY DEFECTS WITHIN THE PROPERTY AND ANY ISSUES TO BE REPAIRED AS REQUIRED. IN THE UNLIKELY EVENT THAT ANY STRUCTURAL DEFECTS ARE FOUND, A STRUCTURAL ENGINEER SHOULD BE APPOINTED FOR FURTHER INSPECTION AND REPORT ON ANY REMEDIAL WORKS REQUIRED. NOTE - CARE & REPAIR IS NOT COVERED UNDER THIS BUILDING WARRANT APPLICATION. FOUNDATIONS & UNDERBUILDING (NEW WALLS) EXISTING EXTERNAL CONCRETE HARDSTAND TO BE BROKEN OUT LOCALLY TO ALLOW EXCAVATION AND FORMATION OF NEW FOUNDATIONS AND UNDERBUILDING TO OPEN SECTIONS OF REAR WALL BELOW/BETWEEN EXISTING STEEL STRUCTURE, AS INDICATED ON THE PROPOSED FLOOR LAYOUT DRAWING. ALL UNSUITABLE MATERIALS INCLUDING TURF, TOPSOIL, ROOTS, VEGETABLE MATTER AND WOOD WILL BE STRIPPED FROM THE AREA OF THE BUILDING, INCLUDING THE GROUND SURROUNDING THE PROPERTY, THAT WILL PREVENT FUTURE GROWTH THAT WILL EFFECT THE BUILDING OR SUBSTRUCTURE. ALL SUBSTRUCTURE BELOW DPC LEVEL TO BE BUILT IN BRICK OR DENSE CONCRETE BLOCKWORK USING 3:1 SAND/CEMENT MORTAR. . ANY DRAINS PASSING THROUGH UNDERBUILDING TO BE ADEQUATELY LINTELLED OVER. FLEXIBLE JOINTS TO BE  FITTED TO EACH SECTION OF DRAIN WITHIN 150mm WHERE IT PASSES EACH SIDE OF WALL. FOUNDATIONS TAKEN TO A MINIMUM FORMATION LEVEL OF 650mm BELOW EXISTING GROUND LEVEL, OR TO A LEVEL NO LESS THAN THE EXISTING FOUNDATIONS TO THE HOUSE, FOUNDATIONS TO BE TAKEN DOWN TO UNDISTURBED GROUND, WITH ANY SOFT SPOTS OR VOIDS EXCAVATED AND FILLED WITH TYPE 1 GRANULAR SUB-BASE MATERIAL. CARE TO BE TAKEN NOT TO UNDERMINE ANY EXISTING FOUNDATIONS OR WALL STRUCTURE, INCLUDING THE PAD FOUNDATIONS TO THE EXISTING STEEL POSTS. SHOULD ANY ISSUES ARISE FROM THE FOUNDATION WORKS, A STRUCTURAL ENGINEER SHOULD BE APPOINTED TO PROVIDE FURTHER ADVICE. CONCRETE STRIP FOUNDATIONS TO NEW 100mm WIDE UNDERBUILDING/BASECOURSE WALLS MIN. SIZE 450 x 200mm. NEW FOUNDATIONS TO BE OVERLAPPED/LINKED WITH  NEW FOUNDATIONS TO BE OVERLAPPED/LINKED WITH NEW FOUNDATIONS TO BE OVERLAPPED/LINKED WITH EXISTING, IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE DETAIL ON THE FOUNDATION LAYOUT DRAWING. ALL NEW FOUNDATIONS FORMED USING GRADE ST4 CONCRETE. ALL STRIP FOUNDATIONS TO HAVE ONE LAYER `A142' MESH REINFORCEMENT POSITIONED IN BOTTOM OF ALL STRIP FOUNDATIONS TO HAVE ONE LAYER `A142' MESH REINFORCEMENT POSITIONED IN BOTTOM OF FOUNDATION, WITH MINIMUM 50mm COVER TO ALL EDGES/FACES. ANY STEPS IN FOUNDATION TO BE IN ACCORDANCE WITH CLAUSE 7.3.5 `STEPPED FOUNDATIONS' OF BS 8103: PART 1: 1995. BASEMENT FLOOR U-VALUE [bridged result] = 0.24 W/m²K. U-VALUE [bridged result] = 0.24 W/m²K. EXISTING CONCRETE FLOOR TO FORMER GARAGE/LOCK-UP AREA TO BASEMENT TO BE CAREFULLY BROKEN OUT AND REMOVED FROM SITE. EXISTING FORMATION LEVEL TO BE EXCAVATED/LEVELLED AS REQUIRED TO SUIT NEW INSULATED FLOOR CONSTRUCTION. ANY INFILL/UPFILL FORMED WITH TYPE 1 HARDCORE MATERIAL, WELL COMPACTED IN MAXIMUM 150mm DEEP LAYERS. MINIMUM 125mm THICK GROUND BEARING REINFORCED CONCRETE FLOOR SLAB, WITH STEEL TROWEL/POLISHED FINISH, LAID ON MINIMUM 50mm THICK RECTICEL `EUROTHANE GP' (OR EQUAL AND APPROVED) RIGID INSULATION, ON VISQUEEN 2000 DPM ON MINIMUM 25mm SAND OR WHIN DUST BLINDING ON FORMATION/SUB-BASE AS NOTED ABOVE. `A142' REINFORCING MESH TO HAVE MINIMUM 50mm COVER TO ALL EXPOSED EDGES. ALL JOINTS IN POLYTHENE DPM TO BE LAPPED BY AT LEAST 150mm, OVERLAPPED WITH DPC TO NEW EXTERNAL WALL, RETURNED AT EDGES TO A LEVEL HIGHER THAN O A LEVEL HIGHER THAN DPC TO EXISTING WALLS OR LAPPED WITH TANKING TO FRONT/SIDE WALLS, AS NOTED ON THE SECTION DRAWING. MINIMUM 44mm INSULATION TO BE RETURNED UP ALL EXPOSED EDGES TO PERIMETER OF CONCRETE FLOOR SLAB TO PREVENT COLD-BRIDGING. ALL WORK TO CONCRETE SLAB TO BE COMPLETED PRIOR TO FORMING INTERNAL WALL FRAMING. EXTERNAL/EXPOSED WALLS (EXISTING) U-VALUE [bridged result] = 0.28 W/m²K. U-VALUE [bridged result] = 0.28 W/m²K. EXISTING EXTERNALT/EXPOSED STONE/MASONRY TO BE STRIPPED BACK WHERE REQUIRED AND SUITABLY CLEANED/BRUSHED CLEAN AND ANY PROTRUSIONS (SCREWS, BRUSHED CLEAN AND ANY PROTRUSIONS (SCREWS, NAILS, FIXING, ETC.) REMOVED IN PREPARATION OF NEW WALL LINING. ALL EXPOSED WALLS TO BE FRAMED INTERNALLY WITH MINIMUM 45x95mm TOP AND BOTTOM RAILS AND 45x95mm VERTICAL TIMBER STUDS AT 600mm MAXIMUM VERTICAL TO BE FRAMED INTERNALLY WITH MINIMUM 45x95mm TOP AND BOTTOM RAILS AND 45x95mm VERTICAL TIMBER STUDS AT 600mm MAXIMUM VERTICAL x95mm TOP AND BOTTOM RAILS AND 45x95mm VERTICAL TIMBER STUDS AT 600mm MAXIMUM VERTICAL CENTRES, ALLOWING A MINIMUM 50mm AIR GAP BETWEEN THE REAR OF THE STUD AND THE INNER FACE OF THE MASONRY WALLS. LINE ON `CAVITY' SIDE OF FRAMING , ALLOWING A MINIMUM 50mm AIR GAP BETWEEN THE REAR OF THE STUD AND THE INNER FACE OF THE MASONRY WALLS. LINE ON `CAVITY' SIDE OF FRAMING LINE ON `CAVITY' SIDE OF FRAMING WITH 9.5mm SHEATHING PLY OR STERLING BOARD WITH BREATHER MEMBRANE, FIXED AS PER MANUFACTURERS INSTRUCTIONS TO EXTERNAL SIDE OF SHEATHING. ONE ROW ONE ROW OF MID-HEIGHT DWANGS TO BE FITTED TO ALL WALL FRAMING. MINIMUM 80mm THICK RECTICEL `EUROTHANE GP' (OR EQUAL AND APPROVED) RIGID INSULATION TO BE PLACED TIGHT BETWEEN TIMBERS, ENSURING NO GAPS BETWEEN EDGE OF INSULATION AND ADJACENT STUDS. BOARD INTERNALLY WITH 12.5mm THICK `DUPLEX' VAPOUR BOARD INTERNALLY WITH 12.5mm THICK `DUPLEX' VAPOUR CHECK PLASTERBOARD, SKIM COAT FINISH. TOP RAIL OF FRAMING SECURED THROUGH NEW SEPARATING FLOOR CEILING TO TIMBER/ACCOUSTIC BATTENS AS REQUIRED, AND SHOULD NOT BE DIRECTLY SECURED TO EXISTING FLOOR JOISTS IN ANY FASHION. ALL EXPOSED WALL FRAMING DEEMED NON-STRUCTURAL AND TO BE BUILT DIRECTLY OFF CONCRETE SLAB, LOCATED DIRECTLY BELOW BOTTOM RAIL TO FRAMING. ALTHOUGH NO SIGN OF DAMP PENETRATION THROUGH EXISTING FRONT/SIDE RETAINING WALLS, WALLS TO HAVE ADDITIONAL PRECAUTIONARY WATERPROOFING APPLIED, WITH 2No. COATS BETEC FLEX COATING ON ONE COAT BETEC NSM (BOTH BY GRACE PRODUCTS) TO A MINIMUM HEIGHT OF 150mm ABOVE EXTERNAL GROUND LEVELS. DPM TO NEW FLOOR SLAB TO BE LAPPED OVER AND SEALED TO TOP OF FIRST COAT OF BETEC FLEX, WITH A MINIMUM 500mm OVERLAP TO HORIZONTAL (IE WATERPROOFING TO BE TAKEN HORIZONTALLY UNDER FLOOR DPM BY MINIMUM 500mm). ALL WATERPROOFING TO BE APPLIED AS PER MANUFACTURERS INSTRUCTION AND DETAILS. ONCE TANKING HAS BEEN COMPLETED, WALL TO BE FRAMED OUT AND INSULATED, AS PER SPECIFICATION ABOVE. INFILL TIMBER FRAME WALLS (NEW) U-VALUE [bridged result] = 0.24 W/m²K. U-VALUE [bridged result] = 0.24 W/m²K. NEW WALL COSNTRUCTION TO BE FORMED BEWTEEN EXISTING STEEL SUPPORT STRUCTURE TO REAR WALL OR PROPERTY, AS INDICATED ON THE PROPOSED FLOOR LAYOUT DRAWING. NEW WALL FRAMING CONSTRUCTED WITH WITH 45x95mm TIMBER STUDS AT 600mm MAXIMUM CENTRES WITH 45x95mm TOP, BOTTOM AND MID RAILS, LINE EXTERNALLY WITH 9.5mm SHEATHING PLY OR STERLING BOARD WITH GLIDEVALE PROTECT `TF200 THERMO' INSULATING BREATHER MEMBRANE (OR EQUAL AND APPROVED), FIXED AS PER MANUFACTURERS INSTRUCTIONS TO EXTERNAL SIDE OF SHEATHING. EXTERNAL FACE OF TIMBER FRAME TO BE FINISHED WITH MINIMUM 20mm THICK BUTT-JOINTED CEDAR/TIMBER VERTICAL BOARDING (EXACT MATERIAL TO BE CONFIRMED), TO PLANNING APPROVAL, ON MINIMUM 25x38mm HORIZONTAL BATTENS ON 25x38 VERTICAL COUNTER BATTENS AT 600mm CENTRES SECURED THROUGH SHEATHING TO VERTICAL STUDS. 50mm GAP (BATTEN & COUNTER BATTEN DEPTH) PROVIDED AT BOTTOM OF CLADDING FOR VENTILATION. CLADDING TO BE CARRIED UP TO UNDERSIDE OF STEEL BEAM, ALLOWING A MINIMUM 10mm GAP FOR THROUGH VENTILATION. INSTALL MINIMUM 80mm RECTICEL `EUROTHANE GP' OR EQUAL AND APPROVED, RIGID INSULATION TIGHT BETWEEN TIMBER FRAMING. LINE TIMBER FRAME INTERNALLY WITH 1No. LAYER 12.5mm THICK `SOUNDBLOC' SOUND DEAFENING PLASTERBOARD ON 1No. LAYER 12.5mm `DUPLEX' VAPOUR CHECK PLASTERBOARD WITH STAGGERED JOINTS. SKIM COAT OR DRYLINE FINISH. ALTHOUGH DEEMED NON-STRUCTURAL IT IS RECOMMENDED THAT TIMBER LINTELS ARE INSTALLED OVER EACH OPENING WITHIN THE NEW INFILL PANELS TO PROVIDE EXTRA RIGIDITY TO THE FRAMING. ALL NEW TIMBER LINTELS MADE UP WITH 2No 45x195mm TIMBERS SECURELY SPIKED TOGETHER, SUPPORTED OFF MINIMUM 1No. 45x95mm ALL NEW TIMBER LINTELS MADE UP WITH 2No 45x195mm TIMBERS SECURELY SPIKED TOGETHER, SUPPORTED OFF MINIMUM 1No. 45x95mm CRIPPLE STUD TO EACH SIDE OF THE 950mm WIDE DOOR OPENING, AND 2No. 45x95mm CRIPPLE STUDS TO EACH SIDE OF THE LARGER OPENINGS. WHERE NEW FRAMING FORMS A NEW CAVITY WALL, ADJACENT TO EXISTING WALLS, CAVITIES TO BE CLOSED BY INSTALLING KINGSPAN `KOOLTHERM', OR EQUAL AND CAVITIES TO BE CLOSED BY INSTALLING KINGSPAN `KOOLTHERM', OR EQUAL AND APPROVED, INSULATED CAVITY BARRIER. CAVITY CLOSERS TO BE INSTALLED AS PER MANUFACTURERS WRITTEN INSTRUCTIONS, AND PROVIDE A MINIMUM HALF-HOUR FIRE RESISTANCE. DPC TO BE FITTED ALL ROUND EACH OPENING. HOLDING DOWN STRAPS: TIE DOWN TIMBER FRAME BY SECURELY NAILING 1100x38x2.5mm THICK L-SHAPED GALVANISED MS STRAPS TO TIMBER FRAME AT 2400mm MAXIMUM CENTRES, AND TO EACH SIDE OF ALL OPENINGS WITHIN EXTERNAL WALLS. STRAPS TO BE SECURELY RAWL BOLTED TO MASONRY UNDERBUILDING. WIRE GAUZE OR MESH TO BE FITTED AT LOW LEVEL TO EXTERNAL WEATHER BOARDING/BATTENS, TO PREVENT RODENT/ANIMAL INTRUSION WITHIN CAVITY VOID. NEW INTERNAL WALLS (NON-STRUCTURAL) ALL NEW INTERNAL WALLS SHOULD BE DEEMED NON-LOADBEARING. NEW WALLS FORMED WITH MINIMUM 45x95mm TIMBER STUDS AT MAX. 600mm CENTRES WITH 45x95mm MINIMUM 45x95mm TIMBER STUDS AT MAX. 600mm CENTRES WITH 45x95mm TOP & BOTTOM RUNNERS AND MID DWANGS. LINE ON BOTH SIDES WITH 1No. LAYER 12.5mm THICK PLASTERBOARD, SKIM COAT OR DRYLINE FINISH. PLASTERBOARD FINISH TO HAVE A MINIMUM MASS PER UNIT AREA OF 10Kg/m². INTERNAL WALLS TO BE BUILT DIRECTLY OFF THE NEW CONCRETE FLOOR SLAB AND BUILT UP TO UNDERSIDE OF CEILING AS REQUIRED. TOP RAIL OF FRAMING SECURED TOP RAIL OF FRAMING SECURED THROUGH NEW SEPARATING FLOOR CEILING TO TIMBER/ACCOUSTIC BATTENS AS REQUIRED, AND SHOULD NOT BE DIRECTLY SECURED TO EXISTING FLOOR JOISTS IN ANY FASHION. SOUND PROOF ALL NEW INTERNAL PARTITIONS BY FITTING 80mm THICK DENSE QUILT BETWEEN FRAMING PRIOR TO FITTING PLASTERBOARD. MINERAL WOOL INSULATION TO WOOL INSULATION TO HAVE MINIMUM DENSITY OF 10Kg/m³. . BLOCKED-UP OPENINGS EXISTING DOORS BETWEEN SHARED BOILER HOUSE AND PROPOSED WORKSHOP, AND EXTERNAL DOOR ADJACENT TO PROPOSED WC TO BE REMOVED, IN PREPARATION OF NEW WORKS. AS INDICATED ON THE PROPOSED FLOOR LAYOUT, EACH DOOR OPENING TO BE SUITABLY BLOCKED UP WITH 100mm DENSE CONCRETE BLOCKWORK. WITH 100mm DENSE CONCRETE BLOCKWORK. . OPENING WITHIN EXTERNAL WALL FINISHED WITH 20mm CEMENT RENDER TO MATCH EXISTING, AS REQUIRED. NEW WALL TO BE TIED INTO EXISTING JAMBS USING `FURFIX' OR EQUAL AND APPROVED WALL TIES AT 300mm MAXIMUM VERTICAL CENTRES. NEW WALL STRUCTURE TO BE BUILT OFF EXISTING FLOOR/WALLHEAD, LEVELLED AND CLEANED AS REQUIRED. ALL OPENINGS TO BE BLOCKED UP PRIOR TO FORMING INSULATED WALL FRAMING, NOTED BELOW.

AutoCAD SHX Text_20
CEILING/GROUND FLOOR (SEPARATING)  EXISTING GROUND FLOOR FORMED WITH MINIMUM 220mm DEEP TIMBER FLOOR JOISTS SPANNING PERPENDICULAR TO FRONT AND REAR WALLS, BUILT INTO EXTERNAL MASONRY WALLS AND SUPPORTED OFF STEEL POST & BEAM CONSTRUCTION TO REAR WALL, WITH ADDITIONAL MID-SPAN SUPPORT OFF INTERNAL STEEL POST & BEAM STRUCTURE, AS INDICATED ON THE EXISTING LAYOUT PLANS. FLOOR FINISHED WITH 25mm TONGUE AND GROOVE BOARDS, WITH APPROXIMATELY 150mm OF ASH DEADENING LOCATED BETWEEN FLOOR JOISTS ON 15mm THICK TIMBER PUGGING BOARDS FOR SOUND DEAFENING AND INSULATION. EXISTING BASEMENT CEILING (WHERE EXISTING BASEMENT CEILING (WHERE STILL FORMED) FINISHED WITH APPROXIMATELY 15mm PLASTER ON TIMBER LATH, SECURED TO UNDERSIDE OF FIRST FLOOR JOISTS. . SOME AREAS (WHERE NOTED ON THE EXISTING FLOOR LAYOUT PLAN) FORMED WITH IN-SITU CONCRETE SLAB. WHAT REMAINS OF EXISTING LATH & PLASTER CEILING TO BE REMOVED ACROSS ENTIRETY OF CEILING, WITH PUGGING BOARDS AND ASH DEAFENING RETAINED. FLOOR DECK TO BE RETAINED AT CURRENT STANDARD, BUT LIKELY UPGRADING PROVIDED ON DEVELOPMENT OF UPPER FLOORS (UNDER SEPARATE APPLICATIONS). UNDERSIDE OF EXISTING FLOOR JOISTS TO BE BRANDERED WITH NEW 25x45mm TIMBER BATTENS, POSITIONED PERPENDICULAR TO JOISTS, AND SECURED AT 400mm MAXIMUM CENTRES. 45x19mm THICK GYPROC `RB1' RESILIANT BARS SECURED TO UNDERSIDE OF NEW BATTENS, PERPENDICULAR TO BATTENS (PARALLEL WITH EXISTING FLOOR JOISTS) AT 400mm MAXIMUM CENTRES. RESILIANT BARS SECURED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE MANUFACTURERS WRITTEN INSTRUCTION TO ENSURE THE `FREE' END IS NOT FIXED TO ANY PERMANENT STRUCTURE. CEILING FINISHED WITH 1No. LAYER 12.5mm THICK `SOUNBLOC' SOUND DEAFENING PLASTERBOARD ON 1No. LAYER MLV50 (MASS LOADING VINYL) HIGH PERFORMANCE SOUND DEAFENING PLASTERBOARD ON 1No. LAYER MLV50 (MASS LOADING VINYL) HIGH PERFORMANCE ACOUSTIC MEMBRANE ON 1No. LAYER 19mm GYPROC `PLANK' PLASTERBOARD. PLASTERBOARD TO BE FITTED WITH STAGGERED JOINTS. DRYLINE OR SKIM COAT FINISH. ALL CHECKS TO BE MADE ON SITE FOR ANY GAPS AROUND PERIMETER OF EACH FLOOR SECTION, WHICH SHOULD BE FULLY INFILLED WITH `QUIETEX' (OR EQUAL) GRANULAR MATERIAL TO REDUCE FLANKING SOUND TRANSMISSION AROUND EDGE OF SEPARATING FLOOR. WHERE CONCRETE FLOOR SLABS ARE PROVIDED TO GROUND FLOOR, 25x45mm BATTENS TO BE PLUGGED & SCREWED TO UNDERSIDE OF CONCRETE TO SAME SPECIFICATION 25x45mm BATTENS TO BE PLUGGED & SCREWED TO UNDERSIDE OF CONCRETE TO SAME SPECIFICATION AS ABOVE, FINISHED WITH SAME CEILING SPECIFICATION. EXISTING STEEL SUPPORT STRUCTURE ALL EXISTING STEEL SUPPORT STRUCTURE WITHIN THE BASEMENT AREA TO BE RETAINED IN CURRENT FORM. STEEL WORK TO BE BLAST CLEANED AND PAINTED WITH 1No. ZINC BASED PRIMER COAT AND 2No. ZINC BASED FINISHING COATS FOR RUST PROTECTION. ALL SURFACES MUST BE CLEAN, DRY SURFACES FREE FROM RUST AND GREASE. INTERNALLY, ALL STEELWORK IS POSITIONED BEHIND INTERNAL BOARDING, PROVIDING MINIMUM ONE-HOUR FIRE PROTECTION (MINIMUM 2No. LAYERS PLASTERBOARD). EXTERNALLY EXPOSED STEELWORK RETAINED AT INFILLED OPENINGS TO HAVE FINAL COAT PAINTED WITH INTUMESCENT PAINT TO PROVIDE MINIMUM ONE-HOUR (MEDIUM DURATION) FIRE RESISTANCE (THERMOGUARD `THERMOCOAT W' FIRE PROTECTION PAINT, OR EQUAL AND APPROVED). VENTILATION - GENERAL VENTILATION TO BE PROVIDED WITHIN PROPOSED WORKSHOP THROUGH MINIMUM 2No. 150mm (9") DIAMETER EXTRACT FANS WITHIN NEW REAR WALL CONSTRUCTION. TOTAL COMBINED VENTILATION SHOULD PROVIDE A MINIMUM 1.5-2.5 AIR CHANGES PER HOUR (685.77m³/h CALCULATED ON VOLUME OF ROOMSPACE AT AN AVERAGE 2.0 /h CALCULATED ON VOLUME OF ROOMSPACE AT AN AVERAGE 2.0 ACH), DESIGNED FOR A FACTORY/WORKSHOP, IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE GUIDANCE SET OUT IN CIBSE GUIDE B:2001, AND BUILDING STANDARD 3.14.5. BOTH FANS COMBINED SHOULD OFFER A TOTAL MAXIMUM EXTRACTION RATE OF 790m³/h. /h. THE MECHANICAL VENTILATION SYSTEM SHOULD BE DESIGNED AND INSTALLED TO ENSURE THE AVOIDANCE OF CONTAMINATION BY LEGIONELLA. THE SYSTEM SHOULD BE CONSTRUCTED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE RECOMMENDATIONS OF `LEGIONNAIRES DISEASE: THE CONTROL OF LEGIONELLA BACTERIA IN WATER SYSTEMS - APPROVED CODE OF PRACTICE AND GUIDANCE - HSE L8'. THE MECHANICAL VENTILATION SYSTEMS SHOULD BE DESIGNED AND INSTALLED BY SPECIALIST SUPPLIER, SIZED ACCORDINGLY FOR ENERGY EFFICIENCY. WHERE APPLICABLE, FANS SHOULD BE FITTED WITH VARIABLE SPEED MOTORS AND VARIABLE PITCH FANS TO OPTIMISE PERFORMANCE AT PART LOAD. TEMPERATURE SENSORS SHOULD BE PROVIDED, SET TO MINIMUM ENERGY CONSUMPTION FOR THE GIVEN OCCUPANCY OF THE BUILDING. THE CONTROL SYSTEM FOR THE MECHANICAL VENTILATION SHOULD BE SET TO AVOID SIMULTANEOUS HEATING AND COOLING OF THE ROOM. THE PERMISSIBLE MAXIMUM SPECIFIC FAN POWER (SFP) FOR EACH ZONAL EXTRACT SYSTEM, WHERE THE FAN IS REMOTE FROM THE ZONE SHOULD BE NO GREATER THAN 0.6 W/l/s, WITH A MAXIMUM EXTERNAL SYSTEM PRESSURE DROP OF 200 Pa, IN ACCORDANCE WITH TABLE 6.29 TO BUILDING STANDARD 6.6.2. ALL MECHANICAL VENTILATION INSTALLATIONS TO BE DESIGNED AND INSTALLED IN ACCORDANCE WITH BUILDING STANDARD 6.6.2. PROPOSED WINDOWS TO WORKSHOP TO BE NON-OPENING TO RESTRICT ANY POTENTIAL NOISE DISTURBANCE, BUT PROPOSED DOORS MAY PROVIDE ADDITIONAL NATURAL ADDITIONAL NATURAL VENTILATION TO WORKSHOP WHEN MACHINERY IS NOT IN USE. DOOR OPENINGS WILL PROVIDE A COMBINED OPENING AREA OF 9.06n² TO SUIT THE WORKSHOP FLOOR AREA OF 120.82m² (MINIMUM 400mm² PER 1m² VENTILATION REQUIRED), IN ACCORDANCE WITH BUILDING STANDARD 3.14.2. ALTERNATIVELY A PROPRIETARY SINGLE LOUVRED VENT MAY BE FITTED WITHIN EXTERNAL WALL, ENSURING MINIMUM 48,328mm² OPENING AREA IS REACHED. TRICKLE VENTS WITHIN WINDOWS TO PROVIDE COMPENSATORY VENTILATION FOR MECHANICAL EXTRACTION, AS REQUIRED, PROVIDING MINIMUM 16,000mm² OPENING AREA. EXTRACT FAN TO BE PROVIDED WITHIN NEW WC, AS SHOWN. EXTRACTION FAN TO PROVIDE MINIMUM 3 AIR CHANGES PER HOUR. FAN TO BE DUCTED TO OUTSIDE THROUGH EXTERNAL WALL. ALL VENTILATION REQUIREMENTS TO COMPLY WITH GUIDANCE IN CIBSE GUIDE B:2001. COMPENSATORY TRICKLE VENT TO BE PROVIDED WITHIN WC, DUCTED ABOVE TO OUTSIDE THROUGH EXTERNAL WALL. TRICKLE VENT SHOULD BE INDEPENDENT FROM THE EXTRACT DUCT. TRICKLE VENTS TO PROVIDE MINIMUM 4,000mm² OPENING AREA. EXTRACT FAN TO BE PROVIDED WITHIN NEW STAFF/CANTEEN AREA, AS SHOWN. EXTRACTION FAN TO PROVIDE MINIMUM ONE AIR CHANGE PER HOUR. FAN TO BE DUCTED BELOW CEILING ACROSS LOBBY AND THROUGH WC TO OUTSIDE THROUGH EXTERNAL WALL AS INDICATED ON THE PROPOSED LAYOUT PLAN. ALL VENTILATION REQUIREMENTS TO COMPLY WITH GUIDANCE IN CIBSE GUIDE B:2001. COMPENSATORY TRICKLE VENT TO BE PROVIDED WITHIN STAFF/CANTEEN, DUCTED ABOVE TO OUTSIDE THROUGH EXTERNAL FRONT WALL. TRICKLE VENT SHOULD BE INDEPENDENT FROM THE EXTRACT DUCT. TRICKLE VENTS TO PROVIDE MINIMUM 4,000mm² OPENING AREA. ALL TRICKLE VENTS SHOULD BE FITTED AS FAR AS POSSIBLE FROM EACH EXTRACT FAN TO PREVENT SHORT-CIRCUIT OF AIR CIRCULATION. VENTS SHOULD BE FITTED AT A HEIGHT NO LESS THAN 1750mm FROM FINISHED FLOOR LEVEL. PLUMBING, HEATING & HOT WATER EXISTING MAINS WATER SUPPLY TO BE RETAINED. ELECTRIC SLIMLINE HEATING PANELS OR FAN HEATERS TO BE INSTALLED WITHIN EACH ROOMSPACE, AS SHOWN ON THE PROPOSED FLOOR LAYOUT PLAN. ALL NEW ALL NEW RADIATORS TO BE SIZED ACCORDINGLY FOR EACH ROOMSPACE/VOLUME. ALL HEATING SYSTEMS TO BE DESIGNED AND DETAILED BY SPECIALIST HEATING ENGINEER, AND IT SHOULD BE DESIGNED TO ACHIEVE THE FOLLOWING RECOMMENDED WINTER DRY RESULTANT TEMPERATURES, IN ACCORDANCE WITH CIBSE GUIDE B:2005 - WORKSHOP    16-19 C 16-19°CLOBBY    19-21 C 19-21°CWC     19-21 C 19-21°CSTAFF/CANTEEN   19-21 C 19-21°CTHE HEATING SYSTEM SHOULD BE FITTED WITH SUITABLE TIME CONTROL AND ROOM THERMOSTATS. THE CONTROL SYSTEMS FOR THE HEATING AND VENTILATION INSTALLATIONS SHOULD BE SET TO AVOID SIMULTANEOUS HEATING AND COOLING OF A ROOM. ALL SWITCHES, TIMERS AND GENERAL SETTINGS FOR THE HEATING SYSTEM SHOULD BE DESIGNED TO PROVIDE TAMPERPROOF CONTROLS. THE HEATING SYSTEM MUST BE INSPECTED, COMMISSIONED AND TESTED IN ACCORDANCE WITH MANUFACTURERS INSTRUCTIONS TO ENSURE OPTIMUM EFFICIENCY. WRITTEN INFORMATION MUST BE PROVIDED FOR THE USE OF THE OCCUPIER ON THE OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE OF ALL HEATING SYSTEM APPLIANCES. A LOGBOOK SHOULD BE PROVIDED AND CONTAIN INFORMATION ABOUT ALL ASPECTS OF ENERGY SYSTEM OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE TO ENABLE THE OCCUPIER TO OPTIMISE THE USE OF FUEL, WHICH SHOULD ALSO INCLUDE DETAILED INFORMATION ON BUILDING SERVICES, PLANT AND CONTROLS. ONCE COMMISSIONED, THE HEATING ENGINEER SHOULD ALSO PROVIDE A LIST OF RECOMMENDATIONS THAT WILL IMPROVE THE OVERALL ENERGY EFFICIENCY OF THE SYSTEM, WITH ALL INFORMATION UPDATED IN THE LOGBOOK. HOT WATER TO STAFF/CANTEEN SINK AND WHB WITHIN WC TO BE PROVIDED FROM INSTANTANEOUS WATER HEATER (HEATRAE SADIA MULTIPOINT 7kW INSTANTANEOUS WATER HEATER, OR EQUAL) LOCATED IN EACH ROOMSPACE, AS REQURIED. ALL NEW HOT AND COLD PIPES TO BE INSULATED WITH 25mm THICK `TUBOLIT' OR SIMILAR AND APPROVED INSULATION. ALL BUILDING SERVICES SHOULD BE INSPECTED AND COMMISSIONED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE MANUFACTURERS WRITTEN INSTRUCTION TO ENSURE OPTIMUM ENERGY EFFICIENCY. THE BUILDING SHOULD HAVE TEST POINTS AND MEASURING DEVICES TO ENABLE INSPECTION, TESTING AND COMMISSIONING TO BE CARRIED OUT, ALL IN ACCORDANCE WITH BUILDING STANDARD 6.7.1. THE OWNER OF THE BUILDING SHALL BE GIVEN WRITTEN INSTRUCTION REGARDING THE OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE OF THE HOT WATER SYSTEMS. NEW SANITARY FITTINGS TO HAVE MINIMUM WASTE SIZES AS FOLLOWS: WHB  32mm 32mm SINK  38mm 38mm WC  100mm. 100mm. FIT A DEEP SEAL ANTI-SYPHON TRAP TO ALL WHB AND SINKS. FIRE ESCAPE & ALARM NEW L1 FIRE ALARM SYSTEM TO BE INSTALLED, PROVIDING EARLY DETECTION. SPECIALIST INSTALLER TO DESIGN, DETAIL, COMMISSION AND MAINTAIN ALARM SYSTEMS. SEE LAYOUT PLAN FOR INSTALLATION LOCATIONS, INCLUDING CENTRAL CONTROL PANEL. EXACT LOCATIONS TO BE DETERMINED ON SITE WITH SPECIALIST INSTALLER. A WRITTEN FIRE ALARM EVACUATION STRATEGY SHOULD BE PROVIDED AND DISPLAYED IN A PROMINENT LOCATION, AT OR NEAR THE MAIN ENTRANCE TO EACH AREA. EXISTING EMERGENCY LIGHTING TO BE INSTALLED, AS INDICATED ON THE PROPOSED LAYOUT PLANS, TAKING INTO ACCOUNT THE PROPOSED FIRE ESCAPE ROUTES.

AutoCAD SHX Text_21
NEW COURTYARD FENCE/GATE NEW 2000mm HIGH FENCE TO BE FORMED ACROSS COURTYARD AREA, AS INDICATED ON THE PROPOSED FLOOR LAYOUT PLAN, WITH ACCESS GATE PROVIDING RIGHT OF ACCESS TO ADJOINING PROPERTY FOR ANY REQUIRED MAINTENANCE TO ANY DRAINAGE SERVING THE PROPERTY. NOTE - ADJACENT PROPERTY HAS NO OWNERSHIP OF COURTYARD OTHER THAN FOR MAINTENANCE ACCESS AND TO GAIN ACCESS TO SHARED FORMER BOILER HOUSE. NEW TIMBER POSTS TO BE FORMED WITH MINIMUM 95x95mm SOLID TIMBERS. POSTS TO BE PROVIDED AT 1.8m MAXIMUM CENTRES AND TO EACH SIDE OF THE ACCESS GATE. SOLID TIMBER POSTS TO BE BUILT INTO PAD FOUNDATIONS. FORMATION LEVELS FOR ALL FOUNDATIONS TO BE A MINIMUM OF 600mm BELOW EXISTING GROUND LEVEL, WITH A MINIMUM COVER TO TOP OF ALL FOUNDATIONS FROM FINISHED GROUND LEVELS TO BE 450mm. PAD FOUNDATIONS EACH TO BE A MINIMUM OF 450x450x200mm DEEP, BUT SHOULD BE INCREASED DEPENDANT ON GROUND CONDITIONS. MINIMUM 25x45mm BATTENS TO BE SECURED TO FACE OF POSTS WITH 19x150mm TIMBERS FIXED VERTICALLY IN CLOSED BOARD FASHION. EXISTING CONCRETE HARDSTAND TO BE BROKEN OUT LOCALLY TO ALLOW FORMATION OF PAD FOUNDATIONS TO SUPPORT POSTS, AND REINSTATED ONCE COMPLETE. NEW FENCE SHOULD NOT IMPEDE THE ROUTE OF ANY ESCAPE IN ANY WAY. ACCESS ARRANGEMENTS NEW PERSONNEL DOOR AND LARGE ACCESS DOOR TO WORKSHOP PROVIDED AS INDICATED ON THE PROPOSED FLOOR LAYOUT PLAN. LEVEL ACCESS TO BE PROVIDED AT PERSONNEL DOOR, TO SUIT NEW RAISED FLOOR HEIGHT. EXISTING CONCRETE HARDSTAND TO BE BROKEN OUT LOCALLY, WITH GROUND LEVELS RAISED TO FORM MINIMUM 1500x1500mm LEVEL LANDING PLATT IN FRONT OF DOOR. CONCRETE HARDSTAND TO BE REINSTATED ALLOWING FOR MAXIMUM 1:12 GRADIENT FORMING ACCESS RAMP UP TO LEVEL LANDING. LANDING AND RAMP EXTENDED ACROSS LARGE ACCESS DOOR, AS INDICATED. OVERALL RISE TO BE NO GREATER THAN 150mm. MAXIMUM LENGTH OF ACCESS RAMP AT 1:12 GRADIENT SHOULD NOT EXCEED 2m. THE NEW PERSONNEL/ENTRANCE DOOR SHOULD HAVE A MINIMUM CLEAR OPENING WIDTH OF 900mm, MEASURED FROM THE ADJACENT DOOR FRAME/STOP TO THE FACE OF THE OPEN DOOR. THE DOOR SHOULD HAVE A MINIMUM CLEAR SPACE OF 300mm ADJACENT TO THE LEADING EDGE OF THE DOOR. ALL NEW INTERNAL PASS DOORS TO HAVE MINIMUM CLEAR OPENING WIDTH OF 825mm. CLEAR OPENING WIDTH MAY BE REDUCED TO 800mm WHERE DOOR IS APPROACHED HEAD-ON. NEW DOOR FITTED ACROSS A CIRCULATION SPACE (LOBBY) TO BE PROVIDED WITH GLAZED VISION PANELS, PROVIDING A ZONE OF VISIBILITY OF NOT MORE THAN 500mm TO AT LEAST 1500mm ABOVE FINISHED FLOOR LEVEL. THE VISION PANEL MAY BE INTERRUPTED BY A SOLID ELEMENT BETWEEN 800mm AND 1150mm ABOVE FLOOR LEVEL, ALL IN ACCORDANCE WITH BUILDING STANDARD 4.1.7. MINIMUM 300mm WIDE, UNOBSTRUCTED SPACE TO BE PROVIDED AT LEADING EDGE OF ALL NEW PASS DOORS (DIMENSIONED AS REQUIRED) IN ACCORDANCE WITH BUILDING STANDARD 4.2.5.



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Stuart Patterson

email - stuartpattersondesign@gmail.com
phone - 01450 375772

Roxburghshire, TD9 0DZ

Building & Timber Frame Design

5 Burnflat Lane, Hawick,

P
age 11

AutoCAD SHX Text_22
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_23
SCALES

AutoCAD SHX Text_24
30/8/19

AutoCAD SHX Text_25
19-673-2001

AutoCAD SHX Text_26
1:50..

AutoCAD SHX Text_27
REVISION

AutoCAD SHX Text_28
DRAWING No.

AutoCAD SHX Text_29
/

AutoCAD SHX Text_30
S J Cranston Joinery

AutoCAD SHX Text_31
PROPOSED CHANGE OF USE & ALTERATION AT

AutoCAD SHX Text_32
FORMER BUCCLEUCH HOTEL,

AutoCAD SHX Text_33
1 TRINITY STREET, HAWICK.

AutoCAD SHX Text_34
DRAWING TITLE

AutoCAD SHX Text_35
PROJECT

AutoCAD SHX Text_36
CLIENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_37
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_38
REVISION

AutoCAD SHX Text_39
INDEX

AutoCAD SHX Text_40
%%UProposed Basement Layout

AutoCAD SHX Text_41
Staff/Canteen

AutoCAD SHX Text_42
Workshop

AutoCAD SHX Text_43
Courtyard

AutoCAD SHX Text_44
Boiler Room

AutoCAD SHX Text_45
JOIST SPAN

AutoCAD SHX Text_46
JOIST SPAN

AutoCAD SHX Text_47
JOIST SPAN

AutoCAD SHX Text_48
JOIST SPAN

AutoCAD SHX Text_49
JOIST SPAN

AutoCAD SHX Text_50
CONCRETE FLOOR OVER

AutoCAD SHX Text_51
CONCRETE FLOOR OVER

AutoCAD SHX Text_52
JOIST SPAN

AutoCAD SHX Text_53
Workshop

AutoCAD SHX Text_54
Store

AutoCAD SHX Text_55
926

AutoCAD SHX Text_56
926

AutoCAD SHX Text_57
926

AutoCAD SHX Text_58
wc

AutoCAD SHX Text_59
Lobby

AutoCAD SHX Text_60
926

AutoCAD SHX Text_61
926

AutoCAD SHX Text_62
950x2100

AutoCAD SHX Text_63
3500x2400

AutoCAD SHX Text_64
PROPOSED BASEMENT LAYOUT

AutoCAD SHX Text_65
INTERMEDIATE SWITCH POINT.

AutoCAD SHX Text_66
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_67
FEATURE SPOT LIGHT.

AutoCAD SHX Text_68
EXTERNAL LIGHT.

AutoCAD SHX Text_69
PENDANT LIGHT FITTING.

AutoCAD SHX Text_70
INDICATOR SWITCH FOR EXTRACT FAN.

AutoCAD SHX Text_71
FLUORESCENT STRIP LIGHT.

AutoCAD SHX Text_72
%%UELECTRICAL LEGEND

AutoCAD SHX Text_73
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_74
FUSED SPUR OUTLET.

AutoCAD SHX Text_75
ONE-WAY SWITCH POINT.

AutoCAD SHX Text_76
TWO-WAY SWITCH POINT.

AutoCAD SHX Text_77
DOUBLE 13AMP S.S. OUTLET.

AutoCAD SHX Text_78
SINGLE 13AMP S.S. OUTLET.

AutoCAD SHX Text_79
SOCKET OUTLETS TO BE LOCATED A MINIMUM OF 350mm FROM

AutoCAD SHX Text_80
ABOVE FINISHED FLOOR LEVEL. ANY SOCKETS LOCATED ABOVE AN

AutoCAD SHX Text_81
ANY INTERNAL CORNER, AND POSITIONED BETWEEN 400-1200mm

AutoCAD SHX Text_82
OBSTRUCTION (KITCHEN WORKTOP) SHOULD BE LOCATED A MINIMUM

AutoCAD SHX Text_83
OF 150mm ABOVE PROJECTING SURFACE.

AutoCAD SHX Text_84
ANY CONCEALED SOCKET OUTLETS (TO REAR OF KITCHEN WHITE

AutoCAD SHX Text_85
GOODS) TO BE PROVIDED WITH SEPARATE ISOLATION SWITCH IN

AutoCAD SHX Text_86
ACCESSIBLE LOCATION.

AutoCAD SHX Text_87
LIGHT SWITCHES TO BE POSITIONED BETWEEN 900-1100mm ABOVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_88
FINISHED FLOOR LEVEL.

AutoCAD SHX Text_89
ANY RECESSED SPOT LIGHTS/DOWNLIGHTERS TO BE FITTED WITH

AutoCAD SHX Text_90
ONE-HOUR FIRE RESISTANT SHROUDS, AND SHOULD BE CERTIFIED

AutoCAD SHX Text_91
COMPLIANT WITH BS EN ISO 140-3:1995 AND BS EN ISO 140-6:1998

AutoCAD SHX Text_92
FOR SOUND INSULATION/ACOUSTICS WITHIN SEPARATING FLOOR.

AutoCAD SHX Text_93
EXACT ELECTRICAL LAYOUT TO BE AGREED ON SITE WITH CLIENT.

AutoCAD SHX Text_94
INTERNAL DRAINAGE LAYOUT SHOWN THUS -

AutoCAD SHX Text_95
ALL ELECTRICS TO COMPLY WITH BS. 7671 2018, AND TO BE CERTIFIED BY A SELECT REGISTERED ELECTRICIAN. CERTIFICATE OF COMPLIANCE/INSTALLATION TO BE PROVIDED TO BUILDING CONTROL PRIOR TO ISSUE OF COMPLETION CERTIFICATE FOR WORKS.

AutoCAD SHX Text_96
ELECTRICAL CONSUMER UNIT.

AutoCAD SHX Text_97
CEILING MOUNTED EXTRACT FAN.

AutoCAD SHX Text_98
ALL LIGHTING AND CONTROLS TO BE DESIGNED AND INSTALLED

AutoCAD SHX Text_99
TO THE GUIDANCE GIVEN IN THE CIBSE `CODE FOR LIGHTING 2002'

AutoCAD SHX Text_100
TO PROMOTE ENERGY EFFICIENCY THROUGHOUT THE BUILDING.

AutoCAD SHX Text_101
EXACT HEATER POSITIONS TO BE AGREED ON SITE WITH CLIENT.

AutoCAD SHX Text_102
%%UHEATING LEGEND

AutoCAD SHX Text_103
PROPOSED HEATER POSITION.

AutoCAD SHX Text_104
SEE PROJECT SPECIFICATION FOR FULL HEATING AND HOT WATER INSTALLATION REQUIREMENTS. ALL WATER PIPES TO BE SUITABLY INSULATED/LAGGED IN ACCORDANCE WITH BS.5422 : 2009.

AutoCAD SHX Text_105
WALL MOUNTED EXTRACT FAN.

AutoCAD SHX Text_106
EL

AutoCAD SHX Text_107
250w LOW BAY LIGHT FITTINGS

AutoCAD SHX Text_108
FIRE ESCAPE NOTES ALL NEW DESIGNATED FIRE ESCAPE DOORS TO BE FITTED WITH EMERGENCY EGRESS LATCHES TO INNER FACE SUITABLE FOR EMERGENCY OPERATION WITHOUT THE USE OF A KEY. LATCHES TO BE FITTED IN ACCORDANCE WITH BS.EN:1125:1997. ANY PASS DOORS THAT REQUIRE TO BE LOCKED SHOULD ALSO BE FITTED WITH A FASTENING WHICH WILL ALLOW EMERGENCY OPENING WITHOUT THE USE OF A KEY, SIMILAR TO THE EXTERNAL DOORS. NO LOCKS FITTED TO ALL OTHER DOORS. FIRE DOOR LOCKS TO BE FITTED IN ACCORDANCE WITH BUILDING STANDARD 2.9.15. A FIRE SAFETY DESIGN SUMMARY SHALL BE PREPARED FOR THE PROPERTY, AND SUBMITTED TO THE COUNCIL ON SUBMISSION OF THE COMPLETION CERTIFICATE APPLICATION. THE FSDS SHALL CLARIFY AND CONFIRM ALL SERVICES, FITTINGS AND EQUIPMENT IN RELATION TO THE OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE OF THE BUILDING FOR FIRE SAFETY PURPOSES.

AutoCAD SHX Text_109
ALARM SOUNDER

AutoCAD SHX Text_110
BREAK-GLASS POINT.

AutoCAD SHX Text_111
OPTICAL SMOKE DETECTOR

AutoCAD SHX Text_112
SM

AutoCAD SHX Text_113
HEAT DETECTOR

AutoCAD SHX Text_114
HD

AutoCAD SHX Text_115
FIRE ALARM SYSTEM:

AutoCAD SHX Text_116
ESCAPE ROUTE LIGHTING

AutoCAD SHX Text_117
A WRITTEN FIRE ALARM EVACUATION STRATEGY SHOULD BE PROVIDED AND DISPLAYED IN A PROMINENT LOCATION, AT OR NEAR THE MAIN ENTRANCE TO EACH AREA.

AutoCAD SHX Text_118
CONTROL

AutoCAD SHX Text_119
BREAK GLASS CALL POINTS SHOULD BE MOUNTED 1.4m FROM THE FLOOR AND SITED WHERE THEY CAN EASILY BE SEEN. MANUAL CALL POINTS SHOULD BE SITED AT EXITS TO OPEN AIR WITH EXTRA CALL POINTS TO BE PROVIDED SO THE GREATEST TRAVEL DISTANCE FROM ANY POINT IN THE BUILDING TO THE NEAREST CALL POINT DOES NOT EXCEED 30m.

AutoCAD SHX Text_120
ALARM SOUNDERS SHOULD BE AUDIBLE THROUGHOUT THE BUILDING WITH A MINIMUM SOUND LEVEL OF EITHER 65db(A) OR 5db(A) ABOVE ANY BACKGROUND NOISE LIKELY TO PERSIST FOR LONGER THAN 30 SECONDS, WHICHEVER IS THE GREATER. THESE AUDIBILITY LEVELS MUST BE PRODUCED WITH ALL DOORS SHUT. AT LEAST ONE SOUNDER SHOULD BE INSTALLED IN EACH FIRE COMPARTMENT.

AutoCAD SHX Text_121
L1 FIRE ALARM SYSTEM TO BE INSTALLED AND COMMISSIONED TO BS.5839-1, TO THE RECOMMENDATIONS OF SECTIONS 4 AND 5. FIRE ALARM SYSTEM TO BE MAINTAINED IN ACCORDANCE WITH BS.5839-1, SECTION 6. EXACT DETAILS OF L1 FIRE AND SMOKE ALARM SYSTEM TO BE PROVIDED BY SPECIALIST CONTRACTOR/INSTALLER. ESCAPE ROUTE LIGHTING AND ALARM SYSTEM TO BE INSTALLED ON SEPARATE, PROTECTED CIRCUITS. ALL DETECTORS AND SOUNDERS/ALARMS INTERLINKED. EXACT POSITIONS OF ALL LIGHTING, CALL POINTS, SOUNDERS AND DETECTION SYSTEMS FITTED TO BE DETERMINED ON SITE, IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE BRITISH STANDARDS. ALL ELECTRICAL INSTALLATIONS TO COMPLY WITH BS. 7671 2018, AND TO BE CERTIFIED BY A SELECT REGISTERED ELECTRICIAN. CERTIFICATE OF COMPLIANCE/INSTALLATION TO BE PROVIDED TO BUILDING CONTROL PRIOR TO ISSUE OF COMPLETION CERTIFICATE FOR WORKS.

AutoCAD SHX Text_122
FIRE ALARM CONTROL PANEL (LOCATED AT MAIN ENTRANCE TO BUILDING).

AutoCAD SHX Text_123
SMOKE DETECTORS SHOULD BE SITED SO THAT THE SENSING ELEMENT IS NOT LESS THAN 25mm, AND NOT MORE THAN 600mm BELOW THE CEILING OR ROOF. UNDER FLAT, HORIZONTAL CEILINGS AND CORRIDORS MORE THAN 5m WIDE, THE MAXIMUM DISTANCE BETWEEN DETECTORS SHOULD NOT EXCEED 7.5m. NARROWER CORRIDOR WIDTHS MAY HAVE EXTENDED DISTANCES BETWEEN DETECTORS, IN ACCORDANCE WITH BS.5839. SMOKE DETECTION SYSTEM TO BE EXTENDED INTO ROOF VOIDS WHERE APPLICABLE, PROVIDING ADDITIONAL VOID PROTECTION TO THE L2 SYSTEM. EXACT FIRE DETECTION SYSTEM AND DETECTOR LOCATIONS TO BE DESIGNED BY SPECIALIST CONTRACTOR.

AutoCAD SHX Text_124
%%UFIRE ALARM/EMERGENCY LIGHTING

AutoCAD SHX Text_125
1600x300

AutoCAD SHX Text_126
1600x300

AutoCAD SHX Text_127
CONTROL

AutoCAD SHX Text_128
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_129
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_130
TV

AutoCAD SHX Text_131
EF

AutoCAD SHX Text_132
EF

AutoCAD SHX Text_133
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_134
EL

AutoCAD SHX Text_135
EL

AutoCAD SHX Text_136
EL

AutoCAD SHX Text_137
EL

AutoCAD SHX Text_138
EL

AutoCAD SHX Text_139
TV

AutoCAD SHX Text_140
V.

AutoCAD SHX Text_141
TV

AutoCAD SHX Text_142
SOIL

AutoCAD SHX Text_143
AAV

AutoCAD SHX Text_144
EXISTING EXTERNAL DOOR ADJACENT TO NEW WC AND INTERNAL PASS DOOR INTO BOILER ROOM (SHARED WITH NEIGHBOURING PROPERTY) TO BE REMOVED WITH OPENINGS PERMANENTLY BLOCKED UP WITH BRICK/BLOCKWORK CONSTRUCTION PRIOR TO FRAMING AND INSULATING WALLS INTERNALLY. SEE PROJECT SPECIFICATION FOR FULL DETAILS OF BLOCKED UP OPENINGS. ACCESS TO BOILER ROOM MAINTAINED THROUGH RETAINED EXTERNAL DOOR OFF SHARED COURTYARD.

AutoCAD SHX Text_145
NOTE ALL UNFINISHED OR PARTIALLY COMPLETE PARTS OF THE BUILDING TO BE KEPT SECURE DURING THE FULL PERIOD OF WORKS, TO COMPLY WITH REGULATION 15 OF THE BUILDING STANDARDS.

AutoCAD SHX Text_146
WORKSHOP VENTILATION NOTES PROPOSED WINDOWS TO BE NON-OPENING TO RESTRICT ANY POTENTIAL NOISE DISTURBANCE. NATURAL VENTILATION CAN STILL BE ACHIEVED THROUGH OPENING DOORS, BUT DOORS SHOULD BE CLOSED DURING HOURS OF OPERATION AND MACHINERY USE. VENTILATION TO BE PROVIDED WITHIN WORKSHOP THROUGH MINIMUM 2No. EXTRACT FANS DUCTED TRHOUGH NEW EXTERNAL REAR WALLS, AS SHOWN. TOTAL COMBINED VENTILATION SHOULD PROVIDE A MINIMUM 1.5-2.5 AIR CHANGES PER HOUR, IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE GUIDANCE SET OUT IN CIBSE GUIDE B:2001, AND BUILDING STANDARD 3.14.5. THE MECHANICAL VENTILATION SYSTEM SHOULD BE DESIGNED AND INSTALLED TO ENSURE THE AVOIDANCE OF CONTAMINATION BY LEGIONELLA. THE SYSTEM SHOULD BE CONSTRUCTED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE RECOMMENDATIONS OF `LEGIONNAIRES DISEASE: THE CONTROL OF LEGIONELLA BACTERIA IN WATER SYSTEMS - APPROVED CODE OF PRACTICE AND GUIDANCE - HSE L8'. THE MECHANICAL VENTILATION SYSTEM TO BE DESIGNED AND INSTALLED BY SPECIALIST SUPPLIER, SIZED ACCORDINGLY FOR ENERGY EFFICIENCY. WHERE APPLICABLE, FANS SHOULD BE FITTED WITH VARIABLE SPEED MOTORS AND VARIABLE PITCH FANS TO OPTIMISE PERFORMANCE AT PART LOAD. TEMPERATURE SENSORS SHOULD BE PROVIDED, SET TO MINIMUM ENERGY CONSUMPTION FOR THE GIVEN OCCUPANCY OF THE BUILDING. THE CONTROL SYSTEM FOR THE MECHANICAL VENTILATION SHOULD BE SET TO AVOID SIMULTANEOUS HEATING AND COOLING OF THE ROOM. ALL MECHANICAL VENTILATION INSTALLATIONS TO BE DESIGNED AND INSTALLED IN ACCORDANCE WITH BUILDING STANDARDS 6.6.2. AND 6.6.4.

AutoCAD SHX Text_147
DISABLED/ACCESSIBLE TOILET PROVIDED IN ACCORDANCE WITH BUILDING STANDARD 3.12.8. SEE ENLARGED DETAIL FOR FULL INSTALLATION REQUIREMENTS. COMPENSATORY/TRICKLE VENTILATION TO BE PROVIDED TO WC. TRICKLE VENT TO BE TAKEN THROUGH EXTERNAL WALL TO OUTSIDE AIR, INDEPENDENTLY FROM EXTRACT FAN DUCT, AS SHOWN. TRICKLE VENT TO PROVIDE MINIMUM 4,000mm OPENING AREA. WALL MOUNTED EXTRACT FAN TO BE PROVIDED WITHIN NEW WC AREA, DUCTED TO OUTSIDE THROUGH EXTERNAL WALL, TO OUTSIDE AIR. EXTRACT FAN TO PROVIDE A MINIMUM OF THREE AIR CHANGES PER HOUR IN ACCORDANCE WITH BUILDING STANDARD 3.14.5. DOOR TO WC TO BE FITTED WITH A PRIVACY LOCK WITH AN EMERGENCY RELEASE WHICH CAN BE OPERABLE FROM THE OUTSIDE, AND ALSO OFFER AN ALTERNATE MEANS OF REMOVAL TO PERMIT ACCESS IN EVENT OF AN EMERGENCY. EXTRACT FAN OUTLET FROM STAFF/CANTEEN AREA, AS NOTED OVER.

AutoCAD SHX Text_148
NEW 2.0m HIGH TIMBER FENCE ERECTED TO SEPARATE PROPERTIES/ COURTYARD GROUND. NEIGHBOURING PROPERTY HAS RIGHT OF ACCESS ONLY TO COURTYARD FOR MAINTENANCE AND DRAINAGE ACCESS. ACCESS GATE FORMED WITHIN NEW FENCE TO PROVIDE ACCESS, AS SHOWN. SEE PROJECT SPECIFICATION FOR FULL DETAILS.

AutoCAD SHX Text_149
LOBBY TO HAVE MINIMUM 750x1600mm MANOEUVRING SPACE, POSITIONED CLEAR OF ANY OBSTACLE OR DOOR SWING. TO ASSIST GENERAL HYGIENE REQUIREMENTS, A SUITABLE VENTILATED CORRIDOR/SPACE (LOBBY) TO BE PROVIDED BETWEEN THE WC AREA AND THE STAFF/CANTEEN IN ACCORDANCE WITH BUILDING STANDARD 3.12.6. TRICKLE VENTILATION TO BE PROVIDED TO LOBBY WITH VENT TAKEN THROUGH NEW PARTITION TO ADJACENT WORKSHOP, AS SHOWN, TRICKLE VENT SHOULD BE POSITIONED AT A HEIGHT NO LESS THAN 1750mm ABOVE FLOOR LEVEL, AND SHALL PROVIDE A MINIMUM OF 4,000mm² OPENING AREA. MINIMUM 300mm PROVIDED AT LEADING EDGE OF ANY DOOR THAT MAY BE ACCESSED BY A WHEELCHAIR USER, AS DIMENSIONED/INDICATED.

AutoCAD SHX Text_150
WALL MOUNTED EXTRACT FAN TO BE PROVIDED WITHIN STAFF/CANTEEN AREA, DUCTED BELOW CEILING ACROSS LOBBY AND WC TO OUTSIDE THROUGH EXTERNAL WALL. EXTRACT FAN WITHIN STAFF/CANTEEN AREA TO PROVIDE A MINIMUM OF ONE AIR CHANGE PER HOUR IN ACCORDANCE WITH BUILDING STANDARD 3.14.5. COMPENSATORY TRICKLE/NATURAL VENTILATION TO BE PROVIDED TO STAFF/CANTEEN AREA WITH VENT FITTED AT HIGH LEVEL THROUGH FRONT WALL, DUCTED TO OUTSIDE AIR. VENT SHOULD BE POSITIONED AT A HEIGHT NO LESS THAN 1750mm ABOVE FLOOR LEVEL, AND SHALL PROVIDE A MINIMUM OF 4,000mm² OPENING AREA.

AutoCAD SHX Text_151
Pend Access

AutoCAD SHX Text_152
St.

AutoCAD SHX Text_153
SM

AutoCAD SHX Text_154
SM

AutoCAD SHX Text_155
SM

AutoCAD SHX Text_156
SM

AutoCAD SHX Text_157
SM

AutoCAD SHX Text_158
ALTHOUGH NO SIGN OF DAMP PENETRATION THROUGH EXISTING WALLS LOCATED BELOW GROUND LEVEL, IT IS RECOMMENDED THAT THESE AREAS SHOULD BE SUITABLY TANKED/WATERPROOFED PRIOR TO FRAMING AND INSULATING WALLS INTERNALLY. SEE PROJECT SPECIFICATION AND SECTION FOR FULL DETAILS OF TANKING REQUIREMENTS. EXACT EXTENT OF TANKING REQUIREMENTS TO BE CHECKED ON SITE.

AutoCAD SHX Text_159
EXISTING CLEAR OPENINGS TO FORMER GARAGE/LOCK-UP AREA TO BE FULLY ENCLOSED WITH NEW TIMBER FRAME WALLS, BUILT OFF SUITABLE FOUNDATION AND UNDERBUILDING. SEE PROJECT SPECIFICATION FOR FULL DETAILS OF NEW EXTERNAL WALL CONSTRUCTION REQUIREMENTS. 2No. 1600x300mm NON-OPENING HIGH LEVEL WINDOWS FITTED WITHIN NEW EXTERNAL WALLS FOR NATURAL LIGHT TO WORKSHOP. WINDOWS TO BE NON-OPENING TO RESTRICT ANY POTENTIAL NOISE DISTURBANCE AND PROVIDE EXTRA SECURITY. NEW 950x2100mm PERSONNEL ACCESS DOOR, COMPLETE WITH LEVEL ACCESS BETWEEN COURTYARD AND INTERNAL FLOOR HEIGHTS. EXTERNAL GROUND/HARDSTAND TO BE RAISED LOCALLY IN FRONT OF NEW DOORS TO ACCOMMODATE RAISED FLOOR LEVEL. MINIMUM 1500x1500mm LEVEL LANDING TO BE PROVIDED IN FRONT OF NEW PERSONNEL DOOR, AND DOOR FITTED WITH LEVEL THRESHOLD WEATHERBAR, SUITABLE FOR UNASSISTED WHEELCHAIR ACCESS. SEE PROJECT SPECIFICATION FOR FULL DETAILS. NEW 3500x2400mm ACCESS DOOR, SUITABLE FOR LARGE ITEM DELIVERY AND ACCESS TO WORKSHOP. ALL EXISTING EXPOSED STRUCTURAL STEELWORK TO BE CLEANED, TREATED AND PAINTED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE DETAILS IN THE PROJECT SPECIFICATION.

AutoCAD SHX Text_160
LOCATION OF PORTABLE DUST/WOOD CHIP EXTRACTION SYSTEM FOR CONNECTION TO INDIVIDUAL WOOD WORKING MACHINES. EXTRACTION UNIT HAS A 220V-240V POWER REQUIREMENT WITH 1HP MOTOR FOR SINGLE BAG COLLECTION ONLY. ALTHOUGH PORTABLE, FIXED DUCTING MAY BE SECURED TO UNDERSIDE OF CEILING TO EACH MACHINE TO ALLOW PERMANENT LOCATION OF EXTRACTION UNIT TO LOCATION SHOWN. ALL DUCTING FORMED WITH 100mm  FLEXIBLEDUCT, AND INSTALLED TO THE MANUFACTURERS WRITTEN INSTRUCTION AND DETAIL, ENSURING MAXIMUM LENGTH OF DUCT RUN IS NOT EXCEEDED.

AutoCAD SHX Text_161
TRICKLE/NATURAL VENTILATION TO BE PROVIDED TO STORAGE AREA WITH VENT FITTED AT HIGH LEVEL THROUGH FRONT WALL, DUCTED TO OUTSIDE AIR. VENT SHOULD BE POSITIONED AT A HEIGHT NO LESS THAN 1750mm ABOVE FLOOR LEVEL, AND SHALL PROVIDE A MINIMUM OF 4,000mm² OPENING AREA. ALL EXPOSED WALLS TO BE SUITABLY FRAMED OUT, INSULATED AND BOARDED INTERNALLY. SEE PROJECT SPECIFICATION FOR FULL DETAILS FOR EXISTING WALL LINING. NEW DOOR BETWEEN WORKSHOP AND STORE BELOW CONCRETE STAIRCASE TO UPPER FLOORS TO BE FITTED WITH HALF-HOUR, SELF-CLOSING FIRE DOOR, FITTED WITH SUITABLE INTUMESCENT STRIPS AND SMOKE BRUSH SEALS TO PROVIDE MINIMUM HALF-HOUR FIRE RESISTANCE. DOOR ALSO TO BE INSULATED TYPE, WITH MAXIMUM U-VALUE OF 2.00W/m²K, IN ACCORDANCE WITH TABLE 6.3 TO BUILDING STANDARD 6.2.1. ALLOWING FOR STORAGE AREA TO BE UNINSULATED INTERNALLY. DOOR CLOSER TO BE CONTROLLED TYPE CLOSER IN ACCORDANCE WITH BS EN 1154.

AutoCAD SHX Text_162
EF

AutoCAD SHX Text_163
EF

AutoCAD SHX Text_164
EXIST. SVP

AutoCAD SHX Text_165
EXIST. RWP

AutoCAD SHX Text_166
15/7/20

AutoCAD SHX Text_167
WORKSHOP WINDOW HEIGHT ALTERED.

AutoCAD SHX Text_168
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_169
A



T
his page is intentionally left blank



email - stuartpattersondesign@gmail.com

Stuart Patterson

phone - 01450 375772
Roxburghshire, TD9 0DZ

Building & Timber Frame Design

5 Burnflat Lane, Hawick,

P
age 13

AutoCAD SHX Text_170
PROPOSED ELEVATION NOTES FRONT ELEVATION REMAINS UNAFFECTED BY PROPOSED WORKS, EXCEPT FOR 2No. VENTS THROUGH WALL AT LOW LEVEL. ALL OTHER WORKS COVERED UNDER CARE & REPAIR REQUIREMENTS. NEW INFILL PANELS TO REAR WALL TO BE FINISHED WITH BUTT-JOINTED TIMBER BOARDS. EXACT SPECIES OF TIMBER TO BE DETERMINED, WITH BOARDS PAINTED/STAINED TO CLIENT REQUIREMENTS. ALL PROPOSED FINISHES TO BE CONFIRMED AND APPROVED WITH LOCAL AUTHORITY PLANNING DEPARTMENT PRIOR TO COMMENCEMENT. WHERE EXTERNAL DOOR IS BLOCKED UP (ADJACENT TO NEW WC), BLOCKWORK TO BE FINISHED WITH RENDER, STYLE AND COLOUR TO MATCH EXISTING. ALL EXISTING STEEL SUPPORT STRUCTURE THAT REMAINS EXPOSED TO BE SUITABLY CLEANED OFF AND TREATED/PAINTED AGAINST CORROSION AND TO PROVIDE SUITABLE FIRE PROTECTION. SEE PROJECT SPECIFICATION FOR FULL DETAILS. NEW WINDOWS FORMED IN uPVC FRAMING. WINDOWS TO BE NON-OPENING TO RESTRICT ANY POTENTIAL NOISE DISTURBANCE. NEW WINDOWS TO HAVE VENTS FITTED TO HEAD OF FRAME AS INDICATED. TRICKLE VENTS TO ALLOWING A MINIMUM OPENING AREA OF 4,000mm² TO EACH UNIT, ALLOWING A MINIMUM 16,000mm² COMBINED OPENING AREA TO WORKSHOP. ALL NEW EXTERNAL WINDOWS TO BE DOUBLE GLAZED AND ACHIEVE MAXIMUM U-VALUE OF 2.00W/m²K. NEW EXTERNAL PERSONNEL DOOR TO ACHIEVE MAXIMUM U-VALUE OF 2.00W/m²K, AND LARGE WORKSHOP ACCESS DOORS TO HAVE A MAXIMUM 1.50W/m²K U-VALUE. ALL U-VALUE REQUIREMENTS TO COMPLY WITH TABLE 6.3 TO BUILDING STANDARD 6.2.1. EXACT STYLE OF ALL NEW DOORS TO BE CONFIRMED. ANY NEW WINDOWS WHICH ARE DIRECTLY ADJACENT/COUPLED TO A DOOR, OR WHERE THE CILL HEIGHT TO THE WINDOW IS LESS THAN 800mm FROM FINISHED FLOOR LEVEL, THE WINDOWS ARE TO BE GLAZED WITH TOUGHENED SAFETY GLASS. ANY GLAZING WITHIN ANY DOORSETS (INTERNAL OR EXTERNAL) ARE ALSO TO BE GLAZED WITH TOUGHENED SAFETY GLASS. TOUGHENED SAFETY GLASS TO COMPLY WITH BS.6262:PART4:2005. ALL NEW EXTERNAL DOORS SHOULD MEET THE RECOMMENDATIONS FOR PHYSICAL SECURITY IN `SECTION 2:SECURITY OF DWELLING' OF THE SECURED BY DESIGN PUBLICATION FOR `NEW HOMES 2014' (ALL RELEVANT INFORMATION CAN BE FOUND AT WWW.SECUREDBYDESIGN.COM). ALL NEW DOORS AND WINDOWS TO PROPERTY TO BE DESIGNED AND CONSTRUCTED IN ACCORDANCE WITH BS.7412:2007, AND PROVIDED WITH LOCKS AND HINGES AS LAID OUT IN BUILDING STANDARD 4.13.4, AND CERTIFIED TO BS.PAS 24:2007 FOR DOORS AND BS.7950:1997 FOR WINDOWS FOR SECURITY STANDARDS. ALL DOORS AND WINDOWS TO BE SECURED WITHIN THEIR RESPECTIVE OPENINGS TO THE RECOMMENDATIONS GIVEN IN SECTION 8 OF BS.8213-4:2007, OR TO THE MANUFACTURERS WRITTEN INSTRUCTION, WHERE THESE EXCEED THE RECOMMENDATION WITHIN THE BRITISH STANDARDS. ALL OTHER EXISTING FEATURES TO BE RETAINED/REPAIRED TO EXISTING STANDARDS.

AutoCAD SHX Text_171
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_172
SCALES

AutoCAD SHX Text_173
30/8/19

AutoCAD SHX Text_174
19-673-2002

AutoCAD SHX Text_175
1:50..

AutoCAD SHX Text_176
REVISION

AutoCAD SHX Text_177
DRAWING No.

AutoCAD SHX Text_178
/

AutoCAD SHX Text_179
S J Cranston Joinery

AutoCAD SHX Text_180
PROPOSED CHANGE OF USE & ALTERATION AT

AutoCAD SHX Text_181
FORMER BUCCLEUCH HOTEL,

AutoCAD SHX Text_182
1 TRINITY STREET, HAWICK.

AutoCAD SHX Text_183
DRAWING TITLE

AutoCAD SHX Text_184
PROJECT

AutoCAD SHX Text_185
CLIENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_186
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_187
REVISION

AutoCAD SHX Text_188
INDEX

AutoCAD SHX Text_189
PROPOSED ELEVATIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text_190
%%UProposed Rear Elevation

AutoCAD SHX Text_191
%%UProposed Front Elevation

AutoCAD SHX Text_192
COMPENSATORY TRICKLE VENT TO STAFF/CANTEEN AREA, AS NOTED ON THE PROPOSED FLOOR LAYOUT DRAWING.

AutoCAD SHX Text_193
TRICKLE VENT TO STORAGE AREA OFF WORKSHOP AREA, AS NOTED ON THE PROPOSED FLOOR LAYOUT DRAWING.

AutoCAD SHX Text_194
NO OTHER ALTERATIONS TO FRONT ELEVATION AS PART OF THIS APPLICATION. ANY FURTHER ALTERATIONS TO UPPER FLOORS CARRIED OUT UNDER SEPARATE PLANNING AND BUILDING WARRANT APPLICATIONS.

AutoCAD SHX Text_195
EXIST. RWP

AutoCAD SHX Text_196
EXISTING TIMBER DOORS FOR VEHICULAR ACCESS TO REAR OF BUILDING, WITH INTEGRAL PERSONNEL DOOR, TO BE RETAINED AS SHOWN.

AutoCAD SHX Text_197
EF

AutoCAD SHX Text_198
EF

AutoCAD SHX Text_199
EF

AutoCAD SHX Text_200
EF

AutoCAD SHX Text_201
TV

AutoCAD SHX Text_202
2No. 1600x1600mm NON-OPENING WINDOWS TO WORKSHOP AREA. WINDOWS FITTED WITH TRICKLE VENTS FOR COMPENSATORY VENTILATION FOR MECHANICAL VENTILATION TO ROOMSPACE.

AutoCAD SHX Text_203
TV

AutoCAD SHX Text_204
TV

AutoCAD SHX Text_205
TV

AutoCAD SHX Text_206
TV

AutoCAD SHX Text_207
1600x300

AutoCAD SHX Text_208
1600x300

AutoCAD SHX Text_209
950x2100mm EXTERNAL QUALITY PERSONNEL DOOR. EXACT STYLE TO BE DETERMINED.

AutoCAD SHX Text_210
EXISTING EXTERNAL DOOR TO BE REMOVED WITH OPENING BLOCKED UP. SEE PROPOSED FLOOR LAYOUT AND PROJECT SPECIFICATION FOR FULL DETAILS.

AutoCAD SHX Text_211
EXTRACT FAN OUTLETS TO WC AND STAFF/CANTEEN AREAS, WITH COMPENSATORY TRICKLE VENTILATION TO WC, ALL TAKEN THROUGH REAR WALL TO PROPERTY.

AutoCAD SHX Text_212
MECHANICAL VENTILATION TO WORKSHOP AREA, AS DETAILED ON THE PROPOSED FLOOR LAYOUT DRAWING.

AutoCAD SHX Text_213
NEW 3500x2400mm EXTERNAL QUALITY ACCESS DOOR. EXACT STYLE TO BE DETERMINED.

AutoCAD SHX Text_214
ALL RETAINED STEELWORK EXPOSED TO EXTERNAL CONDITIONS TO BE PAINTED/TREATED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE PROJECT SPECIFICATION.

AutoCAD SHX Text_215
NEW INFILL PANELLING TO REAR WALLS FINISHED WITH BUTT-JOINTED TIMBER LINING. SEE PROJECT SPECIFICATION FOR FULL CONSTRUCTION DETAILS.

AutoCAD SHX Text_216
EXISTING PEND RETAINED FOR VEHICULAR ACCESS TO REAR OF PROPERTY.

AutoCAD SHX Text_217
EXIST. SVP

AutoCAD SHX Text_218
EXTERNAL GROUND LEVELS RAISED LOCALLY AT NEW ENTRANCE DOORS TO ACCOMMODATE RAISED FLOOR HEIGHT. SEE PROPOSED FLOOR LAYOUT AND PROJECT SPECIFICATION FOR FULL DETAILS.

AutoCAD SHX Text_219
15/7/20

AutoCAD SHX Text_220
WORKSHOP WINDOW HEIGHT ALTERED.

AutoCAD SHX Text_221
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_222
A



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Stuart Patterson

email - stuartpattersondesign@gmail.com
phone - 01450 375772

Roxburghshire, TD9 0DZ

Building & Timber Frame Design

5 Burnflat Lane, Hawick,

P
age 15

AutoCAD SHX Text_223
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_224
SCALES

AutoCAD SHX Text_225
15/7/20

AutoCAD SHX Text_226
19-673-4001

AutoCAD SHX Text_227
1:100..

AutoCAD SHX Text_228
REVISION

AutoCAD SHX Text_229
DRAWING No.

AutoCAD SHX Text_230
/

AutoCAD SHX Text_231
S J Cranston Joinery

AutoCAD SHX Text_232
PROPOSED CHANGE OF USE & ALTERATION AT

AutoCAD SHX Text_233
FORMER BUCCLEUCH HOTEL,

AutoCAD SHX Text_234
PROPOSED GROUND & FIRST FLOOR LAYOUTS

AutoCAD SHX Text_235
1 TRINITY STREET, HAWICK.

AutoCAD SHX Text_236
DRAWING TITLE

AutoCAD SHX Text_237
PROJECT

AutoCAD SHX Text_238
CLIENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_239
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_240
REVISION

AutoCAD SHX Text_241
INDEX

AutoCAD SHX Text_242
NOTE GROUND AND FIRST FLOOR LAYOUTS SHOULD BE CONSIDERED DRAFT PROPOSALS, WHICH MAY BE AMENDED PRIOR TO SUBMISSION OF RELEVANT PLANNING APPLICATIONS FOR EACH SUBSEQUENT PHASE. APPLICANT INTENDS TO RETAIN OWNERSHIP OF THE FULL BUILDING.

AutoCAD SHX Text_243
Shop/Display/Retail Area

AutoCAD SHX Text_244
%%UProposed Ground Floor Layout (draft)

AutoCAD SHX Text_245
Store

AutoCAD SHX Text_246
Pend Access

AutoCAD SHX Text_247
%%UProposed First Floor Layout (draft)

AutoCAD SHX Text_248
MASONRY STAIRWELL WALLS WITH TIMBER FRAMING TO ROOM SIDE. EXTERNAL WINDOW AT HALF-LANDING TO STAIRWELL.

AutoCAD SHX Text_249
COOMB LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text_250
COOMB LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text_251
Dis. wc

AutoCAD SHX Text_252
Seating Area

AutoCAD SHX Text_253
Meeting Room

AutoCAD SHX Text_254
Male wc

AutoCAD SHX Text_255
Fem. wc

AutoCAD SHX Text_256
Staff/ Office

AutoCAD SHX Text_257
Servery/ Prep

AutoCAD SHX Text_258
Shop Counter

AutoCAD SHX Text_259
Corridor

AutoCAD SHX Text_260
Bed 2

AutoCAD SHX Text_261
Bed 1

AutoCAD SHX Text_262
Hall

AutoCAD SHX Text_263
Bath

AutoCAD SHX Text_264
Wd.

AutoCAD SHX Text_265
St.

AutoCAD SHX Text_266
Kitchen

AutoCAD SHX Text_267
Lounge

AutoCAD SHX Text_268
Landing

AutoCAD SHX Text_269
Lounge

AutoCAD SHX Text_270
Kitchen

AutoCAD SHX Text_271
Bath

AutoCAD SHX Text_272
Bed 3

AutoCAD SHX Text_273
St/Wd

AutoCAD SHX Text_274
Bed 2

AutoCAD SHX Text_275
Bed 1

AutoCAD SHX Text_276
Dining

AutoCAD SHX Text_277
St.

AutoCAD SHX Text_278
Wd

AutoCAD SHX Text_279
Wd

AutoCAD SHX Text_280
Hall

AutoCAD SHX Text_281
PLATFORM LIFT WITHIN SHOP/ DISPLAY/RETAIL AREA TO PROVIDE ACCESS TO SPLIT LEVEL FLOOR COFFEE SHOP/CAFE AND TOILET FACILITIES.

AutoCAD SHX Text_282
DOOR TO FORMER PUBLIC HOUSE RETAINED FOR ACCESS TO COMMERCIAL PREMISES.

AutoCAD SHX Text_283
FORMER HOTEL BEDROOMS/ACCOMMODATION CONVERTED TO COFFEE SHOP/CAFE WITH ALL RELEVANT FACILITIES. ADDITIONAL MEETING ROOM MADE AVAILABLE.

AutoCAD SHX Text_284
EMERGENCY EXIT ROUTE FROM COFFEE SHOP/CAFE AREA, TO EXISTING PROTECTED STAIRWELL. STAIRWELL ALSO TO PROVIDE ACCESS TO FIRST FLOOR OF PROPERTY, CONVERTED TO 2No. FLATS, AS NOTED OVER. NEW ENTRANCE DOOR FROM PUBLIC FOOTPATH/TRINITY STREET.

AutoCAD SHX Text_285
FIRST FLOOR TO PROPERTY CONVERTED INTO TWO DOMESTIC FLATS. FLATS TO BE RETAINED BY APPLICANT FOR RENTAL USE. EXACT LAYOUT MAY CHANGE PRIOR TO FORMAL APPLICATION FOR CHANGE OF USE/CONVERSION.

AutoCAD SHX Text_286
%%UProposed Rear Elevation (draft)

AutoCAD SHX Text_287
%%UProposed Front Elevation (draft)

AutoCAD SHX Text_288
DEPENDING ON INTERNAL LAYOUT, POTENTIAL FOR A WINDOW TO BE BLOCKED UP TO FIRST FLOOR LAYOUT TO REAR ELEVATION. UNLIKELY TO BE ANY ALTERATION TO GROUND FLOOR WINDOWS AT REAR.

AutoCAD SHX Text_289
SEE DRAWING 19-673-2002 FOR FULL ELEVATION DETAILS FOR BASEMENT CONVERSION AND ALTERATIONS.

AutoCAD SHX Text_290
NEW ENTRANCE TO FIRST FLOOR FLATS, ALSO PROVIDING ADDITIONAL EMERGENCY ESCAPE ROUTE FROM COFFEE SHOP/CAFE.



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Stuart Patterson

email - stuartpattersondesign@gmail.com
phone - 01450 375772

Roxburghshire, TD9 0DZ

Building & Timber Frame Design

5 Burnflat Lane, Hawick,

P
age 17

AutoCAD SHX Text_291
DISABLED/WHEELCHAIR TOILET PROVIDED IN ACCORDANCE WITH BUILDING STANDARD 3.12.8. AND FITTED WITH ASSOCIATED GRAB RAILS, AS FOLLOWS - A 600mm VERTICAL GRABRAIL STARTING 600mm VERTICAL GRABRAIL STARTING 800mm ABOVE FINISHED FLOOR LEVEL B 600mm HORIZONTAL GRABRAIL TOP 600mm HORIZONTAL GRABRAIL TOP 750mm ABOVE FINISHED FLOOR LEVEL ABOVE FINISHED FLOOR LEVEL C 600mm HINGED SUPPORT RAIL STARTING 600mm HINGED SUPPORT RAIL STARTING 700mm ABOVE FINISHED FLOOR LEVEL ABOVE FINISHED FLOOR LEVEL ALL GRABRAILS TO BE 35mm IN DIAMETER WITH CLEAR SPACE BEHIND OF 45mm UNLESS STATED OTHERWISE. AN ASSISTANCE ALARM PULL CORD SHOULD BE FITTED WITHIN ACCESSIBLE TOILET, AS SHOWN. PULL CORD TO BE FITTED WITH TWO RED BANGLES FOR IDENTIFICATION. THE ASSISTANCE ALARM SHOULD HAVE AN AUDIBLE TONE, DISTINGUISHABLE FROM ANY FIRE ALARM, ALONG WITH VISUAL INDICATORS WITHIN THE SANITARY ACCOMMODATION AND OUTSIDE THE ENTRY DOOR TO THE LOBBY, TO ALERT OCCUPANTS TO THE ALARM CALL. MINIMUM 1.5x1.5m MANOEUVRING SPACE TO BE PROVIDED WITHIN ACCESSIBLE TOILET, CLEAR OF WC PAN AND ANY OTHER OBSTRUCTION OTHER THAN WHB. WHB TO BE WALL HUNG (I.E. NO PEDESTAL).

AutoCAD SHX Text_292
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_293
%%UGeneric Disabled WC Layout

AutoCAD SHX Text_294
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_295
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_296
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_297
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_298
ASSISTANCE ALARM PULL CORD.

AutoCAD SHX Text_299
FLUSHING HANDLE ON TRANSFER SIDE.

AutoCAD SHX Text_300
MIRROR

AutoCAD SHX Text_301
PULL CORD LOCATION.

AutoCAD SHX Text_302
ALTERNATIVE PULL CORD LOCATION.

AutoCAD SHX Text_303
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_304
EXISTING GROUND AND FIRST FLOOR TO PROPERTY, ROOF AND ASSOCIATED DRAINAGE TO REMAIN UNAFFECTED BY PROPOSED BASEMENT ALTERATION WORKS. CONVERSION AND ALTERATION OF UPPER FLOORS WILL BE SUBJECT TO A SEPARATE PLANNING AND BUILDING WARRANT APPLICATION.

AutoCAD SHX Text_305
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_306
SCALES

AutoCAD SHX Text_307
30/8/19

AutoCAD SHX Text_308
19-673-3002

AutoCAD SHX Text_309
1:50, 1:20..

AutoCAD SHX Text_310
REVISION

AutoCAD SHX Text_311
DRAWING No.

AutoCAD SHX Text_312
/

AutoCAD SHX Text_313
S J Cranston Joinery

AutoCAD SHX Text_314
PROPOSED CHANGE OF USE & ALTERATION AT

AutoCAD SHX Text_315
FORMER BUCCLEUCH HOTEL,

AutoCAD SHX Text_316
1 TRINITY STREET, HAWICK.

AutoCAD SHX Text_317
DRAWING TITLE

AutoCAD SHX Text_318
PROJECT

AutoCAD SHX Text_319
CLIENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_320
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_321
REVISION

AutoCAD SHX Text_322
INDEX

AutoCAD SHX Text_323
PROPOSED SECTION & DETAILS

AutoCAD SHX Text_324
%%UProposed Cross Section

AutoCAD SHX Text_325
ALL EXTERNAL AND EXPOSED WALLS TO BE FRAMED OUT, INSULATED AND BOARDED INTERNALLY, IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE PROJECT SPECIFICATION. SEE PROJECT SPECIFICATION FOR FULL DETAILS.

AutoCAD SHX Text_326
ALTHOUGH NO SIGN OF DAMP PENETRATION THROUGH EXISTING WALLS, AREAS TO FRONT/SIDE WALLS TO BASEMENT LOCATED BELOW EXTERNAL GROUND LEVEL TO BE CLEANED OFF AND WATERPROOFED WITH 2No. COATS BETEC FLEX COATING ON ONE COAT BETEC NSM (BOTH BY GRACE PRODUCTS) TO A HEIGHT NO LESS THAN 150mm ABOVE EXTERNAL GROUND LEVEL. SHOULD ANY ISSUES ARISE ONCE THE WALLS ARE STRIPPED BACK, OR IF THERE ARE ANY PROBLEMS WITH APPLYING THE WATERPROOFING, A SPECIALIST DAMP-PROOF COMPANY SHOULD BE APPOINTED FOR FURTHER ADVICE AND TREATMENT. EXACT EXTENT OF TANKING REQUIREMENTS TO BE CHECKED ON SITE. DPM TO NEW FLOOR SLAB TO BE LAPPED OVER AND SEALED TO TOP OF FIRST COAT OF BETEC FLEX, WITH A MINIMUM 500mm OVERLAP TO HORIZONTAL (IE WATERPROOFING TO BE TAKEN HORIZONTALLY UNDER FLOOR DPM BY MINIMUM 500mm). ALL WATERPROOFING TO BE APPLIED AS PER MANUFACTURERS INSTRUCTION AND DETAILS.

AutoCAD SHX Text_327
MINIMUM 450x200mm DEEP CONCRETE STRIP FOUNDATION TO NEW EXTERNAL WALL TO INFILL CLEAR OPENINGS WITHIN REAR WALL. ALL SUBSTRUCTURE BELOW DPC LEVEL TO BE BUILT IN BRICKWORK OR DENSE BLOCKWORK. FOUNDATIONS TO BE FORMED AT SIMILAR DEPTH TO EXISTING, AND LINKED TO EXISTING AS PER DETAIL INDICATED ON THE FOUNDATION LAYOUT.

AutoCAD SHX Text_328
NEW UNDERBUILDING/EXTERNAL WALL TO BE CONSTRUCTED BELOW NEW WALL FRAMING, TO SUIT NEW INSULATED FLOOR TO WORKSHOP AREA. SEE PROJECT SPECIFICATION FOR FULL DETAILS. DPC TO BE PROVIDED BETWEEN TIMBER WALLPLATE AND MASONRY UNDERBUILDING, OVERLAPPED WITH DPM TO NEW FLOOR SLAB.

AutoCAD SHX Text_329
EXISTING CONCRETE FLOOR TO GARAGE/LOCKUP AREA TO BE BROKEN OUT, WITH FORMATION LEVEL EXCAVATED AND LEVELLED PRIOR TO FORMING NEW INSULATED FLOOR SLAB. NEW FLOOR FORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE PROJECT SPECIFICATION. MINIMUM 44mm INSULATION RETURNED UP AT FLOOR SLAB TO PREVENT COLD-BRIDGING. CARE TO BE TAKEN NOT TO UNDERMINE ANY ADJACENT FOUNDATIONS DURING EXCAVATION WORKS.

AutoCAD SHX Text_330
EXISTING LATH & PLASTER FINISH TO UNDERSIDE OF EXISTING GROUND FLOOR CEILING JOISTS TO BE STRIPPED OUT IN PREPARATION OF NEW SEPARATING FLOOR CEILING CONSTRUCTION. EXISTING PUGGING BOARDS AND ASH DEAFENING BETWEEN JOISTS TO BE RETAINED. NEW CEILING TO BE FORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE PROJECT SPECIFICATION. CEILING TO BE TAKEN THROUGH AND SEALED TO EXISTING EXTERNAL/STONE WALLS PRIOR TO FORMING WALL FRAMING TO MAINTAIN SOUND PROTECTION ACROSS THE FULL CEILING AREA. SEE PROJECT SPECIFICATION FOR FULL DETAILS.

AutoCAD SHX Text_331
EXISTING STEEL POST & BEAM STRUCTURE TO FORMER GARAGE/LOCK-UP AT BASEMENT LEVEL TO BE RETAINED, WITH NO ALTERATION TO THE STRUCTURAL OPENING SIZES. EXPOSED STEELWORK TO BE SUITABLY CLEANED AND RE-PAINTED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE PROJECT SPECIFICATION. MINIMUM 80mm RIGID INSULATION TO BE PLACED BETWEEN INNER FLANGES OF STEEL BEAM TO MAINTAIN WALL INSULATION TO SEPARATING FLOOR.

AutoCAD SHX Text_332
EXISTING STONE BOUNDARY WALL BETWEEN COURTYARD AND SUPERMARKET CAR PARK, APPROXIMATELY 3m HIGH, AS SHOWN.

AutoCAD SHX Text_333
NON-OPENING DOUBLE GLAZED uPVC WINDOWS, SECURED WITHIN STRUCTURAL OPENINGS. DPC SECURED TO WALL OVER WINDOW FRAME, LAPPED OVER FRONT EDGE OF FRAME TO PREVENT ANY WATER INGRESS. DPC TO BE OVERLAPPED BY BREATHER MEMBRANE. DPC TO BE PROVIDED ALL ROUND NEW WINDOW AND DOOR OPENINGS, INCLUDING BELOW WINDOW CILL.

AutoCAD SHX Text_334
Workshop

AutoCAD SHX Text_335
Former Bedrooms/ Accommodation

AutoCAD SHX Text_336
Former Bedrooms/ Accommodation

AutoCAD SHX Text_337
DPC

AutoCAD SHX Text_338
DPC

AutoCAD SHX Text_339
DPC

AutoCAD SHX Text_340
%%UProposed Courtyard Fence Details

AutoCAD SHX Text_341
SCALE 1:20..

AutoCAD SHX Text_342
BOUNDARY FENCE NOTES FENCE CONSTRUCTED WITH 95x95mm TIMBER POSTS AT APPROXIMATELY 1800mm CENTRES, OR AS DEEMED NECESSARY TO SUIT SITE REQUIREMENTS. EACH POST TO BE CAST INTO SUITABLE CONCRETE PAD FOUNDATIONS (POSTCRETE, OR EQUAL) TO ENSURE STABILITY. OUTER FACE OF POSTS (TO COURTYARD SIDE) TO HAVE MINIMUM 25x45mm TIMBER RAILS SECURELY SCREWED TO EACH POST AT TOP, MIDDLE AND BOTTOM OF FENCE CONSTRUCTION. 18x145mm SAWN TIMBER BOARDS TO BE NAILED TO FENCE RAILS, EITHER BUTT-JOINTED OR MAXIMUM 5mm GAP BETWEEN BOARDS FOR PRIVACY. ALL TIMBERS FORMING NEW FENCE TO BE PRESERVATIVE TREATED AGAINST FUNGAL AND INSECT ATTACK. IT IS RECOMMENDED TO PROVIDE ADDITIONAL WATERPROOFING TREATMENT TO BASE OF TIMBER POSTS PRIOR TO BACKFILLING. OVERALL HEIGHT OF TIMBER PANELLING TO BE NO GREATER THAN 2000mm FROM GROUND LEVEL, AS SHOWN. FENCE TO BE STAINED/PAINTED TO COLOUR AGREED WITH LOCAL PLANING AUTHORITY. ALL FENCE CONSTRUCTION WORKS TO BE SECURELY ANCHORED TO GROUND/FOUNDATIONS. FENCE TO BE DESIGNED AND SUPPLIED BY SPECIALIST SUPPLIER.

AutoCAD SHX Text_343
NEW 2.0m HIGH TIMBER FENCE TO COURTYARD. SEE DETAIL ABOVE FOR FULL CONSTRUCTION INFORMATION.

AutoCAD SHX Text_344
15/7/20

AutoCAD SHX Text_345
WORKSHOP WINDOW HEIGHT ALTERED.

AutoCAD SHX Text_346
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_347
A



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Council Headquarters, Newtown St Boswells, MELROSE, Scottish Borders, TD6 0SA
Customer Services:  0300 100 1800   www.scotborders.gov.uk 

CONSULTATION RESPONSE TO LOCAL REVIEW BODY

Comments provided 
by

Officer Name and Post: Contact e-mail/number:

Environmental Health
Craig Liddle

PLACEhealth@scotborders.gov.uk

Date of reply 4 August 2020 Consultee reference: 20/01957/PLANCO

Appeal reference 20/00004/RREF Planning reference: 19/01784/FUL  
Applicant Mr Stephen Cranston
Agent Stuart Patterson Building & Timber Frame Design
Proposed 
Development

Part change of use from garage/storage and alterations to form workshop and 
storage for joinery business

Site Location Buccleuch Hotel Trinity Street Hawick Scottish Borders TD9 9NR
The following observations represent the comments of the consultee on the submitted application 
as they relate to the area of expertise of that consultee. A decision on the application can only be 
made after consideration of all relevant information, consultations and material considerations.
Background and 
Site description

The planning application for the above development (reference: 19/01784/FUL) 
was refused by officers and an appeal on this decision was subsequently submitted 
by the applicant.  The application was refused on 3 grounds, including adverse 
impacts on residential amenity associated with the proposed use as a workshop.  
Further information has been submitted by the applicant in relation to noise 
mitigation measures, at the request of the Local Review Body.  Environmental 
Health has been consulted on this further information.

Key Issues
(Bullet points)

 Impact on residential amenity (noise)

Assessment The proposal is for the basement floor of the building, which previously 
accommodated garages and storage for the use as a hotel, to accommodate the 
operation of a joinery business' workshop and store.  It is understood the planning 
use of the upper floors remains that of the former hotel, however it is the applicant’s 
intention to submit further applications to develop the upper floors into a shop/café 
and residential units.  This further development is not being considered at this point.  
It is also understood that the adjoining property has planning consent for a change 
of use to a dwellinghouse.

In principle we object to this proposal.  The proposed development, which will 
include the use of industrial equipment, is not compatible with the adjoining 
residential use and sound transmission is considered likely to adversely affect 
residential amenity.  

Noise from the proposed use may also impact on the use of the ground and first 
floors of the building, currently a former public bar with accommodation.  The 
ground and first floors are currently in the same ownership as the development site, 
however should this change, there is the potential for complaints of noise nuisance.  
Also, if approved, the workshop will be a significant consideration should future 
applications for dwellings on upper floors be received.  

Reference is made to mechanical ventilation on the plans submitted, however 
insufficient information is available to assess any potential noise impacts.

It is acknowledged that the further information submitted by the applicant includes a 
scheme of sound insulation, however it appears a noise impact assessment has not 

Page 19

Agenda Item 4b

http://www.scotborders.gov.uk/


Council Headquarters, Newtown St Boswells, MELROSE, Scottish Borders, TD6 0SA
Customer Services:  0300 100 1800   www.scotborders.gov.uk 

been carried out.  The purpose of a noise assessment is to determine whether or 
not the proposed development would adversely impact existing development.  This 
then informs the decision making process for the development.  If a noise 
assessment highlights an issue, mitigation should be considered as part of this 
assessment.  Assessments should be carried out by a suitably qualified acoustic 
consultant and reference should be made to relevant guidance.

To conclude, Environmental Health is unable to support this application.

Recommendation  Object  Do not object  Do not object, 
subject to 
conditions

 Further information 
required

Recommended
Conditions

Recommended
Informatives

Page 20

http://www.scotborders.gov.uk/


Page 21

Agenda Item 4c



Page 22



Page 23



Page 24



Page 25



This page is intentionally left blank



Stuart Patterson 
Building & Timber Frame Design 

5 Burnflat Lane, Hawick, Roxburghshire, TD9 0DZ 

phone – 01450 375772 

email – stuartpattersondesign@gmail.com 

 
 
Appeal to Local Review Body 
 
S J Cranston Joinery 
7 Wilton Hill 
Hawick 
TD9 8BA 
 
Grounds of Appeal 
Proposed Change of Use & Alteration at Former Buccleuch Hotel, 1 Trinity Street, Hawick, TD9 9NR 
Planning Reference -  
 
See enclosed information – 
Existing Basement Layout  (19-673-1001) 
Existing Ground & First Floor Layouts (19-673-1002) 
Location Plan    (19-673-1003) 
Proposed Basement Layout  (19-673-2001) 
Proposed Elevations   (19-673-2002) 
Proposed Section & Details  (19-673-3002) 
Planning Design Statement & Photographs 
Adjacent Business Lists 
 
Mr Cranston has run a successful joinery business in the town for over eight years, and is currently renting a 
workshop elsewhere in Hawick that is simply not fit for purpose. An opportunity arose to purchase the former 
Buccleuch Hotel premises in Trinity Street, with the view to initially form a purpose built workshop, and a 
permanent base for his business. 
 
Notwithstanding the £5000 a year currently paid in rent for his current workshop, the new property offers over four 
times the floor area, better access and security and the future consideration to develop the other floors of the 
building into an open space/display area and shop on the ground floor, with domestic properties to the first floor. 
The development offers the applicant a significant amount of security for him and his family for the foreseeable 
future. 
 
The property has had various owners over the years, and planning permission was granted in 2008 and 2012 for 
conversion to housing, neither of which were carried out. On that basis alone, it should be safe to assume that the 
last known use for the building was that of a public bar and hotel accommodation, essentially retained as 
commercial use. This contradicts the planning officers’ consideration that the site is not `allocated’ for business 
use. We are not disputing that the commercial nature of the hotel is different from the industrial use for the joiners’ 
workshop. 
 
The property has been vacant since the Buccleuch Restaurant was separated from the main hotel around 
2005/2006 and is currently in a state of disrepair. Without the intervention of Mr Cranston, it is unknown how long 
it may lay unoccupied, but likely to a point beyond repair and another well recognised property could easily be lost 
to the town. These proposals, and Mr Cranston’s future plans, safeguard the building for years to come. 
 
The basement area consists of a former cellar, garages and off-street parking for the hotels use, the majority of 
which is located below ground/road level (Trinity Street). The rear courtyard is enclosed by a 3m high stone wall 
which originally supported a lean-to roof over the courtyard fully covering the parking area. This roof was removed 
around the time of the restaurant/hotel separation works, the reason for which is unknown. 
 
It is acknowledged that there would be an increased noise risk given the change of use, and all measurements 
have been taken to minimise the impact on the surrounding area with the use of sound deafening materials and 
finishes, which are required as part of the current building standards. With potential development to the floors 

Page 27

mailto:stuartpattersondesign@gmail.com


over the workshop it makes sense for the applicant to try and ensure no disruption is caused by his business. It is 
considered that the basement being mostly below ground any noise created would project to the rear of the 
property, essentially over towards the car park to Morrisons supermarket, but also deflected and dissipated by the 
aforementioned boundary wall. 
 
The adjoining former Buccleuch Restaurant has recently had planning permission to be converted to a house, and 
is likely at most risk to be affected by these proposals. On that basis the workshop layout was designed to keep it 
as far away from the adjoining walls as possible, with canteen, hall and toilet facilities providing dividing space 
between the two areas, again minimising disruption. 
 
A study of the machinery Mr Cranston currently uses within the workshop provides a broad spectrum to the 
volumes that may be created, ranging from 103db for a table saw (when in use, 10-20db idle noise) down to 73db 
for a bench drill and less for the portable dust extractor used on the various machinery. The noise generated from 
a main road (the A698 is directly opposite) equates to around 80db and a lawn mower can produce up to 96db. 
Mr Cranston is also a sole trader, so only one machine could be used at any given time, and the workshop is 
effectively used for preparation work and minor manufacturing prior to taking to site. Mr Cranston has previously 
employed someone to help, but now working alone, he has no intention of taking on any more workers so the 
potential disruption is also limited on that basis. 
 
Depending on the future development, additional employment will be generated with the display area and shop in 
the second phase, but it is all dependent on this first phase being approved. 
 
This is our first full opportunity to respond to the reasons for refusal, with the planning departments’ continual 
unwillingness to communicate with regards to their views and decisions, making planning applications 
increasingly difficult to determine. 
 
There were three reasons listed in the refusal notice and we would comment as follows – 
 
1. The proposal is contrary in principle to policy ED2 of the Local Development Plan 2016. 

 
This application has highlighted the flaws within the local plan zoning, in that they do not fully identify every single 
area of a settlement in relation to existing properties and businesses. Mr Herkes did raise this issue prior to 
refusal, and we responded with a list of businesses already present in the vicinity of our proposals. Please see the 
enclosed `Adjacent Business Lists’ which identify a varied list of existing businesses trading in the area, from the 
funeral directors workshops to the front, the supermarket to the rear and veterinary surgery to the side. Directly 
opposite the veterinary surgery are a builder’s workshop and yard, an electrician’s workshop and finally another 
joinery workshop. Looking slightly further afield there is a tree surgeons workshop in Trinity Street, a large 
builders yard, a cable packaging company in one of the largest former knitwear factories in the town, a ground 
workers yard, a motor mechanic in Noble Place and a knitwear factory in Duke Street. There is also a former 
builder’s yard located behind the tenement buildings in Arthur Street. 
 
This information was put forward to the planning department to identify the diverse business arrangement in the 
area, even though the local plan does not designate it as anything, but in reality it is, and always has been a 
`mixed use’ area. The list was acknowledged, but seems to hold no weight with the decision taken, with the 
officer’s report suggesting that the local plan should determine where someone can set up business. This type of 
statement does not take into account that not all buildings and locations are suitable for certain businesses and 
the further development of this particular property is the largest draw to this location. 
 
One of the concerns related to the property being used for industrial purposes, and although the limited use by 
the applicant may well be acceptable, it was intimated that the building could then be sold and used for full time 
industrial processes without any form of recourse by the council. It was suggested that a condition could be added 
to the planning approval to mitigate this circumstance, but it again fell on deaf ears. 
 
2. The proposal is contrary to Policy PMD2 and Policy ED3 of the Local Development Plan 2016. 
 
As noted in point 1, stating the proposal is not compatible with the surrounding area has been highlighted as 
incorrect, given the aforementioned businesses in the area. Paying particular attention to the existing joinery 
workshop mentioned above. 
 
3. The proposal is contrary to Policy EP1 of the Local Development Plan 2016. 
 
At no point during the course of the application were we asked for a bat & bird survey, which could easily have 
been arranged. It is noted on the planning portal that the council ecology officer had asked for further information, 

Page 28



but this was never passed to us. It is assumed the decision had already been made to refuse based on the 
previous two items, and this third item has been added to provide more justification. 
 
Conclusion 
 
It feels like there has been no consideration to the businesses in the surrounding area when processing our 
proposal, with similar and indeed identical businesses located a stone’s throw from each other. There has been 
no interest in this vacant property for over eight years, and while we understand the restrictions set by the local 
development plans, this gives an opportunity to re-invigorate a building that is verging on derelict, which again has 
not been taken into account. 
 
It is also noted that there were no objections from the application, and the designs were implemented to minimise 
any possible disruption to the neighbouring properties, which is something that is not a factor for the existing 
businesses. 
 
If our appeal fails and refusal is upheld, the future of this building is once again in jeopardy, and the applicant is 
left with a property he cannot use to its full potential. We would hope that the appeal would be looked upon 
favourably on his basis. 
 
Stuart Patterson 
On behalf of Mr S. Cranston. 

Page 29



This page is intentionally left blank



Stuart Patterson

email - stuartpattersondesign@gmail.com
phone - 01450 375772

Roxburghshire, TD9 0DZ

Building & Timber Frame Design

5 Burnflat Lane, Hawick,

P
age 31

AutoCAD SHX Text_348
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_349
SCALES

AutoCAD SHX Text_350
30/8/19

AutoCAD SHX Text_351
19-673-1001

AutoCAD SHX Text_352
1:50..

AutoCAD SHX Text_353
REVISION

AutoCAD SHX Text_354
DRAWING No.

AutoCAD SHX Text_355
/

AutoCAD SHX Text_356
S J Cranston Joinery

AutoCAD SHX Text_357
PROPOSED CHANGE OF USE & ALTERATION AT

AutoCAD SHX Text_358
FORMER BUCCLEUCH HOTEL,

AutoCAD SHX Text_359
EXISTING BASEMENT LAYOUT

AutoCAD SHX Text_360
1 TRINITY STREET, HAWICK.

AutoCAD SHX Text_361
DRAWING TITLE

AutoCAD SHX Text_362
PROJECT

AutoCAD SHX Text_363
CLIENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_364
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_365
REVISION

AutoCAD SHX Text_366
INDEX

AutoCAD SHX Text_367
STEP

AutoCAD SHX Text_368
%%UExisting Basement Layout

AutoCAD SHX Text_369
Store

AutoCAD SHX Text_370
Former Garage/Lock-ups

AutoCAD SHX Text_371
Courtyard

AutoCAD SHX Text_372
Boiler Room

AutoCAD SHX Text_373
JOIST SPAN

AutoCAD SHX Text_374
JOIST SPAN

AutoCAD SHX Text_375
JOIST SPAN

AutoCAD SHX Text_376
JOIST SPAN

AutoCAD SHX Text_377
JOIST SPAN

AutoCAD SHX Text_378
CONCRETE FLOOR OVER

AutoCAD SHX Text_379
CONCRETE FLOOR OVER

AutoCAD SHX Text_380
JOIST SPAN

AutoCAD SHX Text_381
Pend Access

AutoCAD SHX Text_382
EXISTING STRUCTURAL STEEL POST & BEAM ACROSS BASEMENT AREA SUPPORTING UPPER FLOORS.

AutoCAD SHX Text_383
CONCRETE FLOOR OVER

AutoCAD SHX Text_384
EXISTING VEHICULAR ACCESS FROM TRINTY STREET.

AutoCAD SHX Text_385
EXISTING STONE BOUNDARY WALL BETWEEN COURTYARD AND SUPERMARKET CAR PARK.

AutoCAD SHX Text_386
EXISTING COURTYARD FINISHED WITH CONCRETE HARDSTAND, EXTENDED INTO FORMER GARAGE/LOCK-UP AREA.

AutoCAD SHX Text_387
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_388
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_389
EXISTING CONCRETE HARDSTAND AREA THROUGHOUT FORMER GARAGE/LOCK-UP AND STORAGE AREAS (HATCHED RED) TO BE BROKEN OUT, WITH SUB-BASE EXCAVATED AS REQUIRED IN PREPARATION OF NEW INSULATED FLOOR TO WORKSHOP. SEE PROJECT SPECIFICATION FOR FULL DETAILS.

AutoCAD SHX Text_390
EXIST. SVP

AutoCAD SHX Text_391
EXIST. RWP



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Stuart Patterson

email - stuartpattersondesign@gmail.com
phone - 01450 375772

Roxburghshire, TD9 0DZ

Building & Timber Frame Design

5 Burnflat Lane, Hawick,

P
age 33

AutoCAD SHX Text_392
EXISTING BUILDING NOTES PITCHED SLATE ROOF TO FRONT ELEVATION, WITH FELT DECK TO FLAT ROOF TO REAR SECTION OF ROOF. DORMERS FINISHED WITH MINERAL FELT. EXTERNAL WALLS FINISHED WITH CEMENT RENDER, PAINTED WHITE TO FRONT ELEVATION, CREME/UNPAINTED FINISH TO REAR ELEVATION. SINGLE GLAZED VERTICAL SLIDING SASH WINDOWS, IN TIMBER, PAINTED WHITE. WINDOW OPENINGS FITTED WITH CONCRETE/PRECAST CILLS. CILLS PAINTED RED/MAGNOLIA TO FRONT ELEVATION, AND UNPAINTED TO REAR. TIMBER DOORS, INCLUDING VEHICULAR ACCESS TOP PEND/BASEMENT, PAINTED RED/MAGNOLIA OR WHITE. DORMER FRONTS TIMBER CLAD, WITH SLATE HUNG HAFFIT/SIDE WALLS. EXTERNAL TIMBERS PAINTED RED/MAGNOLIA COLOUR TO MATCH CILLS. GREY uPVC OR C.I. RAINWATER GOODS TO BOTH ELEVATIONS. FORMER GARAGE LOCK-UP AREA CURRENTLY EXPOSED THROUGH OPEN FRONT TO STEEL POST/BEAM CONSTRUCTION WITHIN REAR WALL. EXPOSED STEELWORK PAINTED CREME/OFF-WHITE TO MATCH REAR WALLS.

AutoCAD SHX Text_393
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_394
SCALES

AutoCAD SHX Text_395
30/8/19

AutoCAD SHX Text_396
19-673-1002

AutoCAD SHX Text_397
1:100..

AutoCAD SHX Text_398
REVISION

AutoCAD SHX Text_399
DRAWING No.

AutoCAD SHX Text_400
/

AutoCAD SHX Text_401
S J Cranston Joinery

AutoCAD SHX Text_402
PROPOSED CHANGE OF USE & ALTERATION AT

AutoCAD SHX Text_403
FORMER BUCCLEUCH HOTEL,

AutoCAD SHX Text_404
EXISTING GROUND & FIRST FLOOR LAYOUTS

AutoCAD SHX Text_405
1 TRINITY STREET, HAWICK.

AutoCAD SHX Text_406
DRAWING TITLE

AutoCAD SHX Text_407
PROJECT

AutoCAD SHX Text_408
CLIENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_409
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_410
REVISION

AutoCAD SHX Text_411
INDEX

AutoCAD SHX Text_412
Former Public Bar

AutoCAD SHX Text_413
%%UExisting Ground Floor Layout

AutoCAD SHX Text_414
Former Bedrooms/Accommodation

AutoCAD SHX Text_415
Shwr.

AutoCAD SHX Text_416
MASONRY STAIRWELL WALLS WITH TIMBER FRAMING TO ROOM SIDE.

AutoCAD SHX Text_417
SOIL

AutoCAD SHX Text_418
SOIL

AutoCAD SHX Text_419
SOIL

AutoCAD SHX Text_420
SOIL

AutoCAD SHX Text_421
%%UExisting First Floor Layout

AutoCAD SHX Text_422
Former Bedrooms/Accommodation

AutoCAD SHX Text_423
MASONRY STAIRWELL WALLS WITH TIMBER FRAMING TO ROOM SIDE. EXTERNAL WINDOW AT HALF-LANDING TO STAIRWELL.

AutoCAD SHX Text_424
COOMB LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text_425
COOMB LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text_426
POSITION OF MASONRY SPINE WALL TO GROUND FLOOR.

AutoCAD SHX Text_427
%%UExisting Rear Elevation

AutoCAD SHX Text_428
%%UExisting Front Elevation

AutoCAD SHX Text_429
Pend Access

AutoCAD SHX Text_430
NOTE GROUND FLOOR AND FIRST FLOOR LAYOUTS ALSO OWNED BY APPLICANT, BUT STRIPPED OUT BY PREVIOUS OWNER. THESE FLOORS WILL BE SUBJECT TO A SEPARATE CHANGE OF USE/CONVERSION APPLICATION.



T
his page is intentionally left blank



email - stuartpattersondesign@gmail.com

Stuart Patterson
Building & Timber Frame Design

phone - 01450 375772
Roxburghshire, TD9 0DZ

5 Burnflat Lane, Hawick,

Page 35

AutoCAD SHX Text_431
AT FORMER BUCCLEUCH HOTEL,

AutoCAD SHX Text_432
PROPOSED CHANGE OF USE & ALTERATION

AutoCAD SHX Text_433
LOCATION PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text_434
1 TRINITY STREET, HAWICK.

AutoCAD SHX Text_435
S J Cranston Joinery

AutoCAD SHX Text_436
CLIENT/PROJECT

AutoCAD SHX Text_437
DRAWING TITLE

AutoCAD SHX Text_438
19-673-1003

AutoCAD SHX Text_439
30/8/19

AutoCAD SHX Text_440
DRAWING No.

AutoCAD SHX Text_441
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_442
SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text_443
1:1250..

AutoCAD SHX Text_444
IN THE APPLICATION.

AutoCAD SHX Text_445
PROPERTY REFERRED TO

AutoCAD SHX Text_446
%%uLocation Plan

AutoCAD SHX Text_447
SCALE 1:1250..

AutoCAD SHX Text_448
Ordnance Survey (c) Crown Copyright 2019. All rights reserved. Licence number 100022432

AutoCAD SHX Text_449
WEENSLAND ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_450
TRINITY STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_451
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_452
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_453
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_454
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_455
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_456
Buccleuch Hotel

AutoCAD SHX Text_457
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_458
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_459
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_460
Works

AutoCAD SHX Text_461
4A

AutoCAD SHX Text_462
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_463
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_464
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_465
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_466
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_467
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_468
DOUGLAS ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_469
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_470
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_471
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_472
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_473
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_474
Supermarket

AutoCAD SHX Text_475
Petrol Station

AutoCAD SHX Text_476
EARL STREET



This page is intentionally left blank



Stuart Patterson

email - stuartpattersondesign@gmail.com
phone - 01450 375772

Roxburghshire, TD9 0DZ

Building & Timber Frame Design

5 Burnflat Lane, Hawick,

P
age 37

AutoCAD SHX Text_477
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_478
SCALES

AutoCAD SHX Text_479
30/8/19

AutoCAD SHX Text_480
19-673-2001

AutoCAD SHX Text_481
1:50..

AutoCAD SHX Text_482
REVISION

AutoCAD SHX Text_483
DRAWING No.

AutoCAD SHX Text_484
/

AutoCAD SHX Text_485
S J Cranston Joinery

AutoCAD SHX Text_486
PROPOSED CHANGE OF USE & ALTERATION AT

AutoCAD SHX Text_487
FORMER BUCCLEUCH HOTEL,

AutoCAD SHX Text_488
1 TRINITY STREET, HAWICK.

AutoCAD SHX Text_489
DRAWING TITLE

AutoCAD SHX Text_490
PROJECT

AutoCAD SHX Text_491
CLIENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_492
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_493
REVISION

AutoCAD SHX Text_494
INDEX

AutoCAD SHX Text_495
%%UProposed Basement Layout

AutoCAD SHX Text_496
Staff/Canteen

AutoCAD SHX Text_497
Workshop

AutoCAD SHX Text_498
Courtyard

AutoCAD SHX Text_499
Boiler Room

AutoCAD SHX Text_500
JOIST SPAN

AutoCAD SHX Text_501
JOIST SPAN

AutoCAD SHX Text_502
JOIST SPAN

AutoCAD SHX Text_503
JOIST SPAN

AutoCAD SHX Text_504
JOIST SPAN

AutoCAD SHX Text_505
CONCRETE FLOOR OVER

AutoCAD SHX Text_506
CONCRETE FLOOR OVER

AutoCAD SHX Text_507
JOIST SPAN

AutoCAD SHX Text_508
Workshop

AutoCAD SHX Text_509
Store

AutoCAD SHX Text_510
926

AutoCAD SHX Text_511
926

AutoCAD SHX Text_512
926

AutoCAD SHX Text_513
wc

AutoCAD SHX Text_514
Lobby

AutoCAD SHX Text_515
926

AutoCAD SHX Text_516
926

AutoCAD SHX Text_517
950x2100

AutoCAD SHX Text_518
3500x2400

AutoCAD SHX Text_519
PROPOSED BASEMENT LAYOUT

AutoCAD SHX Text_520
INTERMEDIATE SWITCH POINT.

AutoCAD SHX Text_521
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_522
FEATURE SPOT LIGHT.

AutoCAD SHX Text_523
EXTERNAL LIGHT.

AutoCAD SHX Text_524
PENDANT LIGHT FITTING.

AutoCAD SHX Text_525
INDICATOR SWITCH FOR EXTRACT FAN.

AutoCAD SHX Text_526
FLUORESCENT STRIP LIGHT.

AutoCAD SHX Text_527
%%UELECTRICAL LEGEND

AutoCAD SHX Text_528
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_529
FUSED SPUR OUTLET.

AutoCAD SHX Text_530
ONE-WAY SWITCH POINT.

AutoCAD SHX Text_531
TWO-WAY SWITCH POINT.

AutoCAD SHX Text_532
DOUBLE 13AMP S.S. OUTLET.

AutoCAD SHX Text_533
SINGLE 13AMP S.S. OUTLET.

AutoCAD SHX Text_534
SOCKET OUTLETS TO BE LOCATED A MINIMUM OF 350mm FROM

AutoCAD SHX Text_535
ABOVE FINISHED FLOOR LEVEL. ANY SOCKETS LOCATED ABOVE AN

AutoCAD SHX Text_536
ANY INTERNAL CORNER, AND POSITIONED BETWEEN 400-1200mm

AutoCAD SHX Text_537
OBSTRUCTION (KITCHEN WORKTOP) SHOULD BE LOCATED A MINIMUM

AutoCAD SHX Text_538
OF 150mm ABOVE PROJECTING SURFACE.

AutoCAD SHX Text_539
ANY CONCEALED SOCKET OUTLETS (TO REAR OF KITCHEN WHITE

AutoCAD SHX Text_540
GOODS) TO BE PROVIDED WITH SEPARATE ISOLATION SWITCH IN

AutoCAD SHX Text_541
ACCESSIBLE LOCATION.

AutoCAD SHX Text_542
LIGHT SWITCHES TO BE POSITIONED BETWEEN 900-1100mm ABOVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_543
FINISHED FLOOR LEVEL.

AutoCAD SHX Text_544
ANY RECESSED SPOT LIGHTS/DOWNLIGHTERS TO BE FITTED WITH

AutoCAD SHX Text_545
ONE-HOUR FIRE RESISTANT SHROUDS, AND SHOULD BE CERTIFIED

AutoCAD SHX Text_546
COMPLIANT WITH BS EN ISO 140-3:1995 AND BS EN ISO 140-6:1998

AutoCAD SHX Text_547
FOR SOUND INSULATION/ACOUSTICS WITHIN SEPARATING FLOOR.

AutoCAD SHX Text_548
EXACT ELECTRICAL LAYOUT TO BE AGREED ON SITE WITH CLIENT.

AutoCAD SHX Text_549
INTERNAL DRAINAGE LAYOUT SHOWN THUS -

AutoCAD SHX Text_550
ALL ELECTRICS TO COMPLY WITH BS. 7671 2018, AND TO BE CERTIFIED BY A SELECT REGISTERED ELECTRICIAN. CERTIFICATE OF COMPLIANCE/INSTALLATION TO BE PROVIDED TO BUILDING CONTROL PRIOR TO ISSUE OF COMPLETION CERTIFICATE FOR WORKS.

AutoCAD SHX Text_551
ELECTRICAL CONSUMER UNIT.

AutoCAD SHX Text_552
CEILING MOUNTED EXTRACT FAN.

AutoCAD SHX Text_553
ALL LIGHTING AND CONTROLS TO BE DESIGNED AND INSTALLED

AutoCAD SHX Text_554
TO THE GUIDANCE GIVEN IN THE CIBSE `CODE FOR LIGHTING 2002'

AutoCAD SHX Text_555
TO PROMOTE ENERGY EFFICIENCY THROUGHOUT THE BUILDING.

AutoCAD SHX Text_556
EXACT HEATER POSITIONS TO BE AGREED ON SITE WITH CLIENT.

AutoCAD SHX Text_557
%%UHEATING LEGEND

AutoCAD SHX Text_558
PROPOSED HEATER POSITION.

AutoCAD SHX Text_559
SEE PROJECT SPECIFICATION FOR FULL HEATING AND HOT WATER INSTALLATION REQUIREMENTS. ALL WATER PIPES TO BE SUITABLY INSULATED/LAGGED IN ACCORDANCE WITH BS.5422 : 2009.

AutoCAD SHX Text_560
WALL MOUNTED EXTRACT FAN.

AutoCAD SHX Text_561
EL

AutoCAD SHX Text_562
250w LOW BAY LIGHT FITTINGS

AutoCAD SHX Text_563
FIRE ESCAPE NOTES ALL NEW DESIGNATED FIRE ESCAPE DOORS TO BE FITTED WITH EMERGENCY EGRESS LATCHES TO INNER FACE SUITABLE FOR EMERGENCY OPERATION WITHOUT THE USE OF A KEY. LATCHES TO BE FITTED IN ACCORDANCE WITH BS.EN:1125:1997. ANY PASS DOORS THAT REQUIRE TO BE LOCKED SHOULD ALSO BE FITTED WITH A FASTENING WHICH WILL ALLOW EMERGENCY OPENING WITHOUT THE USE OF A KEY, SIMILAR TO THE EXTERNAL DOORS. NO LOCKS FITTED TO ALL OTHER DOORS. FIRE DOOR LOCKS TO BE FITTED IN ACCORDANCE WITH BUILDING STANDARD 2.9.15. A FIRE SAFETY DESIGN SUMMARY SHALL BE PREPARED FOR THE PROPERTY, AND SUBMITTED TO THE COUNCIL ON SUBMISSION OF THE COMPLETION CERTIFICATE APPLICATION. THE FSDS SHALL CLARIFY AND CONFIRM ALL SERVICES, FITTINGS AND EQUIPMENT IN RELATION TO THE OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE OF THE BUILDING FOR FIRE SAFETY PURPOSES.

AutoCAD SHX Text_564
ALARM SOUNDER

AutoCAD SHX Text_565
BREAK-GLASS POINT.

AutoCAD SHX Text_566
OPTICAL SMOKE DETECTOR

AutoCAD SHX Text_567
SM

AutoCAD SHX Text_568
HEAT DETECTOR

AutoCAD SHX Text_569
HD

AutoCAD SHX Text_570
FIRE ALARM SYSTEM:

AutoCAD SHX Text_571
ESCAPE ROUTE LIGHTING

AutoCAD SHX Text_572
A WRITTEN FIRE ALARM EVACUATION STRATEGY SHOULD BE PROVIDED AND DISPLAYED IN A PROMINENT LOCATION, AT OR NEAR THE MAIN ENTRANCE TO EACH AREA.

AutoCAD SHX Text_573
CONTROL

AutoCAD SHX Text_574
BREAK GLASS CALL POINTS SHOULD BE MOUNTED 1.4m FROM THE FLOOR AND SITED WHERE THEY CAN EASILY BE SEEN. MANUAL CALL POINTS SHOULD BE SITED AT EXITS TO OPEN AIR WITH EXTRA CALL POINTS TO BE PROVIDED SO THE GREATEST TRAVEL DISTANCE FROM ANY POINT IN THE BUILDING TO THE NEAREST CALL POINT DOES NOT EXCEED 30m.

AutoCAD SHX Text_575
ALARM SOUNDERS SHOULD BE AUDIBLE THROUGHOUT THE BUILDING WITH A MINIMUM SOUND LEVEL OF EITHER 65db(A) OR 5db(A) ABOVE ANY BACKGROUND NOISE LIKELY TO PERSIST FOR LONGER THAN 30 SECONDS, WHICHEVER IS THE GREATER. THESE AUDIBILITY LEVELS MUST BE PRODUCED WITH ALL DOORS SHUT. AT LEAST ONE SOUNDER SHOULD BE INSTALLED IN EACH FIRE COMPARTMENT.

AutoCAD SHX Text_576
L1 FIRE ALARM SYSTEM TO BE INSTALLED AND COMMISSIONED TO BS.5839-1, TO THE RECOMMENDATIONS OF SECTIONS 4 AND 5. FIRE ALARM SYSTEM TO BE MAINTAINED IN ACCORDANCE WITH BS.5839-1, SECTION 6. EXACT DETAILS OF L1 FIRE AND SMOKE ALARM SYSTEM TO BE PROVIDED BY SPECIALIST CONTRACTOR/INSTALLER. ESCAPE ROUTE LIGHTING AND ALARM SYSTEM TO BE INSTALLED ON SEPARATE, PROTECTED CIRCUITS. ALL DETECTORS AND SOUNDERS/ALARMS INTERLINKED. EXACT POSITIONS OF ALL LIGHTING, CALL POINTS, SOUNDERS AND DETECTION SYSTEMS FITTED TO BE DETERMINED ON SITE, IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE BRITISH STANDARDS. ALL ELECTRICAL INSTALLATIONS TO COMPLY WITH BS. 7671 2018, AND TO BE CERTIFIED BY A SELECT REGISTERED ELECTRICIAN. CERTIFICATE OF COMPLIANCE/INSTALLATION TO BE PROVIDED TO BUILDING CONTROL PRIOR TO ISSUE OF COMPLETION CERTIFICATE FOR WORKS.

AutoCAD SHX Text_577
FIRE ALARM CONTROL PANEL (LOCATED AT MAIN ENTRANCE TO BUILDING).

AutoCAD SHX Text_578
SMOKE DETECTORS SHOULD BE SITED SO THAT THE SENSING ELEMENT IS NOT LESS THAN 25mm, AND NOT MORE THAN 600mm BELOW THE CEILING OR ROOF. UNDER FLAT, HORIZONTAL CEILINGS AND CORRIDORS MORE THAN 5m WIDE, THE MAXIMUM DISTANCE BETWEEN DETECTORS SHOULD NOT EXCEED 7.5m. NARROWER CORRIDOR WIDTHS MAY HAVE EXTENDED DISTANCES BETWEEN DETECTORS, IN ACCORDANCE WITH BS.5839. SMOKE DETECTION SYSTEM TO BE EXTENDED INTO ROOF VOIDS WHERE APPLICABLE, PROVIDING ADDITIONAL VOID PROTECTION TO THE L2 SYSTEM. EXACT FIRE DETECTION SYSTEM AND DETECTOR LOCATIONS TO BE DESIGNED BY SPECIALIST CONTRACTOR.

AutoCAD SHX Text_579
%%UFIRE ALARM/EMERGENCY LIGHTING

AutoCAD SHX Text_580
1600x1600

AutoCAD SHX Text_581
1600x1600

AutoCAD SHX Text_582
CONTROL

AutoCAD SHX Text_583
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_584
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_585
TV

AutoCAD SHX Text_586
EF

AutoCAD SHX Text_587
EF

AutoCAD SHX Text_588
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_589
EL

AutoCAD SHX Text_590
EL

AutoCAD SHX Text_591
EL

AutoCAD SHX Text_592
EL

AutoCAD SHX Text_593
EL

AutoCAD SHX Text_594
TV

AutoCAD SHX Text_595
V.

AutoCAD SHX Text_596
TV

AutoCAD SHX Text_597
SOIL

AutoCAD SHX Text_598
AAV

AutoCAD SHX Text_599
EXISTING EXTERNAL DOOR ADJACENT TO NEW WC AND INTERNAL PASS DOOR INTO BOILER ROOM (SHARED WITH NEIGHBOURING PROPERTY) TO BE REMOVED WITH OPENINGS PERMANENTLY BLOCKED UP WITH BRICK/BLOCKWORK CONSTRUCTION PRIOR TO FRAMING AND INSULATING WALLS INTERNALLY. SEE PROJECT SPECIFICATION FOR FULL DETAILS OF BLOCKED UP OPENINGS. ACCESS TO BOILER ROOM MAINTAINED THROUGH RETAINED EXTERNAL DOOR OFF SHARED COURTYARD.

AutoCAD SHX Text_600
NOTE ALL UNFINISHED OR PARTIALLY COMPLETE PARTS OF THE BUILDING TO BE KEPT SECURE DURING THE FULL PERIOD OF WORKS, TO COMPLY WITH REGULATION 15 OF THE BUILDING STANDARDS.

AutoCAD SHX Text_601
WORKSHOP VENTILATION NOTES PROPOSED WINDOWS TO BE NON-OPENING TO RESTRICT ANY POTENTIAL NOISE DISTURBANCE. NATURAL VENTILATION CAN STILL BE ACHIEVED THROUGH OPENING DOORS, BUT DOORS SHOULD BE CLOSED DURING HOURS OF OPERATION AND MACHINERY USE. VENTILATION TO BE PROVIDED WITHIN WORKSHOP THROUGH MINIMUM 2No. EXTRACT FANS DUCTED TRHOUGH NEW EXTERNAL REAR WALLS, AS SHOWN. TOTAL COMBINED VENTILATION SHOULD PROVIDE A MINIMUM 1.5-2.5 AIR CHANGES PER HOUR, IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE GUIDANCE SET OUT IN CIBSE GUIDE B:2001, AND BUILDING STANDARD 3.14.5. THE MECHANICAL VENTILATION SYSTEM SHOULD BE DESIGNED AND INSTALLED TO ENSURE THE AVOIDANCE OF CONTAMINATION BY LEGIONELLA. THE SYSTEM SHOULD BE CONSTRUCTED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE RECOMMENDATIONS OF `LEGIONNAIRES DISEASE: THE CONTROL OF LEGIONELLA BACTERIA IN WATER SYSTEMS - APPROVED CODE OF PRACTICE AND GUIDANCE - HSE L8'. THE MECHANICAL VENTILATION SYSTEM TO BE DESIGNED AND INSTALLED BY SPECIALIST SUPPLIER, SIZED ACCORDINGLY FOR ENERGY EFFICIENCY. WHERE APPLICABLE, FANS SHOULD BE FITTED WITH VARIABLE SPEED MOTORS AND VARIABLE PITCH FANS TO OPTIMISE PERFORMANCE AT PART LOAD. TEMPERATURE SENSORS SHOULD BE PROVIDED, SET TO MINIMUM ENERGY CONSUMPTION FOR THE GIVEN OCCUPANCY OF THE BUILDING. THE CONTROL SYSTEM FOR THE MECHANICAL VENTILATION SHOULD BE SET TO AVOID SIMULTANEOUS HEATING AND COOLING OF THE ROOM. ALL MECHANICAL VENTILATION INSTALLATIONS TO BE DESIGNED AND INSTALLED IN ACCORDANCE WITH BUILDING STANDARDS 6.6.2. AND 6.6.4.

AutoCAD SHX Text_602
DISABLED/ACCESSIBLE TOILET PROVIDED IN ACCORDANCE WITH BUILDING STANDARD 3.12.8. SEE ENLARGED DETAIL FOR FULL INSTALLATION REQUIREMENTS. COMPENSATORY/TRICKLE VENTILATION TO BE PROVIDED TO WC. TRICKLE VENT TO BE TAKEN THROUGH EXTERNAL WALL TO OUTSIDE AIR, INDEPENDENTLY FROM EXTRACT FAN DUCT, AS SHOWN. TRICKLE VENT TO PROVIDE MINIMUM 4,000mm OPENING AREA. WALL MOUNTED EXTRACT FAN TO BE PROVIDED WITHIN NEW WC AREA, DUCTED TO OUTSIDE THROUGH EXTERNAL WALL, TO OUTSIDE AIR. EXTRACT FAN TO PROVIDE A MINIMUM OF THREE AIR CHANGES PER HOUR IN ACCORDANCE WITH BUILDING STANDARD 3.14.5. DOOR TO WC TO BE FITTED WITH A PRIVACY LOCK WITH AN EMERGENCY RELEASE WHICH CAN BE OPERABLE FROM THE OUTSIDE, AND ALSO OFFER AN ALTERNATE MEANS OF REMOVAL TO PERMIT ACCESS IN EVENT OF AN EMERGENCY. EXTRACT FAN OUTLET FROM STAFF/CANTEEN AREA, AS NOTED OVER.

AutoCAD SHX Text_603
NEW 2.0m HIGH TIMBER FENCE ERECTED TO SEPARATE PROPERTIES/ COURTYARD GROUND. NEIGHBOURING PROPERTY HAS RIGHT OF ACCESS ONLY TO COURTYARD FOR MAINTENANCE AND DRAINAGE ACCESS. ACCESS GATE FORMED WITHIN NEW FENCE TO PROVIDE ACCESS, AS SHOWN. SEE PROJECT SPECIFICATION FOR FULL DETAILS.

AutoCAD SHX Text_604
LOBBY TO HAVE MINIMUM 750x1600mm MANOEUVRING SPACE, POSITIONED CLEAR OF ANY OBSTACLE OR DOOR SWING. TO ASSIST GENERAL HYGIENE REQUIREMENTS, A SUITABLE VENTILATED CORRIDOR/SPACE (LOBBY) TO BE PROVIDED BETWEEN THE WC AREA AND THE STAFF/CANTEEN IN ACCORDANCE WITH BUILDING STANDARD 3.12.6. TRICKLE VENTILATION TO BE PROVIDED TO LOBBY WITH VENT TAKEN THROUGH NEW PARTITION TO ADJACENT WORKSHOP, AS SHOWN, TRICKLE VENT SHOULD BE POSITIONED AT A HEIGHT NO LESS THAN 1750mm ABOVE FLOOR LEVEL, AND SHALL PROVIDE A MINIMUM OF 4,000mm² OPENING AREA. MINIMUM 300mm PROVIDED AT LEADING EDGE OF ANY DOOR THAT MAY BE ACCESSED BY A WHEELCHAIR USER, AS DIMENSIONED/INDICATED.

AutoCAD SHX Text_605
WALL MOUNTED EXTRACT FAN TO BE PROVIDED WITHIN STAFF/CANTEEN AREA, DUCTED BELOW CEILING ACROSS LOBBY AND WC TO OUTSIDE THROUGH EXTERNAL WALL. EXTRACT FAN WITHIN STAFF/CANTEEN AREA TO PROVIDE A MINIMUM OF ONE AIR CHANGE PER HOUR IN ACCORDANCE WITH BUILDING STANDARD 3.14.5. COMPENSATORY TRICKLE/NATURAL VENTILATION TO BE PROVIDED TO STAFF/CANTEEN AREA WITH VENT FITTED AT HIGH LEVEL THROUGH FRONT WALL, DUCTED TO OUTSIDE AIR. VENT SHOULD BE POSITIONED AT A HEIGHT NO LESS THAN 1750mm ABOVE FLOOR LEVEL, AND SHALL PROVIDE A MINIMUM OF 4,000mm² OPENING AREA.

AutoCAD SHX Text_606
Pend Access

AutoCAD SHX Text_607
St.

AutoCAD SHX Text_608
SM

AutoCAD SHX Text_609
SM

AutoCAD SHX Text_610
SM

AutoCAD SHX Text_611
SM

AutoCAD SHX Text_612
SM

AutoCAD SHX Text_613
ALTHOUGH NO SIGN OF DAMP PENETRATION THROUGH EXISTING WALLS LOCATED BELOW GROUND LEVEL, IT IS RECOMMENDED THAT THESE AREAS SHOULD BE SUITABLY TANKED/WATERPROOFED PRIOR TO FRAMING AND INSULATING WALLS INTERNALLY. SEE PROJECT SPECIFICATION AND SECTION FOR FULL DETAILS OF TANKING REQUIREMENTS. EXACT EXTENT OF TANKING REQUIREMENTS TO BE CHECKED ON SITE.

AutoCAD SHX Text_614
EXISTING CLEAR OPENINGS TO FORMER GARAGE/LOCK-UP AREA TO BE FULLY ENCLOSED WITH NEW TIMBER FRAME WALLS, BUILT OFF SUITABLE FOUNDATION AND UNDERBUILDING. SEE PROJECT SPECIFICATION FOR FULL DETAILS OF NEW EXTERNAL WALL CONSTRUCTION REQUIREMENTS. 2No. 1600x1600mm NON-OPENING WINDOWS FITTED WITHIN NEW EXTERNAL WALLS FOR NATURAL LIGHT TO WORKSHOP. WINDOWS TO BE NON-OPENING TO RESTRICT ANY POTENTIAL NOISE DISTURBANCE. NEW 950x2100mm PERSONNEL ACCESS DOOR, COMPLETE WITH LEVEL ACCESS BETWEEN COURTYARD AND INTERNAL FLOOR HEIGHTS. EXTERNAL GROUND/HARDSTAND TO BE RAISED LOCALLY IN FRONT OF NEW DOORS TO ACCOMMODATE RAISED FLOOR LEVEL. MINIMUM 1500x1500mm LEVEL LANDING TO BE PROVIDED IN FRONT OF NEW PERSONNEL DOOR, AND DOOR FITTED WITH LEVEL THRESHOLD WEATHERBAR, SUITABLE FOR UNASSISTED WHEELCHAIR ACCESS. SEE PROJECT SPECIFICATION FOR FULL DETAILS. NEW 3500x2400mm ACCESS DOOR, SUITABLE FOR LARGE ITEM DELIVERY AND ACCESS TO WORKSHOP. ALL EXISTING EXPOSED STRUCTURAL STEELWORK TO BE CLEANED, TREATED AND PAINTED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE DETAILS IN THE PROJECT SPECIFICATION.

AutoCAD SHX Text_615
LOCATION OF PORTABLE DUST/WOOD CHIP EXTRACTION SYSTEM FOR CONNECTION TO INDIVIDUAL WOOD WORKING MACHINES. EXTRACTION UNIT HAS A 220V-240V POWER REQUIREMENT WITH 1HP MOTOR FOR SINGLE BAG COLLECTION ONLY. ALTHOUGH PORTABLE, FIXED DUCTING MAY BE SECURED TO UNDERSIDE OF CEILING TO EACH MACHINE TO ALLOW PERMANENT LOCATION OF EXTRACTION UNIT TO LOCATION SHOWN. ALL DUCTING FORMED WITH 100mm  FLEXIBLEDUCT, AND INSTALLED TO THE MANUFACTURERS WRITTEN INSTRUCTION AND DETAIL, ENSURING MAXIMUM LENGTH OF DUCT RUN IS NOT EXCEEDED.

AutoCAD SHX Text_616
TRICKLE/NATURAL VENTILATION TO BE PROVIDED TO STORAGE AREA WITH VENT FITTED AT HIGH LEVEL THROUGH FRONT WALL, DUCTED TO OUTSIDE AIR. VENT SHOULD BE POSITIONED AT A HEIGHT NO LESS THAN 1750mm ABOVE FLOOR LEVEL, AND SHALL PROVIDE A MINIMUM OF 4,000mm² OPENING AREA. ALL EXPOSED WALLS TO BE SUITABLY FRAMED OUT, INSULATED AND BOARDED INTERNALLY. SEE PROJECT SPECIFICATION FOR FULL DETAILS FOR EXISTING WALL LINING. NEW DOOR BETWEEN WORKSHOP AND STORE BELOW CONCRETE STAIRCASE TO UPPER FLOORS TO BE FITTED WITH HALF-HOUR, SELF-CLOSING FIRE DOOR, FITTED WITH SUITABLE INTUMESCENT STRIPS AND SMOKE BRUSH SEALS TO PROVIDE MINIMUM HALF-HOUR FIRE RESISTANCE. DOOR ALSO TO BE INSULATED TYPE, WITH MAXIMUM U-VALUE OF 2.00W/m²K, IN ACCORDANCE WITH TABLE 6.3 TO BUILDING STANDARD 6.2.1. ALLOWING FOR STORAGE AREA TO BE UNINSULATED INTERNALLY. DOOR CLOSER TO BE CONTROLLED TYPE CLOSER IN ACCORDANCE WITH BS EN 1154.

AutoCAD SHX Text_617
EF

AutoCAD SHX Text_618
EF

AutoCAD SHX Text_619
EXIST. SVP

AutoCAD SHX Text_620
EXIST. RWP



T
his page is intentionally left blank



email - stuartpattersondesign@gmail.com

Stuart Patterson

phone - 01450 375772
Roxburghshire, TD9 0DZ

Building & Timber Frame Design

5 Burnflat Lane, Hawick,

P
age 39

AutoCAD SHX Text_621
PROPOSED ELEVATION NOTES FRONT ELEVATION REMAINS UNAFFECTED BY PROPOSED WORKS, EXCEPT FOR 2No. VENTS THROUGH WALL AT LOW LEVEL. ALL OTHER WORKS COVERED UNDER CARE & REPAIR REQUIREMENTS. NEW INFILL PANELS TO REAR WALL TO BE FINISHED WITH BUTT-JOINTED TIMBER BOARDS. EXACT SPECIES OF TIMBER TO BE DETERMINED, WITH BOARDS PAINTED/STAINED TO CLIENT REQUIREMENTS. ALL PROPOSED FINISHES TO BE CONFIRMED AND APPROVED WITH LOCAL AUTHORITY PLANNING DEPARTMENT PRIOR TO COMMENCEMENT. WHERE EXTERNAL DOOR IS BLOCKED UP (ADJACENT TO NEW WC), BLOCKWORK TO BE FINISHED WITH RENDER, STYLE AND COLOUR TO MATCH EXISTING. ALL EXISTING STEEL SUPPORT STRUCTURE THAT REMAINS EXPOSED TO BE SUITABLY CLEANED OFF AND TREATED/PAINTED AGAINST CORROSION AND TO PROVIDE SUITABLE FIRE PROTECTION. SEE PROJECT SPECIFICATION FOR FULL DETAILS. NEW WINDOWS FORMED IN uPVC FRAMING. WINDOWS TO BE NON-OPENING TO RESTRICT ANY POTENTIAL NOISE DISTURBANCE. NEW WINDOWS TO HAVE VENTS FITTED TO HEAD OF FRAME AS INDICATED. TRICKLE VENTS TO ALLOWING A MINIMUM OPENING AREA OF 4,000mm² TO EACH UNIT, ALLOWING A MINIMUM 16,000mm² COMBINED OPENING AREA TO WORKSHOP. ALL NEW EXTERNAL WINDOWS TO BE DOUBLE GLAZED AND ACHIEVE MAXIMUM U-VALUE OF 2.00W/m²K. NEW EXTERNAL PERSONNEL DOOR TO ACHIEVE MAXIMUM U-VALUE OF 2.00W/m²K, AND LARGE WORKSHOP ACCESS DOORS TO HAVE A MAXIMUM 1.50W/m²K U-VALUE. ALL U-VALUE REQUIREMENTS TO COMPLY WITH TABLE 6.3 TO BUILDING STANDARD 6.2.1. EXACT STYLE OF ALL NEW DOORS TO BE CONFIRMED. ANY NEW WINDOWS WHICH ARE DIRECTLY ADJACENT/COUPLED TO A DOOR, OR WHERE THE CILL HEIGHT TO THE WINDOW IS LESS THAN 800mm FROM FINISHED FLOOR LEVEL, THE WINDOWS ARE TO BE GLAZED WITH TOUGHENED SAFETY GLASS. ANY GLAZING WITHIN ANY DOORSETS (INTERNAL OR EXTERNAL) ARE ALSO TO BE GLAZED WITH TOUGHENED SAFETY GLASS. TOUGHENED SAFETY GLASS TO COMPLY WITH BS.6262:PART4:2005. ALL NEW EXTERNAL DOORS SHOULD MEET THE RECOMMENDATIONS FOR PHYSICAL SECURITY IN `SECTION 2:SECURITY OF DWELLING' OF THE SECURED BY DESIGN PUBLICATION FOR `NEW HOMES 2014' (ALL RELEVANT INFORMATION CAN BE FOUND AT WWW.SECUREDBYDESIGN.COM). ALL NEW DOORS AND WINDOWS TO PROPERTY TO BE DESIGNED AND CONSTRUCTED IN ACCORDANCE WITH BS.7412:2007, AND PROVIDED WITH LOCKS AND HINGES AS LAID OUT IN BUILDING STANDARD 4.13.4, AND CERTIFIED TO BS.PAS 24:2007 FOR DOORS AND BS.7950:1997 FOR WINDOWS FOR SECURITY STANDARDS. ALL DOORS AND WINDOWS TO BE SECURED WITHIN THEIR RESPECTIVE OPENINGS TO THE RECOMMENDATIONS GIVEN IN SECTION 8 OF BS.8213-4:2007, OR TO THE MANUFACTURERS WRITTEN INSTRUCTION, WHERE THESE EXCEED THE RECOMMENDATION WITHIN THE BRITISH STANDARDS. ALL OTHER EXISTING FEATURES TO BE RETAINED/REPAIRED TO EXISTING STANDARDS.

AutoCAD SHX Text_622
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_623
SCALES

AutoCAD SHX Text_624
30/8/19

AutoCAD SHX Text_625
19-673-2002

AutoCAD SHX Text_626
1:50..

AutoCAD SHX Text_627
REVISION

AutoCAD SHX Text_628
DRAWING No.

AutoCAD SHX Text_629
/

AutoCAD SHX Text_630
S J Cranston Joinery

AutoCAD SHX Text_631
PROPOSED CHANGE OF USE & ALTERATION AT

AutoCAD SHX Text_632
FORMER BUCCLEUCH HOTEL,

AutoCAD SHX Text_633
1 TRINITY STREET, HAWICK.

AutoCAD SHX Text_634
DRAWING TITLE

AutoCAD SHX Text_635
PROJECT

AutoCAD SHX Text_636
CLIENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_637
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_638
REVISION

AutoCAD SHX Text_639
INDEX

AutoCAD SHX Text_640
PROPOSED ELEVATIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text_641
%%UProposed Rear Elevation

AutoCAD SHX Text_642
%%UProposed Front Elevation

AutoCAD SHX Text_643
COMPENSATORY TRICKLE VENT TO STAFF/CANTEEN AREA, AS NOTED ON THE PROPOSED FLOOR LAYOUT DRAWING.

AutoCAD SHX Text_644
TRICKLE VENT TO STORAGE AREA OFF WORKSHOP AREA, AS NOTED ON THE PROPOSED FLOOR LAYOUT DRAWING.

AutoCAD SHX Text_645
NO OTHER ALTERATIONS TO FRONT ELEVATION AS PART OF THIS APPLICATION. ANY FURTHER ALTERATIONS TO UPPER FLOORS CARRIED OUT UNDER SEPARATE PLANNING AND BUILDING WARRANT APPLICATIONS.

AutoCAD SHX Text_646
EXIST. RWP

AutoCAD SHX Text_647
EXISTING TIMBER DOORS FOR VEHICULAR ACCESS TO REAR OF BUILDING, WITH INTEGRAL PERSONNEL DOOR, TO BE RETAINED AS SHOWN.

AutoCAD SHX Text_648
EF

AutoCAD SHX Text_649
EF

AutoCAD SHX Text_650
EF

AutoCAD SHX Text_651
EF

AutoCAD SHX Text_652
TV

AutoCAD SHX Text_653
2No. 1600x1600mm NON-OPENING WINDOWS TO WORKSHOP AREA. WINDOWS FITTED WITH TRICKLE VENTS FOR COMPENSATORY VENTILATION FOR MECHANICAL VENTILATION TO ROOMSPACE.

AutoCAD SHX Text_654
TV

AutoCAD SHX Text_655
TV

AutoCAD SHX Text_656
TV

AutoCAD SHX Text_657
TV

AutoCAD SHX Text_658
1600x1600

AutoCAD SHX Text_659
1600x1600

AutoCAD SHX Text_660
950x2100mm EXTERNAL QUALITY PERSONNEL DOOR. EXACT STYLE TO BE DETERMINED.

AutoCAD SHX Text_661
EXISTING EXTERNAL DOOR TO BE REMOVED WITH OPENING BLOCKED UP. SEE PROPOSED FLOOR LAYOUT AND PROJECT SPECIFICATION FOR FULL DETAILS.

AutoCAD SHX Text_662
EXTRACT FAN OUTLETS TO WC AND STAFF/CANTEEN AREAS, WITH COMPENSATORY TRICKLE VENTILATION TO WC, ALL TAKEN THROUGH REAR WALL TO PROPERTY.

AutoCAD SHX Text_663
MECHANICAL VENTILATION TO WORKSHOP AREA, AS DETAILED ON THE PROPOSED FLOOR LAYOUT DRAWING.

AutoCAD SHX Text_664
NEW 3500x2400mm EXTERNAL QUALITY ACCESS DOOR. EXACT STYLE TO BE DETERMINED.

AutoCAD SHX Text_665
ALL RETAINED STEELWORK EXPOSED TO EXTERNAL CONDITIONS TO BE PAINTED/TREATED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE PROJECT SPECIFICATION.

AutoCAD SHX Text_666
NEW INFILL PANELLING TO REAR WALLS FINISHED WITH BUTT-JOINTED TIMBER LINING. SEE PROJECT SPECIFICATION FOR FULL CONSTRUCTION DETAILS.

AutoCAD SHX Text_667
EXISTING PEND RETAINED FOR VEHICULAR ACCESS TO REAR OF PROPERTY.

AutoCAD SHX Text_668
EXIST. SVP

AutoCAD SHX Text_669
EXTERNAL GROUND LEVELS RAISED LOCALLY AT NEW ENTRANCE DOORS TO ACCOMMODATE RAISED FLOOR HEIGHT. SEE PROPOSED FLOOR LAYOUT AND PROJECT SPECIFICATION FOR FULL DETAILS.



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Stuart Patterson

email - stuartpattersondesign@gmail.com
phone - 01450 375772

Roxburghshire, TD9 0DZ

Building & Timber Frame Design

5 Burnflat Lane, Hawick,

P
age 41

AutoCAD SHX Text_670
DISABLED/WHEELCHAIR TOILET PROVIDED IN ACCORDANCE WITH BUILDING STANDARD 3.12.8. AND FITTED WITH ASSOCIATED GRAB RAILS, AS FOLLOWS - A 600mm VERTICAL GRABRAIL STARTING 600mm VERTICAL GRABRAIL STARTING 800mm ABOVE FINISHED FLOOR LEVEL B 600mm HORIZONTAL GRABRAIL TOP 600mm HORIZONTAL GRABRAIL TOP 750mm ABOVE FINISHED FLOOR LEVEL ABOVE FINISHED FLOOR LEVEL C 600mm HINGED SUPPORT RAIL STARTING 600mm HINGED SUPPORT RAIL STARTING 700mm ABOVE FINISHED FLOOR LEVEL ABOVE FINISHED FLOOR LEVEL ALL GRABRAILS TO BE 35mm IN DIAMETER WITH CLEAR SPACE BEHIND OF 45mm UNLESS STATED OTHERWISE. AN ASSISTANCE ALARM PULL CORD SHOULD BE FITTED WITHIN ACCESSIBLE TOILET, AS SHOWN. PULL CORD TO BE FITTED WITH TWO RED BANGLES FOR IDENTIFICATION. THE ASSISTANCE ALARM SHOULD HAVE AN AUDIBLE TONE, DISTINGUISHABLE FROM ANY FIRE ALARM, ALONG WITH VISUAL INDICATORS WITHIN THE SANITARY ACCOMMODATION AND OUTSIDE THE ENTRY DOOR TO THE LOBBY, TO ALERT OCCUPANTS TO THE ALARM CALL. MINIMUM 1.5x1.5m MANOEUVRING SPACE TO BE PROVIDED WITHIN ACCESSIBLE TOILET, CLEAR OF WC PAN AND ANY OTHER OBSTRUCTION OTHER THAN WHB. WHB TO BE WALL HUNG (I.E. NO PEDESTAL).

AutoCAD SHX Text_671
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_672
%%UGeneric Disabled WC Layout

AutoCAD SHX Text_673
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_674
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_675
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_676
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_677
ASSISTANCE ALARM PULL CORD.

AutoCAD SHX Text_678
FLUSHING HANDLE ON TRANSFER SIDE.

AutoCAD SHX Text_679
MIRROR

AutoCAD SHX Text_680
PULL CORD LOCATION.

AutoCAD SHX Text_681
ALTERNATIVE PULL CORD LOCATION.

AutoCAD SHX Text_682
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_683
EXISTING GROUND AND FIRST FLOOR TO PROPERTY, ROOF AND ASSOCIATED DRAINAGE TO REMAIN UNAFFECTED BY PROPOSED BASEMENT ALTERATION WORKS. CONVERSION AND ALTERATION OF UPPER FLOORS WILL BE SUBJECT TO A SEPARATE PLANNING AND BUILDING WARRANT APPLICATION.

AutoCAD SHX Text_684
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_685
SCALES

AutoCAD SHX Text_686
30/8/19

AutoCAD SHX Text_687
19-673-3002

AutoCAD SHX Text_688
1:50, 1:20..

AutoCAD SHX Text_689
REVISION

AutoCAD SHX Text_690
DRAWING No.

AutoCAD SHX Text_691
/

AutoCAD SHX Text_692
S J Cranston Joinery

AutoCAD SHX Text_693
PROPOSED CHANGE OF USE & ALTERATION AT

AutoCAD SHX Text_694
FORMER BUCCLEUCH HOTEL,

AutoCAD SHX Text_695
1 TRINITY STREET, HAWICK.

AutoCAD SHX Text_696
DRAWING TITLE

AutoCAD SHX Text_697
PROJECT

AutoCAD SHX Text_698
CLIENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_699
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_700
REVISION

AutoCAD SHX Text_701
INDEX

AutoCAD SHX Text_702
PROPOSED SECTION & DETAILS

AutoCAD SHX Text_703
%%UProposed Cross Section

AutoCAD SHX Text_704
ALL EXTERNAL AND EXPOSED WALLS TO BE FRAMED OUT, INSULATED AND BOARDED INTERNALLY, IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE PROJECT SPECIFICATION. SEE PROJECT SPECIFICATION FOR FULL DETAILS.

AutoCAD SHX Text_705
ALTHOUGH NO SIGN OF DAMP PENETRATION THROUGH EXISTING WALLS, AREAS TO FRONT/SIDE WALLS TO BASEMENT LOCATED BELOW EXTERNAL GROUND LEVEL TO BE CLEANED OFF AND WATERPROOFED WITH 2No. COATS BETEC FLEX COATING ON ONE COAT BETEC NSM (BOTH BY GRACE PRODUCTS) TO A HEIGHT NO LESS THAN 150mm ABOVE EXTERNAL GROUND LEVEL. SHOULD ANY ISSUES ARISE ONCE THE WALLS ARE STRIPPED BACK, OR IF THERE ARE ANY PROBLEMS WITH APPLYING THE WATERPROOFING, A SPECIALIST DAMP-PROOF COMPANY SHOULD BE APPOINTED FOR FURTHER ADVICE AND TREATMENT. EXACT EXTENT OF TANKING REQUIREMENTS TO BE CHECKED ON SITE. DPM TO NEW FLOOR SLAB TO BE LAPPED OVER AND SEALED TO TOP OF FIRST COAT OF BETEC FLEX, WITH A MINIMUM 500mm OVERLAP TO HORIZONTAL (IE WATERPROOFING TO BE TAKEN HORIZONTALLY UNDER FLOOR DPM BY MINIMUM 500mm). ALL WATERPROOFING TO BE APPLIED AS PER MANUFACTURERS INSTRUCTION AND DETAILS.

AutoCAD SHX Text_706
MINIMUM 450x200mm DEEP CONCRETE STRIP FOUNDATION TO NEW EXTERNAL WALL TO INFILL CLEAR OPENINGS WITHIN REAR WALL. ALL SUBSTRUCTURE BELOW DPC LEVEL TO BE BUILT IN BRICKWORK OR DENSE BLOCKWORK. FOUNDATIONS TO BE FORMED AT SIMILAR DEPTH TO EXISTING, AND LINKED TO EXISTING AS PER DETAIL INDICATED ON THE FOUNDATION LAYOUT.

AutoCAD SHX Text_707
NEW UNDERBUILDING/EXTERNAL WALL TO BE CONSTRUCTED BELOW NEW WALL FRAMING, TO SUIT NEW INSULATED FLOOR TO WORKSHOP AREA. SEE PROJECT SPECIFICATION FOR FULL DETAILS. DPC TO BE PROVIDED BETWEEN TIMBER WALLPLATE AND MASONRY UNDERBUILDING, OVERLAPPED WITH DPM TO NEW FLOOR SLAB.

AutoCAD SHX Text_708
EXISTING CONCRETE FLOOR TO GARAGE/LOCKUP AREA TO BE BROKEN OUT, WITH FORMATION LEVEL EXCAVATED AND LEVELLED PRIOR TO FORMING NEW INSULATED FLOOR SLAB. NEW FLOOR FORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE PROJECT SPECIFICATION. MINIMUM 44mm INSULATION RETURNED UP AT FLOOR SLAB TO PREVENT COLD-BRIDGING. CARE TO BE TAKEN NOT TO UNDERMINE ANY ADJACENT FOUNDATIONS DURING EXCAVATION WORKS.

AutoCAD SHX Text_709
EXISTING LATH & PLASTER FINISH TO UNDERSIDE OF EXISTING GROUND FLOOR CEILING JOISTS TO BE STRIPPED OUT IN PREPARATION OF NEW SEPARATING FLOOR CEILING CONSTRUCTION. EXISTING PUGGING BOARDS AND ASH DEAFENING BETWEEN JOISTS TO BE RETAINED. NEW CEILING TO BE FORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE PROJECT SPECIFICATION. CEILING TO BE TAKEN THROUGH AND SEALED TO EXISTING EXTERNAL/STONE WALLS PRIOR TO FORMING WALL FRAMING TO MAINTAIN SOUND PROTECTION ACROSS THE FULL CEILING AREA. SEE PROJECT SPECIFICATION FOR FULL DETAILS.

AutoCAD SHX Text_710
EXISTING STEEL POST & BEAM STRUCTURE TO FORMER GARAGE/LOCK-UP AT BASEMENT LEVEL TO BE RETAINED, WITH NO ALTERATION TO THE STRUCTURAL OPENING SIZES. EXPOSED STEELWORK TO BE SUITABLY CLEANED AND RE-PAINTED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE PROJECT SPECIFICATION. MINIMUM 80mm RIGID INSULATION TO BE PLACED BETWEEN INNER FLANGES OF STEEL BEAM TO MAINTAIN WALL INSULATION TO SEPARATING FLOOR.

AutoCAD SHX Text_711
EXISTING STONE BOUNDARY WALL BETWEEN COURTYARD AND SUPERMARKET CAR PARK, APPROXIMATELY 3m HIGH, AS SHOWN.

AutoCAD SHX Text_712
NON-OPENING DOUBLE GLAZED uPVC WINDOWS, SECURED WITHIN STRUCTURAL OPENINGS. DPC SECURED TO WALL OVER WINDOW FRAME, LAPPED OVER FRONT EDGE OF FRAME TO PREVENT ANY WATER INGRESS. DPC TO BE OVERLAPPED BY BREATHER MEMBRANE. DPC TO BE PROVIDED ALL ROUND NEW WINDOW AND DOOR OPENINGS, INCLUDING BELOW WINDOW CILL.

AutoCAD SHX Text_713
Workshop

AutoCAD SHX Text_714
Former Bedrooms/ Accommodation

AutoCAD SHX Text_715
Former Bedrooms/ Accommodation

AutoCAD SHX Text_716
DPC

AutoCAD SHX Text_717
DPC

AutoCAD SHX Text_718
DPC

AutoCAD SHX Text_719
%%UProposed Courtyard Fence Details

AutoCAD SHX Text_720
SCALE 1:20..

AutoCAD SHX Text_721
BOUNDARY FENCE NOTES FENCE CONSTRUCTED WITH 95x95mm TIMBER POSTS AT APPROXIMATELY 1800mm CENTRES, OR AS DEEMED NECESSARY TO SUIT SITE REQUIREMENTS. EACH POST TO BE CAST INTO SUITABLE CONCRETE PAD FOUNDATIONS (POSTCRETE, OR EQUAL) TO ENSURE STABILITY. OUTER FACE OF POSTS (TO COURTYARD SIDE) TO HAVE MINIMUM 25x45mm TIMBER RAILS SECURELY SCREWED TO EACH POST AT TOP, MIDDLE AND BOTTOM OF FENCE CONSTRUCTION. 18x145mm SAWN TIMBER BOARDS TO BE NAILED TO FENCE RAILS, EITHER BUTT-JOINTED OR MAXIMUM 5mm GAP BETWEEN BOARDS FOR PRIVACY. ALL TIMBERS FORMING NEW FENCE TO BE PRESERVATIVE TREATED AGAINST FUNGAL AND INSECT ATTACK. IT IS RECOMMENDED TO PROVIDE ADDITIONAL WATERPROOFING TREATMENT TO BASE OF TIMBER POSTS PRIOR TO BACKFILLING. OVERALL HEIGHT OF TIMBER PANELLING TO BE NO GREATER THAN 2000mm FROM GROUND LEVEL, AS SHOWN. FENCE TO BE STAINED/PAINTED TO COLOUR AGREED WITH LOCAL PLANING AUTHORITY. ALL FENCE CONSTRUCTION WORKS TO BE SECURELY ANCHORED TO GROUND/FOUNDATIONS. FENCE TO BE DESIGNED AND SUPPLIED BY SPECIALIST SUPPLIER.

AutoCAD SHX Text_722
NEW 2.0m HIGH TIMBER FENCE TO COURTYARD. SEE DETAIL ABOVE FOR FULL CONSTRUCTION INFORMATION.



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Page 43



Page 44



Page 45



Page 46



P
age 47

AutoCAD SHX Text_723
%%uLocation Plan

AutoCAD SHX Text_724
SCALE 1:1250..

AutoCAD SHX Text_725
Ordnance Survey (c) Crown Copyright 2019. All rights reserved. Licence number 100022432

AutoCAD SHX Text_726
WEENSLAND ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_727
TRINITY STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_728
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_729
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_730
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_731
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_732
Buccleuch Hotel

AutoCAD SHX Text_733
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_734
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_735
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_736
Works

AutoCAD SHX Text_737
4A

AutoCAD SHX Text_738
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_739
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_740
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_741
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_742
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_743
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_744
DOUGLAS ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_745
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_746
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_747
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_748
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_749
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_750
D

AutoCAD SHX Text_751
ADJACENT BUSINESSES A - JOHN BEATTIE & SONS, FUNERAL DIRECTOR - JOHN BEATTIE & SONS, FUNERAL DIRECTOR JOHN BEATTIE & SONS, FUNERAL DIRECTOR WORKSHOP & GARAGES B - GLEN WIGHT & SON - GLEN WIGHT & SON GLEN WIGHT & SON GENERAL BUILDERS YARD & WORKSHOP C - ELSDON ELECTICAL - ELSDON ELECTICAL ELSDON ELECTICAL WORKSHOP D - MR T. SCOTT, JOINER (COMPANIES LISTED AS TOFFOLLO & FBI) - MR T. SCOTT, JOINER (COMPANIES LISTED AS TOFFOLLO & FBI) MR T. SCOTT, JOINER (COMPANIES LISTED AS TOFFOLLO & FBI) JOINERS YARD & WORKSHOP E - HAWICK VETERINARY PRACTICE. - HAWICK VETERINARY PRACTICE. HAWICK VETERINARY PRACTICE. GENERAL VETERINARY SERVICES F - Wm MORRISONS LTD. - Wm MORRISONS LTD. Wm MORRISONS LTD. SUPERMARKET, PETROL STATION & CAR WASH.

AutoCAD SHX Text_752
Supermarket

AutoCAD SHX Text_753
EARL STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_754
PROPERTY REFERRED TO IN THE APPLICATION.

AutoCAD SHX Text_755
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_756
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_757
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_758
Petrol Station

AutoCAD SHX Text_759
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_760
F



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Mr Stephen Cranston
per Stuart Patterson Building & Timber Frame
Design
5 Burnflat Lane
Hawick
Scottish Borders
TD9 0DZ

Please ask for:


Stuart Herkes
01835 825039

Our Ref: 19/01784/FUL
Your Ref:

E-Mail: sherkes@scotborders.gov.uk
Date: 13th February 2020

Dear Sir/Madam

PLANNING APPLICATION AT Buccleuch Hotel Trinity Street Hawick Scottish Borders TD9
9NR

PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT: Part change of use from garage/storage and alterations to
form workshop and storage for joinery business

APPLICANT: Mr Stephen Cranston

Please find attached the formal notice of refusal for the above application.

Drawings can be found on the Planning pages of the Council website at
https://eplanning.scotborders.gov.uk/online-applications/.

Your right of appeal is set out within the decision notice.

Yours faithfully

John Hayward

Planning & Development Standards Manager

Page 49



Regulatory Services

Visit http://eplanning.scotborders.gov.uk/online-applications/

TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING (SCOTLAND) ACT 1997 (as amended)

Town and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) (Scotland) Regulations 2013

Application for Planning Permission Reference : 19/01784/FUL

To : Mr Stephen Cranston per Stuart Patterson Building & Timber Frame Design 5 Burnflat Lane
Hawick Scottish Borders TD9 0DZ

With reference to your application validated on 19th December 2019 for planning permission under the Town
and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 (as amended) for the following development :-

Proposal : Part change of use from garage/storage and alterations to form workshop and storage for
joinery business

at : Buccleuch Hotel Trinity Street Hawick Scottish Borders TD9 9NR

The Scottish Borders Council hereby refuse planning permission for the reason(s) stated on the attached
schedule.

Dated 12th February 2020
Regulatory Services
Council Headquarters
Newtown St Boswells
MELROSE
TD6 0SA

John Hayward
Planning & Development Standards Manager

Page 50



Regulatory Services

Visit http://eplanning.scotborders.gov.uk/online-applications/

APPLICATION REFERENCE : 19/01784/FUL

Schedule of Plans and Drawings Refused:

Plan Ref Plan Type Plan Status

19-673-1003 Location Plan Refused
19-673-1001 Existing Site Plan Refused
19-673-1002 Existing Plans & Elevations Refused
19-673-2001 Proposed Site Plan Refused
19-673-2002 Proposed Elevations Refused
19-673-3002 Proposed Sections & Elevations Refused

REASON FOR REFUSAL

1 The proposal is contrary in principle to Policy ED2 of the Local Development Plan 2016, in that the
need for the proposal to operate from this specific location - which is neither an existing or allocated
business or industrial site nor an allocated mixed use or redevelopment site - has not been
adequately justified; it has not been demonstrated that there would be any significant economic
and/or employment benefit from the proposal being sited and operating as proposed; and it has not
been demonstrated that the proposal is capable of co-existing satisfactorily with adjoining uses,
specifically in that it has the potential to generate noise nuisance impacts that would be liable to
have unacceptable impacts upon the residential amenity of existing and consented dwellings within
the surrounding area contrary to Policy HD3 of the Local Development Plan 2016. Moreover, the
proposal would be most appropriately accommodated on an existing or allocated business and
industrial site, where provision exists to accommodate its impacts upon the amenity and
environment of the site and surrounding area. There are no other material considerations that
would be sufficient to outweigh this policy conflict.

2 The proposal is contrary to Policy PMD2 and Policy ED3 of the Local Development Plan 2016, in
that it is not compatible with, and does not respect, the character of the surrounding area and
neighbouring uses including the Town Centre.

3 The proposal is contrary to Policy EP1 of the Local Development Plan 2016, in that it has not been
adequately demonstrated that it would not have any unacceptable impact upon a European
Protected Species; specifically bats; or their habitat.

FOR THE INFORMATION OF THE APPLICANT

If the applicant is aggrieved by the decision of the Planning Authority to refuse planning permission for or
approval required by a condition in respect of the proposed development, or to grant permission or approval
subject to conditions, the applicant may require the planning authority to review the case under Section 43A
of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 (as amended) within three months from the date of
this notice.

The notice of review must be submitted on the standard form and addressed to the Clerk of The Local
Review Body, Democratic Services, Scottish Borders Council, Council Headquarters, Newtown St Boswells.
TD6 0SA or sent by email to localreview@scotborders.gov.uk. The standard form and guidance notes can
be found online at Appeal a Planning Decision. Appeals to the Local Review Body can also be made via the
Scottish Government Planning and Environmental Appeals Division by clicking on the following link PEAD

Page 51



Regulatory Services

Visit http://eplanning.scotborders.gov.uk/online-applications/

If permission to develop land is refused or granted subject to conditions, whether by the Planning Authority
or by the Scottish Ministers, and the owner of the land claims that the land has become incapable of
reasonably beneficial use in its existing state and cannot be rendered capable of reasonably beneficial use
by the carrying out of any development which has been or would be permitted, the owner may serve on the
Planning Authority a purchase notice requiring the purchase of his interest in the land in accordance with the
provisions of Part 5 of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 (as amended).

Page 52



SCOTTISH BORDERS COUNCIL 
 

APPLICATION TO BE DETERMINED UNDER POWERS DELEGATED TO  
CHIEF PLANNING OFFICER 

 
PART III REPORT (INCORPORATING REPORT OF HANDLING) 

 
REF :     19/01784/FUL 
 
APPLICANT :    Mr Stephen Cranston 

 
AGENT :   Stuart Patterson Building & Timber Frame Design 
 
DEVELOPMENT : Part change of use from garage/storage and alterations to form workshop 

and storage for joinery business 
 
LOCATION: Buccleuch Hotel 

Trinity Street 
Hawick 
Scottish Borders 
TD9 9NR 
 

 
TYPE :    FUL Application 
 
REASON FOR DELAY:   
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
DRAWING NUMBERS: 
 
Plan Ref      Plan Type    Plan Status 

        
19-673-1003  Location Plan    Refused 
19-673-1001  Existing Site Plan    Refused 
19-673-1002  Existing Plans & Elevations  Refused 
19-673-2001  Proposed Site Plan    Refused 
19-673-2002  Proposed Elevations    Refused 
19-673-3002  Proposed Sections & Elevations  Refused 
 
NUMBER OF REPRESENTATIONS: 1  
SUMMARY OF REPRESENTATIONS: 
 
One general comment has been received which raises concerns about noise impacts from the 
operation of the proposed workshop. 
 
Roads Planning Section: does not object on the grounds that the proposed use, is likely to generate 
less vehicle movements than the previous use; while adequate parking is available in the rear 
courtyard area, which is accessed via the pend access. 
 
Economic Development Section: supports the provision of new workshop space, providing it is in an 
appropriate location and would not unduly disturb surrounding residential uses.  It agrees with the 
Applicant that generally the location has become an increased commercial / business area and sees 
no particular issue with the basement area being converted into a joiner's workshop, which, it 
observes, is screened from the public street side; with its own separate private access.  The 
continuation of the hotel use in the future, seems unlikely so considers the loss of this facility to be of 
little concern.  Economic Development notes the Applicants' future intention to convert the upper floors 
into flats and/or commercial retail use.  Economic Development though, would question whether the 
provision of suitable soundproofing should be required at this stage, rather than this being retro-fitting 
later as and when development takes place.  The other issue Economic Development identifies, is with 
the parking and access arrangements, specifically with the need to ensure that this facility has 

Page 53



controlled access and there is enough parking within the site.  In addition if a retail use is allowed later 
on, then the premises should be able to accommodate this satisfactorily too.  Finally, it advises that it 
is not clear whether or not a specific permission for a joiners workshop should be approved, rather 
than a general 5 & 6 class use, and whether or not the operating hours should be conditioned in view 
of the residential premises planned for above the development and across Trinity Street. 
 
Ecology Section: seeks further information, specifically a survey for bats, ahead of the determination of 
the planning application. 
 
The Community Council and Environmental Health have been consulted, but have not responded to 
the public consultation. 
 
PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS AND POLICIES: 
 
Scottish Borders Council Local Development Plan 2016: 
 
Policy PMD1: Sustainability 
Policy PMD2: Quality Standards 
Policy PMD5: Infill Development 
Policy ED2: Employment Uses Outwith Business and Industrial Land 
Policy ED3: Town Centres and Shopping Development 
Policy HD3: Residential Amenity 
Policy EP1: International Nature Conservation Sites and Protected Species 
Policy EP2: National Nature Conservation Sites and Protected Species 
Policy EP16: Air Quality 
Policy IS1: Public Infrastructure and Local Service Provision 
Policy IS7: Parking Provision and Standards 
 
Householder Developments SPG (2006) 
Waste Management SPG (2015) 
  
 
Recommendation by  - Stuart Herkes  (Planning Officer) on 12th February 2020 
 
This application proposes a change of use of part of a former hotel, to a joiners premises (workshop, store 
and yard). 
 
SITE DESCRIPTION 
 
The site concerned is part of the former, now vacant, Buccleuch Hotel, at No 1 Trinity Street, which lies just 
inside Hawick's Town Centre.  The application site does not include the main hotel building, which was 
historically subdivided from the site over ten years ago, to be operated as a restaurant. 
 
The application site comprises that section of the former hotel - the annex - which accommodated the former 
public bar, guest bedrooms and the rear car park.  Neither the former annex nor the main hotel are Listed.  
The annex adjoins the main hotel and in common with it, fronts Trinity Street.  The guest bedrooms were 
once accommodated on its upper two levels.  Below these floors is an under-build or basement level, which 
is at or below street level on the front elevation, but which is more capacious to the rear, where garaging and 
storage were accommodated under an overhang, and which are accessible from the hotel's car park, which 
itself, is only accessible to vehicles from the front, through a gated pend, which lies at the building's 
northeastern extremity.  The access therein ramps quite steeply downwards from the level of the 
streetscape to the front, to the level of the rear car park.  The Applicant believes that the car park area was 
itself once roofed over, and to the boundary with Morrisons supermarket, but it is now open to the elements. 
 
The main hotel building is not within the application site, but immediately adjoins it to the southwest.  It is not 
currently in use, but is the subject of a current planning consent to change its use to a single dwellinghouse.  
It is currently vacant too, but remains in a separate ownership. 
 

Page 54



Beyond the former hotel premises, surrounding uses are mixed but include some business and commercial 
uses (such as an undertakers; a vets; as well as Morrisons Supermarket) and residential uses, including 
dwellings on the opposite side of Trinity Street from the hotel premises. 
 
PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT 
 
The proposal is that the basement floor of the building - that is, the floor which previously accommodated the 
aforementioned hotel's garages and store -should now accommodate the operation of a joinery business' 
workshop and store.   
 
It is additionally proposed that the former hotel car park, should serve as the proposed workshop's yard.   
 
While the front elevation would remain as it is, the proposals include the infilling of the open-side of the 
basement floor level to the rear; that is, the elevation facing the car park; to create the workshop premises.  
Technically this elevation would be realised through the infilling of the space between the metal supports 
with timber walls.    
 
A new fence is proposed between the two sections of the former hotel for security reasons. 
 
PLANNING HISTORY 
 
The former hotel premises was originally subdivided following the approval of Planning Consent 
05/00124/COU.  The latter allowed the main hotel building to be operated as a restaurant.  This part of the 
hotel is not within the current application site.  Following the aforementioned subdivision, the owners' 
intention had been that the remainder of the site - the current application site - should be converted to 
residential use.  It was successively made the subject of two planning consents (08/00797/FUL and 
12/00321/FUL) both for change of use to three dwellinghouses.  However, both of these consents are 
ultimately now understood to have expired unimplemented.  (This is the Applicant's own understanding, as 
per the advice of their Supporting Statement). 
 
The remainder of the hotel was operated as a restaurant, but following the closure of that premises, has 
more recently been made the subject of Planning Consent 18/01381/FUL, which on 15 March 2019, 
approved the change of use of this part of the former hotel to a single dwellinghouse.  It is a significant 
material consideration within the assessment of the current application that the aforementioned consented 
dwellinghouse lies next door to, and adjoins, the current application site.  Although the approval does not yet 
appear to have been implemented at the time of writing, it could still be implemented in the period to 15 
March 2022.  Accordingly, the Planning Authority is required to consider the residential amenity of this 
neighbour; having the same regard to it, as if it were an existing dwellinghouse. 
 
APPLICANT'S SUPPORTING CASE 
 
The application is supported by a statement, which the Applicant has more recently augmented in response 
to a request from the planning officer for more details.   
 
The supporting statement advises that the Applicant currently operates his joinery business from another 
premises in Hawick, but is concerned to investigate the possibility of relocating part of his operations to this 
site, where it is his intention to locate and operate a supplementary workshop from the basement.   It is 
advised that he also has a longer-term intention of converting the two upper floors to residential or retail use; 
albeit that it is acknowledged that any such ulterior proposal(s) would themselves need to be made the 
subject of an ulterior planning application, or ulterior planning applications, were he to seek to progress 
these. 
 
The workshop would be formed by enclosing the former garages under the annex, to create a modern 
workspace. 
 
It is acknowledged that there would be potential for noise outputs from the operation of the proposed joinery 
workshop, but advised that since the Applicant is a sole trader, use of machinery and equipment would be 
limited accordingly; while operating hours, it is advised, would be 8am to 6pm.  These operating hours are 
not related or confined to any particular days of the week, but it is advised that the facility is anticipated to be 
an additional facility for the business, and not a replacement premises, and therefore is not intended to be in 

Page 55



full time operation.  It is further advised that additional sound deafening materials and construction would be 
employed, including non-opening windows to the north, and the implementation of sound deafening relative 
to the upper floors. 
 
It is advised that the building is "in a predominantly commercial area" including Morrisons supermarket to the 
north; Hawick Veterinary Practice to the east; and the premises of an undertakers to the south.  In a later 
statement, it is advised that further afield there are builders (Glen Wight & Son), electricians (Elsdon) and 
joiners (T. Scott); and then other named businesses even further afield. 
 
It is acknowledged though, firstly, that there are existing dwellingflats opposite the pend access to the site; 
and secondly, that there may be a consented dwellinghouse within the former hotel building.  With regard to 
the latter, it is advised that the proposals have anticipated that a residential use might be accommodated 
therein, and the layout and operation of the proposed workshop is such as to minimise impacts; principally 
by the workshop not being accommodated immediately adjacent to the common wall, but set back behind 
some ancillary uses (former boiler house; wc; lobby; and staff/canteen areas).   It is advised, by way of 
comfort, that since the Applicant has future plans for the remainder of the site, he would himself be 
concerned not to have any unacceptable impacts upon the upper floors, were he to seek to accommodate 
flats or retail units in these spaces.  
 
The supporting statement advises that while every effort is, or would be, made to minimise disruption to 
surrounding uses, it also considers that regard is had to the need to bring the building back into a productive 
use, to prevent it deteriorating further. 
 
In response to a request for details of all noise-making machinery that would be in operation on the site, the 
Applicant has advised that they would only look to carry out a noise impact assessment were one requested 
by Environmental Health.  While the latter has not clarified what details, if any, it would be concerned to 
review, the Applicant has not equally well, come forward with details of the actual machinery, plant and 
equipment that would be operating at the site.  Accordingly, the potential noise impacts of this proposal 
remain unaccounted for, either in relation to any specific noise assessment, or even in any indicative way in 
relation to any actual specific machinery or equipment that the Applicant would be concerned to operate at 
the proposed premises. 
 
The Applicant would be agreeable to the use of the premises being regulated under condition(s) in the event 
of approval, to restrict use to his specific operation.  
 
PLANNING PRINCIPLE 
 
The Applicant variously advises in the supporting details that the proposal is, or could be, a 'light industrial 
use' and that the site itself, as part of a former hotel, should be understood to be in a 'commercial use'.  
However, neither of these identifications is informed by planning regulations. 
 
There may be some dispute as to whether or not the site is still in a Class 7 hotel use, as opposed to being 
in a sui generis public bar use or in a Class 9 residential use (were any evidence to be produced that a 
previous consent for the site had in fact been implemented through works carried out on the site ahead of 
the expiry of these consents).  However, it is definitely not in any existing or consented business or 
employment use; which is to say, in a Class 4, Class 5 or Class 6 use.  As such, there is no permitted 
change of use of the site from its existing use (regardless of whether or not that existing use is, or can be 
shown to be, Class 7, Class 9 or sui generis) to any Class 4, Class 5 or Class 6 use.  Accordingly, a 
planning application is certainly required to progress the current proposal.  I would add to this, that while it 
may be that the garage or storage area within the basement of the premises, might previously have 
accommodated some similar activities to what would occur within the proposed use (e.g. storage), these 
occurred as ancillary to the main use of the premises, and are not reasonably characterised as being the 
main use, or even a secondary use, of the site. 
 
With regard to the proposed use itself, a joiners workshop is a Class 5 industrial use. I would note that while 
the Applicant considers that the proposal might be considered a 'light industrial use' - primarily, it seems, 
due to the limited staff involved, and operating hours envisaged - this is not in fact the case in planning 
terms.  It is not the number of staff or hours of operation which distinguish a 'light industrial use' from an 
'industrial use'; it is the potential for operations and activities which in their character, would be liable to 
impact adversely the residential amenity of any surrounding dwellings.  Accordingly, a joiners workshop is in 

Page 56



terms of its likely operation, and associated impacts upon the amenity of surrounding properties (including 
the potential for significant noise and air quality impacts) is unequivocally a Class 5 industrial use.  It is only 
reasonably anticipated to involve the operation of noise-making machinery of a type and at a 
level/frequency, which would be above that which might be liable to occur within the operation of a 
residential property.  A Class 4 light industrial use by contrast, and by definition, on the other hand, is a use 
that could be accommodated next to a residential property without it being liable to have any unacceptable 
noise or air quality impacts upon the amenity of that residential property.  This is because it would itself not 
be liable to generate any impacts that would not be the same as, or equivalent to, anything that might occur 
within the operation of a residential context.  As such, the Planning Authority is obliged to consider the 
proposal as the accommodation of a Class 5 industrial use on the site; not a Class 4 light industrial use. 
 
Regardless though, when it comes to the acceptability or otherwise of the principle of this proposal, there is 
in the first instance anyway, no practical distinction to be made between a proposed Class 4 use, and a 
proposed Class 5 use, of a premises which is neither itself already in such a use or is not otherwise 
allocated in the Local Development Plan as business and industrial land.  This is because in this 
circumstance, there is the same need for the Applicant to justify a proposed business or industrial use of 
such a site.  This requirement is applied by Policy ED2: Employment Uses Outwith Business And Industrial 
Land, which advises that within the defined Development Boundary there will be a general presumption 
against industrial or business uses outwith business and industrial land, mixed use or redevelopment sites.  
Any proposal for such a use of a site in these circumstances, is required to: (a) justify the need for that 
location; (b) demonstrate significant economic and/or employment benefit; and (c) demonstrate that it can 
co-exist satisfactorily with adjoining uses. 
 
These considerations have been put to the Applicant, and are noted in the summary of the supporting case 
above.  The Applicant's primary considerations appear to be that the surrounding area is already in a mixed 
use, and includes some similar types of businesses to the proposal; it is an opportunity to bring a long-term 
vacant premises back into use to the general benefit of the amenity and environment of the surrounding 
area; and the precise operation proposed, would not be of a level of frequency which would be liable to have 
any prolonged or significant impacts upon neighbours.  The Applicant is keen to stress what mitigation 
measures have or could be incorporated into the design and operation of the site to minimise disturbance to 
neighbours (such as the layout, and operation of windows etc.)  It is further considered by the Applicant that 
less regard should be had to the conservation of the amenity of the consented dwellinghouse on the next-
door site since it is not yet existing; reassurance should be taken from the Applicant's own ulterior concerns 
to accommodate dwellings or retail units on the upper floors of the site; and conditions might be imposed as 
they have been elsewhere, to restrict the use of the site to the Applicant's specific operation. 
 
SITE SELECTION AND ECONOMIC/EMPLOYMENT BENEFIT 
 
With regard to the selection of this particular site for the proposal, and the potential benefit to the local 
economy, it may perhaps be more reasonable to see the Applicant as proposing a small infill opportunity for 
his own business as an exception to planning policy, rather than as any type or scale of business or type of 
operation that might be seen to address the concerns of items a. and b. of Policy ED2.  The Applicant is not 
in fact able to demonstrate any particular or positive concern to locate to this particular site, or to 
demonstrate that it would result in any significant economic or employment benefit directly.  Regard is 
reasonably had to the scale of the business, and it is appreciable that the Applicant is responding to a 
perceived opportunity, rather than having arrived at this site after an exhaustive site selection process.  
However, in terms of the assessment required under Planning Policy ED2, I can find no strong or compelling 
reason why the Applicant could not operate from another existing or allocated business or industrial site, and 
the Supporting Statement does not detail any such concern or consideration, appealing instead to the 
specific circumstances on site and within the surrounding area, to justify it - if anything - as a potential 
exception to the requirements of Planning Policy ED2. 
 
Positive regard can be had to Economic Development's support, but the latter is somewhat ambivalent vis-à-
vis the use of this particular site, even actively anticipating the potential for future noise impacts on any use 
accommodated in the upper floors.  This is a point which is considered in more detail below, with regard to 
amenity and environment. 
 
Regard is reasonably had to an established business' concern to continue to operate and make use of a 
vacant site, but the Supporting Statement has not demonstrated any rigorous site selection or economic 
benefit, let alone any such need or such benefit that could not as easily, if not more readily, be met or 

Page 57



realised on an existing or allocated business or industrial site.  With regard to criteria a. and b. of Policy 
ED2, the Applicant's case is if anything, more reasonably understood to be a concern that the proposal 
should be accommodated as an exception to planning policy on the grounds that it is a small-scale operation 
that would, or could, have, the Applicant anticipates, no unacceptable impacts upon the amenity of 
surrounding properties.  This latter point though, is commensurate with criterion c. of Policy ED2 and is 
considered in more detail below. 
 
ENVIRONMENT AND AMENITY 
 
Policy ED2 does not allow that a proposed business or employment use, could be acceptable subject only to 
it being demonstrated that it would have no unacceptable impacts upon adjoining uses, in so far as the 
Policy strictly requires that all of criteria a., b., and c. be addressed.  However, as noted above, the Applicant 
maintains that the proposed operation, the proposed mitigation measures and the prevailing character of 
surrounding uses, would all mean that there would be no unacceptable impacts upon residential amenity.  
However, notwithstanding this advice, there has in fact been no technical demonstration of this. 
 
Firstly, as the Applicant acknowledges, there are already residential properties within the surrounding area, 
and indeed, a consented one on the attached, adjoining site.  This is therefore an especially sensitive 
context in terms of ensuring that there would be no unacceptable noise impacts, if not also air quality 
impacts.  Further, and contrary to the Applicant's view, no lesser regard is had to the fact that the consented 
dwellinghouse is not yet existing.  It is simply not the case that less regard can be had to the conservation of 
the residential amenity of the consented, but not yet existing, dwellinghouse.  On the contrary, it is fully the 
Applicants' responsibility to ensure that the workshop could operate acceptably and without having any 
unacceptable impacts - noise, dust or air quality - on this neighbouring property.  The consent for 
dwellinghouse was issued in a context in which there was no industrial use of the neighbouring property, 
and therefore this was not something either they or the Planning Authority could reasonably have had regard 
to, when that application - Planning Application 18/01381/FUL - was considered.  In this sequence of events 
then, it is with the Applicant of the current application, to account fully for the impacts of operating an 
industrial use next-door to a dwellinghouse.  It is the Applicant's responsibility to demonstrate that the 
proposed operation would in fact have no unacceptable impacts on this, in the same terms as if it were an 
existing dwellinghouse. 
 
The difficulty is that the Applicant has not only not provided a Noise Impact Assessment to address these 
matters directly, but has also omitted any details about the proposed noise-making machinery and 
equipment that would be in operation.  Accordingly, it has simply not been established that there would not 
be any unacceptable noise impacts.  There may or may not be potential to have positive regard to the 
Applicant's advised mitigation measures, and/or any proposed measures that might be employed within the 
site's operation, but since there is no actual noise impact data to assess these provisions against, the 
effectiveness of any mitigation such as it is, has unfortunately not been demonstrated in any tangible, 
quantifiable way either.  As it stands then, the Planning Authority would be taking a very significant - and I 
consider, unacceptable - risk in approving the proposal in its current form, in that the Applicant has simply 
not demonstrated that he could or would be able to operate in a way that would not result in unacceptable 
noise nuisance impacts to surrounding properties.  On the contrary, the lack of even basic information about 
what would be operated, makes this aspect of the proposal incapable of any assessment, never mind any 
regulation.  As such, even the Applicant's own suggestion that an approval could be issued on the condition 
that the use be restricted to use by the Applicant's own business or restricted to his specific proposed 
operation would not be based on anything substantial, and would be completely meaningless; and in 
practical terms, ineffective and inoperable. 
 
There are longer-term considerations too.  Even if the Applicant might have been able to demonstrate an 
operation that could be accommodated acceptably in noise impact terms, any generic approval of a Class 5 
industrial use would always run the risk that the next industrial user might not be able to operate in any 
equivalent terms, and the amenity of surrounding residential properties would therefore be at risk, in the 
context of any such unqualified approval.  The Applicant is correct that in other circumstances, it has been 
possible to issue consents for specific business operations, and which as such, amounted to approvals for 
bespoke operations.  However, as noted above, in this case, there are insufficient details about what and 
how the Applicant would actually operate from the site, and the residential amenity of the surrounding area 
is as at risk of unacceptable noise impacts from the Applicant's own proposed business operation as it would 
be from any generic approval of a Class 5 use.  
 

Page 58



No attention has been given to the regulation of vibration and air quality impacts at the site, and these 
matters, which can also adversely impact the amenity of surrounding properties, would also have been 
appropriately assessed within the details presented in support of the planning application. 
 
As such, and in addition to it not having been demonstrated that the proposal would not have any 
unacceptable impacts upon the residential amenity of surrounding dwellings, the proposal is also only 
reasonably assessed as not being capable of complying in principle with Policy ED2, given the latter's 
explicit requirement that it be demonstrated that the proposal could co-exist satisfactorily with adjoining 
uses. 
 
Beyond Policy ED2, it is also material that there is potential for adverse impacts upon the residential amenity 
of surrounding and consented dwellings, which would also make the proposal contrary to Policy HD3 as 
well; and for it to have unacceptable impacts upon the character of the Town Centre as well, contrary to 
Policy ED3.  According to the justification underpinning the latter policy, hierarchically speaking, town 
centres are not the most appropriate locations for industrial development due to the potential for such uses 
to detract from the character, vitality, viability and mixed use nature of town centres, which should remain 
attractive to a wide range of preferred uses. 
 
It is unfortunate that the Council's Environmental Health Section has not been able to respond to the public 
consultation, but while its advice would have been appreciated to confirm that the proposal has potential to 
have unacceptable nuisance impacts - primarily it is anticipated due to noise - on the surrounding area, its 
lack of advice to this effect, is not considered to negate the potential for there to be unacceptable noise 
impacts, while - and for the reasons already noted above - there is in any case a wider concern that the 
Applicant has not addressed the requirements of Policy ED2 in any terms that would otherwise allow me to 
conclude that the proposal would be able to comply with any - let alone, all - of the provisions of Policy ED2.  
In short, while Environmental Health's confirmation would have been appreciated, it is not considered that 
the lack of response in this case, is, or should, itself, reasonably be taken as any tacit support or otherwise 
for this proposal.  On the contrary, and regardless of Environmental Health's response, the Applicant is in 
response to the provisions of Policy ED2, fully and reasonably required to demonstrate within his supporting 
details that he has in any event, taken full and proper account of the noise impacts in an appropriately 
informed and detailed way.  This however, is not the case. Mitigation in so far as it is identified, is generally 
only a suggestion or opinion on the part of the Applicant as to what might or could be the case; rather than 
any actual demonstration of the efficiency and appropriateness of any actual and specific noise mitigation 
scheme. 
 
DESIGN AND ACCESS 
 
Given that most external alterations and developments would occur to the rear and within the car park area, 
the proposed alterations to the rear elevation and the new fence do not raise any concerns.  In the event of 
approval, dark, organic and/or recessive colours would reasonably be required or sought for prior approval.  
There are some alterations to the front, including the installation of uPVC windows.  There is no particular 
need or reason for the windows to be uPVC given that the windows of the remainder of the hotel frontage 
would be timber, but the building is not Listed or within the Conservation Area.  However, in the event of 
approval, the matter is I consider, still reasonably regulated under an appropriately worded planning 
condition to ensure that any specific replacement units would be sympathetic to the established character of 
the building, regardless of the actual material used.  In this context, the Applicant is at least reasonably 
encouraged to use timber-framed units, if at all possible; given the prominence of the front elevation in views 
from the surrounding streetscape and its contribution to the wider character of the former hotel building. 
 
Roads Planning has no objections, and I note on-street parking to the front. 
 
OTHER CONCERNS 
 
The Ecology Section has advised that further details are required with regard to bats and breeding birds, 
and in other circumstances, I would have considered it appropriate to draw this to the Applicant's attention, 
for their consideration.  However, given the above noted concerns with regard to the principle of the 
proposal and its impacts upon residential amenity, I have not considered it reasonable to require these 
details of the Applicant, entailing further expense for a proposal which I have assessed as being contrary to 
planning policy.  However, without the ecology concern having been fully investigated, and any mitigation 
necessary identified, the proposal is only reasonably identified as being liable to have unacceptable impacts 

Page 59



upon a Protected Species, and in the event of refusal, this would therefore need to be included amongst the 
reasons for refusal. 
 
Given that the property appears to be vacant at present, and given the close proximity to Hawick's High 
Street and environs, I am content that there would be no unacceptable loss of any community facility in this 
case (e.g. public bar), given the close proximity of equivalent facilities and the ancillary nature of the section 
of the hotel premises concerned. 
 
While it is the case that the premises is vacant, and at risk of further deterioration if it prevails as a vacant 
premises, this in itself does not justify an approval of the current application where the proposal is otherwise 
contrary in principle to planning policy and there are potential impacts upon the residential amenity of 
surrounding properties.  In short, while positive regard can be had to the building being used and 
maintained, the simple fact of use and maintenance does not negate the Planning Authority's need to 
scrutinise the actual proposed use, and specific operation that would be accommodated therein. 
 
With regard to the future use of the site, a further point which the Economic Development Section does note 
- even in its broad support for the proposal - is that an approval of the current proposal does have potential 
to impact how the floors above the basement level would be used, and might have potential to discourage, if 
not prohibit, a more sympathetic use of the premises; and/or to promote a wider industrial use of the 
premises, with even greater impacts upon the surrounding area.  Again, the Applicant may have been able 
to provide some reassurance with respect to the noise impacts of their own specific proposal, but in the 
absence of this, the potential for approval of the current proposal to impact adversely the future use of the 
building cannot be ruled out. 
 
There are no details of bin storage, and had this been the only concern, it would have been appropriate to 
have sought clarification from the Applicant with regard to how it was proposed that this would be operated.  
However, where the car park and pend were retained in use, it would appear that this would be unlikely to 
be a concern in principle; notwithstanding that an actual and workable arrangement would need to be 
identified.  In the event of approval, the matter would be capable of being regulated appropriately under an 
appropriately worded planning condition. 
 
CONCLUSION 
 
The proposal is contrary in principle to Policy ED2 and there are no other material considerations which 
would justify an exceptional approval.  In point of fact, it is considered that the Applicant has specifically 
failed to demonstrate that the use could coexist satisfactorily with adjoining uses, including both existing and 
consented residential properties.  As such, it is also contrary to Policies PMD2, HD3 and ED3, as well as 
ED2.  Further, while it may have been a point that the Applicant might otherwise have been given an 
opportunity to address, the lack of any appropriate survey for bats and breeding birds, and the identification 
of any mitigation required to protect the same, also means that the proposal is contrary to Policy EP1: 
International Nature Conservation Sites and Protected Species. 
 
 
REASON FOR DECISION : 
 
The proposal is contrary in principle to Policy ED2 of the Local Development Plan 2016, in that the need for 
the proposal to operate from this specific location - which is neither an existing or allocated business or 
industrial site nor an allocated mixed use or redevelopment site - has not been adequately justified; it has 
not been demonstrated that there would be any significant economic and/or employment benefit from the 
proposal being sited and operating as proposed; and it has not been demonstrated that the proposal is 
capable of co-existing satisfactorily with adjoining uses, specifically in that it has the potential to generate 
noise nuisance impacts that would be liable to have unacceptable impacts upon the residential amenity of 
existing and consented dwellings within the surrounding area contrary to Policy HD3 of the Local 
Development Plan 2016.  Moreover, the proposal would be most appropriately accommodated on an 
existing or allocated business and industrial site, where provision exists to accommodate its impacts upon 
the amenity and environment of the site and surrounding area.  There are no other material considerations 
that would be sufficient to outweigh this policy conflict. 
 
Additionally, the proposal is contrary to Policy PMD2 and Policy ED3 of the Local Development Plan 2016, 
in that it is not compatible with, and does not respect, the character of the surrounding area and 

Page 60



neighbouring uses; and furthermore, the proposal is contrary to Policy EP1 of the Local Development Plan 
2016, in that it has not been adequately demonstrated that it would not have any unacceptable impact upon 
a European Protected Species; specifically bats; or their habitat. 
 
 
 
Recommendation:  Refused 
 
 1 The proposal is contrary in principle to Policy ED2 of the Local Development Plan 2016, in that the 

need for the proposal to operate from this specific location - which is neither an existing or allocated 
business or industrial site nor an allocated mixed use or redevelopment site - has not been 
adequately justified; it has not been demonstrated that there would be any significant economic 
and/or employment benefit from the proposal being sited and operating as proposed; and it has not 
been demonstrated that the proposal is capable of co-existing satisfactorily with adjoining uses, 
specifically in that it has the potential to generate noise nuisance impacts that would be liable to 
have unacceptable impacts upon the residential amenity of existing and consented dwellings within 
the surrounding area contrary to Policy HD3 of the Local Development Plan 2016.  Moreover, the 
proposal would be most appropriately accommodated on an existing or allocated business and 
industrial site, where provision exists to accommodate its impacts upon the amenity and 
environment of the site and surrounding area.  There are no other material considerations that 
would be sufficient to outweigh this policy conflict. 

 
 2 The proposal is contrary to Policy PMD2 and Policy ED3 of the Local Development Plan 2016, in 

that it is not compatible with, and does not respect, the character of the surrounding area and 
neighbouring uses including the Town Centre. 

 
 3 The proposal is contrary to Policy EP1 of the Local Development Plan 2016, in that it has not been 

adequately demonstrated that it would not have any unacceptable impact upon a European 
Protected Species; specifically bats; or their habitat. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

“Photographs taken in connection with the determination of the application and any other 
associated documentation form part of the Report of Handling”. 
 

 

Page 61



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 63



Page 64



Page 65



Page 66



Page 67



Page 68



Page 69



Page 70



P
age 71



P
age 72



P
age 73



P
age 74



P
age 75



Page 76



Mrs Zubarain Nisa
per Aitken Turnbull Architects Ltd
9 Bridge Place
Galashiels
Scottish Borders
TD1 1SN

Please ask for:


Stuart Herkes
01835 825039

Our Ref: 18/01381/FUL
Your Ref:

E-Mail: sherkes@scotborders.gov.uk
Date: 20th March 2019

Dear Sir/Madam

PLANNING APPLICATION AT The Buccleuch 1 Trinity Street Hawick Scottish Borders TD9
9NR

PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT: Change of use of part of hotel and alterations to form
dwellinghouse

APPLICANT: Mrs Zubarain Nisa

Please find attached the decision notice for the above application.

Please read the schedule of conditions and any informative notes carefully.

Drawings can be found on the Planning pages of the Council website at
https://eplanning.scotborders.gov.uk/online-applications/ . Please see the requirement for notification
of initiation and completion of development as well as for Street naming and numbering as
appropriate.

It should be noted that before works commence, where applicable, all necessary consents should
be obtained under the Building (Scotland) Act 2003. If you require any further information in this
respect, please contact the relevant Building Standards Surveyor.

Yours faithfully

John Hayward

Planning & Development Standards Manager

Page 77



Regulatory Services

TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING (SCOTLAND) ACT 1997 (as amended)

Town and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) (Scotland) Regulations 2013

Application for Planning Permission Reference : 18/01381/FUL

To : Mrs Zubarain Nisa per Aitken Turnbull Architects Ltd 9 Bridge Place Galashiels Scottish
Borders TD1 1SN

With reference to your application validated on 11th October 2018 for planning permission under
the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 (as amended) for the following development :-

Proposal : Change of use of part of hotel and alterations to form dwellinghouse

at : The Buccleuch 1 Trinity Street Hawick Scottish Borders TD9 9NR

The Scottish Borders Council hereby grant planning permission in accordance with the
approved plan(s) and the particulars given in the application and in accordance with Section 58 of
the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 (as amended), subject to the following
direction:

 That the development to which this permission relates must be commenced within three
years of the date of this permission.

And subject to the conditions on the attached schedule imposed by the Council for the reasons
stated

Dated 15th March 2019
Planning and Regulatory Services
Environment and Infrastructure
Council Headquarters
Newtown St Boswells
MELROSE
TD6 0SA

John Hayward
Planning & Development Standards Manager

Page 78



Regulatory Services

APPLICATION REFERENCE : 18/01381/FUL

Schedule of Plans and Drawings Approved:

Plan Ref Plan Type Plan Status

Location Plan Approved
Existing Elevations Approved

BASEMENT Existing Plans Approved
GROUND Existing Plans Approved
FIRST Existing Plans Approved
ATTIC Existing Plans Approved
BASEMENT Proposed Plans Approved
GROUND Proposed Plans Approved
FIRST Proposed Plans Approved
ATTIC Proposed Elevations Approved

REASON FOR DECISION

The development will accord with the relevant provisions of the Local Development Plan 2016
and there are no material considerations that would justify a departure from these provisions.

SCHEDULE OF CONDITIONS

1 The external existing hotel signage shall be removed from the front elevation in advance of
the site being occupied as a dwellinghouse for the first time.
Reason: To ensure that the dwellinghouse has an appearance that is appropriate and
sympathetic to its residential use.

2 The dwellinghouse hereby consented shall not be occupied for the first time until a scheme
of details describing the management and storage of waste management facilities at the
site has first been submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Planning Authority.
Thereafter, bin storage shall take place in accordance with the approved details.
Reason: In order to give full consideration to those details yet to be submitted, in the
interest of road safety and amenity, by ensuring adequate provision for domestic waste
management.

FOR THE INFORMATION OF THE APPLICANT

N.B: This permission does not include any consent, approval or licence necessary for the
proposed development under the building regulations or any other statutory enactment and the
development should not be commenced until all consents are obtained.

Under The Control of Pollution Act 1974, the Council recommends the following hours for noisy
construction-related work:
Monday-Friday 0700-1900
Saturday 0800-1300
Sunday and Public Holidays - no permitted work (except by prior agreement with the Council)

Page 79



Regulatory Services

Contractors will be expected to adhere to the measures contained in BS 5228:2009 “Code of
Practice for Noise and Vibration Control on Construction and Open Sites”.

For more information or to make a request to carry out works outside the above hours, please
contact an Environmental Health Officer at the Council.

Notice of Initiation of Development

Section 27 of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 (as amended) requires that any
person who has been granted planning permission (including planning permission in principle) and
intends to start development must, once they have decided the date they will start work on the
development, inform the planning authority of that date as soon as is practicable. A form is
available on the Council’s website for this purpose.

Notice of Completion of Development

Section 27B of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 (as amended) requires that
any person who completes a development for which planning permission (including planning
permission in principle) has been given must, as soon as practicable after doing so, give notice of
completion to the planning authority.

When planning permission is granted for phased development then under section 27B(2) the
permission is to be granted subject to a condition that as soon as practicable after each phase,
other than the last, is completed, the person carrying out the development is to give notice of that
completion to the planning authority.

In advance of carrying out any works it is recommended that you contact Utility Bodies whose
equipment or apparatus may be affected by any works you undertake. Contacts include:

Transco, Susiephone Department, 95 Kilbirnie Street, Glasgow, G5 8JD
Scottish Power, Riccarton Mains Road, Currie, Edinburgh, EH14 5AA
Scottish Water, Developer Services, 419 Balmore Road, Possilpark, Glasgow G22 6NU
British Telecom, National Notice Handling Centre, PP404B Telecom House, Trinity Street, Stoke
on Trent, ST1 5ND
Scottish Borders Council, Street Lighting Section, Council HQ, Newtown St Boswells, Melrose,
TD6 0SA
Cable & Wireless, 1 Dove Wynd, Strathclyde Business Park, Bellshill, ML4 3AL
BP Chemicals Ltd, PO Box 21, Bo’ness Road, Grangemouth, FK2 9XH
THUS, Susiephone Department, 4th Floor, 75 Waterloo Street, Glasgow, G2 7BD
Susiephone System – 0800 800 333

If you are in a Coal Authority Area (Carlops or Newcastleton), please contact the Coal Authority at
the following address: The Coal Authority 200 Lichfield Lane, Berry Hill, Mansfield,
Nottinghamshire NG18 4RG.

If the applicant is aggrieved by the decision of the Planning Authority to refuse planning permission
for or approval required by a condition in respect of the proposed development, or to grant
permission or approval subject to conditions, the applicant may require the planning authority to
review the case under Section 43A of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 (as
amended) within three months from the date of this notice. The notice of review should be
addressed to Corporate Administration, Council Headquarters, Newtown St Boswells, Melrose
TD6 OSA.

Page 80



Regulatory Services

If permission to develop land is refused or granted subject to conditions, whether by the Planning
Authority or by the Scottish Ministers, and the owner of the land claims that the land has become
incapable of reasonably beneficial use in its existing state and cannot be rendered capable of
reasonably beneficial use by the carrying out of any development which has been or would be
permitted, the owner may serve on the Planning Authority a purchase notice requiring the
purchase of his interest in the land in accordance with the provisions of Part 5 of the Town and
Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 (as amended).

Page 81



This page is intentionally left blank



SCOTTISH BORDERS COUNCIL

APPLICATION TO BE DETERMINED UNDER POWERS DELEGATED TO 
CHIEF PLANNING OFFICER

PART III REPORT (INCORPORATING REPORT OF HANDLING)

REF : 18/01381/FUL

APPLICANT : Mrs Zubarain Nisa

AGENT : Aitken Turnbull Architects Ltd

DEVELOPMENT : Change of use of part of hotel and alterations to form dwellinghouse

LOCATION: The Buccleuch
1 Trinity Street
Hawick
Scottish Borders
TD9 9NR

TYPE : FUL Application

REASON FOR DELAY:
______________________________________________________________________________________

DRAWING NUMBERS:

Plan Ref    Plan Type Plan Status
       
 Location Plan Approved
 Existing Elevations Approved
BASEMENT Existing Plans Approved
GROUND Existing Plans Approved
FIRST Existing Plans Approved
ATTIC Existing Plans Approved
BASEMENT Proposed Plans Approved
GROUND Proposed Plans Approved
FIRST Proposed Plans Approved
ATTIC Proposed Elevations Approved

NUMBER OF REPRESENTATIONS: 0 
SUMMARY OF REPRESENTATIONS:

No representations.

Roads Planning Section: does not object.

Community Council and Education and Lifelong Learning have been consulted but have not 
responded to the public consultation.

PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS AND POLICIES:

Scottish Borders Council Local Development Plan 2016:

Policy PMD1: Sustainability
Policy PMD2: Quality Standards
Policy PMD5: Infill Development
Policy ED3: Town Centres and Shopping Development

Page 83



Policy HD3: Residential Amenity
Policy IS1: Public Infrastructure and Local Service Provision
Policy IS2: Developer Contributions
Policy IS7: Parking Provision and Standards

Householder Developments SPG (2006)
Waste Management SPG (2015)

Recommendation by  - Stuart Herkes  (Planning Officer) on 15th March 2019

This application proposes a change of use of part of an existing hotel (restaurant and function room) in 
Hawick's Town Centre, to use as a dwellinghouse.  The building is not Listed, and there are no proposed 
external alterations.  Given that the property appears to be vacant at present, and given the close proximity 
to Hawick's High Street and environs, I am content that there would be no unacceptable loss of any 
community facility in this case, given the close proximity of equivalent facilities.

Roads have no objections, and I note on-street parking to the front.  The existing front elevation sign should 
be removed, to ensure the property has a domestic character.  There are no details of bin storage, but it is 
reasonable that the hotel has existing arrangements. However, both matters are reasonably regulated under 
planning condition.

I note the adjacent vacant hotel building. There is the potential for conflict between any future public bar 
operation and the proposed dwellinghouse but, given the vacancy of the hotel, it is for any prospective 
operator to account for this consent prior to considering recommencing the use.

I have considered this proposal against the provisions of the statutory development plan as noted above, 
and against planning policy guidance noted above.  I have also taken account of the site's previous planning 
history. I am satisfied that the development is acceptable.

Given that this is a single proposed house and given that there are currently no contributions being sought 
relative to Hawick's schools, there is no requirement for any development contributions in this case.

REASON FOR DECISION :

The development will accord with the relevant provisions of the Local Development Plan 2016 and there are 
no material considerations that would justify a departure from these provisions.

Recommendation:  Approved subject to conditions

 1 The external existing hotel signage shall be removed from the front elevation in advance of the site 
being occupied as a dwellinghouse for the first time.
Reason: To ensure that the dwellinghouse has an appearance that is appropriate and sympathetic 
to its residential use.

 2 The dwellinghouse hereby consented shall not be occupied for the first time until a scheme of 
details describing the management and storage of waste management facilities at the site has first 
been submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Planning Authority.  Thereafter, bin storage shall 
take place in accordance with the approved details.
Reason:  In order to give full consideration to those details yet to be submitted, in the interest of 
road safety and amenity, by ensuring adequate provision for domestic waste management.

Page 84



“Photographs taken in connection with the determination of the application and any other 
associated documentation form part of the Report of Handling”.

Page 85



This page is intentionally left blank



 

Council Headquarters, Newtown St Boswells, MELROSE, Scottish Borders, TD6 0SA 
Customer Services:  0300 100 1800    www.scotborders.gov.uk  

 

PLANNING CONSULTATION 
 
To:        Ecology Officer 
 
From:      Development  Management Date:   19th December 2019 
 
Contact:  Stuart Herkes       01835 825039  Ref:  19/01784/FUL 
  

PLANNING CONSULTATION 
 
Your observations are requested on the under noted planning application. I shall be glad to have 
your reply not later than 9th January 2020, If further time will be required for a reply please let me 
know. If no extension of time is requested and no reply is received by 9th January 2020, it will be 
assumed that you have no observations and a decision may be taken on the application. 
 
Please remember to e-mail the DCConsultees Mailbox when you have inserted your reply 
into Idox. 
 
Name of Applicant:  Mr Stephen Cranston  
  
Agent:  Stuart Patterson Building & Timber Frame Design 
    
Nature of Proposal:  Part change of use from garage/storage and alterations to form workshop 
and storage for joinery business 
Site:  Buccleuch Hotel Trinity Street Hawick Scottish Borders TD9 9NR  
_________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Page 87

http://www.scotborders.gov.uk/


 

Council Headquarters, Newtown St Boswells, MELROSE, Scottish Borders, TD6 0SA 
Customer Services:  0300 100 1800    www.scotborders.gov.uk  

 

CONSULTATION RESPONSE TO 

PLANNING OR RELATED APPLICATION 

Comments provided 
by 

Officer Name and Post: Contact e-mail/number: 

 Dr Andy Tharme 
Ecology Officer 
 

atharme@scotborders.gov.uk 
T:01835-826154 

Date of reply 05 February 2020 Consultee reference: 

Planning Application 
Reference 

19/01784/FUL Case Officer: 
Stuart Herkes      

Applicant Mr Stephen Cranston  

Agent Stuart Patterson Building & Timber Frame Design 

Proposed 
Development 

Part change of use from garage/storage and alterations to form workshop and 
storage for joinery business 

Site Location Buccleuch Hotel Trinity Street Hawick Scottish Borders TD9 9NR  
 

The following observations represent the comments of the consultee on the submitted application 
as they relate to the area of expertise of that consultee. A decision on the application can only be 
made after consideration of all relevant information, consultations and material considerations. 

Background and  
Site description 

 

Key Issues 
(Bullet points) 

 Potential impacts on protected species including bats (European Protected 
Species) and breeding birds 

Assessment Relevant Local Development Plan policies are Relevant Local Development Plan 
(LDP) policies are EP1 International Nature Conservation Sites and Protected 
Species and EP2 National Nature Conservation and Protected Species. 
 
I have not visited the site to inform this consultation response.  An assessment was 
made using desk survey data, aerial photography and details submitted by the 
applicant.  
 
The building is of brick construction with a slate roof, dormer windows and appears 
on the OS 2nd edition maps (1898-1904) and is likely to be of at least low suitability 
for bats and their roosts, with loose slates, cracks and gaps in walls and gaps under 
barge boards. The adjacent habitat is of low suitability for foraging and commuting 
by bats. There is some limited tree cover at the rear of the building with limited tree 
cover extending towards the River Teviot (River Tweed SAC/SSSI), which is within 
200m. 
 
The proposed development includes installation of new windows and doors and 
works to a basement, which has potential to impact directly on bat and bird nesting 
sites and may cause disturbance to protected species in adjacent areas. 
 
Bats are protected under The Conservation (Natural Habitats &c.) Regulations 
1994 (as amended). It is illegal to intentionally or deliberately kill or injure them, 
intentionally, deliberately or recklessly damage, destroy, or obstruct access to any 
place used for shelter or protection including resting or breeding places (all roosts, 
whether occupied or not), or deliberately, intentionally or recklessly disturb them.  

Page 88

http://www.scotborders.gov.uk/
mailto:atharme@scotborders.gov.uk


 

Council Headquarters, Newtown St Boswells, MELROSE, Scottish Borders, TD6 0SA 
Customer Services:  0300 100 1800    www.scotborders.gov.uk  

 

 
All wild birds are afforded protection and it is an offence to deliberately or recklessly 
kill, injure and destroy nests and eggs of wild birds. Additionally for those species 
protected under Schedule 1 of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 (as amended) 
it is illegal to intentionally or recklessly disturb any bird whilst it is nest-building or at 
or near a nest containing eggs or young, or to disturb any of its dependent young. 
 
• Further information is required prior to determination, in relation to bats, 
information on breeding birds is also required. 
 
Further Information: 
 
• Prior to determination, a survey for bats by a suitably qualified person    
will be required for the structures to be demolished or altered.   

 Following guidance from the Scottish Government, bat surveys and 
any subsequent licensing requirements will need to be resolved before 
the planning application is determined. Impacts on bats will be 
assessed against the three key tests.  

 Surveys likely to involve disturbance to bats or their roosts can only 
be carried out by a licensed bat worker.  

 Activity surveys for maternity roosts and occasional roosts in 
buildings and trees should be conducted between May and September 
(optimally May – August, depending on the site’s suitability for 
roosting bats).i  

 Preliminary roost assessments can be undertaken at any time of year 
and are usually sufficient only if it is shown there is negligible 
suitability for bats.  

 If evidence of bats or their roosts is found in the surveys, the 
developer will be required to submit as part of their submission to the 
Planning Authority a mitigation plan for bats. 

 
Further guidance on bat survey requirements can be found in the Council’s 
Technical Advice Note: 
https://www.scotborders.gov.uk/downloads/file/2960/bats_technical_advice_note 
 
Prior to commencement of development, a survey of breeding birds is 
required for the structures to be altered or demolished. Where it is 
established that there is a breeding bird interest, no development shall be 
carried out during the breeding bird season (March-August) unless wholly in 
accordance with a Species Protection Plan for breeding birds that shall be 
submitted to and approved by the Planning Authority. 
 
An assessment of impacts on breeding birds can be carried out at the same 
time as a preliminary roost assessment for bats. 
 

Recommendation  Object  Do not object  Do not object, 
subject to 
conditions 

 Further information 

required 

Page 89

http://www.scotborders.gov.uk/
https://www.scotborders.gov.uk/downloads/file/2960/bats_technical_advice_note


 

Council Headquarters, Newtown St Boswells, MELROSE, Scottish Borders, TD6 0SA 
Customer Services:  0300 100 1800    www.scotborders.gov.uk  

 

Recommended 
Conditions 

 

Recommended 
Informatives 

 

 

 
 
 
 

                                                           
i Collins, J. (ed.) (2016) Bat Surveys for Professional Ecologists. Good Practice Guidelines (3rd ed). The Bat 

Conservation Trust. 

Page 90

http://www.scotborders.gov.uk/


 

Council Headquarters, Newtown St Boswells, MELROSE, Scottish Borders, TD6 0SA 
Customer Services:  0300 100 1800    www.scotborders.gov.uk  

 

PLANNING CONSULTATION 
 
To:        Economic Development Section 
 
From:      Development  Management Date:   19th December 2019 
 
Contact:  Stuart Herkes       01835 825039  Ref:  19/01784/FUL 
  

PLANNING CONSULTATION 
 
Your observations are requested on the under noted planning application. I shall be glad to have 
your reply not later than 9th January 2020, If further time will be required for a reply please let me 
know. If no extension of time is requested and no reply is received by 9th January 2020, it will be 
assumed that you have no observations and a decision may be taken on the application. 
 
Please remember to e-mail the DCConsultees Mailbox when you have inserted your reply 
into Idox. 
 
Name of Applicant:  Mr Stephen Cranston  
  
Agent:  Stuart Patterson Building & Timber Frame Design 
    
Nature of Proposal:  Part change of use from garage/storage and alterations to form workshop 
and storage for joinery business 
Site:  Buccleuch Hotel Trinity Street Hawick Scottish Borders TD9 9NR  
_________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Page 91

http://www.scotborders.gov.uk/


 

Council Headquarters, Newtown St Boswells, MELROSE, Scottish Borders, TD6 0SA 
Customer Services:  0300 100 1800    www.scotborders.gov.uk  

 

CONSULTATION RESPONSE TO 

PLANNING OR RELATED APPLICATION 

Comments provided 
by 

Officer Name and Post: Contact e-mail/number: 

 Economic Development Section 
 

 

Date of reply 07/01/2020 Consultee reference: 

Planning Application 
Reference 

19/01784/FUL Case Officer: 
Stuart Herkes      

Applicant Mr Stephen Cranston  

Agent Stuart Patterson Building & Timber Frame Design 

Proposed 
Development 

Part change of use from garage/storage and alterations to form workshop and 
storage for joinery business 

Site Location Buccleuch Hotel Trinity Street Hawick Scottish Borders TD9 9NR  
 

The following observations represent the comments of the consultee on the submitted application 
as they relate to the area of expertise of that consultee. A decision on the application can only be 
made after consideration of all relevant information, consultations and material considerations. 

Background and  
Site description 

 

Key Issues 
(Bullet points) 

  

Assessment The Economic Development section supports the provision of new workshop 
space, providing it is in an appropriate location and will not unduly disturb 
surrounding residential uses.  We agree with the applicant that generally the 
location has become an increased commercial / business area and see no 
particular issue with the basement area being converted into a joiner’s workshop, 
which is screened from the public street side; with its own separate private access.  
The reuse into hotel use in the future seems unlikely so loss of this facility is of little 
concern. 
 
We note the applicants’ intention to, in the future, convert the upper floors into flats 
and / or commercial retail use.  Whilst this may be possible we would question 
whether suitable soundproofing should be required to be provided at this stage 
rather than attempt retrofitting this later as and when development takes place.  
The other issue with this use are the parking and access arrangements, which are 
more of a matter for the road planning section, but this is an important issue to be 
considered to ensure this facility at this location has controlled access and there is 
enough parking within the site.  In addition if a retail use is allowed later on, that the 
premises are able to accommodate this satisfactorily should be considered. 
 
We are not clear whether only a specific permission for a joiners workshop should 
be approved rather than general 5 & 6 class use, and whether the operating hours 
should be conditioned, in view of the residential premises planned for above the 
development and across Trinity street. 
 

Recommendation  Object  Do not object  Do not object, 
subject to 

 Further information 

required 

Page 92

http://www.scotborders.gov.uk/


 

Council Headquarters, Newtown St Boswells, MELROSE, Scottish Borders, TD6 0SA 
Customer Services:  0300 100 1800    www.scotborders.gov.uk  

 

conditions 

Recommended 
Conditions 

 

Recommended 
Informatives 

 

 

 
 
 
 

Page 93

http://www.scotborders.gov.uk/


 

Council Headquarters, Newtown St Boswells, MELROSE, Scottish Borders, TD6 0SA 
Customer Services:  0300 100 1800    www.scotborders.gov.uk  

 

CONSULTATION RESPONSE TO 

PLANNING OR RELATED APPLICATION 

Comments provided 
by 

Roads Planning Service Contact e-mail/number: 

Officer Name and 
Post: 

Liam Nicholson   
M.A Civil Engineering Trainee Tech  

Liam.nicholson@scotborders.gov.uk 
01835 825054  

Date of reply 31st January 2020 Consultee reference: 

Planning Application 
Reference 

19/01784/FUL Case Officer: Stuart Herkes      

Applicant Mr Stephen Cranston  

Agent Stuart Patterson Building & Timber Frame Design 

Proposed 
Development 

Part change of use from garage/storage and alterations to form workshop and 
storage for joinery business 

Site Location Buccleuch Hotel Trinity Street Hawick Scottish Borders TD9 9NR  
 

The following observations represent the comments of the consultee on the submitted application 
as they relate to the area of expertise of that consultee. A decision on the application can only be 
made after consideration of all relevant information, consultations and material considerations. 

Background and  
Site description 

 

Key Issues 
(Bullet points) 

 

Assessment This proposal aims to change the garage/store unit into workshop and storage for a 
joinery business.  
 
The proposed use is likely to generate less vehicle movements that the previous 
use. Adequate parking is available in the rear courtyard which is accessed via the 
pend access. 
 
 
Therefore I shall no objections to this proposal from a roads planning perspective. 

Recommendation  Object  Do not object  Do not object, 
subject to conditions 

 Further information 

required 

Recommended 
Conditions 

 

Recommended 
Informatives 

 

 

AJS 
 
 
 

Page 94

http://www.scotborders.gov.uk/
mailto:Liam.nicholson@scotborders.gov.uk


Page 95



This page is intentionally left blank



List of Policies

Local Review Reference: 20/00004/RREF
Planning Application Reference: 19/01784/FUL
Development Proposal:  Part change of use from garage/storage and alterations to form 
workshop and storage for joinery business
Location: Buccleuch Hotel, Trinity Street, Hawick
Applicant: Mr Stephen Cranston

Scottish Borders Local Development Plan 2016

POLICY PMD1: SUSTAINABILITY

In determining planning applications and preparing development briefs, the Council will have 
regard to the following sustainability principles which underpin all the Plan’s policies and 
which developers will be expected to incorporate into their developments:

a) the long term sustainable use and management of land
b) the preservation of air and water quality
c) the protection of natural resources, landscapes, habitats, and species
d) the protection of built and cultural resources
e) the efficient use of energy and resources, particularly non-renewable resources
f) the minimisation of waste, including waste water and encouragement to its 

sustainable management
g) the encouragement of walking, cycling, and public transport in preference to the 

private car
h) the minimisation of light pollution
i) the protection of public health and safety
j) the support to community services and facilities
k) the provision of new jobs and support to the local economy
l) the involvement of the local community in the design, management and improvement 

of their environment

POLICY PMD2: QUALITY STANDARDS

All new development will be expected to be of high quality in accordance with sustainability 
principles, designed to fit with Scottish Borders townscapes and to integrate with its 
landscape surroundings.  The standards which will apply to all development are that:

Sustainability 
a) In terms of layout, orientation, construction and energy supply, the developer has 

demonstrated that appropriate measures have been taken to maximise the efficient 
use of energy and resources, including the use of renewable energy and resources 
such as District Heating Schemes and the incorporation of sustainable construction 
techniques in accordance with supplementary planning guidance.  Planning 
applications must demonstrate that the current carbon dioxide emissions reduction 
target has been met, with at least half of this target met through the use of low or 
zero carbon technology,

b) it provides digital connectivity and associated infrastructure,
c) it provides for Sustainable Urban Drainage Systems in the context of overall 

provision of Green Infrastructure where appropriate and their after-care and 
maintenance,

d) it encourages minimal water usage for new developments,
e) it provides for appropriate internal and external provision for waste storage and 

presentation with, in all instances, separate provision for waste and recycling and, 
depending on the location, separate provision for composting facilities,

Page 97



List of Policies

f) it incorporates appropriate hard and soft landscape works, including structural or 
screen planting where necessary, to help integration with its surroundings and the 
wider environment and to meet open space requirements. In some cases 
agreements will be required to ensure that landscape works are undertaken at an 
early stage of development and that appropriate arrangements are put in place for 
long term landscape/open space maintenance,

g) it considers, where appropriate, the long term adaptability of buildings and spaces.

Placemaking & Design
h) It creates developments with a sense of place, based on a clear understanding of the 

context, designed in sympathy with Scottish Borders architectural styles; this need 
not exclude appropriate contemporary and/or innovative design,

i) it is of a scale, massing, height and density appropriate to its surroundings and, 
where an extension or alteration, appropriate to the existing building,

j) it is finished externally in materials, the colours and textures of which complement the 
highest quality of architecture in the locality and, where an extension or alteration, the 
existing building,

k) it is compatible with, and respects the character of the surrounding area, 
neighbouring uses, and neighbouring built form,

l) it can be satisfactorily accommodated within the site,
m) it provides appropriate boundary treatments to ensure attractive edges to the 

development that will help integration with its surroundings,
n) it incorporates, where appropriate, adequate safety and security measures, in 

accordance with current guidance on ‘designing out crime’.

Accessibility 
o) Street layouts must be designed to properly connect and integrate with existing street 

patterns and be able to be easily extended in the future where appropriate in order to 
minimise the need for turning heads and isolated footpaths,

p) it incorporates, where required, access for those with mobility difficulties,
q) it ensures there is no adverse impact on road safety, including but not limited to the 

site access,
r) it provides for linkages with adjoining built up areas including public transport 

connections and provision for buses, and new paths and cycleways, linking where 
possible to the existing path network; Travel Plans will be encouraged to support 
more sustainable travel patterns,

s) it incorporates adequate access and turning space for vehicles including those used 
for waste collection purposes.

Greenspace, Open Space & Biodiversity
t) It provides meaningful open space that wherever possible, links to existing open 

spaces and that is in accordance with current Council standards pending preparation 
of an up-to-date open space strategy and local standards. In some cases a 
developer contribution to wider neighbourhood or settlement provision may be 
appropriate, supported by appropriate arrangements for maintenance,

u) it retains physical or natural features or habitats which are important to the amenity or 
biodiversity of the area or makes provision for adequate mitigation or replacements.

Developers are required to provide design and access statements, design briefs and 
landscape plans as appropriate.

POLICY PMD5: INFILL DEVELOPMENT

Page 98



List of Policies

Development on non-allocated, infill or windfall, sites, including the re-use of buildings within 
Development Boundaries as shown on proposal maps will be approved where the following 
criteria are satisfied:
a) where relevant, it does not conflict with the established land use of the area; and
b) it does not detract from the character and amenity of the surrounding area; and
c) the individual and cumulative effects of the development can be sustained by the 
social and economic infrastructure and it does not lead to over-development or ‘town and 
village cramming’; and
d) it respects the scale, form, design, materials and density in context of its 
surroundings; and
e) adequate access and servicing can be achieved, particularly taking account of water 
and drainage and schools capacity; and
f) it does not result in any significant loss of daylight, sunlight or privacy to adjoining 
properties as a result of overshadowing or overlooking.
All applications will be considered against the Council’s Supplementary Planning Guidance 
on Placemaking and Design. Developers are required to provide design statements as 
appropriate.

POLICY ED2: EMPLOYMENT USES OUTWITH BUSINESS AND INDUSTRIAL AREAS

Within the defined Development Boundary there will be a general presumption against 
industrial or business uses outwith business and industrial land, mixed use or redevelopment 
sites (Policies ED1 and PMD3). Any proposal for such a use in such a location will be 
required to:

a) justify the need for that location, and
b) demonstrate significant economic and/or employment benefit, and
c) demonstrate that it can co-exist satisfactorily with adjoining uses

POLICY ED3: TOWN CENTRES AND SHOPPING DEVELOPMENT

The Council will seek to develop and enhance the role of town centres. A network of centres 
and growth of the retail sector will be supported through directing development to the 
following district town centres:

Duns, Eyemouth, Galashiels, Hawick, Jedburgh, Kelso, Melrose, Peebles, Selkirk

To protect town centres, town centre locations will be preferred to edge-of-centre locations 
which, in turn, will be preferred to out-of-centre locations. An out-of- centre location will only 
be considered where there is no suitable site available in a town centre or edge-of-centre 
location.

The council will support a wide range of uses appropriate to a town centre. Proposals for 
shopping development and other town centre developments will generally be approved 
within defined district town centres provided that the character, vitality, viability, and mixed 
use nature of the town centre will be maintained and enhanced. For the avoidance of doubt, 
the council will apply the preferred order of locations set out above to appropriate uses 
generating significant footfall, including community and cultural facilities, offices, libraries, 
and education and healthcare facilities as well as retail and commercial leisure uses. It will 
also ensure that different uses are developed in the most appropriate locations.

Town centre enhancement, including the provision of new retail facilities and complementary 
non-retail uses, will be encouraged in centres both within the hierarchy and other centres 
which:

Page 99



List of Policies

a) are council priorities for area regeneration because of special economic difficulties 
and/or population  decline,
b) are subject to significant retail spending leakage,
c) play an important role in areas planned for substantial development under the 
development  strategy.

The council will have regard to the following considerations, where relevant, in assessing 
applications for out of centre development, including retail proposals:

a) the individual or cumulative impact of the proposed development on the vitality and 
viability of existing town centres,
b) the availability of a suitable town centre or edge of centre site,
c) the ability of the proposal to meet deficiencies in shopping provision which cannot be 
met in town centre or edge of centre locations,
d) the impact of the proposal on travel patterns and car usage,
e) the accessibility of the site by a choice of means of transport,
f) the preference for commercial centres in the preferred order of locations, including 
appropriate retail clusters and parks, over other out of centre locations,
g) the extent to which a proposal would constitute appropriate small scale shopping 
provision designed to serve the needs of local rural communities,
h) the location of the proposal. Sites will be located within existing settlements and, 
within them preference will be given to applications on vacant or derelict sites, or on sites 
deemed to be surplus to requirements.

The council will encourage the use of town centres during the evening provided residential 
amenity is protected. Any proposed development which would create an unacceptable 
adverse impact on the town centre will be refused.

POLICY HD3 : PROTECTION OF RESIDENTIAL AMENITY

Development that is judged to have an adverse impact on the amenity of existing or 
proposed residential areas will not be permitted. To protect the amenity and character of 
these areas, any developments will be assessed against:

a) the principle of the development, including where relevant, any open space that 
would be lost; and

b) the details of the development itself particularly in terms of:
(i) the scale, form and type of development in terms of its fit within a residential area,
(ii) the impact of the proposed development on the existing and surrounding properties 

particularly in terms of overlooking, loss of privacy and sunlighting provisions. These 
considerations apply especially in relation to garden ground or ‘backland’ 
development, 

(iii) the generation of traffic or noise,
(iv) the level of visual impact.

POLICY EP1: INTERNATIONAL NATURE CONSERVATION SITES AND PROTECTED 
SPECIES

Development proposals which will have a likely significant effect on a designated or 
proposed Natura site, which includes all Ramsar sites, are only permissible where:

a) an appropriate assessment has demonstrated that it will not adversely affect the 
integrity of the site, or
b) there are no alternative solutions, and

Page 100



List of Policies

c) there are imperative reasons of overriding public interest including those of a social 
or economic nature

Where a development proposal is sited where there is the likely presence of an EPS, the 
planning authority must be satisfied that:

a) there is no satisfactory alternative, and
b) the development is required for preserving public health or public safety or for other 
imperative reasons of overriding public interest including those of a social or economic 
nature and beneficial consequences of primary importance to the envi-ronment, and
c) the development is not detrimental to the maintenance of the population of a EPS at 
a favourable conservation status in its natural range.

POLICY EP2: NATIONAL NATURE CONSERVATION AND PROTECTED SPECIES

Development proposals which are likely to have a significant adverse effect, either directly or 
indirectly, on a Site of Special Scientific Interest or habitat directly sup-porting a nationally 
important species will not be permitted unless:

a) the development will not adversely affect the integrity of the site, and
b) the development offers substantial benefits of national importance, including those of 
a social or economic nature, that clearly outweigh the national nature con-servation value of 
the site.

The developer will be required to detail mitigation, either on or off site, of any dam-age that 
may be caused by development permissible under the exception criteria.

POLICY EP16: AIR QUALITY

Development proposals that, individually or cumulatively, could adversely affect the quality of 
air in a locality to a level that could potentially harm human health and wellbeing or the 
integrity of the natural environment, must be accompanied by provisions that the Council is 
satisfied will minimise such impacts to an acceptable degree. Where it is considered 
appropriate the Council may request that an Air Quality Assessment is undertaken to assist 
determination of an application.

POLICY IS1: PUBLIC INFRASTRUCTURE AND LOCAL SERVICE PROVISION

The Council will encourage the retention of and improvements to public infrastructure and 
local services.

1. Development that might prejudice the future provision of those infrastructure and 
service improvements identified on the Proposals Maps will not be permitted.

2. Proposals that result in the loss of an existing public facility or local service may be 
supported if:
a) it can be adequately demonstrated that the existing facility or service is financially 
unviable, and
b) it can be demonstrated that all reasonable attempts have been made to sell the 
facility or service as a “viable concern”, and
c) it can adequately be demonstrated that the loss of the facility or service will not have 
an adverse impact on the settlement, and

Page 101



List of Policies

d) the proposal will offer significant wider public and community benefits, and
e) the proposal does not detract form the character and amenity of the surrounding 
area.

POLICY IS7: PARKING PROVISION AND STANDARDS

Development proposals should provide for car and cycle parking in accordance with 
approved standards. 

Relaxation of technical standards will be considered where appropriate due to the nature of 
the development and/or if positive amenity gains can be demonstrated that do not 
compromise road safety.

In town centres where there appear to be parking difficulties, the Council will consider the 
desirability of seeking additional public parking provision, in the context of policies to  
promote the use of sustainable travel modes.

OTHER MATERIAL CONSIDERATIONS

 SBC Supplementary Planning Guidance on Privacy and Sunlight  2006
 SBC Supplementary Planning Guidance on Waste Management 2015
 SBC Supplementary Planning Guidance on Biodiversity 2005

Page 102



Page 103

Agenda Item 5a



Page 104



Page 105



Page 106



1 

 

MURRAY LAND & BUILDINGS 

Hillside Dean Place  

Newstead 

Melrose 

TD6 9RL 

 

 

Scottish Borders Council 

Planning and Regulatory Services 

Council HQ 

Newtown St Boswells 

Melrose 

TD6 0SA 

 

 

 

Appeal Statement with Notice of Review against refusal of Planning 

Application 20/00132/PPP for the rection of Treehouse and associated 

walkway for use as a Holiday Let 

 
Site – Sandystones Ancrum Jedburgh TD8 6UP 

 

Applicant – Sandystones Ltd  

 

Proposal 

To erect a Treehouse on stilts set within a treeline of a haugh field near the River Ale with a walkway leading to 

it.  Existing trees would be incorporated within the walkway access.  The proposed Treehouse would be used as 

a holiday let to cater for the Scottish Borders tourism market which is in an expansion phase, as staycation 

becomes more popular.  The proposed floor area of the Treehouse would be 45 sqm, housing a studio apartment 

layout aimed at couples and/or families of 4-5. 

This application is for planning permission in principle, the full design of the Treehouse is to be confirmed, but it 

is thought that it will be a larch clad timber frame with a pitched roof clad in slate.  The use of sustainable materials 

is fundamental to the Treehouse’s site and situation. 

 

Diversification 

Sandystones is a relatively small agricultural unit of some 400 acres.  A number of diversifications ensure the 

business spreads it’s risk and improves viability.  Without diversifications, the business would not be able to 

provide the current 4 full time jobs.  The proposed Treehouse is a further diversification which aims to further 

broaden the business’s base, creating an additional income stream and further employment.   

Tourism is an important facet of the Scottish Borders local economy.  This proposal would add to the current 

offering of accommodation in the Scottish Borders.  The Treehouse is a niche type of holiday let and we envisage 

demand will be high, bringing a steady supply of tourism into the Scottish Borders. 

 

Sustainability 

It is important that the proposed Treehouse assimilates with its surrounds to provide a low carbon, sustainable 

holiday house which connects to the Scottish Borders Countryside.  Construction is to be carried out using 

sustainable materials where possible.  The sub-structure (below habitable and access walkway level) is to be 

formed with a steel posts clad in timber to integrate with its surroundings.  The superstructure (from habitable and 

access walkway level up) is to be a timber frame and deck.  The roof is likely to be clad with welsh slate.  External 

walls are to be clad with timber boarding, probably larch or similar.  Sheep’s wool insulation is to be used to 

create a warm, natural and efficient internal environment.   

Page 107



2 

 

Electricity will be provided via the Sandystones photovoltaic panel array.  An existing supply cable is located on 

the edge of the site. 

 

 

Overhead view of site location 

Site servicing for water and foul 

Servicing of the Treehouse will include an existing mains water connection already in the vicinity.  A private 

treatment plant will be located on-site to take foul drainage.  A suitable tail drain or soakaway will be located in 

the vicinity of the treatment plant.  Both the treatment plant and soakaway are located out with the flood plain.  

Rainwater will be piped to a soakaway.  A SUDS system will be employed. 

Service runs have been marked on the block plan. 

A renewable energy source is to provide heating and hot water to the Treehouse. 

All of the above are sighted out with the flood areas and will be capable of function throughout. 

Page 108



3 

 

 

Impacts of flood on development area 

Block Plan view showing 1 in 200 + climate change extent flood line.   

Page 109



4 

 

 

Treehouse position in relation to trees and haugh. 

 

Impact 

The proposed development is out-with the Natural Scenic Area, there are no listed buildings within the vicinity.   

There are no surrounding properties. 

The proposed Treehouse would be integrated into its surrounds with minimal impact on surrounding flora and 

fauna.  This would be achieved by using suitable construction techniques which minimise ground disturbance so 

that damage to habitat and tree root systems is avoided.  The aim is for the Treehouse to reside in harmony with 

it’s surrounds.   

A tree survey is to be provided, confirming the current condition of the trees in the vicinity, works 

required/proposed and the methods used to reduce any impact.  The existing trees and their crown spread are 

shown on the block plan. 

We understand/expect an ecology survey and report will be required.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 110



5 

 

 

Planning Policy, Guidance, Compliance, Objections & Comment in response to SEPA. 

 

SBC LDP 2016 

Within the existing adopted Scottish Borders Council Local Plan, the main policy relevant to this proposal is ED7 

Business, Tourism and Leisure Development in the Countryside.  This proposal accords with policy ED7 and 

meets with criteria, as below- 

• This development is to be used directly for recreation and tourism appropriate to a countryside location. 

 

• The proposal accords with the Scottish Borders Tourism Strategy and Action Plan. 

 

• The development will respect the amenity and character of the surrounding area. 

 

• There will be no significant impact on nearby uses, particularly housing. 

 

• There are no buildings capable of conversion. 

 

• The impact will be minimised by the scale of the proposal. 

Further key policies to which policy ED7 should be cross referenced include policy PMD2 Quality Standard, 

EP13, IS4 and IS8 

.   

PMD2: The proposed development aims to be sustainable, well designed and accessible.  The location of the    

proposed development already links to green space and sits within natural features. 

EP13: The proposed development seeks to assimilate itself into the existing surrounds.  Trees are to be 

incorporated within this development.  Proposed construction techniques will minimise the risk of harm 

being caused to the surrounding trees.  Minimal lateral digging and foundation formation techniques will 

be used. 

IS4: Impact on the natural and built environment will be minimal.  The main access track already exists.  

Intensification of its use will be relatively minor. 

 

IS8: Part of the proposed development is to take place on a flood plain.  Finished floor level of the Treehouse  

and walkway access to it, are 3m above the flood plain ground level.  The stilt construction removes very 

little of the functional flood plain, hence the impacts on flooding caused elsewhere by the proposed 

development, would be negligible. 

In addition, policies EP1-3 will be relevant but we await comments from the Ecology officer. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 111



6 

 

Scottish Planning Guidance 2014 

Managing Flood Risk and Drainage 

Para 255 states- 

• A precautionary approach to flood risk from all sources, including coastal, water 

course (fluvial), surface water (pluvial), groundwater, reservoirs and drainage systems 

(sewers and culverts), taking account of the predicted effects of climate change;  

• flood avoidance: by safeguarding flood storage and conveying capacity, and locating 

development away from functional flood plains and medium to high risk areas;  

• flood reduction: assessing flood risk and, where appropriate, undertaking natural and 

structural flood management measures, including flood protection, restoring natural 

features and characteristics, enhancing flood storage capacity, avoiding the 

construction of new culverts and opening existing culverts where possible; and  

• avoidance of increased surface water flooding through requirements for Sustainable 

Drainage Systems (SuDS) and minimising the area of impermeable surface. 

Para 256 states – 

To achieve this the planning system should prevent development which would have a significant 

probability of being affected by flooding or would increase the probability of flooding elsewhere. 

Piecemeal reduction of the functional floodplain should be avoided given the cumulative effects of 

reducing storage capacity. 

 

Development Planning 

Para 263. Local development plans should use the following flood risk framework to guide 

development. This sets out three categories of coastal and watercourse flood risk, together with 

guidance on surface water flooding, and the appropriate planning approach for each (the annual 

probabilities referred to in the framework relate to the land at the time a plan is being prepared or a 

planning application is made): 

• Little or No Risk – annual probability of coastal or watercourse flooding is less than 0.1% 

(1:1000 years) – No constraints due to coastal or watercourse flooding.  

 

• Low to Medium Risk – annual probability of coastal or watercourse flooding is between 0.1% 

and 0.5% (1:1000 to 1:200 years)  

 

– Suitable for most development. A flood risk assessment may be required at the upper end 

of the probability range (i.e. close to 0.5%), and for essential infrastructure and the most 

vulnerable uses. Water resistant materials and construction may be required. 

– Generally not suitable for civil infrastructure. Where civil infrastructure must be located in 

these areas or is being substantially extended, it should be designed to be capable of 

remaining operational and accessible during extreme flood events.  

  

• Medium to High Risk – annual probability of coastal or watercourse flooding is greater than 

0.5% (1:200 years)  

 

– May be suitable for:  

– residential, institutional, commercial and industrial development within built-up areas 

provided flood protection measures to the appropriate standard already exist and are 

Page 112



7 

 

maintained, are under construction, or are a planned measure in a current flood risk 

management plan; 

 

 – essential infrastructure within built-up areas, designed and constructed to remain 

operational during floods and not impede water flow; 

 

 – some recreational, sport, amenity and nature conservation uses, provided appropriate 

evacuation procedures are in place; and 

 

 – job-related accommodation, e.g. for caretakers or operational staff.  

 

– Generally not suitable for: 

 

 – civil infrastructure and the most vulnerable uses; 

 

 – additional development in undeveloped and sparsely developed areas, unless a location is 

essential for operational reasons, e.g. for navigation and water-based recreation, agriculture, 

transport or utilities infrastructure (which should be designed and constructed to be 

operational during floods and not impede water flow), and an alternative, lower risk location 

is not available; and 

 

 – new caravan and camping sites.  

 

– Where built development is permitted, measures to protect against or manage flood risk 

will be required and any loss of flood storage capacity mitigated to achieve a neutral or better 

outcome. 

 

 – Water-resistant materials and construction should be used where appropriate. Elevated        

buildings on structures such as stilts are unlikely to be acceptable.  

 

 

       

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 113



8 

 

Planning and Consultee response 

The consultee responses supportive of the proposal, were - 

• Roads Planning 

• Economic Development 

• Landscape Architect 

 

Those against were – 

• Flood Risk Officer* 

• SEPA 

 

*  It should be noted that in the previous planning application – 19/00812/PPP, the flood risk officer was 

supportive of the proposals subject to suitable design engineering of the stilted structure.  Subsequently a different 

flood risk officer has decided to object to this application.   Nothing has materially changed to the application 

made in 2019 to that made in 2020. 

 

The planning officer has refused the planning application 20/00132/PPP for a single reason -  

“The development is contrary to Policy IS8 of the Local Development Plan 2016 in that the proposal 
would be within an area of flood risk and potentially place the occupants at an unacceptable risk of 
flooding”. 
 

The planning officer has not provided any other reasoning for refusal in his report, therefore, I would suggest he 

is in agreement that the application meets with all of the other SBC LDP policies, subject to planning condition, 

where consultees require.  

 

Further to above, the planning officer also makes further points within his report with regard to flooding. 

‘The planning statement indicates that the treehouse would not be at flood risk due to being located 

on stilts some 3 metres above the predicted floodplain level and that stilts are unlikely to have an 

impact on floodplain capacity. It should be noted that holiday accommodation is classed as the most 

vulnerable and raising the development above the floodplain using stilts is not acceptable under 

Scottish Planning Policy and SEPA were unable to support these proposals and object in principle to 

this development. The occupants of this treehouse accommodation may be required to be 

evacuated/rescued during a flood event, thus placing others in danger, and the structure may be 

damaged where debris is carried by the watercourse. The cornerstone of sustainable flood risk 

management is the avoidance of flood risk in the first instance and it is recommended that alternative 

locations be considered. Furthermore, given SEPA are a statutory consultee a recommendation of 

approval would be contrary to this advice on flood risk, and the Town and Country Planning 

(Notification of Applications) (Scotland) Direction 2009 would require referral of this application to the 

Scottish Ministers. Given that the provision of the development on stilts would be contrary to Scottish 

Planning Policy and would not overcome the flood risk to access and egress, it is considered that the 

proposal cannot be supported as being compliant with Policy IS8.’ 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 114



9 

 

Murray Land & Buildings have commented in red text beneath. 

 
There are a number of inaccuracies made in the planning officer’s report above. 

 

• The treehouse would be on stilts which would be 3m above the existing flood plain ground 

level, not the modelled flood water level. 

• Stilted construction is noted as ‘Unlikely to be acceptable’ in Para 263 of the SPP 2014.  This 

is not the same as ‘not acceptable’.   

• On what grounds are others being placed in danger if access and egress can be retained at all 

times?  Flood waters cannot reach either the occupied area or the walkway. 

• Provision of the development on stilts is not contrary to Scottish Planning Policy. 

• The mitigation provided is not being paid cognisance to.  It is being shown that the structure of 

the Treehouse and walkway can be engineered to withstand the flood forces imposed on it, 

therefore, the risk is being reduced/removed by engineering, therefore it is compliant with 

Policy IS8. 

 

 

SEPA’S response to the planning application is below in black text.  Murray Land & Buildings comment 

is in red text. 

 

1.            Flood Risk 
 

1.1 Given the location of the proposed development within the sparsely developed functional 

floodplain we do not consider that it meets with the requirements of Scottish Planning 

Policy and our position is unlikely to change.  We have a shared duty with Scottish Ministers 

and other responsible authorities under the Flood Risk Management (Scotland) Act 2009 to 

reduce overall flood risk and promote sustainable flood risk management.  The cornerstone 

of sustainable flood risk management is the avoidance of flood risk in the first instance.  We 

recommend that alternative locations be considered. 

 

 

1.2 In the event that the planning authority proposes to grant planning permission contrary to 

this advice on flood risk, the Town and Country Planning (Notification of Applications) 

(Scotland) Direction 2009 provides criteria for the referral to the Scottish Ministers of such 

cases. You may therefore wish to consider if this proposal falls within the scope of this 

Direction. 

 
 

1.3 Notwithstanding this position we have included our review of the information 

supplied.  Provision of this review does not imply that we consider there to be a technical 

solution to managing flood risk at this site which meets with Scottish Planning Policy. 

 

 

Technical Report 

 

1.4 We previously objected in principle to this development in June 2019 (19/00812/PPP) and 

noted that if an alternative location is possible, this should be outwith the functional 

floodplain (1 in 200-year flood extent) and free from flood risk up to the 1 in 1000-year flood 

events. Safe access and egress should also be ensured outwith the floodplain. 

 

Page 115



10 

 

The structure supporting the treehouse and the walkway is located within the functional 

floodplain.  The Treehouse floor level and the walkway are both at least 1.5m above the worst-

case flood model provided in the Flood Risk Assessment.  An engineer has provided a report 

to confirm the structures stability with the relevant loads applied.  This allows safe access and 

egress to any occupants.   Safe access and egress is ensured within and out-with the floodplain. 

 

1.5 Since our previous response, there has been no change to the proposed design of the 

development, however updated ground levels have been provided relative to Ordnance 

Datum and Kaya Consulting has undertaken a Flood Risk Assessment (FRA) in August 2019.  

 

1.6 With regards to the FRA, unfortunately the 1 in 200 year flow is lower than we would expect 

for the area and our estimates indicate that the 1 in 1000 year flow is more representative at 

the site. With that in mind, we have considered the 1 in 1000 year flow (162.8m3/s) as the 

200 year flow when assessing flood risk to the site. As such, the FRA confirms that the 

development would be situated within the functional flood plain using this design flow (and 

the lower 200 year design flow adopted in the FRA). 

 

A flood model has been built and provided.  If SEPA wish to disprove or question the model, 

then surely they must provide alternative data, not estimates.  Even allowing for SEPA’s worst 

case scenario, the occupied area and the access/egress walkway would still be at least 1.2m 

above flood level.  

 

1.7 The FRA also concludes that there are some sensitivities in the modelling when adjusting key 

parameters such as roughness and the downstream boundary. To mitigate for this, it is 

suggested to add an additional 0.3m onto the design flood levels.  

 

Interesting that SEPA use the word mitigate, is that risk assessing using a safety factor? 

 

1.8 Despite our reservations over the methods used in the FRA, sufficient information has been 

provided to confirm that the development structure lies within the 1 in 200 year functional 

flood plain. As such, there is no merit in updating the FRA at this stage. If an FRA update is 

required in the future, we would expect the flow estimates to be revised and further work to 

be done to improve the model sensitivity, which may include adding additional surveyed cross 

sections. 

 

If you have reservations, then I think you have to be more specific.  On what basis should the 

flow estimates be revised?  Would additional data, which would undoubtedly not materially 

change the fact that the FFL and walkway would never flood, be relevant or likely to change 

SEPA’s stance?   

 

1.9 We note that the site is connected to higher land to the north. We would have no objection 

to an alternative design being situated on these higher ground levels outwith the functional 

flood plain. If an alternative location is suggested, an updated FRA would be required to 

inform the 1 in 1000 year flood level for the site. 

 

The location of the treehouse is very specific -within the tree line and connected to the Haugh 

and River.  This location is required to create a niche living space connected to nature, moving 

the location takes away the integration from the trees and negates the whole point of the 

development. 

 

1.10       With regards to the technical notes provided by Murray Land & Buildings:  

 

Page 116



11 

 

1.5         We note that the small watercourse noted in our previous response in a redundant mill lade      

               and accept that the only source of flood risk to the site is the Ale Water. 

 

 

 

1.6         For clarity, we consider the Treehouse to fall into the Most Vulnerable Land Use category in 

line with SEPA’s Land Use Vulnerability Guidance, under ‘holiday caravan, chalet, and camping 

sites’ and as a ‘site used for holiday or short-let caravans and camping’ in line with SPP.  

 

Such types of development are not generally not suitable within Medium to High risk, sparsely 

developed areas, such as this, and may only be suitable in Low to Medium risk areas if the risk 

from a 1 in 1000 year event can be alleviated through appropriate mitigation. We do not 

consider this is be achievable in this case as the development structure lies within the 1 in 200 

year functional flood plain. 

 

Generally, being the key word.  Mitigation has been provided.  You can’t stop the flood, you 

can problem solve/mitigate and remove the habitable space and access/egress out with the flood 

water effect, therefore providing resilient development. 

 

1.7          Paragraph 255 of SPP states that the planning system should: promote flood avoidance by 

safeguarding flood storage and conveying capacity, and locating development away from 

functional flood plains and medium to high risk areas. This development would be constructed 

within the functional flood plain and does not adhere to the principles of SPP by locating 

development away from functional flood plains.  

 

Both flood storage and capacity are safeguarded -Stilts-.   Development i.e. the stilted structure, 

may be located in the floodplain but this is not habitable space or access/egress, which remain 

significantly unaffected. 

 

1.10 We remain of the opinion that if the occupants of the treehouse accommodation were 

required to be evacuated/ rescued during a flood event, this would place others in danger, 

and the structure may be damaged where debris is carried by the watercourse. Given that 

such events are usually accompanied by extremely poor weather conditions and could occur 

during the hours of darkness, this presents an extremely dangerous situation 

 

This ‘opinion’ is not based on any facts.  The modelling proves that the habitable area including 

the access and egress would never flood, therefore in the event that someone required to be 

evacuated or rescued, access and egress could be taken safely.  The supporting structure will 

be engineered so that it is capable of withstanding the flood forces including potential debris.  

These established facts disprove the above statement. 

 

  

 

1.11 The approach currently underpinned by national policy in Scotland is for the avoidance of 

flood risk in the first instance as the most sustainable approach to flood risk management. 

There are no overriding reasons for developing in the floodplain, especially where there is 

availability of lower risk land, which we believe to be the case in this instance. We are 

therefore unable to accept the proposed stilted design as an appropriate solution to flood 

risk. We note the reasons given as to why it is desirable to place the accommodation at this 

location, but while clearly it is desirable to do so, we do not consider it acceptable to place 

people at risk by choice of location. 

 

Page 117



12 

 

There is no basis to assume people are being placed at risk.  The model proves this not to be 

the case.  Location is key for this development, therefore it is overriding to the 

development.  This is a niche development and requires to be assessed on this basis.  It is not a 

generic role out for a housing development.  Risks have been suitably assessed and appropriate 

control measures have been integrated, including engineered stilted construction.  

 

1.13        As such we consider that there is no technical solution to the development of the site which 

complies with Scottish Planning Policy and we object in principle to the proposed 

development on flood risk grounds for the following reasons:  

 

•            In line with Scottish Planning Policy (SPP) holiday accommodation is classed as ‘most 

vulnerable’ land use and is generally not suitable within Medium to High risk, sparsely 

developed areas, such as this. 

 

Generally, is the key word, mitigation has been provided, but it is not being paid cognisance 

to.   

 

•            The FRA confirms that the development would be constructed in the 1 in 200 year functional 

flood plain.  

 

  

•            SPP states that stilted accommodation is generally not acceptable within areas of flood risk. 

 

•            The development does not adhere to the principles of SPP by promoting flood avoidance by 

locating development away from functional flood plains and medium to high risk areas 

 

It does adhere to SPP by avoiding flooding via engineering.  SPP goes as far as mentioning 

stilted construction.  Why?  Effectively the accommodation and walkway are located out with 

the floodplain, the structure supporting them is not.  In the same way a bridge over a river or 

body of water provides the structure for a road.   

                                                                                                 

 

• Occupants of this treehouse accommodation may be required to be evacuated/ rescued 

during a flood event, thus placing others in danger, and the structure may be damaged where 

debris is carried by the watercourse 

 

Why?  There is no factual basis for this statement.  Evacuation is not required if the flood does 

not directly affect the habitable space or access/egress.  The structure would be designed to 

withstand flood debris and the forces exerted.   
 

 

The flood risk officer response in the 2020 application is as follows- 

As is stated in the FRA, SPP states that the development should be located out with the 1:1000 year 

floodplain. This is due to the classification of holiday let accommodation as a ‘most vulnerable use’ 

within SEPA’s Land Use Vulnerability Guidance.  While I appreciate that the application is for a 

treehouse and does required to be located within the tree line given the risk of flooding and lack of 

flood free access and egress directly from the treehouse structure we are unable to support the 

development in this location.  

 

I would recommend, that as per the FRA, the development is re-located out with the 1:1000 year 

floodplain.  

Page 118



13 

 

 

Murray Land and Buildings comment is in red text- 

 

Neither the FRA or the SPP states that this development should be located out-with the 1 in 1000-year 

floodplain.  

 

Both the FRA & SPP state that development of this type, in the medium to high flood risk area, is 

generally not suitable.   

 

The mitigation provides for flood free access and egress whilst stopping flooding being a material 

issue. A large section of the walkway access is already out with the flood risk area. 

 

The FRA does not recommend that the development should be re-located out with the 1:1000 year 

floodplain. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 119



14 

 

Appeal Grounds 

This appeal is on the grounds that the planning officer and SEPA have erred in their interpretation of Scottish 

Planning Policy -SPP 2014- and Scottish Borders Council Local Plan policy IS8.   

For the avoidance of doubt, Holiday accommodation is noted in the most vulnerable use class.   

 

Planning officer recommendation for refusal of planning application 20/00132/PPP was based on a single 

reason -  

“The development is contrary to Policy IS8 of the Local Development Plan 2016 in that the proposal 
would be within an area of flood risk and potentially place the occupants at an unacceptable risk of 
flooding”. 

 

SBC LDP Policy IS8 states- 

1.1 This policy is intended to discourage development from taking place in areas which are, or may become, 

subject to flood risk.  Where some level of risk may be acceptable, it also provides for development to 

be designed such as to minimise it.  The policy provides guidance to developers on the information that 

will be required in support of a development proposal which may be at risk of flooding. 

SBC LDP Policy IS8 further aligns with the SPP 2014 flood risk framework principles including- 

• Avoidance of flooding is the first principle of managing flood risk. 

• Locating new development in areas free from significant flood risk. 

• Development not being permitted if it would be at significant risk of flooding. 

• Risk categories are used generically to inform general guidance on acceptability of development. 

• Development is assessed against risk and mitigation measures. 

 

The SPP 2014 flood risk framework is read in conjunction with the SBC LDP policy IS8.   

 

Para 254. NPF3 supports a catchment-scale approach to sustainable flood risk management. The spatial strategy 

aims to build the resilience of our cities and towns, encourage sustainable land management in our rural areas, 

and to address the long-term vulnerability of parts of our coasts and islands. Flooding can impact on people and 

businesses. Climate change will increase the risk of flooding in some parts of the country. Planning can play an 

important part in reducing the vulnerability of existing and future development to flooding. 

 

 

Line two of Para 255 in the 2014 SPP states  

The planning system should promote- 

‘flood avoidance: by safeguarding flood storage and conveying capacity, and locating development away from 

functional flood plains and medium to high risk areas;’  

 

Para 256 of the 2014 SPP then qualifies this- 

‘To achieve this the planning system should prevent development which would have a significant probability of 

being affected by flooding or would increase the probability of flooding elsewhere. Piecemeal reduction of the 

functional floodplain should be avoided given the cumulative effects of reducing storage capacity.’ 

 

 

Para 263 in the SPP 2014 flood risk framework states- 

• Medium to High risk areas are generally not suitable for most vulnerable types of development. 

 

Page 120



15 

 

• Water-resistant materials and construction should be used where appropriate. Elevated buildings on 

structures such as stilts are unlikely to be acceptable.   
 

 

Some of the above could lead one to believe that all development of this type is not permitted in medium to high 

risk flood areas, but why does the policy caveat with statements like ‘generally not suitable’ & ‘unlikely to be 

acceptable’?  Careful reading and interpretation of the policy wording is required alongside assessment of the 

specific proposal to enable a lawful decision to be reached.  In this case, both the planning officer and SEPA have 

read and quoted policy as they believe it to be written, not how it is written.  They have also failed to pay 

cognisance to the mitigation provided.  This is further borne by the inaccuracies in their responses.   

 

Para 256 also qualifies Para 255 further, by stating that the planning system should prevent development which 

would have a significant probability of being affected by flooding or would increase the probability of flooding 

elsewhere.   

 

The effects of flooding on the proposed development are not material because of the mitigation measures provided.  

Therefore, mitigation is providing sustainability and resilience to the development.  These attributes are at the 

heart of what the flood risk framework seeks to achieve in planning.  

 

Further guidance was sought from the Scottish Government to clarify the SPP 2014 and its interpretation, 

specifically around the flood risk framework on stilted construction.  They in turn, noted that the SPP was for 

guidance only and that it was for the individual local authority to interpret, and not for SG to comment in individual 

cases.  This would appear to be a paradox.  The SG were asked to comment in a previous planning application 

made in Moray, in 2014 -by another applicant’s agent- with specific regard to the SPP 2014.  The applicant’s 

agent sought clarification on the reference to stilted construction made within Para 263 of the SPP 2014. 

 

SG were purported to have commented on the Moray 2014 application as follows - 

“Please note that paragraph 263 states that generally elevated buildings on structures such as stilts 

are unlikely to be acceptable.  This does not necessarily mean therefore that stilted construction 

would be unacceptable in every circumstance.  The inclusion of the reference to stilts come from a 

concern over the ability of such construction to withstand flood events.  There is recognition however 

that within this general reference there may be construction techniques that a planning authority 

may find acceptable”. 

Data provided via Moray Council planning portal. 

 

The above statement justifies and interprets the SPP 2014 policy guidance on stilted construction use with 

specifics to medium to high risk areas.  

This would also accord with the assessment of the development undertaken by the SBC flood risk officer below, 

in the previous 2019 Sandystones Treehouse application -19/00812/PPP- where reference was made to the 

structure and the mitigation provided.  It should be noted that nothing has materially changed between the 2019 

and 2020 applications, only the different flood risk officer’s interpretation.  

 

 

 

 

 

Page 121



16 

 

In the 2019 application -19/00812/PPP- the Flood Risk Officer states- 

I would require the applicant to send in the design of their structure to ensure that the walkway piers or 
any structures that impact stability do not increase flood risk. For example, they are not likely to catch 
debris or trees that could create a blockage on site. 
 
Furthermore, I would require that there are no structures e.g. walkway piers are located within the 
watercourse. 
 
If the above is adhered to, I would have no objections on the grounds of flood risk.’ 
 

In arriving at his view, the flood risk officer has interpreted the mitigation correctly and seeks further information 

to ensure the development is resilient. 

The flood officer does not object on the grounds of flood risk because of the mitigation provided. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 122



17 

 

Mitigation and reasoning 

Within the flood risk assessment report, modelling on a 1 in 200 (including climate change), 1 in 200 and 1 in 

1000 year water level with respect to flooding from the Ale Water has been undertaken.  It clearly shows that the 

highest predicted water levels would never be within 1.5m of the Finished Floor Level of the Treehouse or 

Walkway.  Both the access road and parking area are out-with the flood risk areas. 

 

 

Section demonstrating the Finished Floor Level, the 1 in 200 year flood level with climate change and the 1 

in 1000 year water levels all in AOD. 

 

The SPP 2014 flood risk policy framework and Policy IS8 are written on the basis of minimising risk to different 

types of development and occupants.  Undoubtedly this is based on the following factors- 

• Occupant safety 

• Third party safety i.e. emergency services 

• Buildings susceptibility/resilience to flooding 

• Impact of development on flooding elsewhere 

• Potential sewage discharge/contamination 

There are other considerations to include, but the above provide the main factors which require to be risk assessed 

when writing policy or assessing development proposals.   

 

To inform the SPP 2014 flood risk policy framework guidance and SBC LDP Policy IS8, generic factors have 

been used which approve certain types of acceptable development in areas deemed to be of lower risk of flooding.  

The framework and policy also outline certain types of acceptable development in areas deemed to be at higher 

risk from flooding. 

 

The risk framework used within this policy guidance is a broad-brush approach used on a generic basis.  It cannot 

be any more specific than that, which is why the different types of development are grouped.  Both the policy 

guidance and policy are worded with terms like ‘generally not’ and ‘unlikely’.  This is to allow exceptions to 

generic rules, where specific cases demonstrate that adequate mitigation has been provided to reduce risks to 

acceptable levels.   

 

 

Page 123



18 

 

This interpretation is entirely logical because it allows for development assessment to be undertaken so as not to 

be unreasonable in the decision-making process. 

 

The assessment approach taken by the flood risk officer in the 2019 application is an example of viewing the 

development proposal on this basis and taking into account mitigation. 

 

The assessment approach taken by the planning officer and SEPA in both the 2019 and 2020 applications is 

generic and pays no cognisance to the mitigation provided.  Nor does it correctly interpret the policy guidance.  

Indeed, the planning officer and formerly SEPA, erred in their reports by stating that the SPP 2014 says stilted 

construction is not acceptable in this flood risk area.  That is not what the policy guidance says.  This interpretation 

and stance would seem lawfully unreasonable and at odds with the policy. 

 

It therefore stands that the legality of the planning officer’s decision, fails the Wednesbury unreasonableness test 

at Limb 1, by virtue of the planning officer’s failure to pay cognisance to the engineering solutions provided.  

Further interpretation and quotation of the SPP 2014 policy guidance- specifically stilted construction- has also 

been made in error.  The planning officer’s decision is therefore ‘Ultra Vires’.   

 

Fully assessing the specific development proposal and any mitigation provided, is the only way to implement the 

guidance policy correctly and make lawful decisions.  This planning application is far from ‘run of the mill’, it is 

niche, and it should be assessed on this basis, not with a broad-brush policy interpretation. 

 

A risk assessment based on the five factors noted above is given below.  The main hierarchy of factors are that of 

risk to occupants and third-party safety, followed by, though intertwined, the buildings structural stability and 

resilience to flooding.  Impacts of the development on flooding elsewhere and the potential for causing pollution 

follow. 

 

Risk to Occupants 

• The proposed Treehouse is at least 1.5m above the modelled flood levels, therefore the habitable area 

and the access and egress to the property are not capable of flooding.  It is undisputed, the Treehouse and 

the walkway cannot flood even when the Ale Water is in its worst flood.  SEPA cannot and I believe do 

not disagree with the last statement. 

• The structure supporting the Treehouse and the walkway is to be designed by structural engineers.  

Structural engineers have looked at the proposal, including the loads to be imposed by the flood waters.  

They are comfortable that the supporting structure shall be more than capable of withstanding the flow 

rates and potential flood debris created.  A letter outlining this support is annexed.   

• Above I have risk assessed the potential impacts of modelled flooding occurring to the Treehouse.  All 

risk cannot be removed from any development, but the level of risk associated with this proposal is very 

acceptable given that the occupants would never be exposed to flood water within their habitable area, 

access or egress and the structure is to be capable of withstanding any potential flood water and debris 

forces applied to it.  This therefore provides mitigation. 

 

Risk to Third Parties 

• The above assessment holds true for the third parties which include emergency services.  Access and 

egress is afforded at all times, therefore the life’s of third parties are not being put in any more danger 

than they ordinarily would be in the course of their work. 

 

 

Page 124



19 

 

Buildings Structural Stability 

• Again, this is intertwined with both of the above risk factors.  A letter has been provided by a firm of 

structural engineers.  The structure would be further assessed at Building Warrant stage, where the 

structural design/calculations and certificate will require to be provided. 

 

Impacts of flooding elsewhere and pollution 

• There will be a small area of the functional flood plain removed by the area the supporting legs of the 

treehouse and walkway take up.  This area is negligible, but if it was thought necessary, a compensatory 

area of extra flood plain space could be provided. 

• The risk of pollution has been mitigated by locating the treatment plant and soakaway out-with the flood 

plain area.  Pipework connecting from the treehouse to the treatment plant is located within the walkway 

and more than 1m above the modelled flood levels.  

 

 

Following on from purported Scottish Government Directorate advice, the lawful consensus is that where it can 

be demonstrated that a structure is suitable to be able to withstand a flooding event, planning consent should not 

be refused on the basis that stilted construction is generally not acceptable.  The words “generally not”, do not 

preclude acceptance. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 125



20 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Conclusion 

The safety of the Treehouse occupants is paramount for all, especially Sandystones Ltd, who would be the holiday 

accommodation provider.  Sandystones Ltd seek to provide a welcoming, safe environment for their guests to 

unwind and relax in a tranquil location, in the heart of the Scottish Borders. 

We conclude that- 

• The Treehouse will be structurally designed to withstand the flood model loads applied, therefore the 

structure is not at significant risk, and neither are the occupants or third parties.  

 

• Carrying out an assessment of the specific proposed development -as the flood risk officer in the 2019 

application did- demonstrates that the Treehouse proposal does align with SBC LDP Policy IS8 as well 

as the SPP 2014. 

 

• The location for the Treehouse was carefully chosen so that it assimilates with it’s surrounds more easily, 

whilst providing the occupants with a feeling of being surrounded by nature.  Any alternative site would 

not provide the same attachment effect required to create this unique setting. 

 

• Benefits of the Treehouse to the local economy and the tourism offering in the Scottish Borders are 

considerable.  The Scottish Borders tourism economy is built upon niche visitor attractions of historical 

and contemporary type and use.  This Treehouse would add further to that offering. 

 

• As an enterprise the Treehouse holiday let will further enhance and protect existing jobs whilst offering 

the potential to create new employment. 

 

• We appreciate that this is not a generic type planning application.  It does however require proper 

assessment against risk, not generic rebuttals in opinion and incorrect quotation/application of policy 

guidance in the face of established fact. 

 

 

• The reasoning behind the refusal of the planning application is unreasonable at common law.  Therefore, 

‘Ultra Vires’. 

 

• At a time when the tourism sector needs to show resilience in the face of the fallout caused by the global 

pandemic, this proposal is exactly the type of boost which our local economy needs. 

 

• The green credentials of the proposed development should be applauded.  The building will use 

renewable energy to provide heat and power.  An on-farm PV array will provide electricity and a small 

scale renewable energy form will provide the heating and hot water.  Construction of the building will 

integrate sustainable materials wherever possible.  This will include the timber frame of the Treehouse 

above the supporting structure, the sheep’s wool insulation, the timber cladding and the slate roof 

covering. 

 

Page 126



21 

 

• The application received no objection comments from the public and is supported by ‘Canopy & Stars’, 

a national marketing agency for Glamping. 

 

 

• It is heartening that a local business still wishes to take the calculated risk to step into this sector given 

the current situation. This should be supported for the many benefits it brings to the local economy. 

 

The above appeal is being made because we believe the application has not been properly assessed by the planning 

officer.  His interpretation has been based on the incorrect application and interpretation of policy guidance.  

Instead of assessing the application specifically on the alleviation techniques provided, the assessment has been 

made generically, whilst only paying cognisance to SEPA. This is unreasonable.  The facts provided show that 

the risks to occupants, third parties and the structure as well as other flooding and pollution risks are all being 

mitigated against, thereby reducing to an acceptable level and making the development sensible and one that 

should be wholeheartedly supported. 

We would ask the local review body to reconsider the planning officer’s erroneous decision and consent this 

application. 

A site inspection by the local review body councillors, if they wished, would be welcomed by the appellant so 

that the committee may fully appreciate the site’s situation. Given the current restrictions this may not be possible, 

but the opportunity is afforded.   

 
Example of holiday accommodation construction next to a watercourse in Scotland. 

 

 

 

 

Page 127



22 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 128



 
 

 

 

 

Sandystones Ltd 
per Murray Land & Buildings 
Hillside 
Dean Place 
Newstead 
Scottish Borders 
 

Please ask for: 
 
 

Brett Taylor 
X6628 

Our Ref: 20/00132/PPP 
Your Ref:  
E-Mail: Brett.Taylor@scotborders.gov.uk 
Date: 9th April 2020 

 
Dear Sir/Madam 
 

PLANNING APPLICATION AT Land South West of Sandystones Farmhouse Ancrum 
Jedburgh Scottish Borders   

 
PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT:  Erection of treehouse and walkway for use as holiday let 

accommodation and associated works 
 
APPLICANT:  Sandystones Ltd 
 
 

Please find attached the formal notice of refusal for the above application. 

 

Drawings can be found on the Planning pages of the Council website at 

https://eplanning.scotborders.gov.uk/online-applications/.   
 
Your right of appeal is set out within the decision notice. 
 
Yours faithfully 
 
John Hayward 
 
Planning & Development Standards Manager 

Page 129

https://eplanning.scotborders.gov.uk/online-applications/


 

                                                                                                                                                                                

                  Regulatory Services 
 

 

Visit http://eplanning.scotborders.gov.uk/online-applications/ 
 

         

TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING (SCOTLAND) ACT 1997 (as amended) 
 

Town and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) (Scotland) Regulations 2013 

 

Application for Planning Permission   Reference : 20/00132/PPP 

 

To :     Sandystones Ltd per Murray Land & Buildings Hillside Dean Place Newstead Scottish Borders 
TD6 9RL  

 
With reference to your application validated on 6th February 2020 for planning permission under the Town 
and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 (as amended) for the following development :- 
 

 
Proposal :   Erection of treehouse and walkway for use as holiday let accommodation and associated 
works 
 

 

 
At :   Land South West of Sandystones Farmhouse Ancrum Jedburgh  Scottish Borders   

 

 
The Scottish Borders Council hereby refuse planning permission for the reason(s) stated on the attached 
schedule. 
 
 
Dated 7th April 2020 
Regulatory Services 
Council Headquarters 
Newtown St Boswells 
MELROSE     
TD6 0SA   

           
   John Hayward 

Planning & Development Standards Manager 
 

Page 130

http://eplanning.scotborders.gov.uk/online-applications/


 

                                                                                                                                                                                

                  Regulatory Services 
 

 

Visit http://eplanning.scotborders.gov.uk/online-applications/ 
 

         

 
APPLICATION REFERENCE :  20/00132/PPP 
 
Schedule of Plans and Drawings Refused: 
 
Plan Ref  Plan Type  Plan Status 

 
  Location Plan  Refused 
  Proposed Site Plan Refused 
 
REASON FOR REFUSAL 
 
 1 The development is contrary to Policy IS8 of the Local Development Plan 2016 in that the proposal 

would be within an area of flood risk and potentially place the occupants at an unacceptable risk of 
flooding. 

 
FOR THE INFORMATION OF THE APPLICANT 
 
If the applicant is aggrieved by the decision of the Planning Authority to refuse planning permission for or 
approval required by a condition in respect of the proposed development, or to grant permission or approval 
subject to conditions, the applicant may require the planning authority to review the case under Section 43A 
of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 (as amended) within three months from the date of 
this notice. The notice of review should be addressed to Corporate Administration, Council Headquarters, 
Newtown St Boswells, Melrose TD6 OSA. 
 
If permission to develop land is refused or granted subject to conditions, whether by the Planning Authority 
or by the Scottish Ministers, and the owner of the land claims that the land has become incapable of 
reasonably beneficial use in its existing state and cannot be rendered capable of reasonably beneficial use 
by the carrying out of any development which has been or would be permitted, the owner may serve on the 
Planning Authority a purchase notice requiring the purchase of his interest in the land in accordance with the 
provisions of Part 5 of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 (as amended). 
 
  
 

Page 131

http://eplanning.scotborders.gov.uk/online-applications/


This page is intentionally left blank



Page 133



This page is intentionally left blank



P
age 135



T
his page is intentionally left blank



1 

 

MURRAY LAND & BUILDINGS 

Hillside Dean Place  

Newstead 

Melrose 

TD6 9RL 

 

 

Scottish Borders Council 

Planning and Regulatory Services 

Council HQ 

Newtown St Boswells 

Melrose 

TD6 0SA 

 

 

 

Planning Statement following refusal of Planning Application 

19/00812/PPP for the rection of Treehouse and associated walkway for use 

as a Holiday Let 

 
Site – Sandystones Ancrum Jedburgh TD8 6UP 

 

Applicant – Sandystones Ltd 

 

Proposal 

To construct a timber framed-frame walkway encompassing trees, leading to a single-storey treehouse on stilts.  

Trees would be incorporated within the walkway, none would be formally attached to the walkway.  The treehouse 

would be used as a holiday let to cater for the Scottish Borders tourism market, which is in an expansion phase as 

staycation becomes more popular.  The proposed floor area of the tree house would be 45 sqm, housing a studio 

apartment layout.  The treehouse would be aimed at couples and/or families of 4-5. 

The design of the treehouse is to be confirmed, but it is thought that it will be a larch clad timber frame with a 

pitched roof clad in slate.  The use of sustainable materials is fundamental to the Treehouses site and situation. 

 

Diversification 

Sandystones is a relatively small agricultural unit of some 400 acres.  It’s main agricultural enterprises include 

the production of beef, cereals, oilseeds, pheasant eggs and free range organic chicken eggs.  Current 

diversifications at Sandystones are wide ranging and all add significantly to the business’s performance and 

viability.  Without diversifications, the business would not be able to provide the current 4 full time jobs.  The 

proposed treehouse is a further diversification which aims to further broaden the business’ base, creating an 

additional income stream and further employment.   

Tourism is an important facet of the Scottish Borders local economy.  This proposal would add to the current 

offering of accommodation in the Scottish Borders.  The treehouse is a niche type of holiday let and we envisage 

demand will be high. 

 

Sustainability 

It is important that the proposed treehouse assimilates with its surrounds to provide a low carbon, sustainable 

holiday house which connects to the Scottish Borders countryside.  Construction is to be carried out using 

sustainable materials.  The structure is to be formed with a timber frame above timber stilts.  We have had to 

amend the timber stilts to steel to enable them to withstand the loads applied.  These steel Stilts will be clad with 

timber. The Treehouse will be constructed from timber.  The roof is likely to be clad with welsh slate.  The external 

walls are to be clad with timber boarding, probably larch or similar.  Sheep’s wool insulation is to be used to 

create a warm, efficient internal environment.   

Page 137



2 

 

Electricity will be provided via the Sandystones photovoltaic panel array.  An existing supply cable is located on 

the edge of the site. 

 

Site servicing for water and foul 

The treehouse will be service by an existing mains water connection already in the vicinity.  A private treatment 

plant will be located on-site to take foul drainage.  A suitable tail drain or soakaway will be located in the vicinity 

of the treatment plant. 

Rainwater will be piped to a soakaway.  A SUDS system will be employed. 

Service runs have been marked on the block plan. 

A renewable energy source is to provide heating and hot water to the treehouse. 

All of the above are sighted outwith the flood areas and will be capable of function throughout. 

 

Impact 

The proposed development is out-with the Natural Scenic Area, there are no listed buildings within the vicinity.   

There are no surrounding properties. 

The proposed treehouse would be integrated into its surrounds with minimal impact on surrounding flora and 

fauna.  This would be achieved by using suitable construction techniques which minimise ground disturbance so 

that damage to habitat and tree root systems is avoided.  The aim is for the treehouse to reside in harmony with 

it’s surrounds.   

A tree survey is to be provided, confirming the current condition of the trees in the vicinity, works 

required/proposed and the methods used to reduce any impact. 

I understand/expect an ecology survey and report will be required.   

 

Planning Policy 

 

SBC LDP 2016 

Within the existing adopted Scottish Borders Council Local Plan, the main policy relevant to this proposal is ED7 

Business, Tourism and Leisure Development in the Countryside.  This proposal accords with policy ED7 and 

meets with criteria, as below- 

• The development is to be used directly for recreation and tourism appropriate to a countryside location. 

 

• The proposal accords with the Scottish Borders Tourism Strategy and Action Plan. 

 

• The development will respect the amenity and character of the surrounding area. 

 

• There will be no significant impact on nearby uses, particularly housing. 

 

• There are no buildings capable of conversion. 

 

• The impact will be minimised by the scale of the proposal. 

Further key policies to which policy ED7 should be cross referenced include policy PMD2 Quality Standard, 

EP13, IS4 and IS8 

.   

Page 138



3 

 

PMD2: The proposed development aims to be sustainable, well designed and accessible.  The location of the    

proposed development already links to green space and sits within natural features. 

EP13: The proposed development seeks to assimilate itself into the existing surrounds.  Trees are to be 

incorporated within this development.  Proposed construction techniques will minimise the risk of harm 

being caused to the surrounding trees.  Minimal lateral digging and foundation formation techniques will 

be used. 

IS4: The impact on the natural and built environment will be minimal.  The main access track already exists.  

Intensification of its use will be relatively minor. 

 

IS8: The development proposed is to take place partly on a flood plain.  The proposed treehouse finished floor 

level will sit 3m above the flood plain ground level on timber stilts.  The walkway and access to it are all 

at least 3m above the flood plain ground level.  The stilt construction removes very little of the active 

flood plain, hence the impacts on flooding by the proposed development would be negligible. 

In addition, policies EP1-3 will be relevant but we await comments from the Ecology officer. 

 

Scottish Planning Policy 2014 

Managing Flood Risk and Drainage 

Para 255 states- 

• A precautionary approach to flood risk from all sources, including coastal, water 

course (fluvial), surface water (pluvial), groundwater, reservoirs and drainage systems 

(sewers and culverts), taking account of the predicted effects of climate change;  

• flood avoidance: by safeguarding flood storage and conveying capacity, and locating 

development away from functional flood plains and medium to high risk areas;  

• flood reduction: assessing flood risk and, where appropriate, undertaking natural and 

structural flood management measures, including flood protection, restoring natural 

features and characteristics, enhancing flood storage capacity, avoiding the 

construction of new culverts and opening existing culverts where possible; and  

• avoidance of increased surface water flooding through requirements for Sustainable 

Drainage Systems (SuDS) and minimising the area of impermeable surface. 

 

Development Planning 

Para 263. Local development plans should use the following flood risk framework to guide 

development. This sets out three categories of coastal and watercourse flood risk, together with 

guidance on surface water flooding, and the appropriate planning approach for each (the annual 

probabilities referred to in the framework relate to the land at the time a plan is being prepared or a 

planning application is made): 

• Little or No Risk – annual probability of coastal or watercourse flooding is less than 0.1% 

(1:1000 years) – No constraints due to coastal or watercourse flooding.  

 

• Low to Medium Risk – annual probability of coastal or watercourse flooding is between 0.1% 

and 0.5% (1:1000 to 1:200 years)  

 

– Suitable for most development. A flood risk assessment may be required at the upper end 

of the probability range (i.e. close to 0.5%), and for essential infrastructure and the most 

vulnerable uses. Water resistant materials and construction may be required. 

Page 139



4 

 

– Generally not suitable for civil infrastructure. Where civil infrastructure must be located in 

these areas or is being substantially extended, it should be designed to be capable of 

remaining operational and accessible during extreme flood events.  

  

• Medium to High Risk – annual probability of coastal or watercourse flooding is greater than 

0.5% (1:200 years)  

 

– May be suitable for:  

– residential, institutional, commercial and industrial development within built-up areas 

provided flood protection measures to the appropriate standard already exist and are 

maintained, are under construction, or are a planned measure in a current flood risk 

management plan; 

 

 – essential infrastructure within built-up areas, designed and constructed to remain 

operational during floods and not impede water flow; 

 

 – some recreational, sport, amenity and nature conservation uses, provided appropriate 

evacuation procedures are in place; and 

 

 – job-related accommodation, e.g. for caretakers or operational staff.  

 

– Generally not suitable for: 

 

 – civil infrastructure and the most vulnerable uses; 

 

 – additional development in undeveloped and sparsely developed areas, unless a location is 

essential for operational reasons, e.g. for navigation and water-based recreation, agriculture, 

transport or utilities infrastructure (which should be designed and constructed to be 

operational during floods and not impede water flow), and an alternative, lower risk location 

is not available; and 

 

 – new caravan and camping sites.  

 

– Where built development is permitted, measures to protect against or manage flood risk 

will be required and any loss of flood storage capacity mitigated to achieve a neutral or better 

outcome. 

 

 – Water-resistant materials and construction should be used where appropriate. Elevated        

buildings on structures such as stilts are unlikely to be acceptable.  

 

 

       

 

 

 

 

Page 140



5 

 

Planning and Consultee response from application 19/00812/PPP 

The consultee responses below were generally supportive of the proposal, those being - 

Roads Planning 

Environmental Health 

Economic Development 

Flood Risk Officer 

Ecology/Landscape Officer 

Access Officer 

 

Further information was required by the Access Officer, Ecology/Landscape Officer and Environmental Health 

all of which could and generally would, be provided via planning condition. 

 

 

Grounds for Refusal of Application 

The planning officer refused the planning application on the following basis (one reason) -  

“The development is contrary to Policy IS8 of the Local Development Plan 2016 in that the proposal 
would be within an area of flood risk and potentially place the occupants at an unacceptable risk of 
flooding”. 
 

The planning officer has not provided any other reasoning for refusal in his report, therefore, I would suggest he 

is in agreement that the application meets with all of the other SBC LDP policies, subject to planning condition, 

where consultees require.  

 

Further to above the planning officer also makes further points within his report with regard to flooding.  

Planning officer comment in black text, Murray Land & buildings have commented in red text beneath. 

• The information provided by the applicant indicates that the floodplain level is 95.25m AOD 

although it is unclear where this information has been derived and whether a Flood Risk 

Assessment (FRA) has been carried out. 

The original block plan shows levels in relation to a fence post datum 100.00, this is not Above 

Ordnance Datum.  A subsequent Flood Risk Study was carried out and submitted to the planning 

officer in August 2019.  In advance of this a topographic survey in AOD was undertaken. 

 

• Nevertheless, holiday accommodation is classed as the most vulnerable and raising the 

development above the floodplain using stilts is not acceptable under Scottish Planning Policy 

and SEPA were unable to support these proposals and object in principle to this development. 

Agree on vulnerable class for holiday accommodation.  The planning officer is not correct to say that 

raising the development above the floodplain using stilts is not acceptable under Scottish Planning 

Policy.  As below, the planning directorate have stated that where it can be shown the structure is 

suitable, development may be supported using stilted construction. 

 

Page 141



6 

 

• Given that the provision of the development on stilts would be contrary to Scottish Planning 

Policy and would not overcome the flood risk to access and egress, it is considered that the 

proposal cannot be supported as being compliant with Policy IS8. 

The proposal is not contrary to Scottish Planning Policy.  The wording under SPP Para 263 -Medium to 

High Risk is ‘Water-resistant materials and construction should be used where appropriate. Elevated 

buildings on structures such as stilts are unlikely to be acceptable’. 

The proposal would overcome the flood risk access and egress because these areas would be 1.5m + 

above the worst case flooding model, therefore not affected. 

 

It should be noted at this point that the council’s Flood Risk Officer was not against the previous proposals subject 

to suitable engineering solution for the stilts.  He states- 

‘I would require the applicant to send in the design of their structure to ensure that the walkway piers 
or any structures that impact stability do not increase flood risk. For example, they are not likely to 
catch debris or trees that could create a blockage on site. 
 
Furthermore, I would require that there are no structures e.g. walkway piers are located within the 
watercourse. 
 
If the above is adhered to, I would have no objections on the grounds of flood risk.’ 

 
 

The only consultee objection was made by SEPA.  Their response to the previous application is below in 

black text.  Murray Land & Buildings response on behalf of Sandystones Ltd is in red text. 

 

We object to this planning application in principle on the grounds of flood risk. Please note the 

advice provided below. 

 

1. Flood Risk 

1.1        We object in principle to the proposed development on the grounds that it may place buildings 

and persons at flood risk contrary to Scottish Planning Policy.   

 

The stilts below the treehouse building, of which they form part, are at risk of flooding.  Neither 

the treehouse itself, nor persons within it are or may be being placed at flood risk.  The 

treehouse habitable area, it’s access/egress and parking area are all 3m above the flood plain 

ground level, some by natural contour and some by the manmade structure.  The subsequent 

flood study provided by Kaya Consulting, shows that in a worst-case scenario, water levels 

would rise 1.5m above the existing flood plain ground level, leaving a clear 1.5m between the 

top of the water flood level and the Finished Floor Level. The statement above, forming point 

1.1 by SEPA, is not wholly correct.   

 

 

1.2        Given the location of the proposed development within the functional floodplain we do not 

consider that it meets with the requirements of Scottish Planning Policy and our position is 

unlikely to change.  We have a shared duty with Scottish Ministers and other responsible 

authorities under the Flood Risk Management (Scotland) Act 2009 to reduce overall flood risk 

and promote sustainable flood risk management.  The cornerstone of sustainable flood risk 

management is the avoidance of flood risk in the first instance.  We recommend that 

alternative locations be considered. 

Page 142



7 

 

              

Quite agree, sustainable flood risk management is the avoidance of flood risk in the first 

instance.  The treehouse habitable area, it’s access/egress and the parking area are not at risk 

from flooding due to their location above the flood plain, therefore, this is sustainable flood 

risk management.   

                

 

1.3         In the event that the planning authority proposes to grant planning permission contrary to 

this advice on flood risk, the Town and Country Planning (Notification of Applications) 

(Scotland) Direction 2009 provides criteria for the referral to the Scottish Ministers of such 

cases. You may therefore wish to consider if this proposal falls within the scope of this 

Direction. 

                

 
 

1.4        Notwithstanding this position we have included our review of the information 

supplied.  Provision of this review does not imply that we consider there to be a technical 

solution to managing flood risk at this site which meets with Scottish Planning Policy. 

               

There is a technical solution.  Stilts offer this, subject to suitable engineering. 

 

 

 

Technical Appendix 

 

1.5       Review of the SEPA Flood Map indicates that the site mostly lies within the 0.5% annual 

probability (1 in 200-year) flood extent and may therefore be at medium to high risk of 

flooding from the Ale Water. There is also a small watercourse running through the site and 

the location of the proposed treehouse accommodation is between the Ale Water and small 

watercourse.  

 

I accept part of the site resides within the 0.5% annual probability flood extent, that does not 

mean the habitable area, access/egress or parking area are within it.  The structure supporting 

the treehouse is within the flood area, the treehouse and walkway are significantly above 

it.  There is no small water course running through the site.  That shown is the old Mill Laid 

which does not run and for the most part is dry and infilled with vegetation etc. 

 

 

1.6      Within Scottish Planning Policy (SPP) holiday accommodation is classed as ‘most vulnerable’ 

land use and is generally not suitable within the low (1 in 1000-year) to medium (1 in 200-

year) areas of flood risk. SPP also states that stilted accommodation is generally not 

acceptable within areas of flood risk. 

 

SPP states that most vulnerable uses are not generally suited within Medium to High Risk 

areas, not Low to Medium risk as SEPA say above. 

 

SPP Most Vulnerable Uses in context of flood risk are as follows- Basement dwellings, isolated 

dwellings in sparsely populated areas, dwelling houses behind informal embankments, 

residential institutions such as residential care homes/prisons, nurseries, children’s homes and 

educational establishments, caravans, mobile homes and park homes intended for permanent 

residential use, sites used for holiday or short-let caravans and camping, installations requiring 

hazardous substance consent.   

Page 143



8 

 

 

The treehouse is not specifically any of the above, though it does relate in use, which probably 

means it is to be included within the most vulnerable uses.  

 

The treehouse floor level, walkway and parking area are above the flood plain ground level by  

3m, therefore they are not within the medium to high risk flood area.  The stilted legs are 

within the medium to high risk flood area, but this is structure alone, not habitable space, 

access/egress or parking areas, therefore the risks are not to the occupants or their ability to 

escape.  

 

 

 

1.7      The information provided indicates that the floodplain level is 95.25mAOD although it is 

unclear where this information has been derived and whether a Flood Risk Assessment (FRA) 

has been carried out. The planning statement indicates that the treehouse will not be at flood 

risk due to being located on stilts some 3 metres above the predicted floodplain level and that 

stilts are unlikely to have an impact on floodplain capacity. As noted above, raising 

development above the floodplain using stilts is not acceptable under SPP and SEPA are 

unable to support these proposals and we therefore object in principle to this development. 

Occupants of this treehouse accommodation may be required to be evacuated/rescued during 

a flood event, thus placing others in danger, and the structure may be damaged where debris 

is carried by the watercourse.  

 

The levels provided in the original block plan are not in Above Ordnance Datum, they are 

related to a fence post datum, purely to demonstrate the differences in height.  A flood risk 

study report has now been carried out in AOD.  The results are conclusive and show the 

proposed levels to be more than satisfactory in alleviating flood risk to the habitable areas, 

access and the occupants.  

 

I will deal with the points on flood plain development on stilts and flood plain capacity 

separately. 

 

It is not correct to say ‘As noted above, raising development above the floodplain using stilts is 

not acceptable under SPP’.  It is correct to say ‘SPP also states that stilted accommodation is 

generally not acceptable within areas of flood risk’.   

 

The next question is to ascertain on what basis is stilted accommodation 

generally not accepted within areas of flood risk.  According to the 

planning directorate the basis of acceptability is suitable engineering of 

the stilt’s capability to withstand a flood event.  In addition, the 

construction should minimise the removal of functional flood plain and 

provide alternative flood plain area where necessary.  This reasoning 

makes complete sense.   

 

The correspondence from a senior planning officer at the Scottish 

Government’s Directorate, given in 2014, on a planning case, in Moray, 

Page 144



9 

 

Scotland, and with relevance to Scottish Planning Policy 2014 para 263, was 

– 

“Please note that paragraph 263 states that generally elevated buildings 

on structures such as stilts are unlikely to be acceptable.  This does not 

necessarily mean therefore that stilted construction would be 

unacceptable in every circumstance.  The inclusion of the reference to 

stilts come from a concern over the ability of such construction to 

withstand flood events.  There is recognition however that within this 

general reference there may be construction techniques that a planning 

authority may find acceptable” 

 
 

Therefore, if a suitable engineering solution can be found for the stilts so that they may 

withstand a flood and the access and egress are all out with the flood risk area, then 

acceptability can be achieved.   

 

With regards to the flood plain capacity, the installation of stilts will remove very little of the 

active flood plain.  If it were a requirement, additional flood plain area could be provided so 

that there was no net loss, though the addition provided would be small to match that lost. 

 

If occupants of the treehouse were required to be evacuated in the event of a flood, they could 

be, via the access walkway and car park area.  The treehouse would be built so that it is above 

the flood risk level and flood waters cannot affect it, therefore, evacuation would not be 

required.  Evacuation would be a choice for the occupants which they could safely make.  No 

one is or would be placed in danger whether they be occupants of the treehouse or other third 

parties. 

 

The element of structure is generally not a planning matter, it is saved for building control.  In 

this instance I think structure is material to the planning decision because of the reasoning 

behind acceptable or unacceptable development on stilts under para 263 of SPP.  If the 

applicant can show that a suitable structure capable of withstanding flood waters and debris is 

achievable, any planning objections on these grounds should be withdrawn.  The same would 

follow for access and egress, if it were the case that these were required from the flood plain.  In 

this case neither are. 

 

 

 

1.8 Should the applicant wish to consider an alternative location for the treehouse 
accommodation then it should be located out with the functional floodplain (1 in 200-
year flood extent) and free from flood risk up to the 1 in 1000-year flood events. Safe 
access and egress should also be ensured out with the floodplain.  

The site was chosen for a purpose to which solutions can and have been provided to any of 

the issues raised.  This includes providing safe access and egress for occupants and any services 

required.  The Treehouse site was chosen on the basis that it is within the trees, screened and 

capable of assimilation within its surrounds.  There are no suitable alternative sites.   

 

 

Page 145



10 

 

Mitigation and reasoning 

The flood risk study report provides modelling on a 1 in 200 (including climate change) and 1 in 1000 year water 

level with respect to flooding from the Ale Water.  It clearly shows that water levels would never be within 1.5m 

of the Finished Floor Level of the Treehouse or Walkway.  The access road and parking area are higher than the 

Treehouse FFL and walkway, therefore they are not at risk from the potential flood waters from the Ale Water 

either. 

 

The planning officer notes within his previous report that the flood plain ground level is noted as 95.25m AOD.  

In fact, the levels provided on the block plan within the original planning application were simply levels in relation 

to a fence post datum of 100.00m, they are not related to Ordnance Datum.  Subsequent to this, a full Topographic 

survey and flood risk study have been undertaken using levels in AOD.  An updated block plan using the AOD 

levels has been included. 

 

 

 

Section demonstrating the Finished Floor Level and a 1 in 200 year flood level with climate change Both in 

AOD. 

 

A letter from a structural engineer is submitted as part of the planning application to show that the stilts are capable 

of withstanding any flooding forces exerted on them by the Ale Water. 

 

 

 

 

Page 146



Page 147



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
Hugo and Jessica Lee 
Sandystones 
Ancrum 
Jedburgh 
TD8 6UP 
 
Dear Jessica & Hugo,  
 
RE: Sandystones Treehouse  
 
It’s really exciting for me to see how your plans are evolving with your treehouse. We’re 
thrilled to be part of this project and are looking forward to working with your site in 
promoting sustainable low-impact holidays. 
 
The luxury glamping market is growing at a huge pace and shows no signs of slowing with 
2.4 million google searches relating to Glamping in 2018.  At Canopy & Stars we are seeing 
continued growth in bookings year on year. Our database has now grown to over 150,000 
people and we have a combined social media following of over 185,000.  
 
We definitely need more beautiful places in the Scottish Borders. Scotland is a highly 
searched location with over 140,000 unique searches on our website in the past 12 
months. Its proximity to Edinburgh and other urban centres, makes it a very popular area, 
as well as an abundance of lovely towns, villages and natural habitats and things for 
visitors to do.  
 
Currently we only no treehouses in our collection in the Scottish Borders, so we are actively 
seeking more places to join the collection, but we remain selective working with owners to 
ensure it is the right type of place, both for guests and for the environment. 
 
Treehouses along with cabins continue to be our most popular space types, and so your 
plans for treehouse would have extremely strong demand. Bespoke designed treehouses 
and cabins are the highest performing space type with Canopy & Stars guests. Seven of the 
top 10 performing spaces in 2018 were treehouses and the rest were cabins. ‘Treehouse’ 
remains the top searched term (outside of locations) on the Canopy & Stars website, 
accounting for over 20,000 searches in 2018.  Creating a space which is open year round 
will also be very beneficial and attract winter as well as summer tourism. We’ve noticed 
significant winter growth with November and December bookings up 30% on 2017, which 
proves the demand for year round spaces. 
 
 

Page 149



 
 
 
 
Canopy & Stars is part of Alastair Sawday's who have been representing special places to 
stay for over 25 years. We champion beautiful places to stay, sustainable living and the 
value of time in nature. Our guests are seeking seclusion and quiet, the opportunity to 
switch-off. By its very nature this type of development is low-impact, both to the 
environment and local communities. 
The rich natural environment is a particularly attractive setting to our guests. It’s important 
to us that the spaces we market don’t feel generic but are instead more bespoke and feel 
integrated into the natural environment having minimal impact and celebrating 
sustainability. Guests are increasingly seeking alternative holiday options within the UK 
and sites centred around the ‘experience’ tend to be very successful with guests.  
 
We're very excited about the prospect of marketing your treehouse at Sandystones. It fits 
perfectly with what we're trying to achieve. We very much want Canopy & Stars and the 
places we represent to be models for sustainable tourism. We're very confident that with 
our marketing and the vision, design and experience plans, , we can make this very 
successful for all. We are very selective in sites we're adding to the collection and have an 
acceptance rate of less than 20% of those that apply, but have every confidence that your 
treehouse will prove to be a very popular destination for Canopy & Stars guests. 
 
Yours sincerely 
 
 
Tessa Holmes 
Business Development Manager  
Sawday's Canopy & Stars 
0117 204 7830  

 

 

 

 

Page 150



 

 

Our Ref: KC1707 – Sandystones, Scottish Borders - FINAL 
Your Ref:  

 

 

12th August 2019 

 

Sandystones Ltd 

Ancrum 

Jedburgh 

Scottish Borders 

TD8 6UP 

 

For the attention of Hugo Lee and Jamie Murray 

 

Dear Sirs, 

 

Sandystones, Scottish Borders 

Water Level Assessment - FINAL 

 

Kaya Consulting Ltd. was commissioned by Sandystones Ltd, via Murray Land & Buildings, to undertake an 

assessment to determine water levels within the Ale Water adjacent to the site. 

 

As part of this assessment the following was undertaken: 

 

• Estimation of river flows in the River Ale using standard methods; 

• Translate river flows to water levels within the River Ale, using surveyed data; 

• Provision of 1 in 200-year and 1 in 1000-year water levels and other information such as velocities; 

• Short memo-style report presenting results.  
 

Site Background 

 

The site lies within Sandystones close to Ancrum in the Scottish Borders. The proposed development is for a 

“Treehouse”, a raised building to be located within a wooded area adjacent to the Ale Water. This building will 

be used as a holiday let. The proposed holiday let lies close to a number of other similar properties used for 

holiday letting. The site measures approximately 0.3ha. 

 

The Ale Water flows close to the site to the south of the site. The Ale Water is a large watercourse with a 

catchment area of over 151km² upstream of the site.  

 

A former Mill Lead runs through the site. The part of this channel within the site still exists but it has been filled 

in further downstream. The Mill Lead does not normally receive flows from the Ale Water and only surface water 

enters the drain in most scenarios. The flood risk posed by the Mill Lead is related to that from the Ale Water 

as the Mill Lead floods once flows from the Ale Water spill out of bank and into the Mill Lead. 

 

A topographic point survey was commissioned of the site specifically for this assessment. It was undertaken to 

metres above ordnance datum (m AOD). Ground levels within the site slope down in a south-easterly direction 

from highs of approximately 105.6m AOD to lows of approximately 100.5m AOD along the southern site 

boundary. Levels continue to slope down towards the Ale Water with bed levels in the watercourse adjacent to 

the site reducing to 98.75m AOD. Spot levels from the topographical survey are shown in Figure 2. Figure 3 

shows a cross-section through the site and Ale Water along the line of XS2. 

Page 151



 

A topographical cross-section survey was also undertaken of the Ale Water upstream and downstream of the 

site. Three main cross-sections were surveyed. One upstream of the site; one perpendicular to the site and one 

downstream of the site. A further cross-section was taken further downstream at the road bridge over the Ale 

Water. This section included points to represent the bridge in case it poses a restriction to flows. 

 

The site is shown in Photo 1. The River Ale in Photo 2. 

 

Hydrological Analysis 

 

A Hydrological Analysis was undertaken to determine flows in the Ale Water adjacent to the site. 

 

It was noted that a gauging station exists on the Ale Water at Ancrum (21025), around 6km downstream of the 

site. An FEH single-site statistical analysis was undertaken for this site.  

 

The observed QMED was estimated at 51.67 m³/s, based on the AMAX data, which extends over 33 years. The 

QMED from Catchment Descriptors was lower at 45.99 m³/s. The higher observed value was used. 

 

The growth curve for the gauge suggested factors of 2.513 for the 1 in 200-year event and 3.152 for the 1 in 

1000-year event, both based on extrapolation from the gauged data. These factors gives the following peak 

flows of: 

 

• 1 in 200-year: 129.8 m³/s 

• 1 in 1000-year: 162.8 m³/s 

 

SEPA guidance dictates that a climate change allowance for the Tweed catchment for catchments in excess of 

50km² is 33%. Therefore, climate change flows for the 1 in 200-year event are 172.64 m³/s. 

 

The catchment area of the Ale Water just downstream of the site was estimated to be approximately 151km². 

The catchment area at the gauging station is 174 km², according to the National River Flow Archive (NRFA). 

This means that the peak flows at the site are likely to be lower than those estimated at the gauging site above.  

 

For the purposes of conservatism, the above design flows were used in the hydraulic model. 

 

Hydraulic Model 

 

A simple 1D hydraulic model was developed to represent the Ale Water. The model was built using Flood 

Modeller and the cross-sections obtained as part of the topographical survey. The bridge over the Ale Water 

was represented in the model using a BRIDGE unit. Interpolates were added between XS3 and the Bridge. 

 

A hydrograph was added to the head of the model upstream of the site to enter flows into the model. The 

hydrograph was obtained from the FEH Rainfall-Runoff model and has a total duration of over 30 hours. The 

hydrograph was scaled to represent the peak 1 in 200-year and 1 in 1000-year flows estimated using the FEH 

Single-site statistical method. 

 

A “normal depth” downstream boundary was added to the end of the model to allow flows to leave the system. 

The slope gradient was set to 1 in 260 based on the slope between the two last surveyed cross-sections in the 

model. 

 

Page 152



Manning’s n friction values were set to 0.04 for the main channel, to represent a relatively straight watercourse 

with a gravel bed with cobbles. Values for the overbank areas varied between 0.04 and 0.08, with the higher 

values used to represent the areas of heavy vegetation and tree cover.  

 

The model was run using an adaptive timestep with a maximum timestep of 5 seconds and a minimum timestep 

of 0.25 seconds. The model was permitted to run a number of iterations to provide the best water level estimates. 

Mass errors were less than 4%. 

 

Figure 4 shows the 1D model schematic. 

 

Model Results 

 

The model was run for the 1 in 200-year and 1 in 1000-year events. The predicted water levels for each cross-

section are shown in Table 1. The predicted velocities for each cross-section are shown in Table 2. XS2 lies 

immediately upstream of the site and is the relevant cross-section to consider when making recommendations 

for the site. 

 

Table 1: Predicted Peak Water Levels (m AOD) 

Cross-section 1 in 200-year (m AOD) 1 in 1000-year (m AOD) 1 in 200-year + 33% CC (m AOD) 

XS1 101.7 101.9 102.0 

XS2 101.15 101.5 101.65 

XS3 100.5 101.1 101.3 

 

Table 2: Predicted Peak Velocities (m/s) 

Cross-section 1 in 200-year  1 in 1000-year) 1 in 200-year + 33% CC  

XS1 1.83 1.86 1.87 

XS2 2.10 2.10 2.10 

XS3 1.77 1.78 1.79 

 

Water levels throughout the modelled reach vary from highs of approximately 102m AOD, upstream of the site, 

to lows of 100.5m AOD, downstream of the site.  

 

The results suggest that peak water levels at the site vary between 101.15 m AOD for the 1 in 200-year event 

up to 101.65m AOD for the 1 in 200-year plus 33% climate change event. The results for the 1 in 1000-year 

event are slightly lower at 101.5m AOD.  

 

With respect to velocities these vary between 1.83 m/s and 1.87 m/s at XS1 and 1.77 and 1.79 m/s at XS3. 

Peak velocities are mostly uniform for all return periods at XS2 with velocities of approximately 2.10 m/s. The 

suggestion is that the peak velocities in the watercourse are controlled by the shape of the channel rather than 

the peak flows in the channel. It is recommended that these estimates are used with caution. If they are used 

to support the design of a structure, then an allowance for uncertainty and potential variations across the 

channel should be incorporated. 

 

Sensitivity Analysis  

 

A model sensitivity analysis provides an illustration of the effect of changing key model parameters on the 

important model outputs (in our case flood levels). By re-running the model for a range of scenarios and 

changing one input parameter for each model run, the effect of each input on the model results can be isolated.  

If model parameters are varied within the range of possible input values, then a sensitivity analysis can also 

provide an indication of uncertainty associated with the model predictions. 

Page 153



A sensitivity analysis was undertaken considering the following parameters: 

 

• Allowance for climate change via a 33% flow uplift; 

• Reduction in the normal depth downstream boundary from 1 in 260 to 1 in 400 (resulting in higher water 

level at the boundary); 

• Manning’s n friction values increased by 20% from design values; 

 

The results suggest that increasing manning’s n friction values for 20% results in an increase in water levels of 

between 0.15m and 0.3m, depending on the cross-section. This is broadly in line with expectations considering 

that some parts of the cross-section will already have high manning’s n values and the impact the 20% uplift 

with therefore have on water levels.  

 

Reducing the downstream slope boundary from the bed slope of 1 in 260 to a shallower gradient of 1 in 400 

results in an increase in waters levels within the lower parts of the reach. Water levels increase by 0.2m at XS3, 

reducing to 0.05m at XS2. This means that adjusting the downstream boundary does have a impact on water 

levels at the site, although the impact is relatively minor (0.05m). It is proposed to make an additional allowance 

for this uncertainty by providing a small additional uplift of 0.3m in the final water level predictions for uncertainty.  

 

Table 3: Sensitivity Analysis 

Cross-section 1 in 200-year (m AOD) 1 in 200-year (m AOD) – 

Manning’s n +20% 

1 in 200-year (m AOD) – 

Downstream Boundary 1 in 

400 

XS1 101.7 101.85 101.7 

XS2 101.15 101.38 101.2 

XS3 100.5 100.82 100.7 

 

 

Flood Maps 

 

The results of the sensitivity analysis suggested a small uncertainty with respect to the model. An additional 

uplift of 0.3m has been proposed to account for these water level uncertainties.  

 

This gives a 1 in 200-year water level at the site of 101.45m AOD and a 1 in 1000-year water level of 101.8m 

AOD and a 1 in 200-year plus climate change level of 101.95m AOD. Using these water levels, the southern 

part of the proposed development site lies within both the 1 in 200-year and 1 in 1000-year flood extent. The 1 

in 1000-year event is shown in Figure 5. 

 

Flood depths within the southern part of the site could reach depths of approximately 1.45m in a 1 in 200-year 

plus climate change event, accounting for the site topography and estimated peak water levels.  

 

SEPA use their Land-Use Vulnerability criteria to determine whether development is suitable within the 

floodplain. SEPA are likely to consider this development to be a “most vulnerable use” as it is a holiday let. This 

generally means all development should be located outwith the 1 in 1000-year floodplain. 

 

Therefore, to meet SEPA guidelines it is recommended to locate all development outwith the 1 in 1000-year 

floodplain. However, the development is for a “treehouse” and the developer considers the proposed site 

location to be the only one suitable for the treehouse. The argument is that a treehouse needs to be located 

within the tree-line. The developer is therefore proposing a number of mitigation measures, as detailed below. 

 

 

Page 154



Mitigation Measures  

 

The highest predicted peak water level (with uncertainty allowance) is 101.95m AOD.  

 

The proposed treehouse will be located within this floodplain, elevated above the water level by a raised 

structure. To mitigate against the flood risk the following is recommended: 

 

• Finished Floor Levels of the entire development should be raised a minimum of 0.6m above the level 

of 101.95m AOD. This means a minimum level of 102.55m AOD. 

o The client has confirmed the proposed finished floor levels are 103.5m AOD, approximately 

1.5m above the highest predicted peak water level with uncertainty allowance. 

• A raised access walkway or platform, or similar, should be provided to give access from the access 

track adjacent to the site boundary to the treehouse. This walkway should also be raised to a minimum 

of 102.55m AOD.  

o The access track is raised up at levels of approximately 105m AOD, outwith the floodplain. 

• The supporting structure that raises the treehouse above the floodplain should be designed to withstand 

the forces exerted by the water levels in the Ale Water by a qualified structural engineer. Channel 

velocities are provided in this document. These should be considered as estimates and the structural 

engineer should make an additional uncertainty allowance to ensure that the structure can continue 

functioning in all possible scenarios.  

o The structural engineer should also make allowances for the potential for debris to hit the 

structure.  

• The proposed development will be raised up outwith the floodplain via a suitable structure, such as stilts 

or similar. Technically, these stilts will constitute a reduction in floodplain storage, however small, and 

may result in very marginal increases in water levels locally. This is unlikely to result in a tangible 

increase in flood risk, due to the rural nature of the development. However, it should be noted that SEPA 

may ask for the provision of compensatory storage to account for this. 

 

The above mitigation measures should be discussed with SEPA and the Local Authority to confirm their 

suitability. However, it should be noted that Kaya Consulting do not necessarily condone development within 

the floodplain. 

 

Safe Access 

 

The access road that gives access to the site lies at an elevation of 105m AOD, above the predicted 1 in 1000-

year water level. So long as the proposed raised access walkway or platform is designed in line with 

recommendations above then both dry pedestrian and vehicular access should be possible to the treehouse. 

 

Reservoir 

 

Alemoor Reservoir and Hellmoor Loch lie within the headwaters of the Ale Water. The SEPA Reservoirs Map 

shows that parts of the site closest to the Ale Water may be at risk of flooding in the event of failure of these 

reservoirs. However, the mapping does not appear to show flooding in excess of that estimated as part of this 

study for the 1 in 200-year plus climate change event. Therefore, the flood risk posed by a reservoir failure is 

not likely to be significantly greater than that from the Ale Water itself.  

 

 

 

 

 

Page 155



Other sources of flood risk 

 

The proposed development is for a treehouse, raised above the surrounding ground levels. Therefore, the 

development is likely to be at “low” risk of flooding from surface water flooding. 

 

With respect to groundwater flooding, a high water table may impact on the foundations of the proposed 

development. The risk from groundwater flooding should be considered as part of the ground investigation. 

 

The design of the drainage is not part of this commission. Site drainage should be designed by a suitable 

drainage engineer and in line with SEPA and council requirements. 

 

Conclusion 

 

A Water Level Assessment has been undertaken to assess the potential water levels in the Ale Water adjacent 

to the site. This is to support the development of a Treehouse. 

 

The results suggest that the proposed Treehouse would be likely to lie within both the 1 in 200-year and the 1 

in 1000-year floodplain. This is against SEPA Land Use Vulnerability Criteria. However, the developer is 

proposing to provide mitigation measures to support development. Recommendations to reduce flood risk are 

provided in the report. These mitigation measures should be discussed with SEPA and the Local Authority to 

confirm their suitability.  

 

Closure 

 

We trust the above satisfy your current requirements. If you have any queries regarding this response, please 

do not hesitate to contact the undersigned. 

 

Yours faithfully, 

 

 

 

Yusuf Kaya 

Director 

 

Page 156



 

APPENDIX – Figures and Photos  

Figure 1: Site location & important features 

 

 

Reproduced by permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of The Controller of Her Majesty’s Stationery Office. © Crown copyright. All rights reserved. Licence number 100045301. 

 

P
age 157



 

APPENDIX – Figures and Photos  

Figure 2: Spot Levels within the site and of the three main cross-sections 

 

Reproduced by permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of The Controller of Her Majesty’s Stationery Office. © Crown copyright. All rights reserved. Licence number 100045301. 

 

P
age 158



Figure 3: Representation of the XS2 Cross-section through the site and Ale Water 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 159



Figure 4: 1D Model schematic 

 

 

Reproduced by permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of The Controller of Her Majesty’s Stationery Office. © Crown copyright. All rights reserved. Licence number 100045301. 

 

P
age 160



 

Figure 5: 1 in 1000-year flood extent – Cross-section 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 161



Figure 6: 1 in 1000-year flood extent – Indicative Flood Map 

 

 

Reproduced by permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of The Controller of Her Majesty’s Stationery Office. © 
Crown copyright. All rights reserved. Licence number 100045301. 

 

P
age 162



Photo 1: Proposed Site location looking towards the north-east. Note the access track where the car is seen 

 

 
 

P
age 163



 

Photo 2: River Ale adjacent to the site looking upstream 

 

P
age 164



CROSS-SECTIONS – 1 in 1000-YEAR WATER LEVEL 

 

 

 

 

P
age 165



LONG SECTION  - 1 in 1000-YEAR WATER LEVEL 

 

 

REPRESENTATIVE RATING CURVE – 1 in 1000 YEAR 

 

P
age 166



SCOTTISH BORDERS COUNCIL 
 

APPLICATION TO BE DETERMINED UNDER POWERS DELEGATED TO  
CHIEF PLANNING OFFICER 

 
PART III REPORT (INCORPORATING REPORT OF HANDLING) 

 
REF :     20/00132/PPP 
 
APPLICANT :    Sandystones Ltd 

 
AGENT :   Murray Land & Buildings 
 
DEVELOPMENT :  Erection of treehouse and walkway for use as holiday let accommodation 
and associated works 
 
LOCATION:  Land South West Of Sandystones Farmhouse 

Ancrum 
Jedburgh 
Scottish Borders 
 
 

 
TYPE :    PPP Application 
 
REASON FOR DELAY:   
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
DRAWING NUMBERS: 
 
Plan Ref      Plan Type  Plan Status 

        
  Location Plan Refused 
  Proposed Site Plan Refused 
 
NUMBER OF REPRESENTATIONS: 0  
SUMMARY OF REPRESENTATIONS: 
 
No representations have been received. 
 
Consultations 
 
Economic Development: Supports the erection of treehouse for holiday let with walkway, parking area 
and associated works at Sandystones farmhouse Ancrum as it fits with the Scottish Borders Tourism 
Strategy 2013-2020. 
 
Environmental Health: Have not responded at the time of writing this report, however, in the previous 
application they have requested standard conditions should apply relating to drainage and water 
supply.  
 
Roads Planning Officer: I have no objections in principle to the proposed development which is for 
tourism purposes. The existing private farm track is of a suitable standard for the proposed 
development but will need to be extended for a short section to accommodate access to the site and 
the parking area. The extended farm track should be constructed with a well compacted free draining 
smooth running surface capable of withstanding a minimum axle loading of 14 tonne. This information 
should be provided at detailed planning stage should this application be approved.  
 
Flood Risk Officer: Objects to the application. In terms of information that this Council has concerning 
flood risk to this site, I would state that The Indicative River, Surface Water & Coastal Hazard Map 
(Scotland) known as the "third generation flood mapping" prepared by SEPA indicates that the site 

Page 167

Agenda Item 5b



may be at risk from a flood event with a return period of 1 in 200 years. That is the 0.5% annual risk of 
a flood occurring in any one year. The Indicative River & Coastal Flood Map (Scotland) has primarily 
been developed to provide a strategic national overview of flood risk in Scotland. Whilst all reasonable 
effort has been made to ensure that the flood map is accurate for its intended purpose, no warranty is 
given. Due to copyright restrictions I cannot copy the map to you however, if the applicant wishes to 
inspect the maps they can contact me to arrange a suitable time to come in and view them. A Flood 
Risk Assessment, undertaken by Kaya Consulting to support the application. Hydraulic modelling of 
the Ale Water and mill lade has been undertaken and peak water levels for the 1:200 year and 1:1000 
year flood events determined. As is stated in the FRA, SPP states that the development should be 
located out with the 1:1000 year floodplain. This is due to the classification of holiday let 
accommodation as a 'most vulnerable use' within SEPA's Land Use Vulnerability Guidance.  While I 
appreciate that the application is for a treehouse and does required to be located within the tree line 
given the risk of flooding and lack of flood free access and egress directly from the treehouse structure 
we are unable to support the development in this location.  
 
I would recommend, that as per the FRA, the development is re-located out with the 1:1000 year 
floodplain.  
 
SEPA: Objects in principle to the proposed development on the grounds that it may place buildings 
and persons at flood risk contrary to Scottish Planning Policy. Given the location of the proposed 
development within the functional floodplain we do not consider that it meets with the requirements of 
Scottish Planning Policy and our position is unlikely to change.  We have a shared duty with Scottish 
Ministers and other responsible authorities under the Flood Risk Management (Scotland) Act 2009 to 
reduce overall flood risk and promote sustainable flood risk management.  The cornerstone of 
sustainable flood risk management is the avoidance of flood risk in the first instance.  We recommend 
that alternative locations be considered. 
 
Landscape Officer: No objections subject to the submission of a tree survey, arboricultural impact 
assessment and arboricultural method statement.  
 
Ancrum Community Council: Have not responded at the time of writing this report. 
 
PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS AND POLICIES: 
 
Local Development Plan 2016  
 
EP1: International Nature Conservation Sites and Protected Species 
EP2: National Nature Conservation Sites and Protected Species 
EP3: Local Biodiversity 
PMD1: Sustainability 
PMD2: Quality Standards 
HD3: Protection of Residential Amenity 
ED7: Business, Tourism and Leisure 
EP13: Trees, Woodland and Hedgerows 
EP15: Development Affecting The Water Environment 
IS7: Parking Provisions and Standards 
IS8: Flooding 
IS9:  Waste Water Treatment Standards and Sustainable Urban Drainage 
 
Supplementary Planning Guidance:  
 
Placemaking and Design 2010 
Trees and Development 2008 
Landscape and Development 2008 
Development Contributions updated January 2018 
New Housing in the Borders Countryside 2008 
 
Scottish Planning Policy 
  
 

Page 168



Recommendation by  - Brett Taylor  (Planning Officer) on 6th April 2020 
 
Site and Proposal 
 
This application proposes the erection of a new-build holiday let accommodation unit in association with a 
group of existing farm buildings at Sandystones Farmhouse to the northwest of Ancrum. The site is situated 
to the south west of Sandystones. The proposed site is currently agricultural land which has sloping ground 
levels running from the entrance gate down the banking to the flood plain which abuts the Ale Water running 
to the south. Access would be taken from an existing entrance and track located to the east of the proposal. 
The surrounding area is rural in nature. 
 
The proposal is to construct a timber framed walkway encompassing trees, leading to a single-storey 
treehouse on stilts. There would be two trees incorporated within the walkway although neither would be 
attached to the walkway. The proposed floor area would be 45 sqm, housing a studio apartment layout. It is 
proposed that the treehouse would be used as a holiday let to cater for the tourism market. As this is an 
application for Planning Permission in Principle no details of the design of the treehouse have been 
submitted, though a site plan has been provided showing the siting of the treehouse in relation to the river.  
 
Planning History 
 
01 November 2019 - Planning permission refused for erection of treehouse for holiday let with walkway, 
parking area and associated works (19/00812/PPP). 
 
Planning Policy 
 
The application requires to be considered principally in terms of policies ED7 and IS8 of the Local 
Development Plan on Business, Tourism and Leisure development in the countryside and flooding.  Policy 
PMD2 of the Scottish Borders Local Development Plan 2016 is also relevant to this proposal. The 
development will not conflict with policy HD2 if controlled as holiday accommodation only.   
 
Business Case 
 
As noted above, the application requires consideration against policy ED7 of the LDP on Business, Tourism 
and Leisure Development in the Countryside. The Economic Development Service of the Council was 
consulted and is supportive of the application. Given the planning statement submitted by the applicant, the 
letter of support from 'Canopy & Stars' letting agency, the type of structure (which is highly unlikely to be 
capable of permanent residential occupation) and Economic Development's support it is considered that the 
proposal complies with policy ED7.  
 
Design and Impact on Visual Amenities 
 
Policy PMD2 requires all development to be of high quality in accordance with sustainability principles, 
designed to fit in with Borders townscapes and to integrate with its landscape surroundings. 
 
Having visited the site and given its relatively remote location and that the proposal would be screened by 
existing trees, I consider the principle of the proposal to be acceptable in this location.  
 
No details of the design or materials of the proposed treehouse, or parking area and associated works have 
been submitted as this is an application for Planning Permission in Principle and would be dealt with at the 
Approval of Matters Specified in Conditions or detailed application stage.   
 
Impact on Residential Amenities 
 
Policy HD3 states that development that is judged to have an adverse impact on the amenity of residential 
areas will not be permitted.   The nearest residential properties are approximately 350m to the east. The 
proposal would not affect the light or privacy of any existing properties. 
 
Access and Parking 
 

Page 169



The roads planning service have no concerns regarding the proposal. The existing private farm track is of a 
suitable standard for the proposed development but will need to be extended for a short section to 
accommodate access to the site and the parking area. The extended farm track should be constructed with 
a well compacted free draining smooth running surface capable of withstanding a minimum axle loading of 
14 tonne. This information should be provided at detailed planning stage should this application be 
approved.  
 
Ecology  
 
Policy EP3 states that development that would have an unacceptable adverse effect biodiversity will be 
refused unless it can be demonstrated that the public benefits of the development outweigh the value of the 
habitat for biodiversity conservation. 
 
Given the site is not subject to any natural heritage or landscape designations and no trees are to be 
removed, it is considered that the proposal will have a minor impact on ecology and biodiversity of the 
surrounding area. However, an ecology survey may be necessary to address any potential tree removals 
that are identified at the AMC stage. 
 
Flooding 
 
Policy IS8 seeks to minimise the risk from flooding and that new development should be located in areas 
free from significant flood risk. Given the location of the proposed development within the functional 
floodplain both SEPA and the Council's Flood Risk Officer were consulted during the determination of this 
application.  
 
Both the Council's Flood Risk Officer and SEPA have objected in principle to the proposed development on 
the grounds that it may place buildings and persons at flood risk contrary to Scottish Planning Policy.  
 
It was recommended that given the refusal of the previous application (19/00812/PPP) that an alternative 
location should found and this should be outwith the functional floodplain (1 in 200-year flood extent) and be 
free from flood risk up to the 1 in 1000-year flood events. They also require that a safe access and egress 
should be outwith the floodplain.  Given there has been no change of to the proposed design, however the 
applicant has updated ground levels relative to Ordnance Datum to 100.50m AOD and a Flood Risk 
Assessment (FRA) has been undertaken. Nevertheless, the FRA has confirmed that the development would 
still be situated within the functional flood plain and as such both SEPA and the Council's Flood Risk Officer 
would still object to the application.  
 
The planning statement indicates that the treehouse would not be at flood risk due to being located on stilts 
some 3 metres above the predicted floodplain level and that stilts are unlikely to have an impact on 
floodplain capacity. It should be noted that holiday accommodation is classed as the most vulnerable and 
raising the development above the floodplain using stilts is not acceptable under Scottish Planning Policy 
and SEPA were unable to support these proposals and object in principle to this development. The 
occupants of this treehouse accommodation may be required to be evacuated/rescued during a flood event, 
thus placing others in danger, and the structure may be damaged where debris is carried by the 
watercourse. The cornerstone of sustainable flood risk management is the avoidance of flood risk in the first 
instance and it is recommended that alternative locations be considered. Furthermore, given SEPA are a 
statutory consultee a recommendation of approval would be contrary to this advice on flood risk, and the 
Town and Country Planning (Notification of Applications) (Scotland) Direction 2009 would require referral of 
this application to the Scottish Ministers. Given that the provision of the development on stilts would be 
contrary to Scottish Planning Policy and would not overcome the flood risk to access and egress, it is 
considered that the proposal cannot be supported as being compliant with Policy IS8. 
 
Landscape, Trees, Woodlands 
 
Policy EP13 seeks to protect trees from development.  Given the nature of the proposals a number of trees 
could potentially be affected by the proposals.  
 
Should the application be approved and more information would be required as to the trees to be retained 
and how the services would be accommodated. A condition would be recommended that requires a tree 
survey, arboricultural impact assessment and an arboricultural method statement to be submitted. 

Page 170



 
Water and Drainage 
 
Policy IS9 states that the preferred method of dealing with waste water associated with new developments 
would be the direct connection to the public sewerage system and for development in the countryside the 
use of private sewerage may be acceptable provided that it can be provided without negative impacts to 
public health, the environment, watercourses or ground water.  A SUDS is required for surface water 
drainage.   
 
The water supply would be from an existing mains water connection and a private treatment plant would be 
located on-site to the foul drainage. A SUDS system would also be installed. Limited details have been 
submitted and further information should be secured by a condition. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
REASON FOR DECISION : 
 
The development is contrary to Policy IS8 of the Local Development Plan 2016 in that the proposal would be 
within an area of flood risk and potentially place the occupants at an unacceptable risk of flooding. 
 
 
 
Recommendation:  Refused 
 
 1 The development is contrary to Policy IS8 of the Local Development Plan 2016 in that the proposal 

would be within an area of flood risk and potentially place the occupants at an unacceptable risk of 
flooding. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

“Photographs taken in connection with the determination of the application and any other 
associated documentation form part of the Report of Handling”. 
 

 

Page 171



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 173

Agenda Item 5c



Page 174



Page 175



Page 176



Page 177



Page 178



Page 179



Page 180



Page 181



P
age 182



 
 

 

 

 

Sandystones Ltd 
per Murray Land & Buildings 
Per Jaimie Murray 
Dean Place 
Newstead 
Melrose 
 

Please ask for: 
 
 

Brett Taylor 
X6628 

Our Ref: 19/00812/PPP 
Your Ref:  
E-Mail: Brett.Taylor@scotborders.gov.uk 
Date: 4th November 2019 

 
Dear Sir/Madam 
 

PLANNING APPLICATION AT Land South West Of Sandystones Farmhouse Ancrum 
Jedburgh Scottish Borders   

 
PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT:  Erection of treehouse for holiday let with walkway, parking 
area and associated works 
 
APPLICANT:  Sandystones Ltd 
 
 

Please find attached the formal notice of refusal for the above application. 

 

Drawings can be found on the Planning pages of the Council website at 

https://eplanning.scotborders.gov.uk/online-applications/.   
 
Your right of appeal is set out within the decision notice. 
 
Yours faithfully 
 
John Hayward 
 
Planning & Development Standards Manager 

Page 183

https://eplanning.scotborders.gov.uk/online-applications/


 

                                                                                                                                                                                

                  Regulatory Services 
 

 

Visit http://eplanning.scotborders.gov.uk/online-applications/ 
 

         

TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING (SCOTLAND) ACT 1997 (as amended) 
 

Town and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) (Scotland) Regulations 2013 

 

Application for Planning Permission      Reference : 19/00812/PPP 

 

To : Sandystones Ltd per Murray Land & Buildings Per Jaimie Murray Dean Place Newstead Melrose 
Scottish Borders TD6 9RL 

 
With reference to your application validated on 3rd June 2019 for planning permission under the Town and 
Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 (as amended) for the following development :- 
 

 
Proposal : Erection of treehouse for holiday let with walkway, parking area and associated works 
 

 

 
at : Land South West Of Sandystones Farmhouse Ancrum Jedburgh Scottish Borders   

 

 
The Scottish Borders Council hereby refuse planning permission for the reason(s) stated on the attached 
schedule. 
 
 
Dated 1st November 2019 
Regulatory Services 
Council Headquarters 
Newtown St Boswells 
MELROSE     
TD6 0SA   

           
   John Hayward 

Planning & Development Standards Manager 
 

Page 184

http://eplanning.scotborders.gov.uk/online-applications/


 

                                                                                                                                                                                

                  Regulatory Services 
 

 

Visit http://eplanning.scotborders.gov.uk/online-applications/ 
 

         

 
APPLICATION REFERENCE :  19/00812/PPP 
 
Schedule of Plans and Drawings Refused: 
 
Plan Ref   Plan Type  Plan Status 

 
   Proposed Site Plan Refused 
   Location Plan  Refused 
 
 
 REASON FOR REFUSAL 
 
 1 The development is contrary to Policy IS8 of the Local Development Plan 2016 in that the proposal 

would be within an area of flood risk and potentially place the occupants at an unacceptable risk of 
flooding. 

 
FOR THE INFORMATION OF THE APPLICANT 
 
If the applicant is aggrieved by the decision of the Planning Authority to refuse planning permission for or 
approval required by a condition in respect of the proposed development, or to grant permission or approval 
subject to conditions, the applicant may require the planning authority to review the case under Section 43A 
of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 (as amended) within three months from the date of 
this notice. The notice of review should be addressed to Corporate Administration, Council Headquarters, 
Newtown St Boswells, Melrose TD6 OSA. 
 
If permission to develop land is refused or granted subject to conditions, whether by the Planning Authority 
or by the Scottish Ministers, and the owner of the land claims that the land has become incapable of 
reasonably beneficial use in its existing state and cannot be rendered capable of reasonably beneficial use 
by the carrying out of any development which has been or would be permitted, the owner may serve on the 
Planning Authority a purchase notice requiring the purchase of his interest in the land in accordance with the 
provisions of Part 5 of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 (as amended). 
 
  
 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 185

http://eplanning.scotborders.gov.uk/online-applications/


This page is intentionally left blank



SCOTTISH BORDERS COUNCIL 
 

APPLICATION TO BE DETERMINED UNDER POWERS DELEGATED TO  
CHIEF PLANNING OFFICER 

 
PART III REPORT (INCORPORATING REPORT OF HANDLING) 

 
REF :     19/00812/PPP 
 
APPLICANT :    Sandystones Ltd 

 
AGENT :   Murray Land & Buildings 
 
DEVELOPMENT :  Erection of treehouse for holiday let with walkway, parking area and 
associated works 
 
LOCATION: Land South West Of Sandystones Farmhouse 

Ancrum 
Jedburgh 
Scottish Borders 
 
 

 
TYPE :    PPP Application 
 
REASON FOR DELAY:   
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
DRAWING NUMBERS: 
 
Plan Ref      Plan Type  Plan Status 

        
  Proposed Site Plan Refused 
  Location Plan Refused 
 
NUMBER OF REPRESENTATIONS: 0  
SUMMARY OF REPRESENTATIONS: 
 
No representations have been received. 
 
Consultations 
 
Access Officer: Further information is required regarding the impact of the proposals on the public right 
of way route BR43.  
 
Economic Development: Supports the erection of treehouse for holiday let with walkway, parking area 
and associated works at Sandystones farmhouse Ancrum as it fits with the Scottish Borders Tourism 
Strategy 2013-2020. 
 
Environmental Health: Standard conditions should apply relating to drainage and water supply.  
 
Roads Planning Officer: I have no objections in principle to the proposed development which is for 
tourism purposes. The existing private farm track is of a suitable standard for the proposed 
development but will need to be extended for a short section to accommodate access to the site and 
the parking area. The extended farm track should be constructed with a well compacted free draining 
smooth running surface capable of withstanding a minimum axle loading of 14 tonne. This information 
should be provided at detailed planning stage should this application be approved.  
 
 

Page 187



Flood Risk Officer: Given the mapping and photographic evidence, I am content that the dwelling is not 
at risk of flooding from the Ale Water but that there is a risk on the site from the Mill Lade at a 1 in 200 
year flood event. This application is proposed at floor levels far above the watercourse and given the 
photographic evidence and analysis of flood depths within SEPA's Flood Risk Mapping, I am content 
that the finished flood levels of the site are sufficient to protect the dwelling from flooding. No 
objections on the grounds of flood risk. 
 
SEPA: Objects in principle to the proposed development on the grounds that it may place buildings 
and persons at flood risk contrary to Scottish Planning Policy. Given the location of the proposed 
development within the functional floodplain we do not consider that it meets with the requirements of 
Scottish Planning Policy and our position is unlikely to change.  We have a shared duty with Scottish 
Ministers and other responsible authorities under the Flood Risk Management (Scotland) Act 2009 to 
reduce overall flood risk and promote sustainable flood risk management.  The cornerstone of 
sustainable flood risk management is the avoidance of flood risk in the first instance.  We recommend 
that alternative locations be considered. 
 
Landscape Officer: No objections subject to the submission of a tree survey, arboricultural impact 
assessment and arboricultural method statement.  
 
Ancrum Community Council: Have not responded at the time of writing this report. 
 
PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS AND POLICIES: 
 
Local Development Plan 2016  
 
EP1: International Nature Conservation Sites and Protected Species 
EP2: National Nature Conservation Sites and Protected Species 
EP3: Local Biodiversity 
PMD1: Sustainability 
PMD2: Quality Standards 
HD3: Protection of Residential Amenity 
ED7: Business, Tourism and Leisure 
EP13: Trees, Woodland and Hedgerows 
EP15: Development Affecting The Water Environment 
IS7: Parking Provisions and Standards 
IS8: Flooding 
IS9:  Waste Water Treatment Standards and Sustainable Urban Drainage 
 
Supplementary Planning Guidance:  
 
Placemaking and Design 2010 
Trees and Development 2008 
Landscape and Development 2008 
Development Contributions updated January 2018 
New Housing in the Borders Countryside 2008 
 
Scottish Planning Policy 
  
Recommendation by - Brett Taylor  (Planning Officer) on 1st November 2019 
 
Site and Proposal 
 
This application proposes the erection of a new-build holiday let accommodation unit in association with a 
group of existing farm buildings at Sandystones Farmhouse to the northwest of Ancrum. The site is situated 
to the south west of Sandystones. The proposed site is currently agricultural land which has sloping ground 
levels running from the entrance gate down the banking to the flood plain which abuts the Ale Water running 
to the south. Access would be taken from an existing entrance and track located to the east of the proposal. 
The surrounding area is rural in nature. 
 

Page 188



The proposal is to construct a timber framed walkway encompassing trees, leading to a single-storey 
treehouse on stilts. There would be two trees incorporated within the walkway although neither would be 
attached to the walkway. The proposed floor area would be 45 sqm, housing a studio apartment layout. It is 
proposed that the treehouse would be used as a holiday let to cater for the tourism market. As this is an 
application for Planning Permission in Principle no details of the design of the treehouse have been 
submitted, though a site plan has been provided showing the siting of the treehouse in relation to the river.  
 
Planning History 
 
No relevant planning history. 
 
Planning Policy 
 
The application requires to be considered principally in terms of policies ED7 and IS8 of the Local 
Development Plan on Business, Tourism and Leisure development in the countryside and flooding. Policy 
PMD2 of the Scottish Borders Local Development Plan 2016 is also relevant to this proposal. The 
development will not conflict with policy HD2 if controlled as holiday accommodation only.   
 
Business Case 
 
As noted above, the application requires consideration against policy ED7 of the LDP on Business, Tourism 
and Leisure Development in the Countryside. The Economic Development Service of the Council was 
consulted and is supportive of the application. Given the planning statement submitted by the applicant, the 
letter of support from 'Canopy & Stars' letting agency, the type of structure (which is highly unlikely to be 
capable of permanent residential occupation) and Economic Development's support it is considered that the 
proposal complies with policy ED7.  
 
Design and Impact on Visual Amenities 
 
Policy PMD2 requires all development to be of high quality in accordance with sustainability principles, 
designed to fit in with Borders townscapes and to integrate with its landscape surroundings. 
 
Having visited the site and given its relatively remote location and that the proposal would be screened by 
existing trees, I consider the principle of the proposal to be acceptable in this location.  
 
No details of the design or materials of the proposed treehouse, or parking area and associated works have 
been submitted as this is an application for Planning Permission in Principle and would be dealt with at the 
Approval of Matters Specified in Conditions or detailed application stage.   
 
Impact on Residential Amenities 
 
Policy HD3 states that development that is judged to have an adverse impact on the amenity of residential 
areas will not be permitted. The nearest residential properties are approximately 350m to the east. The 
proposal would not affect the light or privacy of any existing properties. 
 
Access and Parking 
 
The roads planning service have no concerns regarding the proposal. The existing private farm track is of a 
suitable standard for the proposed development but will need to be extended for a short section to 
accommodate access to the site and the parking area. The extended farm track should be constructed with 
a well compacted free draining smooth running surface capable of withstanding a minimum axle loading of 
14 tonne. This information should be provided at detailed planning stage should this application be 
approved.  
 
Ecology  
 
Policy EP3 states that development that would have an unacceptable adverse effect biodiversity will be 
refused unless it can be demonstrated that the public benefits of the development outweigh the value of the 
habitat for biodiversity conservation. 
 

Page 189



Given the site is not subject to any natural heritage or landscape designations and no trees are to be 
removed, it is considered that the proposal will have a minor impact on ecology and biodiversity of the 
surrounding area. However, an ecology survey may be necessary to address any potential tree removals 
that are identified at the AMC stage. 
 
Flooding 
 
Policy IS8 seeks to minimise the risk from flooding and that new development should be located in areas 
free from significant flood risk. Given the location of the proposed development within the functional 
floodplain both SEPA and the Council's Flood Risk Officer were consulted during the determination of this 
application.  
 
SEPA has objected in principle to the proposed development on the grounds that it may place buildings and 
persons at flood risk contrary to Scottish Planning Policy.  
 
The information provided by the applicant indicates that the floodplain level is 95.25m AOD although it is 
unclear where this information has been derived and whether a Flood Risk Assessment (FRA) has been 
carried out. The planning statement indicates that the treehouse would not be at flood risk due to being 
located on stilts some 3 metres above the predicted floodplain level and that stilts are unlikely to have an 
impact on floodplain capacity.  
 
Nevertheless, holiday accommodation is classed as the most vulnerable and raising the development above 
the floodplain using stilts is not acceptable under Scottish Planning Policy and SEPA were unable to support 
these proposals and object in principle to this development. The occupants of this treehouse 
accommodation may be required to be evacuated/rescued during a flood event, thus placing others in 
danger, and the structure may be damaged where debris is carried by the watercourse. The cornerstone of 
sustainable flood risk management is the avoidance of flood risk in the first instance and it is recommended 
that alternative locations be considered. While the response from the Council's Flood Risk Officer had no 
objections to the proposal, given SEPA are a statutory consultee a recommendation of approval would be 
contrary to this advice on flood risk, and the Town and Country Planning (Notification of Applications) 
(Scotland) Direction 2009 would require referral of this application to the Scottish Ministers. Given that the 
provision of the development on stilts would be contrary to Scottish Planning Policy and would not overcome 
the flood risk to access and egress, it is considered that the proposal cannot be supported as being 
compliant with Policy IS8. 
 
Trees and Woodlands 
 
Policy EP13 seeks to protect trees from development.  Given the nature of the proposals a number of trees 
could potentially be affected by the proposals.  
 
Should the application be approved and more information would be required as to the trees to be retained 
and how the services would be accommodated. A condition would be recommended that requires a tree 
survey, arboricultural impact assessment and an arboricultural method statement to be submitted. 
 
Water and Drainage 
 
Policy IS9 states that the preferred method of dealing with waste water associated with new developments 
would be the direct connection to the public sewerage system and for development in the countryside the 
use of private sewerage may be acceptable provided that it can be provided without negative impacts to 
public health, the environment, watercourses or ground water. A SUDS is required for surface water 
drainage.   
 
The water supply would be from an existing mains water connection and a private treatment plant would be 
located on-site to the foul drainage. A SUDS system would also be installed. Limited details have been 
submitted and further information should be secured by a condition. 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 190



REASON FOR DECISION : 
 
The development is contrary to Policy IS8 of the Local Development Plan 2016 in that the proposal would be 
within an area of flood risk and potentially place the occupants at an unacceptable risk of flooding. 
 
Recommendation:  Refused 
 
 1 The development is contrary to Policy IS8 of the Local Development Plan 2016 in that the proposal 

would be within an area of flood risk and potentially place the occupants at an unacceptable risk of 
flooding. 

 
 

“Photographs taken in connection with the determination of the application and any other 
associated documentation form part of the Report of Handling”. 
 

 

Page 191



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 
 

Our Ref: PCS/169975 
Your Ref: 20/00132/PPP 

 
Brett Taylor 
Scottish Borders Council 
Planning & Economic Development 
Council Headquarters 
Newtown St Boswells 
Melrose 
TD6 0SA 
 
By email only to: dcconsultees@scotborders.gov.uk 
 

If telephoning ask for: 

Jess Taylor 
 
 
 

05 March 2020 

Dear Mr Taylor 
 
Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Acts 
Planning application: 20/00132/PPP 
Erection of treehouse and walkway for use as holiday let accommodation and associated 
works  
Land South West Of Sandystones Farmhouse Ancrum Jedburgh Scottish Borders 
 
Thank you for your consultation email which SEPA received on 07 February 2020.  We 
previously objected in principle to this development in June 2019 (19/00812/PPP) and our 
response below should be read in conjunction with our previous response.    
 
Advice for the planning authority 
 
We maintain our objection in principle to the proposed development on the grounds that it 
may place buildings and persons at flood risk contrary to Scottish Planning Policy.  Please note 
the advice provided below. 
 
1. Flood Risk 
 
1.1 Given the location of the proposed development within the sparsely developed 

functional floodplain we do not consider that it meets with the requirements of 
Scottish Planning Policy and our position is unlikely to change.  We have a shared 
duty with Scottish Ministers and other responsible authorities under the Flood Risk 
Management (Scotland) Act 2009 to reduce overall flood risk and promote sustainable 
flood risk management.  The cornerstone of sustainable flood risk management is 
the avoidance of flood risk in the first instance.  We recommend that alternative 
locations be considered. 
 

1.2 In the event that the planning authority proposes to grant planning permission contrary 
to this advice on flood risk, the Town and Country Planning (Notification of Applications) 
(Scotland) Direction 2009 provides criteria for the referral to the Scottish Ministers of 
such cases. You may therefore wish to consider if this proposal falls within the scope of 
this Direction. 
 

 
continued….. 
 

Page 193

Agenda Item 5d



 

      -2- 
 

1.3 Notwithstanding this position we have included our review of the information supplied.  
Provision of this review does not imply that we consider there to be a technical solution 
to managing flood risk at this site which meets with Scottish Planning Policy. 
 

Technical Report 
 
1.4 We previously objected in principle to this development in June 2019 (19/00812/PPP) 

and noted that if an alternative location is possible, this should be outwith the functional 
floodplain (1 in 200-year flood extent) and free from flood risk up to the 1 in 1000-year 
flood events. Safe access and egress should also be ensured outwith the floodplain. 
 

1.5 Since our previous response, there has been no change to the proposed design of the 
development, however updated ground levels have been provided relative to Ordnance 
Datum and Kaya Consulting has undertaken a Flood Risk Assessment (FRA) in August 
2019.  
 

1.6 With regards to the FRA, unfortunately the 1 in 200 year flow is lower than we would 
expect for the area and our estimates indicate that the 1 in 1000 year flow is more 
representative at the site. With that in mind, we have considered the 1 in 1000 year flow 
(162.8m3/s) as the 200 year flow when assessing flood risk to the site. As such, the 
FRA confirms that the development would be situated within the functional flood plain 
using this design flow (and the lower 200 year design flow adopted in the FRA). 
 

1.7 The FRA also concludes that there are some sensitivities in the modelling when 
adjusting key parameters such as roughness and the downstream boundary. To mitigate 
for this, it is suggested to add an additional 0.3m onto the design flood levels.  
 

1.8 Despite our reservations over the methods used in the FRA, sufficient information has 
been provided to confirm that the development structure lies within the 1 in 200 year 
functional flood plain. As such, there is no merit in updating the FRA at this stage. If an 
FRA update is required in the future, we would expect the flow estimates to be revised 
and further work to be done to improve the model sensitivity, which may include adding 
additional surveyed cross sections. 
 

1.9 We note that the site is connected to higher land to the north. We would have no 
objection to an alternative design being situated on these higher ground levels outwith 
the functional flood plain. If an alternative location is suggested, an updated FRA would 
be required to inform the 1 in 1000 year flood level for the site. 

 
1.10 With regards to the technical notes provided by Murray Land & Buildings:  
 
1.5 We note that the small watercourse noted in our previous response in a redundant mill 

lade and accept that the only source of flood risk to the site is the Ale Water. 
 
 
 
continued…… 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 194



 

      -3- 
 
1.6 For clarity, we consider the Treehouse to fall into the Most Vulnerable Land Use 

category in line with SEPA’s Land Use Vulnerability Guidance, under ‘holiday caravan, 
chalet, and camping sites’ and as a ‘site used for holiday or short-let caravans and 
camping’ in line with SPP.  

 
Such types of development are not generally not suitable within Medium to High risk, 
sparsely developed areas, such as this, and may only be suitable in Low to Medium risk 
areas if the risk from a 1 in 1000 year event can be alleviated through appropriate 
mitigation. We do not consider this is be achievable in this case as the development 
structure lies within the 1 in 200 year functional flood plain. 
 

1.7 Paragraph 255 of SPP states that the planning system should: promote flood avoidance 
by safeguarding flood storage and conveying capacity, and locating development away 
from functional flood plains and medium to high risk areas. This development would be 
constructed within the functional flood plain and does not adhere to the principles of 
SPP by locating development away from functional flood plains.  

 
1.11 We remain of the opinion that if the occupants of the treehouse accommodation were 

required to be evacuated/ rescued during a flood event, this would place others in 
danger, and the structure may be damaged where debris is carried by the watercourse. 
Given that such events are usually accompanied by extremely poor weather conditions 
and could occur during the hours of darkness, this presents an extremely dangerous 
situation 

 
1.12 The approach currently underpinned by national policy in Scotland is for the avoidance 

of flood risk in the first instance as the most sustainable approach to flood risk 
management. There are no overriding reasons for developing in the floodplain, 
especially where there is availability of lower risk land, which we believe to be the case 
in this instance. We are therefore unable to accept the proposed stilted design as an 
appropriate solution to flood risk. We note the reasons given as to why it is desirable to 
place the accommodation at this location, but while clearly it is desirable to do so, we do 
not consider it acceptable to place people at risk by choice of location. 

 
1.13 As such we consider that there is no technical solution to the development of the site 

which complies with Scottish Planning Policy and we object in principle to the proposed 
development on flood risk grounds for the following reasons:  

 
• In line with Scottish Planning Policy (SPP) holiday accommodation is classed as ‘most 

vulnerable’ land use and is generally not suitable within Medium to High risk, sparsely 
developed areas, such as this. 

 
• The FRA confirms that the development would be constructed in the 1 in 200 year 

functional flood plain.  
 
• SPP states that stilted accommodation is generally not acceptable within areas of flood 

risk. 
 
• The development does not adhere to the principles of SPP by promoting flood 

avoidance by locating development away from functional flood plains and medium to 
high risk areas 

Page 195



 

      -4- 
 

 Occupants of this treehouse accommodation may be required to be evacuated/ rescued 
during a flood event, thus placing others in danger, and the structure may be damaged 
where debris is carried by the watercourse 

 

Detailed advice for the applicant 
 
You will note that we maintain our objection in principle to this development.  Please note 
the advice provided in Section 1 above. 
 

2. Flood risk caveats and additional information 

2.1 Please note that we are reliant on the accuracy and completeness of any information 
supplied by the applicant in undertaking our review, and can take no responsibility for 
incorrect data or interpretation made by the authors. 

 
2.2 The advice contained in this letter is supplied to you by SEPA in terms of Section 72 (1) 

of the Flood Risk Management (Scotland) Act 2009 on the basis of information held by 
SEPA as at the date hereof.  It is intended as advice solely to Scottish Borders Council 
as Planning Authority in terms of the said Section 72 (1).   

 
If you have any queries relating to this letter, please contact me by telephone on 01786 452572 
or e-mail at planning.se@sepa.org.uk. 
 
Yours sincerely 
 
 
Jess Taylor 
Senior Planning Officer 
Planning Service 
 
Disclaimer 
This advice is given without prejudice to any decision made on elements of the proposal regulated by us, 
as such a decision may take into account factors not considered at this time. We prefer all the technical 
information required for any SEPA consents to be submitted at the same time as the planning or similar 
application. However, we consider it to be at the applicant's commercial risk if any significant changes 
required during the regulatory stage necessitate a further planning application or similar application 
and/or neighbour notification or advertising. We have relied on the accuracy and completeness of the 
information supplied to us in providing the above advice and can take no responsibility for incorrect data 
or interpretation, or omissions, in such information. If we have not referred to a particular issue in our 
response, it should not be assumed that there is no impact associated with that issue. For planning 
applications, if you did not specifically request advice on flood risk, then advice will not have been 
provided on this issue. Further information on our consultation arrangements generally can be found on 
our website planning pages. 
 

Page 196

http://www.sepa.org.uk/environment/land/planning/


 

Council Headquarters, Newtown St Boswells, MELROSE, Scottish Borders, TD6 0SA 
Customer Services:  0300 100 1800    www.scotborders.gov.uk  

 

PLANNING CONSULTATION 
 
To:        Economic Development Section 
 
From:      Development  Management Date:   6th February 2020 
 
Contact:  Brett Taylor       X6628  Ref:  20/00132/PPP 
  

PLANNING CONSULTATION 
 
Your observations are requested on the under noted planning application. I shall be glad to have 
your reply not later than 27th February 2020, If further time will be required for a reply please let 
me know. If no extension of time is requested and no reply is received by 27th February 2020, it 
will be assumed that you have no observations and a decision may be taken on the application. 
 
Please remember to e-mail the DCConsultees Mailbox when you have inserted your reply 
into Idox. 
 
Name of Applicant:  Sandystones Ltd  
  
Agent:  Murray Land & Buildings 
    
Nature of Proposal:  Erection of treehouse and walkway for use as holiday let accommodation 
and associated works 
Site:  Land South West Of Sandystones Farmhouse Ancrum Jedburgh Scottish 

Borders   
_________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Page 197

http://www.scotborders.gov.uk/


 

Council Headquarters, Newtown St Boswells, MELROSE, Scottish Borders, TD6 0SA 
Customer Services:  0300 100 1800    www.scotborders.gov.uk  

 

CONSULTATION RESPONSE TO 

PLANNING OR RELATED APPLICATION 

Comments provided 
by 

Officer Name and Post: Contact e-mail/number: 

 Economic Development Section 
 

 

Date of reply 11/02/2020 Consultee reference: 

Planning Application 
Reference 

20/00132/PPP Case Officer: 
Brett Taylor      

Applicant Sandystones Ltd  

Agent Murray Land & Buildings 

Proposed 
Development 

Erection of treehouse and walkway for use as holiday let accommodation and 
associated works 

Site Location Land South West Of Sandystones Farmhouse Ancrum Jedburgh Scottish Borders   
 

The following observations represent the comments of the consultee on the submitted application 
as they relate to the area of expertise of that consultee. A decision on the application can only be 
made after consideration of all relevant information, consultations and material considerations. 

Background and  
Site description 

 

Key Issues 
(Bullet points) 

  

Assessment Economic Development would support the erection of treehouse for holiday let with 
walkway, parking area and associated works at Sandystones farmhouse Ancrum as 
it fits with the Scottish Borders Tourism Strategy 2013-2020 strategic target by: 

 Increasing volume of overnight visitors. 

 Increasing overnight visitor spend. 

 Ensure the Region’s accommodation offerings meet consumer demands 
and where opportunities are available can act as an attractor of demand in 
themselves. 

 Ensure a relevant range of types of accommodation is available across the 
Region to meet evolving market demand and expectations.  Identify 
opportunities where better quality and new products can ‘lead’ and generate 
new demand and will continue to raise average quality quotient across all 
forms of accommodation. 

 

Recommendation  Object  Do not object  Do not object, 
subject to 
conditions 

 Further information 

required 

Recommended 
Conditions 

 

Page 198

http://www.scotborders.gov.uk/


 

Council Headquarters, Newtown St Boswells, MELROSE, Scottish Borders, TD6 0SA 
Customer Services:  0300 100 1800    www.scotborders.gov.uk  

 

Recommended 
Informatives 

 

 

 
 
 
 

Page 199

http://www.scotborders.gov.uk/


 Consultation Reply    
ENVIRONMENT AND INFRASTRUCTURE 

 
To: HEAD OF PLANNING AND REGULATORY SERVICE 
 
FAO:  Brett Taylor     Your Ref: 20/00132/PPP 
 
From: HEAD OF ENGINEERING & INFRASTRUCTURE Date: 7th February 2020 
 
Contact:       Lauren Addis Ext: 6157 Our Ref: B48/2840 
 

 
Nature of Proposal:  Erection of treehouse and walkway for use as holiday let 

accommodation and associated works  
Site:    Land South West Of Sandystones Farmhouse, Ancrum, Jedburgh 
 

 
In terms of information that this Council has concerning flood risk to this site, I would state that The 
Indicative River, Surface Water & Coastal Hazard Map (Scotland) known as the “third generation flood 
mapping” prepared by SEPA indicates that the site may be at risk from a flood event with a return 
period of 1 in 200 years. That is the 0.5% annual risk of a flood occurring in any one year. 
 
The Indicative River & Coastal Flood Map (Scotland) has primarily been developed to provide a strategic 
national overview of flood risk in Scotland. Whilst all reasonable effort has been made to ensure that 
the flood map is accurate for its intended purpose, no warranty is given.  
 
Due to copyright restrictions I cannot copy the map to you however, if the applicant wishes to inspect 
the maps they can contact me to arrange a suitable time to come in and view them. 
 
A Flood Risk Assessment, undertaken by Kaya Consulting to support the application. Hydraulic 
modelling of the Ale Water and mill lade has been undertaken and peak water levels for the 1:200 year 
and 1:1000 year flood events determined.  
 
As is stated in the FRA, SPP states that the development should be located out with the 1:1000 year 
floodplain. This is due to the classification of holiday let accommodation as a ‘most vulnerable use’ 
within SEPA’s Land Use Vulnerability Guidance.  While I appreciate that the application is for a 
treehouse and does required to be located within the tree line given the risk of flooding and lack of 
flood free access and egress directly from the treehouse structure we are unable to support the 
development in this location.  
 
I would recommend, that as per the FRA, the development is re-located out with the 1:1000 year 
floodplain.  
 
Please note that this information must be taken in the context of material that this Council holds in 
fulfilling its duties under the Flood Risk Management (Scotland) Act 2009. 
 
Lauren Addis 
Technician - Flood and Coastal Management 

Page 200



 

Page 201



 

Council Headquarters, Newtown St Boswells, MELROSE, Scottish Borders, TD6 0SA 
Customer Services:  0300 100 1800    www.scotborders.gov.uk  

 

PLANNING CONSULTATION 
 
To:        Landscape Architect 
 
From:      Development  Management Date:   6th February 2020 
 
Contact:  Brett Taylor       X6628  Ref:  20/00132/PPP 
  

PLANNING CONSULTATION 
 
Your observations are requested on the under noted planning application. I shall be glad to have 
your reply not later than 27th February 2020, If further time will be required for a reply please let 
me know. If no extension of time is requested and no reply is received by 27th February 2020, it 
will be assumed that you have no observations and a decision may be taken on the application. 
 
Please remember to e-mail the DCConsultees Mailbox when you have inserted your reply 
into Idox. 
 
Name of Applicant:  Sandystones Ltd  
  
Agent:  Murray Land & Buildings 
    
Nature of Proposal:  Erection of treehouse and walkway for use as holiday let accommodation 
and associated works 
Site:  Land South West Of Sandystones Farmhouse Ancrum Jedburgh Scottish 

Borders   
_________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Page 202

http://www.scotborders.gov.uk/


 

Council Headquarters, Newtown St Boswells, MELROSE, Scottish Borders, TD6 0SA 
Customer Services:  0300 100 1800    www.scotborders.gov.uk  

 

CONSULTATION RESPONSE TO 

PLANNING OR RELATED APPLICATION 

Comments provided 
by 

Officer Name and Post: Contact e-mail/number: 

 Landscape Architect 
Catherine Andrews 

candrews@scotborders.gov.k 

Date of reply 03/04/2020 Consultee reference: 

Planning Application 
Reference 

20/00132/PPP Case Officer: 
Brett Taylor      

Applicant Sandystones Ltd  

Agent Murray Land & Buildings 

Proposed 
Development 

Erection of treehouse and walkway for use as holiday let accommodation and 
associated works 

Site Location Land South West Of Sandystones Farmhouse Ancrum Jedburgh Scottish Borders   
 

The following observations represent the comments of the consultee on the submitted application 
as they relate to the area of expertise of that consultee. A decision on the application can only be 
made after consideration of all relevant information, consultations and material considerations. 

Background and  
Site description 

This is a resubmission of a previous application 19/00812/PPP for a tree house, 
walkway and parking to be erected on the flood plain of the Ale Water 
approximately 4km north west of Ancrum. The site location lying out with 
agricultural field boundaries slopes gently east towards the banks of the Ale Water. 
A former mill lade runs from north east to south west under the proposed building 
line. A narrow band of trees follows the line of the mill lade and the building and 
further small tree clumps are located within the site. Narrow bands of riparian 
woodland follow the banks of the Ale Water out with the site boundary. 

Key Issues 
(Bullet points) 

 Landscape and Visual Impact 

 Protection of riparian tree resource. 

Assessment I have not had the opportunity to visit the site but through a desk top study have made the 
following assessment:- 
 
If the existing tree cover on the site can be retained then this proposal for a single storey 
tree house should not have significant landscape and visual impacts. The fairly low lying 
ground levels and screening afforded by  existing tree cover on and off  site; from 
surrounding woodland and hedgerows across the landscape as well as it’s remote location 
at some distance from settlements, properties and road networks will all assist in its  
integration into the landscape. However detailed design proposals, including materials, 
parking provision and cross sections through the site will be required at the detailed 
application stage before the potential for landscape and visual impacts can be fully 
assessed. 
 
I note on the block plan that a number of trees have been identified and marked on the 
plan. It appears that some of these are represented by a dot and I question whether the 
intention is to remove these or not? As part of any detailed application a fully detailed tree 
survey will be required including tree species, numbers, precise location, height, girth, age  
condition and Root Protection Area’s (RPA) as well as location of any trees proposed for 
removal. At the detailed application stage this information should be shown on a plan 
along with the proposed building layout, footprint and foundation positions. The fully 
detailed tree survey should follow the requirements set out below from the previous 

Page 203

http://www.scotborders.gov.uk/


 

Council Headquarters, Newtown St Boswells, MELROSE, Scottish Borders, TD6 0SA 
Customer Services:  0300 100 1800    www.scotborders.gov.uk  

 

consultation response. Replacement planting should be proposed to cover any trees 
proposed for removal and to improve biodiversity on the flood plain. In addition more 
information will be needed with regard to the treatment plant and soakaways, footings for 
the stilts and how the services will be accommodated to assess whether there will be 
unacceptable impact on the tree resource.  
 
 
 
 
I have no objection in principle to the proposed development. 
 

Recommendation  Object  Do not object X Do not object, 
subject to 
conditions 

 Further information 

required 

Recommended 
Conditions 

A Tree Survey, Arboricultural Impact Assessment and Arboricultural Method Statement  
in accordance with BS 5837:2012 - Trees in relation to design, demolition and 
construction - recommendations,  should be a condition of any outline consent, as 
should Landscape Condition 8  - Existing Trees to be retained - Details to be submitted. 
Reason: to ensure protection of the existing tree resource. 
 
A landscape scheme to an appropriate scale detailing design and location of the building, 
walkway, footings and foundations, parking, existing and proposed planting as well as 
material to be used. 
Reason: to ensure a landscape fit and protection of the existing tree resource. 
 
A scaled drawing of sections through the site demonstrating height and scale of the 
building and structures proposed in relation to landform and tree cover. 
Reason: to ensure satisfactory integration of the building into its surroundings. 
 

Recommended 
Informatives 

BS 5837:2012 - Trees in relation to design, demolition and construction 

 

 
 
 
 

Page 204

http://www.scotborders.gov.uk/


 

Council Headquarters, Newtown St Boswells, MELROSE, Scottish Borders, TD6 0SA 
Customer Services:  0300 100 1800    www.scotborders.gov.uk  

 

 

CONSULTATION RESPONSE TO 

PLANNING OR RELATED APPLICATION 

Comments provided 
by 

Roads Planning Officer Contact e-mail/number: 

Officer Name and 
Post: 

Craig Johnston 
Roads Planning Technician 

Craig.johnston@scotborders.gov.uk 
01835 826856 

Date of reply 27th February 2020 Consultee reference: 

Planning Application 
Reference 

20/00132/PPP Case Officer: 
Brett Taylor      

Applicant Sandystones Ltd  

Agent Murray Land & Buildings 

Proposed 
Development 

Erection of treehouse and walkway for use as holiday let accommodation and 
associated works 

Site Location Land South West Of Sandystones Farmhouse Ancrum Jedburgh Scottish Borders   
 

The following observations represent the comments of the consultee on the submitted application 
as they relate to the area of expertise of that consultee. A decision on the application can only be 
made after consideration of all relevant information, consultations and material considerations. 

Background and  
Site description 

A similar proposal was refused permission on this site through application 
19/00812/PPP but received no objections from the Roads Planning Officer. 

Key Issues 
(Bullet points) 

 

Assessment The Roads Planning comments from the first application are still applicable and I 
will include these below for reference: 
 
I have no objections in principle to the proposed development which is for tourism 
purposes.  
 
The existing private farm track is of a suitable standard for the proposed 
development but will need to be extended for a short section to accommodate 
access to the site and the parking area. The extended farm track should be 
constructed with a well compacted free draining smooth running surface capable of 
withstanding a minimum axle loading of 14 tonne. This information should be 
provided at detailed planning stage should this application be approved. 

Recommendation  Object  Do not object  Do not object, 
subject to conditions 

 Further 

information required 

Recommended 
Conditions 

A scheme of details to be submitted to the Council for approval, detailing the 
precise means of access to the development site and parking area. Thereafter the 
approved scheme of details shall be fully implemented prior to the holiday let 
becoming available for use.  
Reason: To ensure satisfactory access is provided. 

Recommended 
Informatives 

 

 

PG 
 
 
 

Page 205

http://www.scotborders.gov.uk/
mailto:Craig.johnston@scotborders.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



List of Policies

Local Review Reference: 20/00017/RREF
Planning Application Reference: 20/00132/PPP
Development Proposal:  Erection of treehouse and walkway for use as holiday let 
accommodation and associated works
Location: Land South West of Sandystones Farmhouse, Ancrum, Jedburgh
Applicant: Sandystones Ltd

Scottish Borders Local Development Plan 2016

POLICY PMD1: SUSTAINABILITY

In determining planning applications and preparing development briefs, the Council will have 
regard to the following sustainability principles which underpin all the Plan’s policies and 
which developers will be expected to incorporate into their developments:

a) the long term sustainable use and management of land
b) the preservation of air and water quality
c) the protection of natural resources, landscapes, habitats, and species
d) the protection of built and cultural resources
e) the efficient use of energy and resources, particularly non-renewable resources
f) the minimisation of waste, including waste water and encouragement to its 

sustainable management
g) the encouragement of walking, cycling, and public transport in preference to the 

private car
h) the minimisation of light pollution
i) the protection of public health and safety
j) the support to community services and facilities
k) the provision of new jobs and support to the local economy
l) the involvement of the local community in the design, management and improvement 

of their environment

POLICY PMD2: QUALITY STANDARDS

All new development will be expected to be of high quality in accordance with sustainability 
principles, designed to fit with Scottish Borders townscapes and to integrate with its 
landscape surroundings.  The standards which will apply to all development are that:

Sustainability 
a) In terms of layout, orientation, construction and energy supply, the developer has 

demonstrated that appropriate measures have been taken to maximise the efficient 
use of energy and resources, including the use of renewable energy and resources 
such as District Heating Schemes and the incorporation of sustainable construction 
techniques in accordance with supplementary planning guidance.  Planning 
applications must demonstrate that the current carbon dioxide emissions reduction 
target has been met, with at least half of this target met through the use of low or 
zero carbon technology,

b) it provides digital connectivity and associated infrastructure,
c) it provides for Sustainable Urban Drainage Systems in the context of overall 

provision of Green Infrastructure where appropriate and their after-care and 
maintenance,

d) it encourages minimal water usage for new developments,
e) it provides for appropriate internal and external provision for waste storage and 

presentation with, in all instances, separate provision for waste and recycling and, 
depending on the location, separate provision for composting facilities,

Page 207

Agenda Item 5e



List of Policies

f) it incorporates appropriate hard and soft landscape works, including structural or 
screen planting where necessary, to help integration with its surroundings and the 
wider environment and to meet open space requirements. In some cases 
agreements will be required to ensure that landscape works are undertaken at an 
early stage of development and that appropriate arrangements are put in place for 
long term landscape/open space maintenance,

g) it considers, where appropriate, the long term adaptability of buildings and spaces.

Placemaking & Design
h) It creates developments with a sense of place, based on a clear understanding of the 

context, designed in sympathy with Scottish Borders architectural styles; this need 
not exclude appropriate contemporary and/or innovative design,

i) it is of a scale, massing, height and density appropriate to its surroundings and, 
where an extension or alteration, appropriate to the existing building,

j) it is finished externally in materials, the colours and textures of which complement the 
highest quality of architecture in the locality and, where an extension or alteration, the 
existing building,

k) it is compatible with, and respects the character of the surrounding area, 
neighbouring uses, and neighbouring built form,

l) it can be satisfactorily accommodated within the site,
m) it provides appropriate boundary treatments to ensure attractive edges to the 

development that will help integration with its surroundings,
n) it incorporates, where appropriate, adequate safety and security measures, in 

accordance with current guidance on ‘designing out crime’.

Accessibility 
o) Street layouts must be designed to properly connect and integrate with existing street 

patterns and be able to be easily extended in the future where appropriate in order to 
minimise the need for turning heads and isolated footpaths,

p) it incorporates, where required, access for those with mobility difficulties,
q) it ensures there is no adverse impact on road safety, including but not limited to the 

site access,
r) it provides for linkages with adjoining built up areas including public transport 

connections and provision for buses, and new paths and cycleways, linking where 
possible to the existing path network; Travel Plans will be encouraged to support 
more sustainable travel patterns,

s) it incorporates adequate access and turning space for vehicles including those used 
for waste collection purposes.

Greenspace, Open Space & Biodiversity
t) It provides meaningful open space that wherever possible, links to existing open 

spaces and that is in accordance with current Council standards pending preparation 
of an up-to-date open space strategy and local standards. In some cases a 
developer contribution to wider neighbourhood or settlement provision may be 
appropriate, supported by appropriate arrangements for maintenance,

u) it retains physical or natural features or habitats which are important to the amenity or 
biodiversity of the area or makes provision for adequate mitigation or replacements.

Developers are required to provide design and access statements, design briefs and 
landscape plans as appropriate.

POLICY ED7 BUSINESS, TOURISM AND LEISURE IN THE COUNTRYSIDE

BUSINESS, TOURISM AND LEISURE

Page 208



List of Policies

Proposals for business, tourism or leisure development in the countryside will be approved 
and rural diversification initiatives will be encouraged provided that:

a) the development is to be used directly for agricultural, horticultural or forestry 
operations, or for uses which by their nature are appropriate to the rural character of the 
area; or
b) the development is to be used directly for leisure, recreation or tourism appropriate to 
a countryside location and, where relevant, it is in accordance with the Scottish Borders 
Tourism Strategy and Action Plan;
c) the development is to be used for other business or employment generating uses, 
provided that the Council is satisfied that there is an economic and/or operational need for 
the particular countryside location, and that it cannot be reasonably be accommodated within 
the Development Boundary of a settlement.

In addition the following criteria will also be considered:

a) the development must respect the amenity and character of the surrounding area,
b) the development must have no significant adverse impact on nearby uses, 
particularly housing,
c) where a new building is proposed, the developer will be required to provide evidence 
that no appropriate existing building or brownfield site is available, and where conversion of 
an existing building of architectural merit is proposed, evidence that the building is capable 
of conversion without substantial demolition and  rebuilding,
d) the impact of the expansion or intensification of uses, where the use and scale of 
development are appropriate to the rural character of the area,
e) the development meets all other siting, and design criteria in accordance with Policy 
PMD2, and
f) the development must take account of accessibility considerations in accordance 
with Policy IS4.

Where a proposal comes forward for the creation of a new business including that of a 
tourism proposal, a business case that supports the proposal will be required to be 
submitted as part of the application process.

POLICY HD3 : PROTECTION OF RESIDENTIAL AMENITY

Development that is judged to have an adverse impact on the amenity of existing or 
proposed residential areas will not be permitted. To protect the amenity and character of 
these areas, any developments will be assessed against:

a) the principle of the development, including where relevant, any open space that 
would be lost; and

b) the details of the development itself particularly in terms of:
(i) the scale, form and type of development in terms of its fit within a residential area,
(ii) the impact of the proposed development on the existing and surrounding properties 

particularly in terms of overlooking, loss of privacy and sunlighting provisions. These 
considerations apply especially in relation to garden ground or ‘backland’ 
development, 

(iii) the generation of traffic or noise,
(iv) the level of visual impact.

POLICY EP1: INTERNATIONAL NATURE CONSERVATION SITES AND PROTECTED 
SPECIES

Page 209



List of Policies

Development proposals which will have a likely significant effect on a designated or 
proposed Natura site, which includes all Ramsar sites, are only permissible where:

a) an appropriate assessment has demonstrated that it will not adversely affect the 
integrity of the site, or
b) there are no alternative solutions, and
c) there are imperative reasons of overriding public interest including those of a social 
or economic nature

Where a development proposal is sited where there is the likely presence of an EPS, the 
planning authority must be satisfied that:

a) there is no satisfactory alternative, and
b) the development is required for preserving public health or public safety or for other 
imperative reasons of overriding public interest including those of a social or economic 
nature and beneficial consequences of primary importance to the envi-ronment, and
c) the development is not detrimental to the maintenance of the population of a EPS at 
a favourable conservation status in its natural range.

POLICY EP2: NATIONAL NATURE CONSERVATION AND PROTECTED SPECIES

Development proposals which are likely to have a significant adverse effect, either directly or 
indirectly, on a Site of Special Scientific Interest or habitat directly sup-porting a nationally 
important species will not be permitted unless:

a) the development will not adversely affect the integrity of the site, and
b) the development offers substantial benefits of national importance, including those of 
a social or economic nature, that clearly outweigh the national nature con-servation value of 
the site.

The developer will be required to detail mitigation, either on or off site, of any dam-age that 
may be caused by development permissible under the exception criteria.

POLICY EP3: LOCAL BIODIVERSITY

Development that would have an unacceptable adverse effect on Borders Notable Species 
and Habitats of Conservation Concern will be refused unless it can be demonstrated that the 
public benefits of the development clearly outweigh the value of the habitat for biodiversity 
conservation.

Any development that could impact on local biodiversity through impacts on habitats and 
species should:

a) aim to avoid fragmentation or isolation of habitats; and
b) be sited and designed to minimise adverse impacts on the biodiversity of the site, 
including its environmental quality, ecological status and viability; and
c) compensate to ensure no net loss of biodiversity through use of biodiversity offsets 
as appropriate; and
d) aim to enhance the biodiversity value of the site, through use of an ecosystems 
approach, with the aim of creation or restoration of habitats and wildlife corridors and 
provision for their long-term management and maintenance.

POLICY EP13: TREES, WOODLANDS AND HEDGEROWS

Page 210



List of Policies

The Council will refuse development that would cause the loss of or serious damage to the 
woodland resource unless the public benefits of the development clearly outweigh the loss of 
landscape, ecological, recreational, historical, or shelter value.

Any development that may impact on the woodland resource should:

a) aim to minimise adverse impacts on the biodiversity value of the woodland resource, 
including its environmental quality, ecological status and viability; and
b) where there is an unavoidable loss of the woodland resource, ensure appropriate 
replacement planting, where possible, within the area of the Scottish Borders; and
c) adhere to any planning agreement sought to enhance the woodland resource.

POLICY EP15: DEVELOPMENT AFFECTING THE WATER ENVIRONMENT

Development proposals that seek to bring improvement to the quality of the water 
environment will be supported. Where a proposal would result in a significant adverse effect 
on the water environment through impact on its natural or physical characteristics, or its use 
for recreation or existing river engineering works, it will be refused. Decision making will be 
guided by an assessment of:

a) pollution of surface or underground water, including water supply catchment areas, 
as a result of the nature of any surface or waste water discharge or leachate, including from 
the disturbance of contaminated land;
b) flood risk within the site or the wider river catchment;
c) proposals for river engineering works that may be required for fisheries management, 
flood defence or erosion control;
d) compliance with current best practice on Sustainable Urban Drainage (SUDS) 
including avoidance of flooding, pollution, extensive canalisation and culverting of 
watercourses.

POLICY IS7: PARKING PROVISION AND STANDARDS

Development proposals should provide for car and cycle parking in accordance with 
approved standards. 

Relaxation of technical standards will be considered where appropriate due to the nature of 
the development and/or if positive amenity gains can be demonstrated that do not 
compromise road safety.

In town centres where there appear to be parking difficulties, the Council will consider the
desirability of seeking additional public parking provision, in the context of policies to  
promote the use of sustainable travel modes.

POLICY IS8: FLOODING

At all times, avoidance will be the first principle of managing flood risk. In general terms, new 
development should therefore be located in areas free from significant flood risk.
Development will not be permitted if it would be at significant risk of flooding from any source 
or would materially increase the probability of flooding elsewhere. The ability of functional 
flood plains to convey and store floodwater should be protected, and development should be 
located away from them.

Within certain defined risk categories, particularly where the risk is greater than 0.5% annual 
flooding probability or 1 in 200 year flood risk, some forms of development will generally not 
be acceptable.  These include:

Page 211



List of Policies

a) development comprising essential civil infrastructure such as hospitals, fire stations, 
emergency depots etc., schools, care homes, ground-based electrical and 
telecommunications equipment unless subject to an appropriate long term flood risk 
management strategy;
b) additional built development in undeveloped and sparsely developed   areas.

Other forms of development will be subject to an assessment of the risk and mitigation 
measures.

Developers will be required to provide, including if necessary at planning permission in 
principle stage:

a) a competent flood risk assessment, including all sources of flooding, and taking 
account of climate change; and
b) a report of the measures that are proposed to mitigate the flood risk.

The information used to assess the acceptability of development will include:

a) information and advice from consultation with the council’s flood team and the 
Scottish Environment  Protection Agency;
b) flood risk maps provided by the Scottish Environment Protection Agency which 
indicate the extent of the flood plain;
c) historical records and flood studies held by the council and other agencies, including 
past flood risk assessment reports carried out by consultants and associated comments from 
the Scottish Environment Protection Agency, also held by the council;
(d) the Scottish Environment Protection Agency’s Land Use Vulnerability Guidance.

POLICY IS9: WASTE WATER TREATMENT STANDARDS AND SUSTAINABLE URBAN 
DRAINAGE
WASTE WATER TREATMENT STANDARDS
The Council’s preferred method of dealing with waste water associated with new 
development will be, in order of priority:

a) direct connection to the public sewerage system, including pumping if necessary, or 
failing that:
b) negotiating developer contributions with Scottish Water to upgrade the existing 
sewerage network and/or increasing capacity at the waste water treatment works, or failing 
that:
c) agreement with Scottish Water and SEPA where required to provide permanent or 
temporary alternatives to sewer connection including the possibility of stand alone treatment 
plants until sewer capacity becomes available, or, failing that:
d) for development in the countryside i.e. not within or immediately adjacent to publicly 
sewered areas, the use of private sewerage treatment may be acceptable, providing it can 
be demonstrated that this can be delivered without any negative impacts to public health, the 
environment or the quality of watercourses or groundwater.

In settlements served by the public foul sewer, permission for an individual private sewage 
treatment system will normally be refused unless exceptional circumstances prevail and the 
conditions in criteria (d) above can be satisfied.

Development will be refused if:
a) it will result in a proliferation of individual septic tanks or other private water treatment 
infrastructure within settlements,

Page 212



List of Policies

b) it will overload existing mains infrastructure or it is impractical for the developer to 
provide for new infrastructure.

SUSTAINABLE URBAN DRAINAGE
Surface water management for new development, for both greenfield and brownfield sites, 
must comply with current best practice on sustainable urban drainage systems to the 
satisfaction of the council, Scottish Environment Protection Agency (where required), 
Scottish Natural Heritage and other interested parties where required. Development will be 
refused unless surface water treatment is dealt with in a sustainable manner that avoids 
flooding, pollution, extensive canalisation and culverting of watercourses. A drainage 
strategy should be submitted with planning applications to include treatment and flood 
attenuation measures and details for the long term maintenance of any necessary features.

OTHER MATERIAL CONSIDERATIONS

 SBC Supplementary Planning Guidance on Placemaking & Design 2010
 SBC Supplementary Planning Guidance on Development Contributions 2011
 SBC Supplementary Planning Guidance on New Housing in the Borders Countryside 

2008
 SBC Supplementary Planning Guidance on Landscape and Development 2008
 SBC Supplementary Planning Guidance on Trees and Development 2008
 Scottish Planning Policy 2014
 National Planning Framework 3

Page 213



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 1 of 5

Newtown St Boswells Melrose TD6 0SA  Tel: Payments 01835 825251/System Help 01835 826705  Email: 
corporatebusinesssystems@scotborders.gov.uk 

Applications cannot be validated until all the necessary documentation has been submitted and the required fee has been paid.

Thank you for completing this application form:

ONLINE REFERENCE 100277275-001

The online reference is the unique reference for your online form only. The  Planning Authority will allocate an Application Number when 
your form is validated. Please quote this reference if you need to contact the planning Authority about this application.

Applicant or Agent Details
Are you an applicant or an agent? * (An agent is an architect, consultant or someone else acting
on behalf of the applicant in connection with this application)  Applicant  Agent

Agent Details
Please enter Agent details

Company/Organisation:

Ref. Number: You must enter a Building Name or Number, or both: *

First Name: * Building Name:

Last Name: *  Building Number:

Address 1
Telephone Number: * (Street): *

Extension Number: Address 2:

Mobile Number: Town/City: *

Fax Number: Country: *

Postcode: *

Email Address: *

Is the applicant an individual or an organisation/corporate entity? *

  Individual    Organisation/Corporate entity

Ferguson Planning

-

-

Island Street

54

Shiel House

01896 668744

TD1 1NU

Scotland

Galashiels

tim@fergusonplanning.co.uk

Page 215

Agenda Item 6a



Page 2 of 5

Applicant Details
Please enter Applicant details

Title: You must enter a Building Name or Number, or both: *

Other Title: Building Name:

First Name: * Building Number:

Address 1
Last Name: * (Street): *

Company/Organisation Address 2:

Telephone Number: * Town/City: *

Extension Number: Country: *

Mobile Number: Postcode: *

Fax Number:

Email Address: *

Site Address Details
Planning Authority: 

Full postal address of the site (including postcode where available):

Address 1:  

Address 2:

Address 3:

Address 4:

Address 5:

Town/City/Settlement:

Post Code:

Please identify/describe the location of the site or sites

Northing Easting

Other

Mr & Mrs

D & C

Scottish Borders Council

Morrison Island Street

54

Shiel House

TD1 1NU

Land to the east of High Street,  Kirk Yetholm, TD5 8PH

Scotland

628166

Galashiels

382786

tim@fergusonplanning.co.uk

per Agent

Page 216



Page 3 of 5

Description of Proposal
Please provide a description of your proposal to which your review relates. The description should be the same as given in the 
application form, or as amended with the agreement of the planning authority: *
(Max 500 characters)

Type of Application
What type of application did you submit to the planning authority? *

  Application for planning permission (including householder application but excluding application to work minerals).

  Application for planning permission in principle.

  Further application.

  Application for approval of matters specified in conditions.

What does your review relate to? *

  Refusal Notice.

 Grant of permission with Conditions imposed.

  No decision reached within the prescribed period (two months after validation date or any agreed extension) – deemed refusal.

Statement of reasons for seeking review
You must state in full, why you are a seeking a review of the planning authority’s decision (or failure to make a decision). Your statement 
must set out all matters you consider require  to be taken into account in determining your review. If necessary this can be provided as a 
separate document in the ‘Supporting Documents’ section: *  (Max 500 characters)

Note: you are unlikely to have a further opportunity to add to your statement of appeal at a later date, so it is essential that you produce 
all of the information you want the decision-maker to take into account.

You should not however raise any new matter which was not before the planning authority at the time it decided your application (or at 
the time expiry of the period of determination), unless you can demonstrate that the new matter could not have been raised before that 
time or that it not being raised before that time is a consequence of exceptional circumstances.

Have you raised any matters which were not before the appointed officer  at the time the  Yes   No
Determination on your application was made? *

If yes, you should explain in the box below, why you are raising the new matter, why it was not raised with the appointed officer before 
your application was determined and why you consider it should be considered in your review: * (Max 500 characters)

Demolition of garage and erection of dwellinghouse

Please see Local Review Statement

Page 217



Page 4 of 5

Please provide a list of all supporting documents, materials and evidence which you wish to submit with your notice of review and intend 
to rely on in support of your review. You can attach these documents electronically later in the process: * (Max 500 characters)

Application Details

Please provide the application reference no. given to you by your planning 
authority for your previous application.

What date was the application submitted to the planning authority? *

What date was the decision issued by the planning authority? *

Review Procedure
The Local Review Body will decide on the procedure to be used to determine your review and may at any time during the review 
process require that further information or representations be made to enable them to determine the review. Further information may be 
required by one or a combination of procedures, such as: written submissions; the holding of one or more hearing sessions and/or 
inspecting the land which is the subject of the review case.

Can this review continue to a conclusion, in your opinion, based on a review of the relevant information provided by yourself and other 
parties only,  without any further procedures? For example, written submission, hearing session, site inspection. *
 Yes   No

In the event that the Local Review Body appointed to consider your application decides to inspect the site, in your opinion:

Can the site be clearly seen from a road or public land? *  Yes   No

Is it possible for the site to be accessed safely and without barriers to entry? *  Yes    No

If there are reasons why you think the local Review Body would be unable to undertake an unaccompanied site inspection, please 
explain here.  (Max 500 characters) 

Please see Local Review Statement

20/00453/FUL

17/06/2020

28/04/2020

Page 218



Page 5 of 5

Checklist – Application for Notice of Review
Please complete the following checklist to make sure  you have provided all the necessary information in support of your appeal. Failure 
to submit all this  information may result in your appeal  being deemed invalid. 

Have you provided the name and address of the applicant?.  *  Yes   No

Have you provided the date and reference number of the application which is the subject of this  Yes   No
review? *

If you are the agent, acting on behalf of the applicant, have you provided details of your name   Yes   No   N/A
and address and indicated whether any notice or correspondence required in connection with the 
review should be sent to you or the applicant? *
Have you provided a statement setting out your reasons for requiring a review and by what  Yes   No
procedure (or combination of procedures) you wish the review to be conducted? *

Note: You must state, in full, why you are seeking a review on your application. Your statement must set out all matters you consider 
require to be taken into account in determining your review. You may not have a further opportunity to add to your statement of review 
at a later date. It is therefore essential that you submit with your notice of review, all necessary information and evidence that you rely 
on and wish the Local Review Body to consider as part of your review.
Please attach a copy of all documents, material and evidence which you intend to rely on  Yes   No
(e.g. plans and Drawings) which are now the subject of this review *

Note: Where the review relates to a further application e.g. renewal of planning permission or modification, variation or removal of a 
planning condition or where it relates to an application for approval of matters specified in conditions, it is advisable to provide the 
application reference number, approved plans and decision notice (if any) from the earlier consent.
 

Declare – Notice of Review
I/We the applicant/agent certify that this is an application for review on the grounds stated.

Declaration Name: Mr - -

Declaration Date: 08/07/2020
 

Page 219



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

Main Office: 

Shiel House | 54 Island Street | Galashiels | TD1 1NU 

NI Office: 

61 Moyle Road | Ballycastle | Co. Antrim | BT54 6LG 

T 01896 668 744 

M    07586 807 973 

E Ruaraidh@fergusonplanning.co.uk 

W www.fergusonplanning.co.uk 

APPEAL STATEMENT  

REF: 20/00453/FUL  

 

 
DEMOLITION OF GARAGE AND  

ERECTION OF DWELLINGHOUSE  
 
 

GARDEN GROUND OF CLIFTON COTTAGE, 
HIGH STREET, KIRK YETHOLM, SCOTTISH 

BORDERS 

 

 

ON BEHALF OF: MR & MRS D & C MORRISON 

 

 

JULY 2020 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 221

mailto:kate@fergusonplanning.co.uk
http://www.fergusonplanning.co.uk/


 

 

Main Office: 

Shiel House | 54 Island Street | Galashiels | TD1 1NU 

NI Office: 

61 Moyle Road | Ballycastle | Co. Antrim | BT54 6LG 

T 01896 668 744 

M    07586 807 973 

E Ruaraidh@fergusonplanning.co.uk 

W www.fergusonplanning.co.uk 

 
CONTENTS 

 

 

 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY         

 

1.0 INTRODUCTION         

 

2.0 REFUSAL OF APPLICATION BY SCOTTISH BORDERS      

 COUNCIL AND PLANNING POLICY CONTEXT 

 

3.0 GROUNDS  OF APPEAL AND CASE FOR THE APPELLANT    

   

4.0 CONCLUSIONS         
 

 

 
  

Page 222

mailto:kate@fergusonplanning.co.uk
http://www.fergusonplanning.co.uk/


 

 

Main Office: 

Shiel House | 54 Island Street | Galashiels | TD1 1NU 

NI Office: 

61 Moyle Road | Ballycastle | Co. Antrim | BT54 6LG 

T 01896 668 744 

M    07586 807 973 

E Ruaraidh@fergusonplanning.co.uk 

W www.fergusonplanning.co.uk 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
This Statement is submitted on behalf of Mr & Mrs D & C Morrison “the Appellants” against the 

decision of Scottish Borders Council to refuse Planning Permission for the demolition of a garage 

and erection of a dwellinghouse within the garden ground of Clifton Cottage, High Street, Kirk 

Yetholm on 17th June 2020 (reference 20/00453/FUL). All Core Documents (CD) are referenced 

in Appendix 1. 

The Appellants propose to build a new dwelling on land within their single, private ownership 

opposite their current home. It is agreed between the Planning Authority and the Appellant that 

the appeal site lies within the single Development Boundary defined for both Town Yetholm 

and Kirk Yetholm and does not conflict with surrounding land uses. The consultation response 

of the Forward Planning team has been instrumental in establishing this critical common 

ground. Disagreement centres upon the design of the proposed dwelling within the 

Conservation Area, potential impact upon an adjacent roadside verge, and archaeological 

impacts. 

Five reasons for the refusal of the Application were included in the Decision Notice. These 

reasons centred around four key issues, which are taken in turn. 

Impact upon roadside verge 

Disagreement between the Appellants and the Planning Authority relates to the possibility of 

physical works to the roadside verge; including greenspace, the Appellants’ existing drive, and 

cast iron water pump. 

The Appellants position is that all proposed works are contained behind the established, mature 

boundary hedge on-site – as shown on AH073-P02(B) Site Layout Plan. The proposed 

development does not include removal of vegetation, laying of tarmac concrete, removal of the 

water pump, or any other physical alterations to the roadside verge. The existing drive would 

continue to operate as it does at present and the water pump would be retained in-situ. 

Design of proposed dwelling 

The design of the proposed dwelling has been criticised by the Planning Officer as being 

“domineering” and “harmful”. 

However, these criticisms fail to acknowledge that the proposed dwelling comprises white 

Page 223

mailto:kate@fergusonplanning.co.uk
http://www.fergusonplanning.co.uk/


 

 

Main Office: 

Shiel House | 54 Island Street | Galashiels | TD1 1NU 

NI Office: 

61 Moyle Road | Ballycastle | Co. Antrim | BT54 6LG 

T 01896 668 744 

M    07586 807 973 

E Ruaraidh@fergusonplanning.co.uk 

W www.fergusonplanning.co.uk 

render elevations and slate roof, in a residential area dominated by existing dwellings of white 

render elevations and slate roofs. Furthermore in addition to sitting behind the established, 

mature hedge, the principal elevation onto the street is a broad reflection of the house on the 

opposite side of High Street, with only modest sympathetic progression on the design concept. 

The Appellants do not accept the Planning Officer’s criticisms of the proposed design as they do 

not substantiate any harm to the local character of the area, within the context described above. 

Rather, the design of the proposed dwelling is heavily influenced by the architecture of existing 

dwellings within this part of Kirk Yetholm and is considered to be acceptable in planning terms. 

Impact upon Conservation Area 

The site sits within the Yetholm Conservation Area which covers both Town Yetholm and Kirk 

Yetholm. The Heritage and Design team has objected to the proposed development as they 

consider that scope does not exist for “development on this site on the scale of a 

dwellinghouse”.  

This stated opinion clearly contradicts the Government’s authoritative Planning Advice Note 71: 

Conservation Area Management (PAN-71) which states that: “designating a Conservation Area 

does not mean a prohibition on development.”  

The application and relevance of the Planning Advice Notes has been re-affirmed by the 

Government’s Reporters as recently as November 2019. 

New development within Conservation Areas is about respecting existing surroundings and 

coming forward with high quality designed buildings and with an appropriate palate of 

materials. The design of the proposed development has been mindful of the context, layout, 

built form, density, and materials of both the appeal site and surrounding plots, dwellings, and 

other buildings. 

The appeal site does not contain or adjoin any core heritage assets and considerable distance 

exists between it and those parts of the Conservation Area with strong heritage value. It is not 

set within the curtilage or setting of the Conservation Area’s core assets (e.g. Listed Buildings) 

nor will it have any impact upon them. The proposed development would not create any 

obstruction impinging on core viewpoints. 

As there is no basis for the Planning Authority to categorically resist development because it is 

located within a Conservation Area, the reason for refusal and the advice from which it derives 

Page 224

mailto:kate@fergusonplanning.co.uk
http://www.fergusonplanning.co.uk/


 

 

Main Office: 

Shiel House | 54 Island Street | Galashiels | TD1 1NU 

NI Office: 

61 Moyle Road | Ballycastle | Co. Antrim | BT54 6LG 

T 01896 668 744 

M    07586 807 973 

E Ruaraidh@fergusonplanning.co.uk 

W www.fergusonplanning.co.uk 

are unfounded. The Planning Authority has offered no reason why a new dwelling which reflects 

the design of this part of the Conservation Area is unacceptable in planning terms. 

Archaeological impacts 

The Archaeology Officer has reviewed historic maps dating from the 19th century and identified 

the possibility that the site may contain historic remains. 

The Appellants are prepared to accept a condition requiring archaeological investigation prior 

to the initiation of construction works. This is standard procedure and no justification for a 

deviation has been substantiated by the Planning Officer. 

The Local Review Body, having considered the detail contained within the Planning Application 

package, together with the information set out herein, will be respectfully requested to allow 

the Appeal and grant Planning Permission. 

  

Page 225

mailto:kate@fergusonplanning.co.uk
http://www.fergusonplanning.co.uk/


 

 

Main Office: 

Shiel House | 54 Island Street | Galashiels | TD1 1NU 

NI Office: 

61 Moyle Road | Ballycastle | Co. Antrim | BT54 6LG 

T 01896 668 744 

M    07586 807 973 

E Ruaraidh@fergusonplanning.co.uk 

W www.fergusonplanning.co.uk 

1.0 PROPOSAL SUMMARY 
 

1.1 This Statement in support of Local Review is submitted to Scottish Borders Council on 

behalf of the Appellants, Mr & Mrs D & C Morrison, against the delegated decision to 

refuse to grant Planning Permission for the demolition of a garage and erection of a 

dwellinghouse within the garden ground of Clifton Cottage, High Street, Kirk Yetholm. 

1.2 The appeal site lies to the east of High Street in Kirk Yetholm. The site sits opposite a 

terrace of existing dwellings to the west of the highway. Concise private garden plots sit 

adjacent to the north and south of the site while a rectangular parcel of allotment 

gardens lie beyond to the south. 

Fig.1. Extract from AH073-P03(B) Location Plan, High Street and the Applicants’ home are 

visible to the west of the site (Source: Aidan Hume Design) 

Page 226

mailto:kate@fergusonplanning.co.uk
http://www.fergusonplanning.co.uk/


 

 

Main Office: 

Shiel House | 54 Island Street | Galashiels | TD1 1NU 

NI Office: 

61 Moyle Road | Ballycastle | Co. Antrim | BT54 6LG 

T 01896 668 744 

M    07586 807 973 

E Ruaraidh@fergusonplanning.co.uk 

W www.fergusonplanning.co.uk 

1.3 The site comprises a private garden in a single ownership with Clifton Cottage, on the 

opposite side of the road. The site represents Clifton Cottage’s secondary garden with 

the primary outdoor amenity space located to the rear of the property. A single garage 

of render-on-block elevations and profiled sheet roof stands upon the site close to the 

south boundary. A tall hedge runs across the site from north to south precluding views 

from the adopted highway into the private garden. An existing vehicle access which 

comprises compacted gravel runs from the highway to the garage. 

1.4 The proposed dwelling comprises a two storey detached house, the design of which is 

heavily informed by existing dwellings in Kirk Yetholm and particularly on High Street. 

The new dwelling is proposed relatively centrally within the plot and set back from the 

boundary with the adopted highway to enable the retention of the mature established 

hedge. 

Fig.2. Extract from AH073-P02(B) Site Layout Plan (Source: Aidan Hume Design) 

Page 227

mailto:kate@fergusonplanning.co.uk
http://www.fergusonplanning.co.uk/


 

 

Main Office: 

Shiel House | 54 Island Street | Galashiels | TD1 1NU 

NI Office: 

61 Moyle Road | Ballycastle | Co. Antrim | BT54 6LG 

T 01896 668 744 

M    07586 807 973 

E Ruaraidh@fergusonplanning.co.uk 

W www.fergusonplanning.co.uk 

1.5 It is proposed to materially retain existing vehicle access arrangements to the adopted 

highway from the site. Sufficient space on the drive of the proposed dwelling is included 

to park two cars, as per the adopted parking standards included within the 2016 LDP. 

1.6 It is proposed that the new house would be served by connection to both the mains 

water supply and the public foul drainage network which serves Kirk Yetholm. The 

Appellant is content to secure servicing details via condition. 

1.7 The remainder of this Statement considers the site context and relevant planning policy, 

before evaluating the accordance of the appeal proposal with the Local Development 

Plan and other material considerations. 

  

Page 228

mailto:kate@fergusonplanning.co.uk
http://www.fergusonplanning.co.uk/


 

 

Main Office: 

Shiel House | 54 Island Street | Galashiels | TD1 1NU 

NI Office: 

61 Moyle Road | Ballycastle | Co. Antrim | BT54 6LG 

T 01896 668 744 

M    07586 807 973 

E Ruaraidh@fergusonplanning.co.uk 

W www.fergusonplanning.co.uk 

2.0  REFUSAL OF APPLICATION BY SCOTTISH BORDERS COUNCIL AND 
PLANNING POLICY CONTEXT  

 
2.1 Planning Application 20/00453/FUL was refused on 17th June 2020. The Decision Notice 

cited five reasons for refusal, set out below: 

“1. A dwellinghouse on this site would not comply with policy PMD5 of the Local 

Development Plan 2016 as it would detract from and harm the character and amenity 

of the surrounding area.  

2. The proposals would not comply with Policy EP9 of the Local Development Plan 

2016 in that there would be significantly harmful adverse impacts to Yetholm 

Conservation Area.  

3. The proposals are contrary to Policy EP11 of the Local Development Plan 2016 in 

that there would be direct and indirect adverse impacts and harm caused to the public 

open space (the roadside verge and water pump) which front the site, to the 

detriment of the visual amenities of the area.  

4. The proposals do not comply with Policy PMD2 and Policy PMD5 of the Local 

Development Plan 2016 and the Supplementary Planning Guidance on Placemaking 

and Design 2010 in that they do not respect the scale, form, and design of the 

surroundings, to the detriment of the visual amenities of the area.  

5. Without further field evaluation, the development is contrary to Policy EP8 of the 

Local Development Plan 2016 in that there is a medium to high potential of the site 

yielding archaeology of local or regional importance which could be harmed or 

destroyed by the development.” 

2.2 Policy PMD5 permits “development on non-allocated, infill, or windfall sites, including the 

re-use of buildings within Development Boundaries”. 

2.3 The Appellants submission is that the Application was made in accordance with Policy 

PMD5 in that the appeal proposal represents the erection of a single dwelling within the 

Development Boundary defined for Kirk Yetholm.  

Page 229

mailto:kate@fergusonplanning.co.uk
http://www.fergusonplanning.co.uk/


 

 

Main Office: 

Shiel House | 54 Island Street | Galashiels | TD1 1NU 

NI Office: 

61 Moyle Road | Ballycastle | Co. Antrim | BT54 6LG 

T 01896 668 744 

M    07586 807 973 

E Ruaraidh@fergusonplanning.co.uk 

W www.fergusonplanning.co.uk 

 
Fig 3: Policy PMD5: Infill Development. 

2.4 Policy EP11 identifies a distinction between two categories of greenspace – (A) Key 

Greenspaces (copied below) and (B) Other Greenspaces. 

“(A) Key Greenspaces 
Key Greenspaces as identified on Proposal Maps will be protected from development 
that will result in their loss. Development that protects and enhances the quality of Key 
Greenspaces will be supported.” 

2.5 Paragraph 1.1 of the Policy’s supporting text states that “the aim of the Policy is to give 

protection to a wide range of defined types of greenspace (also known as open space) 

within settlements and to prevent their piecemeal loss to development. The policy also 

aims to protect and safeguard the most important spaces within settlements.” 

2.6 Paragraph 1.2 continues “the Local Development Plan identifies Key Greenspaces within 

Development Boundaries. The spaces identified within the Plan are those spaces which 

are considered to be of greatest value to the community and are therefore worthy of 

protection.” 

Page 230

mailto:kate@fergusonplanning.co.uk
http://www.fergusonplanning.co.uk/


 

 

Main Office: 

Shiel House | 54 Island Street | Galashiels | TD1 1NU 

NI Office: 

61 Moyle Road | Ballycastle | Co. Antrim | BT54 6LG 

T 01896 668 744 

M    07586 807 973 

E Ruaraidh@fergusonplanning.co.uk 

W www.fergusonplanning.co.uk 

2.7 Policy EP9 addresses the management of development within and nearby Conservation 

Areas in the Borders. 

Fig 4: Policy EP9: Conservation Areas. 

2.8 Policy PMD2 sets out a range of sustainability, placemaking and design, accessibility and 

open space/ biodiversity requirements, whereby the proposal must: 

 Take appropriate measures to maximise the efficient use of energy and 

resources, in terms of layout, orientation, construction and energy supply;  

 Make provision for sustainable drainage;  

 Incorporate appropriate measures for separate storage of waste and recycling;  

 Incorporate appropriate landscaping to help integration with the surroundings;   

 Create a sense of place, based on a clear understanding of context;  

Page 231

mailto:kate@fergusonplanning.co.uk
http://www.fergusonplanning.co.uk/


 

 

Main Office: 

Shiel House | 54 Island Street | Galashiels | TD1 1NU 

NI Office: 

61 Moyle Road | Ballycastle | Co. Antrim | BT54 6LG 

T 01896 668 744 

M    07586 807 973 

E Ruaraidh@fergusonplanning.co.uk 

W www.fergusonplanning.co.uk 

 Be of a scale, massing and height appropriate to the surroundings;  

 Be finished externally in materials, the colours and textures of which 

complement the highest quality of architecture in the locality;  

 Be compatible with, and respect, the character of the surrounding area, 

neighbouring uses and neighbouring built form; 

 Be able to be satisfactorily accommodated within the site;  

 Provide for appropriate boundary treatments to ensure attractive edges, and 

to help integration with the surroundings;  

 Incorporate access for those with mobility difficulties;  

 Not have an adverse impact on road safety in terms of the site access;  

 Incorporate adequate access and turning space for vehicles including those 

used for waste collection purposes.  

 Retain physical or natural features which are important to the amenity or 

biodiversity of the area.  

 

  

Page 232

mailto:kate@fergusonplanning.co.uk
http://www.fergusonplanning.co.uk/


 

 

Main Office: 

Shiel House | 54 Island Street | Galashiels | TD1 1NU 

NI Office: 

61 Moyle Road | Ballycastle | Co. Antrim | BT54 6LG 

T 01896 668 744 

M    07586 807 973 

E Ruaraidh@fergusonplanning.co.uk 

W www.fergusonplanning.co.uk 

3.0 GROUNDS FOR APPEAL AND CASE FOR THE APPELLANT 
 
3.1 The decision of the Planning Authority to refuse the Application is challenged on the 

basis of the Grounds of Appeal set out below. It is the submission of the Appellant that 

the proposed development accords with the relevant adopted policy of the Local 

Development Plan and Supplementary Guidance and that there are no material 

considerations which justify the refusal of the Application. 

GROUND 1: The proposed development represents the erection of a dwelling on a site 

located within the single Development Boundary defined for both Town Yetholm and 

Kirk Yetholm. The proposed development is also sympathetic to local character and fully 

compliant with the existing good standard of residential amenity. 

GROUND 2: The proposed development would preserve “the special architectural and 

historic character” of the Yetholm Conservation Area. 

GROUND 3: The proposed development does not propose works to the greenspace of 

the existing roadside verge and water pump, both of which would be retained in-situ. 

GROUND 4: The design of the proposed development heavily reflects the character of 

nearby existing dwellings within Kirk Yetholm and represents an appropriate addition 

to the local built environment. 

GROUND 5: By the testimony of the SBC Archaeology Officer, there is no definitive or 

documented evidence that the site contains archaeological remains. In any case, the 

existence of any remains does not present a legitimate reason for refusal and the 

Appellants are prepared to accept a condition requiring archaeological investigation 

prior to the initiation of construction works. 

3.2 During the course of the Application’s determination, the following consultee responses 

were received from Council Officers and partners: 

 Roads Planning team – Objection, responding Technician acknowledged that he 

had not visited the site and had objected on the assumption that the increase 

in the number of required parking spaces would represent an unacceptable 

road safety impact which Scottish Planning Policy allows for the refusal of. No 

evidence to substantiate this assumption was provided. 

 Education Service – No objection. 

Page 233

mailto:kate@fergusonplanning.co.uk
http://www.fergusonplanning.co.uk/


 

 

Main Office: 

Shiel House | 54 Island Street | Galashiels | TD1 1NU 

NI Office: 

61 Moyle Road | Ballycastle | Co. Antrim | BT54 6LG 

T 01896 668 744 

M    07586 807 973 

E Ruaraidh@fergusonplanning.co.uk 

W www.fergusonplanning.co.uk 

 Forward Planning team – No objection. 

 Community Council – No objection. 

 Neighbourhood Services – No comment. 

 Heritage and Design Officer – Objection. 

 Archaeology Officer – No objection, recommended conditions. 

 

 GROUND 1: THE PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT REPRESENTS THE ERECTION OF A 

DWELLING ON A SITE LOCATED WITHIN THE SINGLE DEVELOPMENT BOUNDARY 

DEFINED FOR BOTH TOWN YETHOLM AND KIRK YETHOLM. THE PROPOSED 

DEVELOPMENT IS ALSO SYMPATHETIC TO LOCAL CHARACTER AND FULLY COMPLIANT 

WITH THE EXISTING GOOD STANDARD OF RESIDENTIAL AMENITY. 

 
3.3 It is agreed between the Planning Authority and the Appellants that the appeal site lies 

within the single Development Boundary defined for Yetholm and that the proposed 

development accords with criteria a) of Policy PMD5 in that there is no conflict “with 

the established land use of the area” – namely residential. 

3.4 Further it is common ground between the Planning Authority and the Appellants that 

the proposed development is in accordance with both criteria e) and f) of Policy PMD5 

and that neither represents a reason for refusal of the Application. However, the 

Planning Authority consider that the proposed development does not satisfy criteria b), 

c), and d). It is the Appellants’ position that the proposed development satisfies each 

criteria of Policy PMD5 – including criteria b), c), and d) – and faithfully accords with the 

Policy. 

3.5 The paragraphs below demonstrate the accordance of the proposed development 

which each identified criteria in turn. 

Criteria b) 

3.6 Report of Handling 20/00453/FUL identifies contradiction with criteria b) on the basis 

that the use of the existing drive by a new dwelling would represent “harm in the form 

of damage” to the greenspace of the roadside verge, that the proposed development 

“would distort this interpretation and harm the Conservation Area”, and elements of 

the proposed external appearance which the Planning Officer considers to be poorly 

made. 

Page 234

mailto:kate@fergusonplanning.co.uk
http://www.fergusonplanning.co.uk/


 

 

Main Office: 

Shiel House | 54 Island Street | Galashiels | TD1 1NU 

NI Office: 

61 Moyle Road | Ballycastle | Co. Antrim | BT54 6LG 

T 01896 668 744 

M    07586 807 973 

E Ruaraidh@fergusonplanning.co.uk 

W www.fergusonplanning.co.uk 

3.7 Firstly, and in full embrace of the principle of charity, it is essential to note that each 

‘contradiction’ identified by the Planning Officer represents a repetition of a separate 

but loosely related ‘contradiction with policy’. This repetition to construe a reason for 

refusal relating to the principle of development – apparently attempting to withstand 

the acknowledgment of the Planning Authority (made at the direction of the Forward 

Planning team) that the appeal proposal represents infill development and does not 

conflict with surrounding land uses – can be most generously understood as an 

inconsistency. 

3.8 As a matter of fact, there are no physical works proposed to the roadside verge. The 

proposed dwelling and all building works are to be contained behind the established, 

mature boundary hedge (see Fig.2.). Report of Handling 20/00453/FUL contains no 

evidence to substantiate the assertion that use of the drive by the occupants of the 

proposed dwelling would represent “harm in the form of damage” in a way that use by 

the occupants of Clifton Cottage does not. 

3.9 The “distortion” and “harm” to the Conservation Area identified by the Planning Officer 

is a further duplication of the “harm in the form of damage” assertion addressed above. 

Clearly, this would-be justification falls away upon obtaining a factually accurate 

understanding of the proposed development. 

3.10 Matters of detailed design are not material to the assessment of whether the principal 

of development is acceptable. Notwithstanding that reality, it is demonstrably 

unreasonable to consider that a new dwelling of white render elevations and slate roof 

detracts from the character and/or amenity of the surrounding area – when it is 

proposed in a residential area dominated by existing dwellings of white render 

elevations and slate roofs. 

3.11 Given the above, the proposed development is considered to satisfy criteria b) of Policy 

PMD5. 

Criteria c) 

3.12 Report of Handling 20/00453/FUL states: 

“I have no concerns about social and infrastructure capacity of the village in respect of 

this village. (criteria c) of policy PMD5).” 

Page 235

mailto:kate@fergusonplanning.co.uk
http://www.fergusonplanning.co.uk/


 

 

Main Office: 

Shiel House | 54 Island Street | Galashiels | TD1 1NU 

NI Office: 

61 Moyle Road | Ballycastle | Co. Antrim | BT54 6LG 

T 01896 668 744 

M    07586 807 973 

E Ruaraidh@fergusonplanning.co.uk 

W www.fergusonplanning.co.uk 

3.13 For the sake of good order, criteria c) requires: 

“the individual and cumulative effects of the development can be sustained by the social 

and economic infrastructure and it does not lead to over-development or ‘town and 

village cramming’” 

3.14 Despite the above extracts from Report of Handling 20/00453/FUL and the Local 

Development Plan 2016, the Planning Officer proceeds to consider: 

“My conclusion is that development fails criteria c) and d) of policy PMD5.  Without 

adequate off-street parking provision proposals are by definition;  

"over-development". My concern is that attempts to reconcile parking requirements 

would have consequential harm on open space and the Conservation Area.” 

3.15 It is of primary importance to understand that the proposed development includes two 

parking spaces within the residential curtilage of the new dwelling. This provision 

satisfies the adopted parking standards laid out within the 2016 LDP. 

3.16 Furthermore, it is considered that the replication of parking arrangements (for Clifton 

Cottage) which serve every other existing dwelling in High Street (with the notable 

exception of Valley Dene) cannot be understood to represent “over-development”. No 

definition of over-development is contained within Report of Handling 20/00453/FUL, 

the Local Development Plan 2016, the Placemaking and Design Supplementary Planning 

Guidance 2010, or Scottish Planning Policy 2014. 

3.17 No justification to reconcile the two contradictory positions outlined in Report of 

Handling 20/00453/FUL has been provided. Therefore, it is agreed that the “social and 

infrastructure capacity of the village” are sufficiently large to accommodate the 

proposed development, in accordance with criteria c) of Policy PMD5. 

Criteria d) 

3.18 Report of Handling 20/00453/FUL states that the “Planning Statement attempts to 

reconcile design with the location but I find no working and little fact to the statement 

that the design heavily reflects the character of existing dwellings.” 

3.19 The discourse proceeds to describe potential visual impacts on views obtainable from 

the village green. However, the discourse fails to recognise that those potential visual 

impacts would be created by a new dwelling of white render elevations and slate roof 

Page 236

mailto:kate@fergusonplanning.co.uk
http://www.fergusonplanning.co.uk/


 

 

Main Office: 

Shiel House | 54 Island Street | Galashiels | TD1 1NU 

NI Office: 

61 Moyle Road | Ballycastle | Co. Antrim | BT54 6LG 

T 01896 668 744 

M    07586 807 973 

E Ruaraidh@fergusonplanning.co.uk 

W www.fergusonplanning.co.uk 

– proposed in a residential area dominated by existing dwellings of white render 

elevations and slate roofs. 

Fig.5. Extract from AH073-P01(A) Revised Plans (Source: Aidan Hume Design) 

3.20 Despite repeated criticisms of the scale of the proposed development; the Planning 

Officer discloses that: “the scale is not significantly different to the detached dwelling 

to the north of the site”. The Appellants agree with this assessment and consider it 

represents further manifestation of the acceptability of the design in planning terms. 

3.21 It is self-evident that erecting a new single dwelling which is alike in design to the 

majority of existing dwellings in a Conservation Area is a restrained and measured 

design solution. No evidence has been presented to substantiate the assertion of 

consequential “harm to the Conservation Area”. Furthermore on matters of detail the 

Planning Officer has conceded support for the inclusion of “dual pitched slate roofs, 

wallhead dormers and rendered bands” in the proposed dwelling. 

3.22 Additionally the Planning Officer criticises the inclusion of integrated solar panels in the 

proposed development. It is unclear whether the existence of integrated solar panels in 

the roof of Maple Cottage, Town Yetholm, TD5 8RD – within the single Yetholm 

Conservation Area – has been considered.  

3.23 However, given the May 2019 declarations of a climate emergency by the UK 

Government and Scottish Government, as well as Cllr Haslam’s statement to the press 

of November 2019 – the criticism of solar panels would appear to be rather poorly 

taken. Notwithstanding this, it is within the power of the Planning Authority to condition 

the exclusion of solar panels in the proposed dwelling. While this would not be ideal, 

the Applicant would be prepared to accept a condition to that effect. 

3.24  It is considered that this Statement has demonstrated that the design of the proposed 

dwelling satisfies criteria d) of Policy PMD5. The design heavily reflects the character of 

existing dwellings and is sympathetic to the local built environment. 

Page 237

mailto:kate@fergusonplanning.co.uk
http://www.fergusonplanning.co.uk/


 

 

Main Office: 

Shiel House | 54 Island Street | Galashiels | TD1 1NU 

NI Office: 

61 Moyle Road | Ballycastle | Co. Antrim | BT54 6LG 

T 01896 668 744 

M    07586 807 973 

E Ruaraidh@fergusonplanning.co.uk 

W www.fergusonplanning.co.uk 

Summary 

3.25 It is common ground between the Appellants and the Planning Authority that the 

proposed development accords with criteria a), e), and f) of Policy PMD5. It is 

considered that accordance with criteria b), c), and d) has been demonstrated in this 

representation. Therefore the principle of development is considered to be acceptable 

in accordance with Policy PMD5. 

GROUND 2: THE PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT WOULD PRESERVE “THE SPECIAL 

ARCHITECTURAL AND HISTORIC CHARACTER” OF THE YETHOLM CONSERVATION 

AREA. 

 

3.26 It is noted that Report of Handling 20/00453/FUL identifies “significantly harmful 

adverse impacts to Yetholm Conservation Area”. The Report explains that: 

“The Heritage and Design Officer objects to the proposal and states the principle of 

introducing a dwelling on the site is unacceptable.” 

3.27 The following extract has been replicated from the consultation response of the 

Heritage and Design Officer: 

“There may be scope for the introduction of a small, modest structure similar to a 

garage, shed or possibly small garden studio form as this would not disrupt this 

established positive contribution to the Conservation Area. However, development on 

this site on the scale of a dwellinghouse would disrupt these positive characteristics, 

and therefore constitute harm to the character and appearance of the Conservation 

Area.”1 

3.28 However, the consultation response has clearly been made without due regard to 

Planning Advice Note 71: Conservation Area Management (PAN-71). PAN-71 is the 

government’s authoritative guidance on development planning and management 

within and around Scotland’s Conservation Areas and informs Scottish Planning Policy 

2014. 

                                                   
1 Underline represents the emphasis of this author for members’ specific attention. 

Page 238

mailto:kate@fergusonplanning.co.uk
http://www.fergusonplanning.co.uk/


 

 

Main Office: 

Shiel House | 54 Island Street | Galashiels | TD1 1NU 

NI Office: 

61 Moyle Road | Ballycastle | Co. Antrim | BT54 6LG 

T 01896 668 744 

M    07586 807 973 

E Ruaraidh@fergusonplanning.co.uk 

W www.fergusonplanning.co.uk 

3.29 Fortunately, PAN-71 is unequivocal on the role of Conservation Areas. This is clearly 

outlined in the extract copied below: 

“Conservation Areas are living environments that despite their history, will continue to 

adapt and develop. Designating a conservation area does not mean a prohibition on 

development. It does mean carefully managing change to ensure that the character and 

appearance of these areas are safeguarded”.2 

3.30 Reporters of the Government’s Planning and Environmental Appeals Division have 

consistently upheld the status of the Planning Advice Notes as material considerations 

bearing considerable weight – PPA-110-2380 and PPA-130-2070 (both issued in 2019) – 

and the ‘in-principle’ acceptability of appropriate new dwellings within designated 

Conservation Areas – PPA-130-2070, PPA-110-2380, PPA-110-2363, PPA-200-2041, 

PPA-230-2288, PPA-290-2053; all issued between May 2017 and December 2019. 

3.31 In light of the material considerations contained within paragraphs 3.27 & 3.29, it is 

established beyond doubt that the Heritage and Design Officer has erred in judgement. 

The opinion: that scope did not exist for “development on this site on the scale of a 

dwellinghouse” stated within the consultation response clearly demonstrates a mis-

understanding of PAN-71 and specifically the fact that the Conservation Area 

designation “does not mean a prohibition on development”.  

3.32 The design of the principal (west) elevation is also considered to be appropriate within 

the Conservation Area. The architecture of the proposed principal elevation broadly 

reflects that of Clifton Cottage – the existing dwelling on the opposite side of High 

Street. While the design largely represents a replication, including of the subservient 

element to the south complete with front door, a single door (as opposed to two) is 

included within the elevation for functional reasons. This is considered to represent a 

modest sympathetic progression on the design concept. Additionally, it should be noted 

that the established, mature hedge across the site’s frontage will largely screen views 

from the street. 

3.33 It also noted that a Character Appraisal/Assessment has not been prepared for the 

Yetholm Conservation Area by the Heritage and Design team. The “Conservation Area 

Statement”3 (a textual webpage hosted on the Council’s website) does not mention 

                                                   
2 Underline represents the emphasis of this author for members’ specific attention. 
3 Conservation areas - Yetholm.  
Available: https://www.scotborders.gov.uk/directory_record/26018/yetholm  

Page 239

mailto:kate@fergusonplanning.co.uk
http://www.fergusonplanning.co.uk/
https://www.scotborders.gov.uk/directory_record/26018/yetholm


 

 

Main Office: 

Shiel House | 54 Island Street | Galashiels | TD1 1NU 

NI Office: 

61 Moyle Road | Ballycastle | Co. Antrim | BT54 6LG 

T 01896 668 744 

M    07586 807 973 

E Ruaraidh@fergusonplanning.co.uk 

W www.fergusonplanning.co.uk 

‘undeveloped land’ or ‘undeveloped spaces’ nor does it identify any contribution they 

might make towards local character. 

 
Fig.6. Photograph taken by Appellant from village green looking towards appeal site. 

3.34 The planning regime – and the legislation and policy which direct it – do not require the 

Heritage and Design team to serve as the administrator of an embargo on new 

development within and around the Borders’ Conservation Areas. It is this mis-

understanding which has given rise to the unsafe advice provided to the Planning Officer 

in the consultation response of the Heritage and Design Officer and led to the incorrect 

application of the second reason for refusal. 

Page 240

mailto:kate@fergusonplanning.co.uk
http://www.fergusonplanning.co.uk/


 

 

Main Office: 

Shiel House | 54 Island Street | Galashiels | TD1 1NU 

NI Office: 

61 Moyle Road | Ballycastle | Co. Antrim | BT54 6LG 

T 01896 668 744 

M    07586 807 973 

E Ruaraidh@fergusonplanning.co.uk 

W www.fergusonplanning.co.uk 

3.35 The assertion that the proposed development is contrary to the text and aims of Policy 

EP9 is unjustified. It is considered that the proposed development would preserve “the 

special architectural and historic character” of Kirk Yetholm as required by Policy EP9 

because the design of the proposed dwelling is heavily influenced by the architecture 

of existing dwellings within this part of the village. Neither Report of Handling 

20/00453/FUL or the consultation response of the Heritage and Design Officer have 

provided any substantive justification to doubt this consideration, and less still to cast 

it aside. Therefore, the proposed development is considered to accord with Policy EP9. 

GROUND 3: THE PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT DOES NOT PROPOSE WORKS TO THE 

GREENSPACE OF THE EXISTING ROADSIDE VERGE AND WATER PUMP, BOTH OF 

WHICH WOULD BE RETAINED IN-SITU. 

 
3.36 Paragraph 3.8 has made clear that no physical works are proposed to the roadside 

verge, including its greenspace. There is no requirement to repeat these arguments. 

3.37 For the sake of clarity, the Appellants do not propose works to the existing drive. The 

“improve existing access” label identified on AH073-P02(B) Site Layout (Fig.2.) refers to 

a possible replacement of existing gravel which may be completed as a final item on the 

schedule of construction works, subject to the Appellants discretion. This work does not 

require planning permission and could be conducted at any time but was included on 

AH073-P02(B) owing to the robust preparation of the Application. Works to the effect 

of re-laying the drive in tarmac concrete pavement or similar, would be likely to require 

planning permission and are not proposed herein. The Appellants are prepared to 

accept a condition to this effect. 

3.38 For the avoidance of doubt – the proposed development does not include the removal 

of the cast iron water pump or any other works to it. 

3.39 The assertion of “direct and indirect adverse impacts and harm caused to the public 

open space (the roadside verge and water pump)” is entirely without foundation. 

Report of Handling 20/00453/FUL – at the direction of the consultation response of the 

Forward Planning team – has established that the incorrect designation of the appeal 

site under Policy EP11 does not present a reason for the refusal of the proposed 

development. Given the absence of detrimental impact on designated greenspace, the 

proposed development is considered to accord with Policy EP11. 

Page 241

mailto:kate@fergusonplanning.co.uk
http://www.fergusonplanning.co.uk/


 

 

Main Office: 

Shiel House | 54 Island Street | Galashiels | TD1 1NU 

NI Office: 

61 Moyle Road | Ballycastle | Co. Antrim | BT54 6LG 

T 01896 668 744 

M    07586 807 973 

E Ruaraidh@fergusonplanning.co.uk 

W www.fergusonplanning.co.uk 

GROUND 4: THE DESIGN OF THE PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT HEAVILY REFLECTS THE 

CHARACTER OF NEARBY EXISTING DWELLINGS WITHIN KIRK YETHOLM AND 

REPRESENTS AN APPROPRIATE ADDITION TO THE LOCAL BUILT ENVIRONMENT. 

 

3.40 The fourth reason for refusal represents the consistent repetition of content throughout 

Report of Handling 20/00453/FUL. 

3.41 It primarily relates to the assertion that the “design [of the proposed dwelling] is not in 

keeping with [the local] vernacular”. However, as established in paragraphs 3.18-3.24, 

this assertion is unjustified as it fails to recognise that the proposed dwelling comprises 

white render elevations and slate roof, in a residential area dominated by existing 

dwellings of white render elevations and slate roofs. The design criticism also neglects 

to account for the modest and sympathetic architecture of the principal elevation. The 

supposed inappropriateness of the design has not been substantiated in this context. 

3.42 The reason for refusal also draws on the objection of the Roads Planning team. 

However, Report of Handling 20/00453/FUL makes no attempt to establish how 

providing two on-site parking spaces and otherwise replicating the parking 

arrangements which serve every other existing dwelling in High Street (with the 

exception of Valley Dene) would represent an ‘unacceptable road safety impact’ – which 

Scottish Planning Policy allows for the refusal of. Therefore this strand of reasoning 

must be disregarded. 

3.43 The design of the proposed dwelling is considered to be sympathetic to the local built 

environment as it comprises white render elevations and slate roof, in a residential area 

dominated by existing dwellings of white render elevations and slate roofs. Therefore 

the proposed development has been made in accordance with Policy PMD2. 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 242

mailto:kate@fergusonplanning.co.uk
http://www.fergusonplanning.co.uk/


 

 

Main Office: 

Shiel House | 54 Island Street | Galashiels | TD1 1NU 

NI Office: 

61 Moyle Road | Ballycastle | Co. Antrim | BT54 6LG 

T 01896 668 744 

M    07586 807 973 

E Ruaraidh@fergusonplanning.co.uk 

W www.fergusonplanning.co.uk 

GROUND 5: BY THE TESTIMONY OF THE SBC ARCHAEOLOGY OFFICER, THERE IS NO 

DEFINITIVE OR DOCUMENTED EVIDENCE THAT THE SITE CONTAINS 

ARCHAEOLOGICAL REMAINS. IN ANY CASE, THE EXISTENCE OF ANY REMAINS DOES 

NOT PRESENT A LEGITIMATE REASON FOR REFUSAL AND THE APPELLANTS ARE 

PREPARED TO ACCEPT A CONDITION REQUIRING ARCHAEOLOGICAL INVESTIGATION 

PRIOR TO THE INITIATION OF CONSTRUCTION WORKS. 

 

3.44 Report of Handling 20/00453/FUL identifies “a moderate or high potential” of the 

existence of “Medieval or early Post-Medieval buildings” archeological remains on-site. 

The Report explains that: 

“The archaeologist requires archaeological evaluation of the site prior to any 

recommendation of approval. This is required to understand whether the site yields 

Medieval or early Post-Medieval buildings. There is a moderate or high potential in this 

location (so close to the heart of the settlement) and I am satisfied that archaeological 

remains, features or finds should be identified and recorded prior to any acceptance of 

the proposal.” 

3.45 Unfortunately the Planning Officer is mistaken. The following extracts have been 

replicated from the consultation response of the Archaeology Officer: 

“I have assessed the application against what is recorded in the Scottish Borders Council 

Historic Environment Record (HER). I have also consulted historic editions of the 

Ordnance Survey mapping of the area. 

The site of this application can be identified in the various Ordnance Survey map 

editions since the first edition surveyed and published in the mid-19th century. Whilst 

the garden plots on the eastern side of the street – then called Tinker’s Row – are largely 

featureless apart from divisions into the plots and paths, their regular layout may 

suggest the former presence of buildings prior to the survey. The presence of a small 

stream or burn is also shown by the first edition. By the Ordnance Survey second edition 

mapping of later 19th century date the stream appears to have been culverted.” 

“Given the location of the proposed property on one of the main roads into the village 

which is of some age it is suggested that an evaluation be carried out prior to the 

determination of this application. It is anticipated that there may have been some 

Page 243

mailto:kate@fergusonplanning.co.uk
http://www.fergusonplanning.co.uk/


 

 

Main Office: 

Shiel House | 54 Island Street | Galashiels | TD1 1NU 

NI Office: 

61 Moyle Road | Ballycastle | Co. Antrim | BT54 6LG 

T 01896 668 744 

M    07586 807 973 

E Ruaraidh@fergusonplanning.co.uk 

W www.fergusonplanning.co.uk 

Medieval or early Post-Medieval buildings present at this location and that any 

archaeological remains, features or finds should be identified and recorded.”4 

3.46 It is impossible to review the consultation response and fail to notice the distinct 

caveats. The suggestion of both on-site building(s) prior to the mid-19th century and of 

development originating closer to the Middle Ages are heavily qualified and the 

Archaeologist – to his credit – never professes to ‘know’ or to attribute ostensible 

likelihoods. 

3.47 In this context, the assertion of “moderate or high potential” of the existence of 

“Medieval or early Post-Medieval buildings” or other archeological remains on-site can 

be best understood as exaggerated and the address to possible “archaeological assets 

of regional or local significance” as pre-emptive. 

3.48 The facts of the matter are twofold. First, there is no definitive or documented evidence 

that the site contains archaeological remains. And second, the Appellants are prepared 

to accept a condition requiring archaeological investigation prior to the initiation of 

construction works so the existence of any remains does not present a legitimate reason 

for refusal. 

 

 

  

                                                   
4 Underline represents the emphasis of this author for members’ specific attention. 

Page 244

mailto:kate@fergusonplanning.co.uk
http://www.fergusonplanning.co.uk/


 

 

Main Office: 

Shiel House | 54 Island Street | Galashiels | TD1 1NU 

NI Office: 

61 Moyle Road | Ballycastle | Co. Antrim | BT54 6LG 

T 01896 668 744 

M    07586 807 973 

E Ruaraidh@fergusonplanning.co.uk 

W www.fergusonplanning.co.uk 

4.0 CONCLUSIONS 

 
4.1 The Appeal, supported by this Statement, requests that the Council overturns the 

decision to refuse Planning Permission for Application 20/00453/FUL and grant consent 

for the demolition of a garage and erection of a dwellinghouse within the garden ground 

of Clifton Cottage, High Street, Kirk Yetholm. 

4.2 The proposed development is for the erection of a new dwelling on a site within the 

single Development Boundary defined for Town Yetholm and Kirk Yetholm. The 

proposed dwelling would sit in harmony with existing land uses nearby and in all other 

ways represent a sensitive, restrained, and measured addition to Kirk Yetholm. This 

reflects the position of the Forward Planning team laid out in their consultation 

response. Therefore, the proposed development is considered to accord with Policy 

PMD5. 

4.3 The design of the proposed dwelling is heavily influenced by the architecture of existing 

dwellings within this part of Kirk Yetholm and so would preserve “the special 

architectural and historic character” of the village, which forms part of the designated 

Yetholm Conservation Area. Attempted criticisms of the design have failed to establish 

themselves in or reconcile to this reality. Therefore the proposed development is 

considered to represent good design and to be acceptable within the Conservation Area 

in accordance with both Policies EP9 and PMD2. 

4.4 Report of Handling 20/00453/FUL and the consultation response of the Forward 

Planning team have established that the incorrect designation of the appeal site under 

Policy EP11 does not prevent erection of a new dwelling. No physical works are 

proposed to the roadside verge. The proposed dwelling and all building works are to be 

contained behind the established, mature boundary hedge. The existing drive on-site is 

used by the occupants of Clifton Cottage and no evidence to substantiate the assertion 

that use of the drive by the occupants of the proposed dwelling would represent “harm 

in the form of damage” has been presented. The proposed development would not 

have a detrimental impact on designated greenspace and is considered to accord with 

Policy EP11.  

4.5 The Appellants are prepared to accept a condition requiring archaeological investigation 

prior to the initiation of construction works. This is standard procedure and no 

justification for a deviation has been substantiated. 

Page 245

mailto:kate@fergusonplanning.co.uk
http://www.fergusonplanning.co.uk/


 

 

Main Office: 

Shiel House | 54 Island Street | Galashiels | TD1 1NU 

NI Office: 

61 Moyle Road | Ballycastle | Co. Antrim | BT54 6LG 

T 01896 668 744 

M    07586 807 973 

E Ruaraidh@fergusonplanning.co.uk 

W www.fergusonplanning.co.uk 

4.6 The Local Review Body is respectfully requested to allow the appeal for the demolition 

of a garage and erection of a dwellinghouse. 

 
  

Page 246

mailto:kate@fergusonplanning.co.uk
http://www.fergusonplanning.co.uk/


 

 

Main Office: 

Shiel House | 54 Island Street | Galashiels | TD1 1NU 

NI Office: 

61 Moyle Road | Ballycastle | Co. Antrim | BT54 6LG 

T 01896 668 744 

M    07586 807 973 

E Ruaraidh@fergusonplanning.co.uk 

W www.fergusonplanning.co.uk 

APPENDIX 1 
 

Core Documents 

The following drawings, documents, and plans have been submitted to support the appeal: 

 Appeal Form; 

 CD1 Appeal Statement, prepared by Ferguson Planning; 

 Application Form; 

 CD2 (Application) Planning Statement, prepared by Ferguson Planning; 

 CD3 AH073-P03(B) Location Plan, prepared by Aidan Hume Design; 

 CD4 AH073-P02(B) Site Layout Plan, prepared by Aidan Hume Design; 

 CD5 AH073-P01(A) Revised Plans, prepared by Aidan Hume Design; 

 CD6 AH073-P04(B) Shadow Plan, prepared by Aidan Hume Design; 

 CD7 Representation Letter dated 27th May, prepared by Ferguson Planning; 

 CD8 Land Register Title Deed for Clifton Cottage, Kirk Yetholm (private cover); 

 CD9 Yetholm Conservation Area Statement, prepared by SBC Heritage and Design team; 

 CD10 Planning Advice Note 71: Conservation Area Management; 

 CD11 Appeal Decision PPA-130-2070; 

 CD12 Appeal Decision PPA-110-2380; 

 CD13 Appeal Decision PPA-110-2363; 

 CD14 Appeal Decision PPA-200-2041; 

 CD15 Appeal Decision PPA-230-2288; 

 CD16 Appeal Decision PPA-290-2053; 

 CD17 Report of Handling 20/00453/FUL; and 

 CD18 Decision Notice 20/00453/FUL. 

 

Page 247

mailto:kate@fergusonplanning.co.uk
http://www.fergusonplanning.co.uk/


This page is intentionally left blank



Page 1 of 8

Newtown St Boswells Melrose TD6 0SA  Tel: Payments 01835 825251/System Help 01835 826705  Email: 
corporatebusinesssystems@scotborders.gov.uk 

Applications cannot be validated until all the necessary documentation has been submitted and the required fee has been paid.

Thank you for completing this application form:

ONLINE REFERENCE 100250957-001

The online reference is the unique reference for your online form only. The  Planning Authority will allocate an Application Number when 
your form is validated. Please quote this reference if you need to contact the planning Authority about this application.

Type of Application
What is this application for? Please select one of the following: *

  Application for planning permission (including changes of use and surface  mineral working).

  Application for planning permission in principle.

  Further application, (including renewal of planning permission, modification, variation or removal of a planning condition etc)

  Application for Approval of Matters specified in conditions.

Description of Proposal
Please describe the proposal including any change of use: *  (Max 500 characters)

Is this a temporary permission? *  Yes   No

If a change of use is to be included in the proposal has it already taken place?  Yes   No
(Answer ‘No’ if there is no change of use.) *

Has the work already been started and/or completed? *

 No   Yes – Started   Yes - Completed

Applicant or Agent Details
Are you an applicant or an agent? * (An agent is an architect, consultant or someone else acting
on behalf of the applicant in connection with this application)  Applicant  Agent

Demolition of a garage and erection of a dwelling together with access, landscaping and associated works

Page 249



Page 2 of 8

Agent Details
Please enter Agent details

Company/Organisation:

Ref. Number: You must enter a Building Name or Number, or both: *

First Name: * Building Name:

Last Name: *  Building Number:

Address 1
Telephone Number: * (Street): *

Extension Number: Address 2:

Mobile Number: Town/City: *

Fax Number: Country: *

Postcode: *

Email Address: *

Is the applicant an individual or an organisation/corporate entity? *

  Individual    Organisation/Corporate entity

Applicant Details
Please enter Applicant details

Title: You must enter a Building Name or Number, or both: *

Other Title: Building Name:

First Name: * Building Number:

Address 1
Last Name: * (Street): *

Company/Organisation Address 2:

Telephone Number: * Town/City: *

Extension Number: Country: *

Mobile Number: Postcode: *

Fax Number:

Email Address: *

Ferguson Planning

Other

Mr & Mrs

-

D & C

-

Morrison

Island Street

Island Street

54

54

Shiel House

Shiel House

01896 668744

TD1 1NU

TD1 1NU

Scotland

Scotland

Galashiels

Galashiels

tim@fergusonplanning.co.uk

tim@fergusonplanning.co.uk

per Agent

Page 250



Page 3 of 8

Site Address Details
Planning Authority: 

Full postal address of the site (including postcode where available):

Address 1:  

Address 2:

Address 3:

Address 4:

Address 5:

Town/City/Settlement:

Post Code:

Please identify/describe the location of the site or sites

Northing Easting

Pre-Application Discussion
Have you discussed your proposal with the planning authority? *  Yes   No

Pre-Application Discussion Details Cont.

In what format was the feedback given? *

 Meeting  Telephone  Letter  Email

Please provide a description of the feedback you were given and the name of the officer who provided this feedback. If a processing 
agreement [note 1] is currently in place or if you are currently discussing a processing agreement with the planning authority, please 
provide details of this. (This will help the authority to deal with this application more efficiently.) * (max 500 characters)

Title: Other title: 

First Name: Last Name:

Correspondence Reference Date (dd/mm/yyyy):
Number:

Note 1. A Processing agreement involves setting out the key stages involved in determining a planning application, identifying what 
information is required and from whom and setting timescales for the delivery of various stages of the process. 

Formal pre-application enquiry conducted by Applicant as the landowner

Mr

Scottish Borders Council

Euan

19/00406/PREAPP

Calvert

09/10/2019

628166 382786

Page 251



Page 4 of 8

Site Area
Please state the site area:

Please state the measurement type used:  Hectares (ha)   Square Metres (sq.m)

Existing Use
Please describe the current or most recent use: *  (Max 500 characters)

Access and Parking
Are you proposing a new altered vehicle access to or from a public road? *  Yes   No

If Yes please describe and show on your drawings the position of any existing. Altered or new access points, highlighting the changes 
you propose to make. You should also show existing footpaths and note if there will be any impact on these.

Are you proposing any change to public paths, public rights of way or affecting any public right of access? *  Yes   No

If Yes please show on your drawings the position of any affected areas highlighting the changes you propose to make, including 
arrangements for continuing or alternative public access.

How many vehicle parking spaces (garaging and open parking) currently exist on the application
Site?

How many vehicle parking spaces (garaging and open parking) do you propose on the site (i.e. the
Total of existing and any new spaces or a reduced number of spaces)? *

Please show on your drawings the position of existing and proposed parking spaces and identify if these are for the use of particular 
types of vehicles (e.g. parking for disabled people, coaches, HGV vehicles, cycles spaces).

Water Supply and Drainage Arrangements
Will your proposal require new or altered water supply or drainage arrangements? *  Yes   No

Are you proposing to connect to the public drainage network (eg. to an existing sewer)? *

  Yes – connecting to public drainage network

  No – proposing to make private drainage arrangements

  Not Applicable – only arrangements for water supply required

Do your proposals make provision for sustainable drainage of surface water?? *  Yes   No
(e.g. SUDS arrangements) *

Note:- 

Please include details of SUDS arrangements on your plans

Selecting ‘No’ to the above question means that you could be in breach of Environmental legislation.

289.00

Private garden

2

2

Page 252



Page 5 of 8

Are you proposing to connect to the public water supply network? *

  Yes

  No, using a private water supply

  No connection required

If No, using a private water supply, please show on plans the supply and all works needed to provide it (on or off site).

Assessment of Flood Risk
Is the site within an area of known risk of flooding? *  Yes    No   Don’t Know

If the site is within an area of known risk of flooding you may need to submit a Flood Risk Assessment before your application can be 
determined. You may wish to contact your Planning Authority or SEPA for advice on what information may be required.

Do you think your proposal may increase the flood risk elsewhere? *  Yes    No   Don’t Know

Trees
Are there any trees on or adjacent to the application site? *  Yes   No

If Yes, please mark on your drawings any trees, known protected trees and their canopy spread close to the proposal site and indicate if 
any are to be cut back or felled.

Waste Storage and Collection
Do the plans incorporate areas to store and aid the collection of waste (including recycling)? *  Yes   No

If Yes or No, please provide further details: * (Max 500 characters)

Residential Units Including Conversion
Does your proposal include new or additional houses and/or flats? *  Yes   No

How many units do you propose in total? *

Please provide full details of the number and types of units on the plans. Additional information may be provided in a supporting 
statement.

All Types of Non Housing Development – Proposed New Floorspace
Does your proposal alter or create non-residential floorspace? *  Yes   No

Schedule 3 Development
Does the proposal involve a form of development listed in Schedule 3 of the Town and Country  Yes   No   Don’t Know
Planning (Development Management Procedure (Scotland) Regulations 2013 *

If yes, your proposal will additionally have to be advertised in a newspaper circulating in the area of the development. Your planning 
authority will do this on your behalf but will charge you a fee. Please check the planning authority’s website for advice on the additional 
fee and add this to your planning fee.

If you are unsure whether your proposal involves a form of development listed in Schedule 3, please check the Help Text and Guidance 
notes before contacting your planning authority.

Proposed drive comprises sufficient space to park 2 no. cars with additional space to place 240L bins

1

Page 253



Page 6 of 8

Planning Service Employee/Elected Member Interest
Is the applicant, or the applicant’s spouse/partner, either a member of staff within the planning service or an  Yes    No
elected member of the planning authority? *

Certificates and Notices
CERTIFICATE AND NOTICE UNDER REGULATION 15 – TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING (DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT 
PROCEDURE) (SCOTLAND) REGULATION 2013

One Certificate must be completed and submitted along with the application form. This is most usually Certificate A, Form 1,
Certificate B, Certificate C or Certificate E.

Are you/the applicant the sole owner of ALL the land? *  Yes    No

Is any of the land part of an agricultural holding? *  Yes    No

Certificate Required
The following Land Ownership Certificate is required to complete this section of the proposal:

Certificate A

Land Ownership Certificate
Certificate and Notice under Regulation 15 of the Town and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) (Scotland) 
Regulations 2013

Certificate A

I hereby certify that –

(1) - No person other than myself/the applicant was an owner (Any person who, in respect of any part of the land, is the owner or is the 
lessee under a lease thereof of which not less than 7 years remain unexpired.) of any part of the land to which the application relates at 
the beginning of the period of 21 days ending with the date of the accompanying application.

(2) - None of the land to which the application relates constitutes or forms part of an agricultural holding

Signed: - -

On behalf of: Mr & Mrs D & C Morrison

Date: 28/04/2020

 Please tick here to certify this Certificate. *

Page 254



Page 7 of 8

Checklist – Application for Planning Permission
Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997

The Town and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) (Scotland) Regulations 2013

Please take a few moments to complete the following checklist in order to ensure that you have provided all the necessary information 
in support of your application. Failure to submit sufficient information with your application may result in your application being deemed 
invalid. The planning authority will not start processing your application until it is valid.

a) If this is a further application where there is a variation of conditions attached to a previous consent, have you provided a statement to 
that effect? *
 Yes   No   Not applicable to this application

b) If this is an application for planning permission or planning permission in principal where there is a crown interest in the land, have 
you provided a statement to that effect? *
 Yes   No   Not applicable to this application

c) If this is an application for planning permission, planning permission in principle or a further application and the application is for 
development belonging to the categories of national or major development (other than one under Section 42 of the planning Act), have 
you provided a Pre-Application Consultation Report? *
 Yes   No   Not applicable to this application

Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997

The Town and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) (Scotland) Regulations 2013

d) If this is an application for planning permission and the application relates to development belonging to the categories of national or 
major developments and you do not benefit from exemption under Regulation 13 of The Town and Country Planning (Development 
Management Procedure) (Scotland) Regulations 2013, have you provided a Design and Access Statement? *
 Yes   No   Not applicable to this application

e) If this is an application for planning permission and relates to development belonging to the category of local developments (subject 
to regulation 13. (2) and (3) of the Development Management Procedure (Scotland) Regulations 2013) have you provided a Design 
Statement? *
 Yes   No   Not applicable to this application

f) If your application relates to installation of an antenna to be employed in an electronic communication network, have you provided an 
ICNIRP Declaration? *
 Yes   No   Not applicable to this application

g) If this is an application for planning permission, planning permission in principle, an application for approval of matters specified in 
conditions or an application for mineral development, have you provided any other plans or drawings as necessary:

  Site Layout Plan or Block plan.

  Elevations.

  Floor plans.

  Cross sections.

  Roof plan.

  Master Plan/Framework Plan.

  Landscape plan.

  Photographs and/or photomontages.

  Other.

If Other, please specify: *  (Max 500 characters) 

Page 255



Page 8 of 8

Provide copies of the following documents if applicable:

A copy of an Environmental Statement. *  Yes   N/A

A Design Statement or Design and Access Statement. *  Yes   N/A

A Flood Risk Assessment. *  Yes   N/A

A Drainage Impact Assessment (including proposals for Sustainable Drainage Systems). *  Yes   N/A

Drainage/SUDS layout. *  Yes   N/A

A Transport Assessment or Travel Plan  Yes   N/A

Contaminated Land Assessment. *  Yes   N/A

Habitat Survey. *  Yes   N/A

A Processing Agreement. *  Yes   N/A

Other Statements (please specify). (Max 500 characters)

Declare – For Application to Planning Authority
I, the applicant/agent certify that this is an application to the planning authority as described in this form. The accompanying
Plans/drawings and additional information are provided as a part of this application.

Declaration Name: Mr - -

Declaration Date: 28/04/2020
 

Payment Details

Cheque: Mr D & Mrs C Morrison,  12345678
Created: 28/04/2020 17:31

Planning Statement

Page 256



An

Shelter

Grianan

Thimbles

Church View

Braeside

Fern Cottage
Chelsea Cottage

Cottage
Poppy

5

LB

GP

HILL VIEW

(site of)

TCB

Cross
The Cottage

ROAD

1

Rowantree

114.0m

House

11

HIGH

Craggystanes

9The Palace

Burnsyde

STREET

382700
382700

382750
382750

382800
382800

382850
382850

628100 628100

628150 628150

628200 628200

metres

0 20 40 60 80 100

382658

628078

382658

628209

382872

628209

382872

628078

NT8228 NT8228

NT8228NT8228

MapServe

© Crown copyright 2020 Ordnance Survey 100053143

PROPOSED DWELLING HOUSE,
CLIFTON COTTAGE
HIGH STREET
KIRK YETHOLM
TD5 8PH

C Aidan Hume Design Ltd. This drawing should not be copied or reproduced, or
used for other than the noted project, without prior consent.

Project:

Drawn by:Scale: Date:

Client:

Project no:

Title:

Issue:

Paper size: 

Drawing no:

AH Aidan Hume Design 

Galashilels
113 Channel Street

Architectural Services

 email:- aidan.ahdesign@outlook.com
TD1 1BN

tel:- 07792 599343  or 07788 420822

1 : 1000                A3 AH 15.05.20

AH073 P03 B

LOCATION PLAN

MR & MRS D MORRISON

Site Referred to in the Application outlined red
Property Owned by Applicant outlined Blue

P
age 257



T
his page is intentionally left blank



HIGH

Craggystanes

STREET
PROPOSED DWELLING HOUSE,
CLIFTON COTTAGE
HIGH STREET
KIRK YETHOLM
TD5 8PH

C Aidan Hume Design Ltd. This drawing should not be copied or reproduced, or
used for other than the noted project, without prior consent.

Project:

Drawn by:Scale: Date:

Client:

Project no:

Title:

Issue:

Paper size: 

Drawing no:

AH Aidan Hume Design 

Galashilels
113 Channel Street

Architectural Services

 email:- aidan.ahdesign@outlook.com
TD1 1BN

tel:- 07792 599343  or 07788 420822

1 : 200                  A3 AH 15.05.20

AH073 P02 B

SITE LAYOUT PLAN

MR & MRS D MORRISON

1

2 3

4

5

6
7

8

9

10

11

1. Improve existing access
2. Form parking for 2 vehicles
3. Remove existing garage
4. Proposed new house
5. New patio and paths around house
6. Landscape garden as necessary to the
clients requirements.
7. Allow for leaving but tidying up existing
hedge.
8. Existing double garage.
9. Applicants property.
10. Field
11. Existing outbuildings

12

12 12

12. New timber post and rail fences to 
North, East, and Southern boundaries

P
age 259



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Bedroom 3
Bedroom 2

Entrance Hall

Kitchen Dining 

Shower Rm

Utility

Vestibule
cpd

up

Lounge

wc

En-Suite

Dressing
Room

Master Bedroom

covered balcony

sink

cooker

units

is
la

nd
 u

ni
t

w
ith

 b
re

ak
fa

st
 b

ar

whb wc

shower wc

wc

whb

whb

bath

52
00

7000

2500

18
00

15
88

1745

17
91

32
50

3073

3073

wrd

wrd

23
37

7000

40
00

32
50

4699

2196

22
20

wrd

17
75

15
00

7700

11
95

5

7700

26
54

2850

60
98

11
95

5

Ground Floor Plan First Floor Plan

East ElevationWest Elevation South Elevation North Elevation

PROPOSED DWELLING HOUSE,
CLIFTON COTTAGE
HIGH STREET
KIRK YETHOLM
TD5 8PH

C Aidan Hume Design Ltd. This drawing should not be copied or reproduced, or
used for other than the noted project, without prior consent.

Project:

Drawn by:Scale: Date:

Client:

Project no:

Title:

Issue:

Paper size: 

Drawing no:

AH Aidan Hume Design 

Galashilels
113 Channel Street

Architectural Services

 email:- aidan.ahdesign@outlook.com
TD1 1BN

tel:- 07792 599343  or 07788 420822

1:50 & 1 : 100         A1 AH 20.04.20

AH073 P01 A

FLOOR PLANS (Planning Drawing)

MR & MRS D MORRISON

welsh or similar slate finish to the
roof to match the cottages opposite

welsh or similar slate finish to the
roof to match the cottages opposite

welsh or similar slate finish to the
roof to match the cottages opposite

welsh or similar slate finish to the
roof to match the cottages opposite

welsh or similar slate finish to the
roof to match the cottages opposite

black deep flow marley or similar
approved upvc gutters and down pipes smooth cement bands around windows

smooth cement bands around windows

new timber double glazed windows, exact
style to be agreed with Planners

half glazed door

facing brick base course

treated timber fascias

sliding doors with glazed panel either
side

glass balcony

facing brick base course

wet dash roughcast
finish painted white
to match houses on
street wet dash roughcast finish to match houses

on the same street

exact style of timber double glazed windows to be
agreed with the Planning dept

allow for flush solar panels to the elevationallow for flush solar panels to the elevation

P
age 261



T
his page is intentionally left blank



5

GP

HILL VIEW

(site of)
Cross

ROAD

1

Rowantree

114.0m

House

11

HIGH

Craggystanes

9The Palace

Burnsyde

STREET

382700

382750

382800

382850

628200

382872

628209

EASTWEST

PROPOSED DWELLING HOUSE,
CLIFTON COTTAGE
HIGH STREET
KIRK YETHOLM
TD5 8PH

C Aidan Hume Design Ltd. This drawing should not be copied or reproduced, or
used for other than the noted project, without prior consent.

Project:

Drawn by:Scale: Date:

Client:

Project no:

Title:

Issue:

Paper size: 

Drawing no:

AH Aidan Hume Design 

Galashilels
113 Channel Street

Architectural Services

 email:- aidan.ahdesign@outlook.com
TD1 1BN

tel:- 07792 599343  or 07788 420822

1 : 500                  A3 AH 27.05.20

AH073 P03 B

SHADOW PLAN

MR & MRS D MORRISON

P
age 263



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Page 265



Page 266



Page 267



Page 268



Page 269



Page 270



Page 271



Page 272



Page 273



Page 274



02/07/2020 Conservation areas - Yetholm | Scottish Borders Council

https://www.scotborders.gov.uk/directory_record/26018/yetholm 1/2

Home /  Planning and building /  Conservation areas /  Yetholm

Conservation areas - Yetholm
Conservation Area
Yetholm

Conservation Area Statement
The Yetholm Conservation Area comprises most of the village, however unlike other Conservation
Areas within the Borders it is distinctive in that it comprises of two separate areas – Town Yetholm and
Kirk Yetholm. 

The Conservation Area of Yetholm has many special characteristics that are not found in many other
locations even outwith the Borders. 

The most important features of the Yetholm Conservation Area are its historic layout with both Town
Yetholm and Kirk Yetholm with their own green, along with its attractive rural setting. 

Properties are mainly two storeys in height though one and a half storey properties do exist in Kirk
Yetholm. As the layout of Yetholm is one of the most important features of the Conservation Area, it is
recommended that new development should respect this characteristic. 

Buildings of feature include the Parish Church, Blunty’s Mill, and the Old Border Inn all in Kirk Yetholm;
and in Town Yetholm the War Memorial and the Wauchope Monument and the listed “Thatched
Cottage” on the High Street. 

The majority of properties are constructed of traditional materials, whinstone, slate, and harling all
predominate. Sandstone can also be found though in the use of rybats, margins, lintels, sills and skews
and on some occasions as the main construction material. 

With regards to architectural detailing, sash and case windows, margins and rybats, transom lights,
simple panel doors, and dormers all appear frequently. 

While these individual elements of the built fabric may not appear significant, their collective contribution
to the Conservation Area forms its character. Any new development or alterations must therefore aim to
respect the individual building and the wider Conservation Area and take account of these important
features. 

There are 83 properties currently listed within the Yetholm Conservation Area.

Alterations from previous Statement and Boundary
Alterations to the Yetholm Conservation Area boundary from that shown in the Roxburgh Local Plan
1995 consist of the inclusion of the remainder of the allotment gardens (Town Yetholm) and the
inclusion of land south-west of the Manse (Kirk Yetholm). General tidying of the boundary was also
undertaken so that it follows elements on the ground.

Download PDF Page 275

https://www.scotborders.gov.uk/
https://www.scotborders.gov.uk/info/20012/planning_and_building
https://www.scotborders.gov.uk/directory/69/conservation_areas


02/07/2020 Conservation areas - Yetholm | Scottish Borders Council

https://www.scotborders.gov.uk/directory_record/26018/yetholm 2/2

Yetholm Conservation Area

Author
Scottish Borders Council

Published date
July 2012

Contact
Heritage and Design Officer

Online Form
Contact heritage and design officer

Share this information

Facebook

Twitter

LinkedIn

Page 276

https://www.scotborders.gov.uk/downloads/file/1108/yetholm_conservation_area
https://www.scotborders.gov.uk/site/xfp/scripts/xforms_form.php?formID=102&language=en
http://www.facebook.com/share.php?u=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.scotborders.gov.uk%2Fdirectory_record%2F26018%2Fyetholm
https://twitter.com/home?status=Conservation+areas+-+Yetholm+https%3A%2F%2Fwww.scotborders.gov.uk%2Fdirectory_record%2F26018%2Fyetholm
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.scotborders.gov.uk%2Fdirectory_record%2F26018%2Fyetholm&title=Conservation+areas+-+Yetholm


conservation

Designation alone will not secure the protection and enhancement of
conservation areas. Active management is vital to ensure that
change can be accommodated for the better

Area Management

>

preserve enhance appraisal manage

PAN
71

Planning Advice Note

Page 277



Planning series:
> Scottish Planning Policies (SPPs) provide statements

of Scottish Executive policy on nationally important land

use and other planning matters, supported where

appropriate by a locational framework.

> Circulars, which also provide statements of Scottish

Executive policy, contain guidance on policy

implementation through legislative or procedural change.

> Planning Advice Notes (PANs) provide advice on

good practice and other relevant information.

Statements of Scottish Executive policy contained in SPPs

and Circulars may be material considerations to be taken

into account in development plan preparation and

development control.

Existing National Planning Policy Guidelines (NPPGs) have

continued relevance to decision making, until such time as

they are replaced by a SPP. The term SPP should be

interpreted as including NPPGs.

Statements of Scottish Executive location-specific planning

policy, for example the West Edinburgh Planning

Framework, have the same status in decision making as

SPPs.

protection
enhancement

and

Page 278



conservation
Area Management

preserve enhance appraisal manage

Planning Advice Note

>

December 2004
© Crown copyright 2004    
ISBN: 0-7559-4206-X
ISSN: 0141-514X

Page 279



Page 280



Contents

1

Introduction

4

Managing Change

16

Knowledge
and Skills

18

Conclusion

3

Designation
and Review

14

Funding and
Resources

17

Monitoring
and Review

20

Annex
Conservation
Area Appraisal

Page 281



1: Biggar
2: Merchant City Glasgow
3: Eyemouth

2 3

1

Page 282



Designing Places, published in November 2001, 
sets out the Scottish Executive’s expectations of 
the planning system to deliver high standards of
design and quality. This Planning Advice Note (PAN)
fits with Designing Places and forms part of the
design series of Advice Notes, which together 
strive to provide the foundations for tomorrow’s
conservation areas.

There are over 600 conservation areas in Scotland.
They can be found in our cities, towns, villages and in 
some rural settings, and can play an important role in
economic and community regeneration and environmental
enhancement. The designation of a conservation area 
is a means to safeguard and enhance the sense of place,
character and appearance of our most valued historic
places. Buildings of character, listed buildings, scheduled
monuments, trees, historic street patterns, open spaces
and designed gardens and landscapes are important
components of these areas. The overall layout and pattern
of development may be just as important to the character
as individual buildings. The activities that go on inside
conservation areas are also important. Conservation 
areas are living environments that despite their history, 
will continue to adapt and develop. Designating a
conservation area does not mean a prohibition on
development. It does mean carefully managing change 
to ensure that the character and appearance of these 
areas are safeguarded and enhanced for the enjoyment
and benefit of future generations.     

This PAN complements existing national policy and
provides further advice on the management of conservation
areas. It identifies good practice for managing change, sets
out a checklist for appraising conservation areas and
provides advice on funding and implementation.

This PAN should be read in conjunction with other 
national policy and advice. Of particular relevance are: 
The Memorandum of Guidance on Listed Buildings and
Conservation Areas, NPPG 18 Planning and the Historic
Environment, Designing Places: A Policy Statement for
Scotland, PAN 52 Planning in Small Towns, and PAN 68
Design Statements.

The advice in this PAN will be of particular relevance 
to planning authorities, but effective management of
conservation areas requires support and input from 
other stakeholders. This advice is also intended as 
a guide for other local authority interests, developers, 
heritage trusts, utility companies, public sector agencies,
residents, property owners, community organisations 
and amenity bodies. Effective co-ordination of the
knowledge, enthusiasm, commitment and resources 
of these interests can contribute significantly to the 
effective conservation and enhancement of Scotland’s
historic environment and the quality of life of those who 
live in, use and enjoy these places.    

Introduction

1

Page 283



enhance
Designation of a conservation area should not be regarded principally as 
a means of increasing control but rather as a commitment to take positive
action to safeguard and enhance the character and appearance of the
conservation area. Memorandum of Guidance, sect 4.21.

Page 284



Designation and Review
The Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation
Areas) (Scotland) Act 1997 states that conservation
areas “are areas of special architectural or historic
interest, the character or appearance of which it is
desirable to preserve or enhance”. Local authorities
have a statutory duty to identify and designate such
areas.

Special architectural interest can be interpreted
broadly. As well as the settings of architectural set
pieces and the spaces between buildings, designation
can give recognition to groups of individual buildings 
or characteristic forms of urban development and
evolution. Equally, conservation area designation
provides scope for special recognition of the best
examples of town planning and urban design. Special
historic interest relates to areas with a connection to
events or themes of historic or cultural significance.

The statutory procedures for designation are well
established. Proposals for designation, variation or
cancellation must be publicised. The Scottish Ministers
also need to be notified. Owners and occupiers of
property within a proposed conservation area do not
have to be specifically notified and there is no right of
appeal against a designation, variation or cancellation.
Wherever possible, proposals to designate, cancel or
redefine the boundaries of conservation areas should
first be subject to public consultation through the local
plan process, thus providing opportunity for the views
of stakeholders to be taken into account.

Whilst designation is a valuable tool in the protection 
of important areas, authorities should be careful not to
assume that designation alone will secure protection
and enhancement. Review of existing areas is required
and provides an opportunity to assess the justification
for designation, consider the validation of boundaries,
identify opportunities for enhancement and set
management priorities.

3

1: West Wemyss
2: Inverness

2

1 enhance appraisal

Page 285



Managing Change       
When effectively managed, conservation areas can
anchor thriving communities, sustain cultural heritage,
generate wealth and prosperity and add to quality of
life. To realise this potential many of them need to
continue to adapt and develop in response to the
modern-day needs and aspirations of living and
working communities. This means accommodating
physical, social and economic change for the better.  

Physical change in conservation areas does not
necessarily need to replicate its surroundings.
The challenge is to ensure that all new development
respects, enhances and has a positive impact on the
area. Physical and land use change in conservation
areas should always be founded on a detailed
understanding of the historic and urban design context.

Whilst the scope for new development may be limited
in many conservation areas, all will present some
opportunities for enhancement. Most will contain
buildings, vacant sites or inappropriate street furniture
that have a negative impact on the character and
appearance of the area. These represent opportunities
for improvement and when managed effectively, can
act as a catalyst for economic, community and
environmental regeneration. 

4

appraisal manage

Page 286



Understanding and Evaluating

Past approaches to conservation area management
have too often been based on a limited understanding
of the heritage resource involved. In some cases there
has also been an overemphasis on regulation and a
lack of clarity over priorities for improvement. ‘Facelift’
schemes which offer short term visual gain rather than
more enduring, sustainable conservation, are common.
Opportunities for positive planning and enhancement
may be missed as a result. A pro-active approach is
required.

An overall strategy or vision for each conservation area
will help to determine priorities. Townscape audits and
conservation area appraisals are useful tools for
developing and implementing a management strategy. 

Townscape audits do not just apply to the historic
environment but provide an analysis of the physical
characteristics of the entire settlement. An
understanding of the wider area is vital in the
management of conservation areas. Townscape 
audits will identify the context, use and function 
of a conservation area and its relationship and
importance to the surrounding settlement. Further
information regarding townscape audits can be 
found in NPPG 18 and PAN 52.

Conservation area appraisals focus on areas which 
lie within existing or proposed conservation area
boundaries. They analyse what makes a place 
special and assist managers in: defining and reviewing
boundaries; identifying opportunities and priorities for
enhancement; assisting policy formulation; ensuring
consistent decision making and supporting funding
bids. An appraisal is a vital tool to enable the active
management of conservation areas. Authorities should
prepare one for each conservation area to assist the
management process. Further guidance on
conservation area appraisals can be found in NPPG 18
and an appraisal checklist is set out in the annex to 
this PAN. 

The management strategy for each conservation 
area should have shared ownership, involving all 
the stakeholders in an open and inclusive way.  
There should also be an understanding of what is
achievable and what can be delivered in the short,
medium and long term.

5

1: Beith: 1950’s to present
2: Beith: 1950’s to present
3: Glasgow

3

1

2

Page 287



Policy Framework       

Once an understanding of the special characteristics,
pressures and priorities of a conservation area has
been established, it is vital that they are fed into the
development plan or supplementary guidance.

NPPG 18 sets out the requirements for structure and
local plans. In the past, authorities have tended to 
rely on general local plan policies for the protection 
of conservation areas. Whilst these are important,
NPPG 18 also requires that local plans go a step 
further and set out opportunities and priorities for
enhancement. These need not be overly prescriptive
but should identify sites of opportunity and areas 
where the Council and other stakeholders will be 
taking action. The detail of this, which will be informed
by a conservation area appraisal, should be set out 
in action plans or supplementary guidance. Such
detailed guidance will provide more certainty to the
decision making process. Local plan policies should
promote positive development.

Whilst NPPG 18 states that development which would
have a neutral effect upon the conservation area
should be treated as one which preserves the area’s
character or appearance, this should be considered 
as the minimum standard. Local plan policies and
supplementary guidance should promote 
and reflect this commitment to quality.  

Supplementary planning guidance also plays a
fundamental role in the protection and enhancement 
of conservation areas. Appraisals are likely to be the
main form of conservation guidance and will identify
issues which require further supplementary guidance.

6

preserve enhance

Page 288



Development Control       

Development control has a fundamental role in the
management of conservation areas. It is vital that
decision makers have the knowledge, skills and
confidence to ensure high design quality in
conservation areas. Clear information and guidance 
is essential for planners, politicians and local
communities to come to a quick and considered 
view on the merits of proposals for change. A clear
policy framework and supporting guidance will
encourage the submission of quality proposals 
and promote consistent decision making.

Design statements are a way to explain how specific
proposals will enhance the quality of an area. For
significant applications within conservation areas, 
local authorities should encourage applicants to submit
design statements based on conservation area
appraisals.

Planning applications in outline will rarely provide the
level of detail required to assess whether the proposal
will harm the character of a conservation area or not.
It is important to avoid outline consents for large
residential or commercial developments without any
understanding or realistic assessment of whether they
can be accommodated sensitively within the setting 
of the area. The submission of a design statement 
will aid the assessment and consideration of proposals
in outline and can be used to inform the preparation 
of planning conditions. Appropriate conditions and
effective enforcement should provide confidence 
that the desired level of quality can be secured.    

Conservation area consent for demolition will not
normally be granted in the absence of a detailed
application, approved in parallel, for the replacement
development. This is to avoid the formation of gap sites
and to ascertain that the development will enhance or
preserve the character of the area, as defined in the
conservation area appraisal. 

Conditions attached to a planning permission 
can assist the effective regulation of development.
They should meet the tests set out in Circular 4/1998
The Use of Conditions in Planning Permissions. Use of
standard conditions may not be sufficient to maintain
and enhance the special character of the conservation
area.    

Enforcement

Enforcement has a key role to play in the protection 
of conservation areas. Local authority enforcement
strategies are generally reactive, resulting in
investigation only when a formal complaint is made.
For conservation areas, local authorities should
consider a more proactive approach including
monitoring development activity and ensuring
compliance with the terms of planning permissions.  
A positive and active approach to enforcement will 
help to reduce the number of contraventions and
secure sustained improvements in environmental
quality.   

7

1: Inverness
2: Dunkeld

2

1

Page 289



Case Study

Burgh Yard, Dollar, is a quality development on a key site within an outstanding conservation area. 
The success of the development is attributable to Clackmannanshire Council’s active management process,
which was recognised in 1997 with a Scottish Award for Quality in Planning.

The brownfield site provided a rare opportunity for new build within the conservation area. Clackmannanshire
Council recognised that wider benefits could be achieved by collectively considering the site along with two
neighbouring sites which were considered to have a negative impact on the conservation area.

A detailed development brief was prepared and a design competition launched. A panel of conservation
experts (including the Royal Fine Art Commission for Scotland, The Scottish Civic Trust, the Architectural
Heritage Society and the Dollar Civic Trust) acted as judges and unanimously chose the winning scheme.

The Council’s management strategy also had a number of safeguards to ensure that a quality development
was achieved. This included tying detailed drawings into feuing conditions for the site and using the Builder’s
Licence Scheme.

Clackmannanshire Council displayed excellent management skills by considering not just the opportunity site
but the interests of the conservation area as a whole. The brief set out the detailed requirements for the area
and the Council were committed to ensuring that a high quality development was secured.    

8

1: Burgh Yard, Dollar
2: Beith
3: Beith

2 3

1

Page 290



Protecting Vulnerable Areas

Article 4 Directions

The objectives of conservation area management 
can for the most part be met through an effective
policy framework and the positive use of existing
development control and enforcement powers.
There will, however, also be a place for further
regulation to ensure that the character and 
appearance of the conservation area is not 
eroded through incremental change. 

Proposals for Article 4 Directions to remove or reduce
permitted development rights should be advertised or
progressed through local plans. Local authorities
should be clear about the classes of development 
they want to bring within planning control and provide
appropriate justification. They should not resort to
blanket restrictions of regulation but should relate to
the character defined in the specific conservation area
appraisal. Further policy guidance on the use of Article
4 Directions is set out in NPPG 18.        

Buildings at Risk 

Where appraisals identify listed or significant properties
which are at risk from neglect, authorities should alert
the Scottish Civic Trust, which maintains the Buildings
at Risk Register on behalf of Historic Scotland. The
register aims to unite owners of neglected properties
with those who have the resources to restore them.
Further information regarding buildings at risk can be
found in NPPG 18, the Memorandum of Guidance on
Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas and from 
the Scottish Civic Trust. A dedicated website which
provides information on many of the properties on 
the Register can be accessed at
www.buildingsatrisk.org.uk 

Urgent Works Notices

Urgent works notices allow local authorities to carry out
works which they feel are necessary to preserve a
historic building suffering from neglect. The notice may
be used to deal with listed and unlisted buildings in
conservation areas. Notices should, however, only be
served on unlisted buildings that make a positive
contribution to the character or appearance of the
conservation area. Any costs incurred in carrying out
the works can be recovered from the owners. Urgent
works notices are confined to those parts of a building
which are unoccupied.

The scope of the works covered by the notice should
be restricted to the minimum necessary to secure 
the building rather than comprehensive repair and
restoration. For example, it may be adequate to 
install a temporary roof covering over a building rather
than undertake the full repair of the roof.  

The use of urgent works notices should not be
reserved solely for buildings in an advanced state of
disrepair. They can also target relatively inexpensive
works where a building is at an early stage of decline.
Addressing relatively minor issues such as blocked
gutters or rhones can halt deterioration to a more
serious and expensive condition. Further advice on 
the procedures for urgent works notices can be found
in the Memorandum of Guidance on Listed Buildings
and Conservation Areas. 

9

Page 291



This page is intentionally left blank



 

Planning and Environmental Appeals Division 

4 The Courtyard, Callendar Business Park, Falkirk, FK1 1XR 

DX 557005 Falkirk          www.gov.scot/Topics/Planning/Appeals 
 abcde abc a  

 

Planning and Environmental Appeals Division 

Appeal Decision Notice 

T: 0300 244 6668 

F: 0131 244 8988 

E: dpea@gov.scot 

 

 
Decision 
 
I allow the appeal and grant planning permission subject to the four conditions listed at the 
end of the decision notice.  Attention is drawn to the three advisory notes at the end of the 
notice. 
 
Reasoning 
 
1. I am required to determine this appeal in accordance with the development plan, 
unless material considerations indicate otherwise.  Having regard to the provisions of the 
development plan the main issues in this appeal are: 
 
(a) whether the demolition of the existing house on the site and its replacement by a new 

house would constitute a sustainable form of development, also taking into account 
relevant provisions of national planning policies and guidance; and 

(b) whether there are any other matters, including the impact on the tenant of the existing 
house and his business, which constitute material planning considerations relevant to 
the determination of the application.  

  
Background 
 
2. The present house on the site is a small, single-storey building.  The original part of 
the house dates back to the 1930s and is clad in corrugated metal sheeting.  There is a 
more recent extension to the rear and side, constructed of rendered blockwork.  The roof of 
the whole building is covered with profiled metal sheeting. 
 

 
Decision by Mike Shiel, a Reporter appointed by the Scottish Ministers 
 
 Planning appeal reference: PPA-130-2070 
 Site address: Barr Bheag, Taynuilt PA35 1HY 
 Appeal by Mr Sean Honeyman against the failure of Argyll and Bute Council to determine 

the application for planning permission no. 18/01786/PP, dated 15 August 2018, within the 
prescribed period. 

 The development proposed: demolition of a dwellinghouse and the erection of a 
replacement dwellinghouse. 

 Application drawings: as listed in the schedule at the end of the decision notice 
 Date of site visit by Reporter: 4 February 2019 
 
Date of appeal decision: 14 February 2019 

Page 293



PPA-130-2070 2 

Planning and Environmental Appeals Division 

4 The Courtyard, Callendar Business Park, Falkirk, FK1 1XR 

DX 557005 Falkirk          www.gov.scot/Topics/Planning/Appeals 
 abcde abc a  

 

3. There is no dispute that the house is in need of repair.  It is owned by a trust, of 
which the appellant is a trustee, which has been served with a Repairing Standard 
Enforcement Order (RSEO) issued by the Housing & Property Chamber First Tier Tribunal, 
requiring certain repairs to be carried out and an architect’s report to be undertaken on how 
to make the house weathertight and cure the problem of dampness throughout.  That 
report, dated 15 August 2017, following a limited inspection of the building, highlighted 
certain issues, but concluded that the building had reached the end of its useful life and 
should be replaced with a new house. 
 
4. In response to this, the tenant of the house commissioned a firm of chartered 
surveyors to value the property and estimate the cost of essential repairs.  This estimate 
amounted to £25,000. 
 
5. The council did not reach a decision on the planning application within the prescribed 
time.  In its submissions, it has explained that this was for a number of reasons including: 
the number of third party representations received; the need to obtain legal opinion on a 
number of matters, amongst which was the weighting to be afforded to the complex legal 
issues associated with the RSEO; the need for the appellant to commission a bat survey 
and obtain the necessary licence from Scottish Natural Heritage; and the need for the 
planning authority to determine whether the proposal represented an appropriate form of 
sustainable development. 
 
6. With regards to this last matter, the council had before it the two reports referred to 
above and was advised to obtain an independent assessment of the current condition of the 
building and the estimated cost of essential repairs.  Despite putting this work out to tender, 
with a deadline of 12 December 2018, the council received no expressions of interest. 
In the absence of clarification on this question, the council’s current position is that it is 
unable to demonstrate whether or not the proposals would constitute an appropriate 
sustainable development.  Consequently, adopting a precautionary principle, the council 
asserts that planning permission should be refused. 
 
The sustainability of the proposed development 
 
7. The development plan for this area consists of the Argyll and Bute Local 
Development Plan 2015 (LDP), together with any associated statutory supplementary 
guidance. The fundamental policy relating to sustainable development is LDP STRAT 1, 
which states that developers should seek to demonstrate a number of sustainable 
development principles, which the planning authority will also use in deciding whether or not 
to grant planning permission.  The council’s position is, essentially, that this development 
has failed to demonstrate that it meets the second of these principles; namely, to make 
efficient use of vacant and/or derelict land including appropriate buildings. 
 
8. The appellant, on the other hand, has drawn support from policy LDP DM1, which 
concerns development within the Development Management Zones identified in the LDP.  
The appeal site lies within a Rural Opportunity Area, where the policy states that 
encouragement will be given to sustainable forms of development of a small scale on 
appropriate sites, as well as small scale infill, rounding-off, redevelopment (my emphasis) 
and changes of use of existing buildings. This policy does not, therefore, preclude the 
redevelopment of existing buildings. 

Page 294



PPA-130-2070 3 

Planning and Environmental Appeals Division 

4 The Courtyard, Callendar Business Park, Falkirk, FK1 1XR 

DX 557005 Falkirk          www.gov.scot/Topics/Planning/Appeals 
 abcde abc a  

 

9. At issue in this case is how the sustainability of a proposal to demolish an existing 
building and replace it with a new one has to be demonstrated.  The council’s position 
seems to be that this requires an assessment of the costs of repairing the existing building 
so that it can be retained.  I am not persuaded that this is the case.  Such an assessment is 
in fact more a consideration of the economic viability of a proposed development rather 
than its inherent sustainability. 
 
10. I do not think that it can be automatically assumed that the erection of a new house 
rather than the repair and retention of an existing one is an unsustainable option.  Taking a 
long-term view, a new house with modern methods of construction and insulation may well 
be a more sustainable development than seeking to repair an unsatisfactory existing 
building.  The difference between the two reports submitted in connection with this proposal 
could well be characterised as the difference between a long-term (and possibly 
pessimistic) view and a short-term (and possibly optimistic) approach.  Thus the report 
commissioned by the appellant concludes that, even with repairs, it cannot be guaranteed 
that the building will be wind and watertight or free of dampness; and therefore fit for human 
habitation in the long run.  In contrast, the report undertaken for the existing tenant 
concludes that necessary repairs could easily be carried out without undue disruption to the 
occupants at what appears to be a relatively modest cost. 
 
11. I am not in a position to make an informed judgement between these two views, put 
forward by qualified professionals; a position which the council also found itself in.  Unlike 
the council, however, I do not consider that it is necessary to do so.  I do not consider that 
the LDP requires such a detailed assessment in every case.  As indicated in paragraph 8 
above, policy LDP DM1 allows for the redevelopment of existing buildings in the area in 
which this site is located.  The current proposal is consistent with that policy. 
 
12. The appellant’s agent has drawn attention to other applications for the demolition of 
existing houses in Argyll and Bute, listing 46 that have been approved since 2008.  I 
appreciate that individual cases have to be treated on their merits and, of those listed, a 
majority were considered before the current LDP was adopted.  In addition I have no 
detailed information on the circumstances and context of most of these approvals.  
However, details have been submitted of two cases which were considered at about the 
same time as the application which is the subject of this appeal was being processed.  
Planning permission was granted for the demolition of an existing house and the erection of 
a replacement house in Appin in September 2018; and for a similar proposal on the Isle of 
Tiree in October 2018.  The Report of Handling of the former application states that the 
existing “traditional” dwellinghouse was in a state of neglect and presented a suitable 
opportunity for redevelopment in accordance with policy LDP DM1.  In the second case the 
Report of Handling contains no discussion about the relative merits of retaining and 
repairing the existing house.  In both reports, under the question of whether a sustainability 
checklist has been submitted the answer is in the negative, and no issue has been raised 
with this.  The conclusion in both cases is that the development complies with, amongst 
others, policies LDP STRAT1 and LDP DM1.  
 
13. I acknowledge that this proposal has proved particularly controversial (and I return to 
some of the issues raised later), and this has no doubt influenced the council’s approach.  
The cases referred to above make clear, however, that that the council does not 
automatically require an assessment of the costs of repair before agreeing to the demolition 

Page 295



PPA-130-2070 4 

Planning and Environmental Appeals Division 

4 The Courtyard, Callendar Business Park, Falkirk, FK1 1XR 

DX 557005 Falkirk          www.gov.scot/Topics/Planning/Appeals 
 abcde abc a  

 

of an existing house or deciding whether such a proposal is compliant with policy LDP 
STRAT1.  Indeed, the available evidence suggests that it is not its normal practice to do so.  
Notwithstanding the contentious nature of this proposal, in considering the intrinsic planning 
issues it raises, I find that it is not necessary to make a detailed assessment of the costs of 
repairing the present house. 
 
14. More pertinent is whether there are any overriding planning reasons that justify the 
retention of that house. It is not listed as being of special architectural or historic interest; 
nor is it within a conservation area.  I appreciate, however, there will be attractive buildings 
that are unlisted and outwith conservation areas that, nonetheless, make a significant 
contribution to the character of an area; and which the planning authority would not wish to 
see demolished and replaced by a modern structure.  The council has stated in this case 
that the existing house exhibits some degree of local distinctiveness, and that its demolition 
without being able to demonstrate that it does not represent an opportunity to preserve the 
local distinctiveness of the area through its conservation and continued use would be 
contrary to the advice contained within Planning Advice Note (PAN) 72: Housing in the 
Countryside. 
 
15. I consider that the council’s position on this matter is overstated.  Whilst the original 
cottage might be of some interest because of its age and construction, I find that, taken as 
a whole, the house is of no significant architectural interest or distinction.  It is situated at 
some distance from the village of Taynuilt in a rural area where there is a scattered pattern 
of development showing no coherent architectural character.  I consider that its demolition 
would have no adverse impact on the overall character of the local area.  This reinforces 
my finding that there is no requirement to justify that demolition in comparison to the costs 
of repair. 
 
16. The council has made no comments on the design of the proposed replacement 
house.  This would be a small, single-storey building to be clad in timber with a profiled 
metal roof.  I consider that its size and design are appropriate to the locality and that it 
would be an acceptable replacement for the present house in design terms.  I find that it 
would be consistent with policy LDP 9 concerning development setting, layout and design.  
It would also not conflict with policy LDP 3, which seeks to protect, conserve or where 
possible enhance the established character of the built environment. 
 
17. In terms of other development plan policies that have been mentioned in 
submissions, policy LDP 10 states that the council will support all development proposals 
that seek to maximise resources and minimise consumption; and accord with a number of 
factors including sustainable design principles and minimising waste.  The council has 
made no reference to this policy.  As I have indicated in paragraph 9 above, the cost of 
repairing and retaining a building is not a measure of the sustainability of that option 
compared to replacing it with a new building.  I acknowledge that the demolition of the 
present house would generate some waste materials that would need to be disposed of but, 
given the small size of the building, I do not see this to be a serious issue.  The construction 
of the new house would require new materials, the production of which would have some 
carbon footprint. However, there is no inherent reason why some of these materials, 
particularly the timber required, cannot come from sustainable sources.  As I have also 
previously stated, a new house with modern construction and insulation standards may well 
have a lower carbon footprint in the long term than a repaired existing house.  The council 

Page 296



PPA-130-2070 5 

Planning and Environmental Appeals Division 

4 The Courtyard, Callendar Business Park, Falkirk, FK1 1XR 

DX 557005 Falkirk          www.gov.scot/Topics/Planning/Appeals 
 abcde abc a  

 

has not required a sustainability assessment to be carried out for this proposal.  I note that 
in the cases referred to in paragraph 12 above, the council either made no mention of policy 
LDP 10 or concluded that the development accorded with it. I am satisfied that the current 
development does not conflict with that policy. 
 
18. In the submissions for the tenant, reference is made to supplementary guidance 
policy SG LDP ENV 21.  This policy is within supplementary guidance on the historic built 
environment and archaeology.  It provides additional detail to policy LDP 3 and states that 
opportunities for the enhancement and re-use of existing buildings will be sought, through 
proposals for re-building, re-use or change of use, to maintain the fabric of the building and 
its value to the community. I have concluded above that the present house is of no historic 
or architectural significance, and that its replacement with the proposed new house would 
not conflict with policy LDP 3.  I therefore find it would also not conflict with policy SG LDP 
ENV 21.   
 
19. Supplementary guidance policy SG LDP BUS3 seeks to safeguard existing 
businesses.  Although I consider the effect of this development on the tenant’s business in 
due course, the current proposal has no direct impact on the building in which that business 
is located, which lies outwith the appeal site.  I therefore consider policy SG LDP BUS3 is of 
no direct relevance in this case.    
 
20. I conclude that the proposed development complies with policies LDP DM1 and LDP 
9 and does not conflict with policies LDP STRAT1, LDP 3 and LDP 10. Despite references 
to the vision and objectives of the LDP in the submissions made on behalf of the tenant, I 
do not consider that the development would in any way affect the achievement of those 
objectives.  I therefore find that, taken overall, the proposal accords with the relevant 
provisions of the development plan. 
 
21. It therefore remains to consider whether there are any material planning 
considerations which would, nevertheless, warrant the refusal of planning permission.   
 
National planning policies and guidance 
 
22. Scottish Planning Policy (SPP) contains a presumption in favour of development that 
contributes towards sustainable development.  Paragraph 29 states that policies and 
decisions should be guided by a number of principles, including making efficient use of 
existing capacities of land, buildings and infrastructure. As with policy LDP STRAT 1 I do 
not believe that this requires that every existing building must be retained, and it is clear 
from some of its previous decisions involving the demolition of existing houses that the 
council also accepts this.  I have concluded that there is no overriding reason in terms of 
preserving the character of the area to retain the existing house, and therefore no 
overriding reason to prevent its demolition. 
 
23. I therefore find that there is no overall conflict between this development and SPP.  
Similarly, there is no conflict with PAN 72 which, whilst it refers to the opportunity provided 
by the sympathetic restoration of existing buildings to maintain the character and 
distinctiveness of places, contains no implication, in my view, that all existing rural houses 
need to be retained.  I have concluded that the demolition of the present house would not 

Page 297



PPA-130-2070 6 

Planning and Environmental Appeals Division 

4 The Courtyard, Callendar Business Park, Falkirk, FK1 1XR 

DX 557005 Falkirk          www.gov.scot/Topics/Planning/Appeals 
 abcde abc a  

 

have an adverse effect on the character or distinctiveness of the area.  The erection of a 
new house on its site would ensure no overall loss of rural housing. 
 
Other considerations    
 
24. There is no doubt that the controversy generated by this proposal arises to a large 
extent because of the concerns raised by and on behalf of the tenant of the existing house; 
and particularly the implication that he may become homeless and also be unable to 
continue to run his bicycle hire business (the Rusty Cycle Shed) as a result.  Some 130 
email objections have been lodged, all with a similar wording, and most from people living a 
considerable distance from the site.  The tenant’s submission states that many of these 
objectors are regular visitors to the area and/or clients of his business   
 
25. It is suggested that demolition of the present house may contravene the tenant’s 
rights under Article 8 of the European Convention on Human Rights, which provides for 
respect for private and family life, home and correspondence.  However, I consider that the 
tenant’s rights in respect of his occupation of the house are safeguarded through other 
legislation.  I note that proceedings are pending regarding the landlord’s attempt to obtain 
possession of the house and they are an entirely separate matter.  The details of the 
tenancy agreement, including the tenant’s rights and the landlord’s obligation, are not a 
matter for me to consider.  Granting planning permission for the demolition of the house 
does not override any decision made by the courts.  It is therefore conceivable that, even if 
planning permission were to be granted, the appellant would be unable to implement it 
because of other legal requirements.  The landlord would still need to obtain possession of 
the house, which would be a matter for the courts to decide.  If the tenant were to be 
rendered homeless as a result, the council as housing authority may have obligations to 
address that fact. 
 
26. Related to this matter is the claim made in the objections that the appellant is only 
seeking to demolish the house to avoid compliance with the RSEO.  The motivation of a 
person in applying for planning permission is rarely a material planning consideration, and   
I see no reason to make an exception to that general view in this case.  Again, I note that 
there are ongoing proceedings regarding the enforcement of the RSEO, the outcome of 
which might affect whether the appellant can implement any planning permission granted.   
I do not accept, however, the council’s contention that consideration of the RSEO has any 
material bearing on whether such permission should be granted.  Rather it is a parallel 
process to be determined in accordance with its own relevant legislation and procedures.  
Enforcement of the RSEO, which would require certain repairs to the house to be 
undertaken, is not, in my view, directly relevant to the issue of the sustainability or 
otherwise of the current proposal; which is, as I have indicated above, more than simply a 
comparison of respective costs. 
 
27. A second issue raised by the objectors concerns the future of the tenant’s business if 
he is unable to live in the house.  This business is operated from a shed situated to the 
west of the house and outwith the boundaries of the current appeal site.  Access to the 
shed, however, runs through the site.  I understand that this shed is held under a separate 
legal arrangement with the trust, which is also seeking its re-possession.  That is a separate 
legal matter.  I accept that, if the tenant is unable to remain living in the vicinity, there would 
be practical difficulties, including access, in continuing to run his bicycle hire business from 

Page 298



PPA-130-2070 7 

Planning and Environmental Appeals Division 

4 The Courtyard, Callendar Business Park, Falkirk, FK1 1XR 

DX 557005 Falkirk          www.gov.scot/Topics/Planning/Appeals 
 abcde abc a  

 

its present premises.  However, that is not a direct consequence of the demolition of the 
present house and its replacement with a new one.  Rather, it arises from the tenant’s legal 
relationship with his landlord.  It is conceivable, for example, that if the lease of the shed 
was terminated, the business would have to cease in any event. 
 
28. I appreciate that the bicycle hire business may provide a useful facility supporting 
tourism in the area, and it obviously commands a degree of loyalty from its customers.  
There is no evidence before me, however, as to whether or not alternative premises, either 
in the immediate locality or in Taynuilt itself, could be found from which to operate the 
business.  The council, in its submissions, makes no reference to the business, which may 
reflect its view that it is not a material planning consideration in this appeal.  If that is its 
position, I consider that it is correct.  The future of the business is not a material 
consideration in assessing the planning issues raised by the current proposal to demolish 
the existing house and build a new one on its site.   
 
29. I understand that this development, if implemented, would cause difficulties for the 
present tenant of the house.  However, I do not consider that his personal circumstances, 
including the relationship with his landlord, represent a material planning consideration in 
this case.  The purpose of the planning system is generally taken as to manage 
development and land use in the broader public interest, rather than to protect individual 
private interests.  I have concluded above that this proposal accords with the relevant 
policies of the development plan and does not conflict with national planning policies.  I do 
not believe that the issues raised by the tenant concerning his occupation of the house and 
the operation of his business override that conclusion or indicate that the appeal should be 
determined other than in accordance with the development plan. 
 
30. During the course of the consideration of the original application by the council, the 
potential presence of bats, which are European Protected Species, using the existing house 
was raised.  Consequently a bat survey was undertaken, which confirmed that there was 
evidence of a single summer, non-breeding, long-eared bat roost in the roof, which would 
be destroyed if the building was demolished.  There was no evidence of other bat species 
using the building.  Mitigation measures were recommended, including on the timing and 
supervision of demolition works, and the erection of two bat boxes on a nearby tree.  
Subsequently the necessary licence for disturbing the bat roost was obtained from Scottish 
Natural Heritage.  I am therefore satisfied that the protection of any bats using this site can 
be adequately covered through a planning condition requiring the necessary mitigation 
measures to be implemented.  
 
Conclusion 
 
31. I therefore conclude, for the reasons set out above, that the proposed development 
accords overall with the relevant provisions of the development plan and that there are no 
material considerations which would justify refusing to grant planning permission. I have 
considered all the other matters raised, but there are none which would lead me to alter my 
conclusions. 
 
32. The council has recommended five conditions to be imposed if planning permission 
were to be granted.  The first of these is unnecessary, as the developer is obliged to carry 

Page 299



PPA-130-2070 8 

Planning and Environmental Appeals Division 

4 The Courtyard, Callendar Business Park, Falkirk, FK1 1XR 

DX 557005 Falkirk          www.gov.scot/Topics/Planning/Appeals 
 abcde abc a  

 

out the developer in accordance with the approved plans, as listed below.  I have imposed 
the remaining conditions with minor modification as necessary. 
 

M D Shiel 
Reporter 
 
Application drawings 
 
Location plan at 1:10,000 scale 
Location plan at 1:2500 scale 
Drawing A1 showing site plan, plan and elevations of new house 
Drawing A2 showing plan and elevations of existing house  
 
Conditions 
 
1. No development shall commence until written details of the type and colour, including 

any proposed staining and/or painting, of the timber boarding and metal sheeting to be 
used to clad the external walls and roof of the dwellinghouse hereby approved have 
been submitted to and approved in writing by the planning authority.  The 
development shall thereafter be completed using the approved materials or such 
alternatives as may be agreed in writing with the planning authority. 

 
 Reason: to help integrate the new development into its surroundings. 
 
2. No demolition works shall commence until details of the proposed means of boundary 

and surface treatment to be applied to the cleared site have been submitted to and 
approved in writing by the planning authority.  Upon completion of the demolition 
works all waste materials shall be removed from the site, and the duly approved 
scheme of boundary and surface treatment implemented in full within a period of one 
month from the completion of the works unless otherwise agreed in writing with the 
planning authority. 

 
 Reason: to protect the amenity of the locale. 
 
3. The existing dwellinghouse, Barr Bheag, shall be demolished solely in accordance 

with the mitigation strategy for bat species contained in the European Protected 
Species Licence issued by Scottish Natural Heritage (licence number 131346, 
currently held by Mr Ross Preston of Middle Cottage, 2 East Kames, Lochgair, Argyll) 
or any subsequent European Protected Species Licence that might be issued.  No 
demolition of this building shall be carried out without an extant European Protected 
Species Licence issued by Scottish Natural Heritage, or else following written 
confirmation from Scottish Natural Heritage that such a licence is no longer required. 

 
 Reason: in order to ensure the protection of bats and appropriately mitigate for the 

loss of potential or actual bat roosts. 
 
4. The development shall incorporate a surface water drainage system which is 

consistent with the principles of Sustainable Drainage Systems (SuDS) compliant with 
the guidance set out in CIRIA’s SuDS Manual C753.  Details of the requisite surface 

Page 300



PPA-130-2070 9 

Planning and Environmental Appeals Division 

4 The Courtyard, Callendar Business Park, Falkirk, FK1 1XR 

DX 557005 Falkirk          www.gov.scot/Topics/Planning/Appeals 
 abcde abc a  

 

water drainage shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the planning authority 
before development commences on the site, and shall be operational prior to the 
development being brought into use and shall be maintained as such thereafter. 

 
 Reason: to ensure the provision of an adequate surface water drainage system and to 

prevent flooding. 
 
Advisory notes 
 
1. The length of the permission:  This planning permission will lapse on the expiration of 
a period of three years from the date of this decision notice, unless the development has 
been started within that period (See section 58(1) of the Town and Country Planning 
(Scotland) Act 1997 (as amended)). 
 
2. Notice of the start of development:  The person carrying out the development must 
give advance notice in writing to the planning authority of the date when it is intended to 
start.  Failure to do so is a breach of planning control.  It could result in the planning 
authority taking enforcement action (See sections 27A and 123(1) of the Town and Country 
Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 (as amended)). 
 
3. Notice of the completion of the development:  As soon as possible after it is 
finished, the person who completed the development must write to the planning authority to 
confirm the position (See section 27B of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 
1997 (as amended)).   
 
 

Page 301



This page is intentionally left blank



Planning and Environmental Appeals Division 

4 The Courtyard, Callendar Business Park, Falkirk, FK1 1XR 

www.gov.scot/policies/planning-environmental-appeals 
 abcde abc a  

 

Planning and Environmental Appeals Division 

Appeal Decision Notice 

T: 0300 244 6668 

E: dpea@gov.scot 

 

 
Decision 
 
I allow the appeal and grant planning permission subject to the five conditions listed at the 
end of the decision notice.  Attention is also drawn to the three advisory notes at the end of 
the notice.     
 
Preliminary 
 
The appellant has submitted a claim for expenses.  I have issued a separate decision on 
this claim.  
 
I note that the appellant has indicated that the stamped ‘site plan and elevations’ drawing 
was not the most up-to-date version.  It is stated that an amended version, which removed 
a proposed internal boundary fence, was submitted and accepted by the council during the 
application process.  
 
My remit in determining this appeal is to consider the application refused by the council.  I 
have therefore based my determination on the stamped drawing (2019-018_P01G).   
 
Reasoning 
 
1. I am required to determine this appeal in accordance with the development plan, 
unless material considerations indicate otherwise. 
 
2 The site lies within the Braemar conservation area.  In accordance with section 64(1) 
of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas)(Scotland) Act 1997, I must 

 
Decision by Alison Kirkwood, a Reporter appointed by the Scottish Ministers 
 
 Planning appeal reference: PPA-110-2380 
 Site address: Castleton Guest House, 3 - 4 Castleton Terrace, Braemar, AB35 5ZR 
 Appeal by Mr Glenn Perkins against the decision by Aberdeenshire Council 
 Application for planning permission APP/2019/0676 dated 26 March 2019 refused by 

notice dated 20 June 2019 
 The development proposed: erection of dwellinghouse (for use as short-term holiday lets) 

and erection of boundary fence and gate 
 Application drawings 2019-018_P03 and 2019-018_P01G  
 Date of site visit by Reporter: 19 November 2019 
 
Date of appeal decision: 27 November 2019 

Page 303



PPA-110-2380 

Planning and Environmental Appeals Division 

4 The Courtyard, Callendar Business Park, Falkirk, FK1 1XR 

www.gov.scot/policies/planning-environmental-appeals 
 abcde abc a  

 

2 

therefore also pay special attention to the desirability of preserving or enhancing its 
character or appearance. 
 
3. Having regard to the provisions of the development plan, the main issues in this 
appeal are the principle of development; access and parking; the impact on the 
conservation area; and residential amenity.  The development plan in this case comprises 
the Cairngorms National Park Local Development Plan (LDP) 2015.  Material 
considerations include the previous appeal decision from January 2019 (reference  
PPA-110-2366) and matters raised in representations.   
 
4. The appellant and some other parties have mentioned the proposed Cairngorms 
LDP, which I am aware has now been submitted for examination.  However, the council has 
not referred to the proposed LDP in its determination of the application or appeal statement.  
Whilst an emerging development plan can be a material consideration in the determination 
of an appeal, in this instance I have given negligible weight to it.  The adopted 2015 LDP, 
against which the proposal must be assessed, contains provisions relating to all of the 
relevant matters in this appeal.  
 
Principle of development   
 
5. The appeal site lies within the Braemar settlement boundary and incorporates the 
former guest house at 3 – 4 Castleton Terrace, a bothy on School Road and a L-shaped 
garden.  The site forms part of a row of traditional residential properties along Castleton 
Terrace with long narrow gardens, many of which include outbuildings.  The site is bound to 
the north and south by narrow lanes running from School Road to Castleton Terrace.  
 
6. The proposed single storey, one bedroom dwellinghouse (referred to as a pod by the 
appellant) would be used for short term holiday lets only. The existing bothy building on 
School Road, which was to be converted to holiday accommodation in the previous 
proposal, would remain in storage use.   
 
7. The proposal would provide additional tourist accommodation in Braemar which, in 
principle, complies with LDP policy 2 part 2.  Located in the heart of the village close to 
local facilities, the dwelling would enhance the range of tourist accommodation available in 
Braemar and has the potential to be used all year round.    
 
8. I conclude that the proposal accords in principle with LDP policy 2.  This policy also 
requires me to consider the environmental impact of the proposal on the site and 
neighbouring area.  My findings on relevant environmental matters are set out in the 
sections below.        
 
Access and parking 
 
9. LDP policy 3 part 1 j) requires proposals to include an appropriate means of access 
and egress and space for off-street parking.  The proposal includes two parking spaces and 
a turning area which would allow guests to drive forward in and out of the property via an 
access lane from School Road. 
 

Page 304



PPA-110-2380 

Planning and Environmental Appeals Division 

4 The Courtyard, Callendar Business Park, Falkirk, FK1 1XR 

www.gov.scot/policies/planning-environmental-appeals 
 abcde abc a  

 

3 

10. Local residents have indicated that guests may find it difficult to turn into the narrow 
access lane from School Road, which is in itself narrow and is used for on-street parking.  
Concerns have been expressed regarding potential damage to vehicles and the buildings 
on either side of the lane and guests choosing to park on the road instead which would add 
to the pressure for on-street parking spaces.  Concerns have also been raised about 
potential collisions with pedestrians using the lane.  
 
11. I note that the roads authority had no objection to the application and I attach weight 
to this.  However, one of the reasons for refusal was that the proposed off-street parking 
could not be adequately accessed due to the narrowness of the access lane.     
 
12. During my site inspection, I measured the width of the lane between the two 
buildings to be just less than 3.0 metres.  I note that the access already serves 4 School 
Road and during my site inspection, the occupier of this property demonstrated that it was 
possible to drive into the lane, albeit taking a slow and careful approach.  Whilst there is no 
formal turning area within the garden ground at 4 School Road, I observed that a flat paved 
area provided space to turn a vehicle to enable forward access and egress from this 
property.   
 
13. I note that the occupiers of 4 School Road have indicated that, due to the narrow 
access, they tend to park on the street, if there is a space available.  However, I also note 
the photographic evidence submitted by the appellant showing a large white van parked 
within the garden area at 4 School Road.     
 
14. In the previous appeal, the reporter concluded that the proposed off-street parking 
could be adequately accessed but was concerned that there could be insufficient spaces for 
occupiers of both the converted bothy and the proposed dwelling.  This would have forced 
visitors to park on School Road which would have a detrimental effect on existing street 
parking.  
 
15. The proposal before me provides two parking spaces for the one bedroom dwelling.  
This means that, even in the unlikely event that visitors bring two cars, the turning area 
would be available to allow forward access and egress.  I agree with the previous reporter 
that, whilst the access to the off-street parking area is narrow, it is adequate.  Due to the 
geometry of the access, drivers would have to move slowly and I find that the risk of any 
conflict with pedestrians would therefore be negligible.      
  
16. I conclude that the proposal includes an appropriate means of access and egress 
and space for off-street parking in accordance with LDP policy 3.  
 
Impact on the conservation area 
 
17. The proposal is for a single storey building measuring 9.6 metres by 3.6 metres with 
a ridge height of 4.5 metres.  It would be of traditional vernacular proportions, clad in 
vertical timber with timber doors and windows and a red corrugated metal roof.  The 
proposal would provide an area of private garden, including timber decking, to the south of 
the building and new timber fencing next to the garden and along the lane.  
 

Page 305



PPA-110-2380 

Planning and Environmental Appeals Division 

4 The Courtyard, Callendar Business Park, Falkirk, FK1 1XR 

www.gov.scot/policies/planning-environmental-appeals 
 abcde abc a  

 

4 

18. The dwelling would bisect the existing garden ground and be positioned parallel to 
the properties at 3 – 4 Castleton Terrace and the bothy on School Road.  It would sit on the 
opposite side of the lane from a timber shed in the garden of 4 School Road.   
 
19. LDP policy 9 part 2 requires development in a conservation area to enhance its 
character and to use design, materials, scale, layout and siting appropriate to the site and 
its setting.  LDP policy 3 part 1 b) also refers to the need for development to be sympathetic 
to the traditional pattern and character of the area, local vernacular and local 
distinctiveness.  The LDP Braemar settlement statement seeks to protect those parts of the 
village that are important to its character and setting and to ensure Braemar’s built heritage 
is preserved and enhanced.        
 
20. In the absence of a Braemar conservation area appraisal or management plan, I 
note that the LDP Braemar settlement statement includes a section on cultural heritage. 
This highlights the importance of protecting the Victorian character of the village.  It also 
indicates that there is a tradition of backhouses which are ancillary to the primary dwelling 
and that it is important that this tradition is not lost or adversely affected.    
 
21. The council’s committee report dated 28 May 2019 provides information on the 
extent and use of backhouses and ancillary buildings at 1 Castleton Terrace / 2 School  
Road and 4 School Road.  During my site inspection, I observed a single storey timber clad 
property bisecting the garden ground between 1 Castleton Terrace and 2 School Road and 
a green timber shed at 4 School Road, adjacent to the site of the proposed dwelling.  I also 
note, from the historic map and aerial photograph submitted by the appellant, that a cottage 
and outbuilding were previously positioned within the existing garden ground at 3 - 4 
Castleton Terrace. 
 
22. I find that buildings of a subservient scale and design located to the rear of the 
properties along Castleton Terraces were characteristic of the historic urban pattern and 
that buildings and structures currently exist within the garden ground of neighbouring 
properties.     
 
23. The appellant has referred me to Scottish Government’s Planning Advice Note 72 
which provides advice on the design of rural housing.  I find that the development would 
have a vernacular style and, in terms of its scale, design and materials, would be similar to 
the new visitor accommodation located next to Braemar Mountain Sports on Invercauld 
Road.  From my site inspection, I observed other examples of timber clad buildings and the 
use of grey and red corrugated roofing within the Braemar conservation area.      
 
24. From my site inspection, I note that the proposed development would not be visible 
from the main A93 road or the village centre.  The scale, design and location of the dwelling 
would reflect the tradition of backhouses and the resulting development would be 
subservient to the main properties at 3 - 4 Castleton Terrace.  I do not consider that the 
proposal would represent over development, but would be compatible with the character of 
the surrounding area and complement other recent developments in the village.   
 
25. I find that the development would be sympathetic to the traditional pattern of 
development in its immediate environment and have a neutral effect on the character of the 
conservation area as a whole.  The siting, design, materials and scale are appropriate to 

Page 306



PPA-110-2380 

Planning and Environmental Appeals Division 

4 The Courtyard, Callendar Business Park, Falkirk, FK1 1XR 

www.gov.scot/policies/planning-environmental-appeals 
 abcde abc a  

 

5 

the site and its setting.  I conclude that the proposal accords with the relevant parts of LDP 
policies 3 and 9.  
 
Residential amenity 
 
26. LDP policy 3 part 1 i) seeks to protect the amenity enjoyed by neighbours of a 
development site.  Amenity concerns raised in representations include access to the site, 
which I have already addressed, overshadowing and privacy.   
 
27. I note the results of the shadow impact study submitted by the appellant.  This shows 
that there would be little or no overshadowing impact on the garden ground of neighbouring 
properties at any time of the year.  I consider the overshadowing impact of the proposal to 
be acceptable. 
 
28. In terms of privacy, the use of roof lights means that only the south elevation would 
have windows.  There would be no impact in terms of window to window privacy for any 
neighbouring property.  The timber decking and garden area would be adjacent to a blank 
elevation and stone wall at 8 School Road and as such there would be no privacy impact.  
 
29. The removal of the existing conifers along the northern boundary would increase 
views into and from the site.  However at my site inspection, I observed that the existing 
shed, fence and gate at 4 School Road and the fence at 2 Castleton Terrace would mitigate 
any potential privacy impacts caused by guests moving between the front door of the 
dwelling and the parking area.         
 
30. I conclude that the proposal accords with LDP policy 3 part 1 i), as it would not have 
an unacceptable impact on the amenity enjoyed by neighbours.  
 
Other matters 
 
31. Subject to appropriate conditions, the proposal accords with LDP policy 10 in terms 
of water supplies and connection to sewerage.  
 
32. I note that the adjacent properties at 6 and 7 Castleton Terrace, the observatory in 
front of 2 Castleton Terrace and St Margaret’s Church are all listed buildings.  I do not 
consider that the proposals would harm the setting of any of these buildings.  I also find that 
there would be no impact on wildlife, including bats.  Land ownership and rights of access 
across the lane are not material planning considerations and concerns regarding 
construction traffic relating to a single dwelling would not justify the refusal of planning 
permission. 
 
33 I do not consider that the proposal would set a precedent for allowing holiday 
accommodation in back gardens.  I have assessed the proposal before me on its individual 
merits in accordance with development plan and other relevant material considerations. 
 
34. The council has requested that a condition be attached to restrict the use of the unit 
to holiday letting.  I agree that this is necessary as permanent occupation of the dwelling 
may present different planning issues and such a condition would ensure that any change 
of use from holiday letting purposes would require planning permission.  The reason for the 

Page 307



PPA-110-2380 

Planning and Environmental Appeals Division 

4 The Courtyard, Callendar Business Park, Falkirk, FK1 1XR 

www.gov.scot/policies/planning-environmental-appeals 
 abcde abc a  

 

6 

condition given by the council stated that a house for permanent occupation in this area 
would not comply with the LDP.  I find no reason why the principle of residential 
development in this part of the village could not be supported.  I have therefore amended 
the stated reason for this condition to reflect that the development assessed was a holiday 
let as proposed. 
 
Conclusion 
 
35. I conclude, for the reasons set out above, that the proposed development accords 
overall with the relevant provisions of the development plan and that there are no material 
considerations which would justify refusing to grant planning permission.  
 

 
Alison Kirkwood 
Reporter 
 
 
Conditions 
 
1. The dwelling shall be used solely as temporary holiday letting accommodation and for no 
other purposes, including use as a permanent residential unit.  The dwelling shall not be 
occupied as a person's sole or main residence and the owner of the holiday let shall 
maintain an up-to-date register of the name of each occupier of the holiday lets on the site, 
their length of stay and their main home address and shall make this information available 
at all reasonable times to the planning authority.  
 
Reason: The development has been assessed as a holiday let, as proposed. Other uses of 
the dwelling including its use as a permanent residential unit could raise different planning 
considerations which would require to be separately assessed.   
 
2. The dwelling shall not be occupied unless its turning and parking area has been provided 
and surfaced in accordance with the details shown on the approved plans.  Once provided, 
all parking and turning areas shall thereafter be permanently retained as such. 
 
Reason: To ensure the timely completion of the parking area to an adequate standard in 
the interests of road safety. 
 
3. No works in connection with the development shall commence unless a sample/details of 
all the materials/roof/wall/windows/doors/rooflights and rainwater goods to be used in the 
external finish for the approved development have been submitted to and approved in 
writing by the planning authority.  The development shall not be occupied unless the 
external finish has been applied in accordance with the approved details. 
 
Reason: In the interests of preserving or enhancing the character or appearance of the 
conservation area. 
 
4. The dwelling shall not be occupied unless the proposed foul and surface water drainage 
systems have been provided in accordance with the approved plans.  The foul and surface 

Page 308



PPA-110-2380 

Planning and Environmental Appeals Division 

4 The Courtyard, Callendar Business Park, Falkirk, FK1 1XR 

www.gov.scot/policies/planning-environmental-appeals 
 abcde abc a  

 

7 

water drainage systems shall be permanently retained thereafter in accordance with the 
approved maintenance scheme. 
 
Reason: In order to ensure that adequate drainage facilities are provided, and retained, in 
the interests of the amenity of the area. 
 
5. The development shall be connected to the public water supply as indicated in the 
submitted application and shall not be connected to a private water supply without the 
separate express grant of planning permission by the planning authority. 
 
Reason: To ensure the long term sustainability of the development and the safety and 
welfare of the occupants and visitors to the site. 
 
Advisory notes 
 
1. The length of the permission:  This planning permission will lapse on the expiration of 
a period of three years from the date of this decision notice, unless the development has 
been started within that period (See section 58(1) of the Town and Country Planning 
(Scotland) Act 1997 (as amended)). 
 
2. Notice of the start of development:  The person carrying out the development must 
give advance notice in writing to the planning authority of the date when it is intended to 
start.  Failure to do so is a breach of planning control.  It could result in the planning 
authority taking enforcement action (See sections 27A and 123(1) of the Town and Country 
Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 (as amended)). 
 
3. Notice of the completion of the development:  As soon as possible after it is 
finished, the person who completed the development must write to the planning authority to 
confirm the position (See section 27B of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 
1997 (as amended)).   
 
 
 

Page 309



This page is intentionally left blank



Planning and Environmental Appeals Division 

4 The Courtyard, Callendar Business Park, Falkirk, FK1 1XR 

DX 557005 Falkirk          www.gov.scot/Topics/Planning/Appeals 
 abcde abc a  

 

Planning and Environmental Appeals Division 

Appeal Decision Notice 

T: 0300 244 6668 

F: 0131 244 8988 

E: dpea@gov.scot 

 

 
Decision 
 
I allow the appeal and grant planning permission subject to the 2 conditions listed at the 
end of the decision notice. 
 
Background 
 
The planning application, the subject of this appeal, is for full planning permission submitted 
retrospectively to regularise unauthorised amendments to a previous planning consent of 
2008 (APP/2007/4274).  A further planning consent (APP/2009/0147) was obtained in 2010 
in respect of boundary walls surrounding open ground between the adjacent house No.7 
Mid Street and Shore Street.  Investigation in 2016 of issues regarding the implementation 
of this latter permission revealed significant variations between the approved design of the 
house and that constructed as well as concerns regarding the height of the walls 
surrounding the garden ground in front of No.7 Mid Street, seaward side, Shore Street 
entrance.  
 
It was considered by all parties that the most appropriate course of action was for 
submission of a revised retrospective planning application to secure consent for the 
discrepancies of design and layout.  This revised application for planning permission was 
however not approved by the council and a refusal notice issued on 1 June 2018.  To the 
best of my knowledge no enforcement action has been taken by the council in respect of 
the unauthorised works.  There is ongoing litigation with regard to whether a right of way 
exists across the site affording access to Shore Street. 
 
Reasoning 

 
Decision by Don Rankin, a Reporter appointed by the Scottish Ministers 
 
 Planning appeal reference: PPA-110-2363 
 Site address: 3A Mid Street, Cairnbulg, Fraserburgh, AB43 8WJ 
 Appeal by Mr James Sutherland against the decision by Aberdeenshire Council 
 Application for planning permission APP/2017/3250 dated 21 December 2017 refused by 

notice dated 1 June 2018. 
 The development proposed: erection of dwelling house (amended design) and erection of 

boundary walls and gates. 
 Application drawings: Site Plan, PL2183-11 – Floor Plans, Elevations and Site Plan 
 Date of site visit by Reporter: 30 October 2018 
 
Date of appeal decision:   22  November 2018 

Page 311



PPA-110-2363  

Planning and Environmental Appeals Division 

4 The Courtyard, Callendar Business Park, Falkirk, FK1 1XR 

DX 557005 Falkirk          www.gov.scot/Topics/Planning/Appeals 
 abcde abc a  

 

2 

 
1. I am required to determine this appeal in accordance with the development plan, 
unless material considerations indicate otherwise.  Having regard to the provisions of the 
development plan the main issues in this appeal are: (1) whether the proposed 
development would be detrimental to the character or appearance of the Cairnbulg-
Inverallochy Conservation Area; (2) whether it would be detrimental to road safety; and (3) 
whether other material planning considerations warrant the grant or refusal of planning 
permission. 
 
2. The matters before me in this appeal arise from inaccuracies in the drawings originally 
submitted with the planning applications in 2008 (development of dwelling house) and in 
2010 (garden walls around open ground on Shore Street).  The principle of a new build 
construction on the site and the enclosure of the site with walls has already been 
established.  The issues therefore centre on whether these inaccuracies have resulted in an 
adverse and unacceptable impact either on the conservation area or on road safety, these 
being the council’s grounds of refusal.   

 
3. Turning to the first of these issues, the impact on the conservation area, the Planning 
(Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) (Scotland) Act 1997 imposes a duty to have 
regard to the desirability of preserving or enhancing the character or appearance of the 
conservation area.  This duty is carried forward with Policy HE2 of the Aberdeenshire Local 
Development Plan 2017.  I note from the council officer’s Report of Handling that the 
submitted drawing inaccuracies do not significantly affect the footprint of the house on the 
site and I see no reason to disagree.  There are however considerable differences in design 
both on the seaward side of the house and the south facing Mid Street frontage which result 
in an increased area of glazing and an enlarged balcony.  These alterations however are on 
the façades of an uncompromisingly modern house and in the context of maximising the 
views to the sea from such a house do not result in a design which is significantly more 
incongruous or detrimental to the character or appearance of the conservation area than 
the original approved development.  

 
4. Concern has also been expressed about the design and siting of the walls enclosing 
the garden ground between No. 7 Mid Street and Shore Street.  The design of these walls 
has however been already agreed by the planning permission in 2010.  There is an implicit 
assumption that the style and permitted height of 1 metre are appropriate to the 
conservation area.  I note that subsequent irregularities in the height have now been 
corrected by the appellant.  In any case there are several very similar styled walls nearby 
onto the Shore Street frontage.  I find therefore that the design of the walls does not fail to 
preserve the character and appearance of the conservation area. 

 
5. The outstanding issues about the character and appearance of the conservation area 
are therefore whether the provision of gates to permit access to the lane running along 
between Nos. 3A and 7 Mid Street is inappropriate and whether the reduction of the access 
lane to the Shore Street entrance of No.7 from an estimated 3 metres to about 2 metres 
has an adverse impact.  Whilst I appreciate that both of these matters are the subject of 
litigation between the appellant and the owners of No.7 this has no direct bearing on my 
interpretation of planning policy.  I consider the inclusion of access gates to be if anything 
more in keeping with the character of the conservation area, implying as it does continued 
usage of the lane between the buildings to gain access to the foreshore.   Many parts of the 

Page 312



PPA-110-2363  

Planning and Environmental Appeals Division 

4 The Courtyard, Callendar Business Park, Falkirk, FK1 1XR 

DX 557005 Falkirk          www.gov.scot/Topics/Planning/Appeals 
 abcde abc a  

 

3 

former fishing village are characterised by narrow lanes and entrances and access to the 
foreshore through these lanes is an integral part of the character of the conservation area.  I 
therefore consider the narrowing of the seaward access to No.7 is not especially 
incongruous and is therefore compatible with the character and appearance of the 
conservation area.  
 
6. Having regard to all of the above with respect to the design alterations to the 
dwellinghouse and the changes to the approved garden boundary walls I conclude that the 
development does not adversely impact on the character and appearance of the 
conservation area and in consequence complies in this respect with the statutory duty and 
local development plan policy noted above. 

 
7. Turning to road safety there appears to be concern that Shore Street does not have 
protected footways, pedestrians including local school children must walk in the roadway. 
There is a fear that any reduction in the road width or loss of open land adjoining the 
roadway could be detrimental to road safety making it difficult for cars to pass each other at 
this point.   

 
8. The principle of the wall is already established by the extant permission of 2010.  
Although there are recognised to be inaccuracies in the original site plans this does not 
appear to have any significant impact on the siting of the wall on the Shore Street frontage.  
There is therefore no unforeseen narrowing of the road which would be detrimental to road 
safety.  Shore Street is a very lightly trafficked access road with slow moving vehicles.  The 
absence of footways will be well appreciated by drivers who may be expected to exercise 
special care while driving along the road.  I note that the councils traffic engineers have not 
expressed any concerns over road safety.  I conclude therefore that there is no significant 
adverse impact on road safety arising from the development which in consequence 
complies in this respect with Policy RD1 of the local development plan. 

 
9. For the reasons set out above I conclude that the proposed development accords 
overall with the relevant provisions of the development plan and there are other no material 
considerations which would still justify refusing to grant planning permission. 

 

 
 
 
 
Don Rankin 
Reporter 
 
  

Page 313



PPA-110-2363  

Planning and Environmental Appeals Division 

4 The Courtyard, Callendar Business Park, Falkirk, FK1 1XR 

DX 557005 Falkirk          www.gov.scot/Topics/Planning/Appeals 
 abcde abc a  

 

4 

Conditions 
 
 
1. Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted 
Development) (Scotland) Order 1992 or any order amending, revoking or re-enacting that 
Order no means of enclosure, other than that shown on the approved plans shall be erected 
on the site under the terms of Class 3E of Schedule 1 to that Order without an 
express grant of planning permission from the Planning Authority. (Reason: In the interests 
of the character and appearance of the development.) 
 
2. The access and parking arrangements for the site shall be in accordance with the 
following criteria; 
 
a) The maximum gradient of the first 5m of the access must not exceed 1 in 20; 

b) The first 5m of driveway (measure from the edge of the road or the back of the footway) 
is to be fully paved; 

c) Off-street parking for 3 cars, surfaced in hard standing materials must be provided within 
the site; 

d) Visibility splays measuring 2.0m x 25m are to be formed on either side of the junction of 
the vehicular access with the public road. The visibility splays so formed shall thereafter be 
kept free of all permanent obstructions above adjacent carriageway level; 

e) A refuse bin uplift/store area shall be constructed (behind any visibility splay) so as to be 
accessible for bin uplift & shall be secure enough to prevent empty bins from being 
windblown. Details must be submitted to Roads Development for approval; 

f) A suitable vehicle turning area, measuring not less than 7.6m x 7.6m must be formed 
within the site to enable all vehicle movements onto or from the public road to be carried out 
in a forward gear; and 

g) The height of the boundary wall to the south where vehicles access to and from must not 
exceed 0.9m.  (Reason: To enable drivers of vehicles using the access to have a clear view 
of other road users and pedestrians, and in the interests of road safety) 

 
 

Page 314



Planning and Environmental Appeals Division 

4 The Courtyard, Callendar Business Park, Falkirk, FK1 1XR 

DX 557005 Falkirk          www.gov.scot/Topics/Planning/Appeals 
  

 

Planning and Environmental Appeals Division 

Appeal Decision Notice 

T: 01324 696 400 

F: 01324 696 444 

E: dpea@gov.scot 

 

 
Decision 
 
I allow the appeal and grant planning permission subject to the 10 conditions listed at   
annex 2.  Attention is drawn to the three advisory notes at annex 3. 
 
Reasoning 
 
1. I am required to determine this appeal in accordance with the development plan, 
unless material considerations indicate otherwise.  The development plan consists of the 
Glasgow & Clyde Valley Strategic Development Plan (2012) and the East Dunbartonshire 
Local Development Plan (2017).  There is no suggestion that the first of these has any 
significant bearing on this case.  The local development plan was adopted (and so became 
part of the development plan for the purposes of this appeal) in February 2017.  The 
submissions in this case were made substantially in relation to the local development plan’s 
predecessor, the East Dunbartonshire Local Plan 2 which had been adopted in 2011.  
However, at my request the parties have indicated which policies of the new local 
development plan they consider support their cases in this appeal, and I have taken 
account of those submissions.  The appeal site lies within the Tannoch Conservation Area, 
and that means that special regard must be had to the preservation or enhancement of the 
conservation area.  No objection is raised to the proposed alterations and extensions to the 
existing house, and I have no such objection.   
 
2. Therefore, having regard to the provisions of the development plan and bearing 
those other points in mind, the main issues in this appeal are therefore whether the 
proposed house would (a) fail to at least preserve the character and appearance of the 
conservation area and/or (b) harm the living conditions of nearby residents. 

 
Decision by Mike Croft, a Reporter appointed by the Scottish Ministers 
 

 Planning appeal reference: PPA-200-2041.  

 Site address: 3 Bank Avenue, Milngavie, Glasgow, G62 8NG. 

 Appeal by Mr Paul Gilbride against the decision by East Dunbartonshire Council.  

 Application for planning permission ref TP/ED/16/0696 dated 4 October 2016 refused by 
notice dated 31 January 2017.   

 The development proposed: the erection of a new detached house, and alterations and 
extensions to the existing detached house. 

 Application drawings: see annex 1. 

 Date of site visit by Reporter: 19 April 2017.  
 
Date of appeal decision:  31 May 2017.  

Page 315



PPA-200-2041   

Planning and Environmental Appeals Division 

4 The Courtyard, Callendar Business Park, Falkirk, FK1 1XR 

DX 557005 Falkirk          www.gov.scot/Topics/Planning/Appeals 
  

 

2 

Character and appearance of the conservation area 
 
3. There are two main policy requirements in the local development plan.  One is a 
requirement in policy 2 for developments of all scales to accord with 9 specified design and 
placemaking principles, one of which is that the development is to be designed to ensure a 
positive impact on the character, function and amenity of the surrounding area, including 
compatibility with existing uses.  The other requirement, in policy 10, is for development 
within a conservation area to preserve or enhance its character and appearance. 
 
4. I saw during my visit to Milngavie that much of the existing development in the 
conservation area dates from the Victorian period.  That development includes large 
detached and semi-detached villas set within spacious plots.  The buildings are usually of 
stone, with slate roofs.  Substantial mature vegetation on the plot boundaries is often 
associated with such development, and that vegetation is often a dominant feature in views 
from the roads.  But there are also contrasting areas such as Montrose Gardens (about 100 
metres from the appeal site) with smaller plots and houses closer together.  The 
conservation area also includes water areas, including Tannoch Loch just beyond Montrose 
Gardens.  I also note that the appeal site is on the edge of the conservation area, the site’s 
western boundary coinciding with the conservation area boundary.  
 
5. The appeal site is set within a part of the conservation area which has large 
detached Victorian houses with well treed boundaries, but the existing house there is more 
modern and it is of brick.  The appeal project includes the cladding of the existing house in 
natural blonde sandstone.  Another very important characteristic of the appeal site is a 
difference in levels: it falls steeply west of the existing house, and it is on the lower level 
that the new house would be built. 
 
6. Although the council considers that the appeal project presents a policy conflict, I 
find the assessments of the council’s officer (who recommended permission) and the 
appellant more persuasive.  Although the new house would be three storeys high (in 
contrast to the more usual two storeys here) it would be built on the lower part of the 
existing curtilage, resulting in its roof ridge height being 3.4 metres lower than the existing 
house within the site and lower than all of the immediate neighbours.  The new house 
would differ in design from the existing detached villas nearby, but the existing house 
already presents contrasts in design terms.   As I have mentioned, tree cover is important in 
the conservation area.  In this case I am satisfied that, with appropriate protection 
measures, there would be little impact on the boundary trees.  I bear in mind that most of 
the boundary tree cover is deciduous, but my assessment – and my site inspection was at a 
time when most of the trees were only just coming into leaf – is that the retained tree cover 
on the appeal site boundaries would mean that the new house would not have a significant 
presence in most private views in the locality.  I consider one exception to this in paragraph 
12 below.  The existence of that boundary tree cover, together with other trees in the 
vicinity (protected where they lie within the conservation area), takes me to a similar 
conclusion about public views from nearby roads. 
 
7. The main parties disagree about the impact of splitting the existing plot into two.  The 
new house would have a plot of 0.10 hectare.  That is smaller than many in the locality, but 
there are already two plots smaller than that on Bank Avenue.  It is also significant from my 
observations in the locality that it is often difficult to detect differences in plot size from the 

Page 316



PPA-200-2041   

Planning and Environmental Appeals Division 

4 The Courtyard, Callendar Business Park, Falkirk, FK1 1XR 

DX 557005 Falkirk          www.gov.scot/Topics/Planning/Appeals 
  

 

3 

public domain.  I also note, and accept, the council officer’s view that both the new house 
and the existing one would have adequate garden ground. 
 
8. There is no objection to the use of sandstone as the main material for the new 
house, but exception is taken to the substantial use of copper on its roof and its eastern, 
southern and western walls.  The council contends that this has particular potential to harm 
the character of the surrounding area as copper is not typically found on domestic 
properties and is not a characteristic of traditional Scottish architecture other than on grand 
civic buildings in an urban context.  To the council it would appear as an incongruous and 
overly prominent feature.  I am more inclined to the view that this can be regarded as a 
design element using a high quality material that may contrast visually with the local 
environment but which is not necessarily harmful to that environment.  Also relevant here 
are my remarks above about the limited visual presence of the new house. 
 
9. Overall, and bearing in mind all the other points made about the design of the new 
house in its locational context, it is my view that the house would, at worst, do little harm to 
the local scene.  It is a carefully designed, individual house to be inserted into a site (that is 
unusual given its varying levels) amid other individual houses.  Its impact on the character 
of the conservation area would be limited.  It would clearly preserve the conservation area’s 
character and appearance.  My assessment is that it is satisfactory so far as issue (a) is 
concerned.   
 
Living conditions of nearby residents. 
 
10. Local development plan policy 2 is relevant to this issue as well as to issue (a), with 
its requirement for developments to be designed to ensure a positive impact on the amenity 
of the surrounding area, including compatibility with existing uses.   
 
11. 4 Bank Avenue is a detached house to the north of the appeal site, with a large 
garden.  Concern is expressed particularly about two proposed bridges that would link the 
upper floor of the new house (containing the main living rooms) with a covered parking area 
in the higher part of the site.  The more northerly of the two bridges would be only 1.8 
metres from the site’s boundary with 4 Bank Avenue.  It is contended that this would be 
intrusive to number 4’s garden and would result in noise and loss of privacy.  I agree that 
there is likely to be some impact in these terms on that part of the garden nearest the more 
northerly bridge, but I consider that impact would be limited to that small area.  That small 
area is some 20 metres and more distant from the house at number 4 and is located 
obliquely to the main elevation of number 4. 
 
12. 6 Mosspark Road lies to the south-west of the appeal site.  It is a detached house 
with a garden that adjoins the full extent of the appeal site’s western boundary.  That 
garden tapers to a point about 100 metres from the house at number 6.  The proposed 
house would come to within 1.3 metres of the garden boundary, and it would be seen as a 
tall structure from the nearest part of the adjacent garden.  In this context the council refers 
to the development being overbearing and over-dominant.  But the nearest part of the new 
house would be over 40 metres from the house at number 6, and number 6’s garden is 
clearly very extensive: quite apart from its length as noted above, it has a maximum width 
of about 30 metres and that maximum is reached near the location of the new house.  It 

Page 317



PPA-200-2041   

Planning and Environmental Appeals Division 

4 The Courtyard, Callendar Business Park, Falkirk, FK1 1XR 

DX 557005 Falkirk          www.gov.scot/Topics/Planning/Appeals 
  

 

4 

seems to me that the impact on the living conditions of those at number 6 must be seen in 
that context, and that context makes the impact more limited.     
 
13. I am satisfied also that, because of the design and location of the new house and the 
distances between it and nearby houses, there would be no serious problems of 
overlooking or loss of daylight or sunlight.  I therefore come to the conclusion that the new 
house would be satisfactory so far as issue (b) is concerned. 
 
Other matters and overall conclusion     
 
14. Having reached the position that the new house succeeds on both main issues, 
there is no other consideration that takes me from the conclusion that planning permission 
should be granted.  The council’s officer recommended the imposition of 11 conditions had 
the council granted permission, and the council seeks the imposition of those conditions in 
the event of a permission now.  The appellant is content with those conditions.  I follow the 
thrust of the council’s suggestions with the following exceptions.  One of the council’s 
conditions sought a pre-start meeting to consider tree protection barriers, but as that 
condition left the outcome of such a meeting unclear I impose a requirement for details to 
be submitted and approved: that does prevent a pre-start meeting being held as a means of 
reaching the required position.  I also combine the council’s three conditions on flooding 
and drainage into one.  Having consulted the main parties on the point, I add a condition to 
ensure the visual advantage of cladding the existing house in natural blonde sandstone as 
part of the project as mentioned in paragraph 5 above.   
 
15. With those conditions in place, I conclude, for the reasons set out above, that the 
proposed development accords overall with the relevant provisions of the development plan 
and that there are no material considerations which would still justify refusing to grant 
planning permission. 
 

Mike Croft  
Reporter 
 
  

Page 318



PPA-200-2041   

Planning and Environmental Appeals Division 

4 The Courtyard, Callendar Business Park, Falkirk, FK1 1XR 

DX 557005 Falkirk          www.gov.scot/Topics/Planning/Appeals 
  

 

5 

Annex 1: application drawings 
 
000/16 101   Location plan 
000/16 102   Existing house floor plans and elevations 
000/16 103   Location plan - surrounding area 
000/16 104 rev A Proposed block plan 
000/16 105   Site plan - topographical survey etc 
000/16 106    Proposed east and west elevations  
000/16 107   Proposed north elevation 
000/16 108    Proposed south elevation 
000/16 109   Proposed lower ground floor plan 
000/16 110   Proposed ground floor block plan 
000/16 111   Proposed mid floor plan pf new house 
000/16 112   Proposed roof plan second house, existing house second floor plan 
000/16 113    Existing house: existing and proposed west and east elevations 
000/16 114   Proposed cross sections 
 
 
Annex 2: conditions 
 
1. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the 
submitted Tree Survey and Arboricultual Implications Assessment (dated 5 December 
2016) and the recommendations therein. [Reason: to ensure effective tree protection during 
the construction phase.] 
 
2. No development hereby permitted shall take place until details of tree protection 
barriers which will form a construction exclusion zone around retained trees have been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the planning authority. [Reason: to ensure effective 
tree protection during the construction phase.] 
 
3. No development hereby permitted shall take place until a plan indicating the 
positions, design, materials and type of boundary treatment to be erected has been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the planning authority.  The boundary treatment 
shall be completed before completion or occupation of the buildings, whichever is sooner. 
The boundary treatment shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details and 
permanently retained. [Reason: to ensure the provision of an adequate boundary 
treatment.] 
 
4. No development hereby permitted shall take place until cross-sectional plans which 
clearly show the extent of the development on the site, its finished floor levels and ridge 
levels, the levels of all adjacent land and buildings and their relationship to the proposed 
development, have been have been submitted to and approved in writing by the planning 
authority.  The development shall be carried out in accordance with those approved details.  
[Reason: for the avoidance of doubt.] 

 
5. During the period of construction, all works and ancillary operations which are 
audible at the site boundary, or at such other places as may be agreed with the planning 
authority, shall be carried out only between 0800 and 1900 hours on Mondays to Fridays 

Page 319



PPA-200-2041   

Planning and Environmental Appeals Division 

4 The Courtyard, Callendar Business Park, Falkirk, FK1 1XR 

DX 557005 Falkirk          www.gov.scot/Topics/Planning/Appeals 
  

 

6 

inclusive, between 0800 and 1300 hours on Saturdays and at no time on Sundays or bank 
holidays. [Reason: to protect the living conditions of nearby residents.} 

 
6. No development hereby permitted shall take place until details of the proposed 
Wendy house have been submitted to and approved in writing by the planning authority.  
The Wendy house shall be constructed in accordance with those approved details.  
[Reason: for the avoidance of doubt.] 

 
7. No development hereby permitted shall take place until details of a speed reducing 
measure (in the form of road hump or access narrowing), to be installed in the existing 
driveway of 3 Bank Avenue, have been submitted to and approved in writing by the 
planning authority.  That measure shall be constructed before the first occupation of the 
new house in accordance with those approved details.  [Reason: in the interests of highway 
safety.] 

 
8. No development hereby permitted shall take place until a construction methodology 
statement has been submitted to and approved in writing by the planning authority. This 
shall include details of the provision and programming of any temporary access route and 
junction, site compound office, workers’ parking provision, wheel washing facilities, material 
store areas and the operation and location of security lights.  The provision and 
programming of those measures shall be in accordance with the approved statement. 
[Reason: to ensure safe access and minimise disruption during the construction phase.] 

 
9. No development hereby permitted shall take place until (a) a plan showing 1 in 200 
year pluvial flooding overland routes and how these will be contained on site, (b) 
calculations for the design of the drainage network and (c) a letter of acceptance from 
Scottish Water (stating the agreed and allowable discharge route of surface water to their 
infrastructure, and the calculations for the design of the drainage network) have been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the planning authority.  [Reason: in the interests of 
flood prevention and satisfactory drainage.] 

 
10. The new house hereby approved shall not be occupied until the cladding of the 
existing house in natural blonde sandstone has been completed in accordance with the 
approved plans.  [Reason: to ensure the satisfactory appearance of the project overall.]  
 
 
Annex 3: advisory notes 
 
1. The length of the permission:  This planning permission will lapse on the expiration of 
a period of three years from the date of this decision notice, unless the development has 
been started within that period (See section 58(1) of the Town and Country Planning 
(Scotland) Act 1997 (as amended)). 
 
2. Notice of the start of development:  The person carrying out the development must 
give advance notice in writing to the planning authority of the date when it is intended to 
start.  Failure to do so is a breach of planning control.  It could result in the planning 
authority taking enforcement action (See sections 27A and 123(1) of the Town and Country 
Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 (as amended)). 
 

Page 320



PPA-200-2041   

Planning and Environmental Appeals Division 

4 The Courtyard, Callendar Business Park, Falkirk, FK1 1XR 

DX 557005 Falkirk          www.gov.scot/Topics/Planning/Appeals 
  

 

7 

3. Notice of the completion of the development:  As soon as possible after it is 
finished, the person who completed the development must write to the planning authority to 
confirm the position (See section 27B of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 
1997 (as amended)).   

Page 321



This page is intentionally left blank



Planning and Environmental Appeals Division 

4 The Courtyard, Callendar Business Park, Falkirk, FK1 1XR 

www.gov.scot/policies/planning-environmental-appeals 
 abcde abc a  

 

Planning and Environmental Appeals Division 

Appeal Decision Notice 

T: 0300 244 6668 

E: dpea@gov.scot 

 

 
Decision 
 
I allow the appeal and grant planning permission.  Attention is drawn to the three advisory 
notes at the end of the notice. 
 
Preliminary matters 
 
(i) The appellant has made a claim for expenses.  I have issued a separate decision on 
this claim. 
 
(ii) The appellant has queried whether the proposed rooflights constitute development.  I 
confirm that the installation of the five rooflights in the front and rear elevation of the flatted 
property would constitute development in terms of section 26(1) of the Town and Country 
Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 (as amended). 
 
Reasoning 
 
1. I am required to determine this appeal in accordance with the development plan, 
unless material considerations indicate otherwise.  As the appeal site lies within the 
Marchmont, Meadows and Bruntsfield Conservation Area, in accordance with section 64(1) 
of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) (Scotland) Act 1997 (as 
amended), special attention must be paid to the desirability of preserving or enhancing the 
character or appearance of the conservation area. 
 

 
Decision by Gordon S Reid, a Reporter appointed by the Scottish Ministers 
 
 Planning appeal reference: PPA-230-2288 
 Site address: 3F2, 17 Bruntsfield Gardens, Edinburgh, EH10 4DX 
 Appeal by: Mr T Hyde against the decision by The City of Edinburgh Council 
 Application for planning permission 19/00792/FUL dated 15 February 2019 refused by 

notice dated 2 July 2019 
 The development proposed: creation of new flatted dwelling within attic space and alter 

existing third floor flat.  Proposed new access from existing communal stairwell (as 
amended) 

 Application drawings: site location plan (drawing OS(00)001), existing plans (drawing 
GA(EX)001) and proposed plans (drawing GA(00)001 revision B) 

 Date of site visit by Reporter: 7 November 2019 
 
Date of appeal decision: 5 December 2019 

Page 323



PPA-230-2288 

Planning and Environmental Appeals Division 

4 The Courtyard, Callendar Business Park, Falkirk, FK1 1XR 

www.gov.scot/policies/planning-environmental-appeals 
 abcde abc a  

 

2 

2. Having regard to the provisions of the development plan the main issues in this 
appeal are whether the proposed flat is of an acceptable standard and location, the 
appropriateness of the design, materials and positioning of the rooflights, the impact on the 
character and appearance of the conservation area, the impact on residential amenity and 
the impact on road safety. 
 
3. The development plan consists of the approved SESplan Strategic Development 
Plan (2013) and the adopted Edinburgh Local Development Plan (2016).  I find that there 
are no strategic development plan policies of relevance to this appeal.  However, the 
following documents are relevant: the Scottish Government’s Scottish Planning 
Policy (2014) and the council’s non-statutory guidance contained in: the Edinburgh Design 
Guidance (2017); the Listed Buildings and Conservation Area Guidance (2019); and the 
Marchmont, Meadows and Bruntsfield Conservation Area Character Appraisal (2006). 
 
4. The appeal site is located on the west side of Bruntsfield Gardens to the south of the 
junction with Bruntsfield Place.  The property is a four storey stone built traditional tenement 
with pitched roof finished in slate.  There is a small private garden to the front and large 
communal garden to the rear.  The surrounding area is primarily residential with retail and 
commercial uses to the north within the Morningside and Bruntsfield town centre. 
 
5. The proposal is to create a two bedroom flat over two levels utilising a bedroom from 
the existing flat and the vacant attic space above.  Access would be from a new doorway 
formed on the landing in the communal stairwell.  The new accommodation would consist of 
a small bedroom and staircase on the third floor entrance level, with a lounge, kitchen, 
bathroom and bedroom formed in the attic space.  The existing flat is to be altered to 
maintain it as a three bedroomed flat and these works do not form part of my considerations 
at this appeal.  Five conservation style rooflights are to be installed in the existing sloping 
slate roof with three in the front (east) elevation and two in the rear (west) elevation. 
 
6. Local development plan Policy Hou1 Housing Development seeks to deliver the 
identified land supply for housing and relevant infrastructure over the plan period.  Only 
criterion d) is of relevance to the proposed development which supports additional housing 
on suitable sites in the urban area, provided they are compatible with other policies in the 
plan.  The proposed development is for the formation of a new flat in an existing residential 
tenement within the urban area and, as detailed below, is acceptable in terms of the other 
relevant policies of the local development plan.  I find that it complies with the provisions of 
Policy Hou 1. 
 
7. Local development plan Policy Hou 3 Private Green Space in Housing 
Developments seeks to ensure that there is an appropriate level of greenspace provision 
for new housing developments.  For new flatted accommodation a standard of 10 square 
metres per flat is sought.  Exceptions are considered justifiable if there are good reasons 
why the level of space cannot be provided.  The proposed flat is to be formed within an 
existing tenement property and there is no scope to add additional private green space.  
However, the property already has a generous area of communal open space to the rear 
which could adequately serve new and existing residents and is also located within close 
proximity to the public open space at Bruntsfield Links.  I consider that there are justifiable 
reasons for not providing additional greenspace in this instance and find that the proposal 
complies with Policy Hou 3. 

Page 324



PPA-230-2288 

Planning and Environmental Appeals Division 

4 The Courtyard, Callendar Business Park, Falkirk, FK1 1XR 

www.gov.scot/policies/planning-environmental-appeals 
 abcde abc a  

 

3 

 
8. Local development plan Policy Hou 4 Housing Density - seeks to promote an 
appropriate density of development, taking account of site characteristics and location.  The 
policy requires that regard is given to four criteria.  Criterion a) relates to the characteristic 
of the proposal and those of the surrounding area.  The proposal is for a two bedroomed 
flat within an existing tenement in the urban area, surrounded by tenement properties in 
residential use.  The proposed flat would be a compatible use and in keeping with the 
characteristics of the existing building and surrounding area and would meet the 
requirements of criterion a). 
 
9. Criterion b) seeks the creation of an attractive residential environment and the 
safeguarding of living conditions within the development.  The Edinburgh Design Guidance 
sets out the standards for new residential development in terms of flat sizes, daylighting 
and open space.  In terms of size the proposed two-bedroomed flat at 73 square metres 
would be in excess of the minimum floorspace standard of 66 square metres (the existing 
three-bedroomed flat at 88 square metres would be in excess of the minimum floorspace 
standard of 81 square metres).  The proposed flat would have dual aspect with rooflights on 
the east and west elevation.  This would provide adequate natural light into all of the main 
rooms.  I have already found above that the existing communal space is adequate to serve 
the proposed flat.  In terms of safeguarding living conditions as the proposal is for a 
residential use I consider that it would not introduce any disturbance that would 
detrimentally affect the amenity of existing residents.  The proposed flat would meet the 
requirements of criterion b). 
 
10. Criterion c) seeks to ensure there is accessibility to public transport and criterion d) 
seeks to encourage and support the provision of local facilities necessary to high quality 
urban living.  The appeal property is close to the Morningside and Bruntsfield town centre 
and would benefit from the existing full range of shops, services, public transport facilities 
and active travel routes.  Residents of the proposed flat would therefore have easy access 
to nearby public transport facilities and would also help to support the local shops and 
services in the town centre.  The proposed flat would meet the requirements of criteria c) 
and d).  I find that proposed development would meet all four criteria and be in accordance 
with Policy Hou 4 and the Edinburgh Design Guidance. 
 
11. Local development plan Policy Des 5 sets out the requirements for amenity in the 
design of new buildings to meet the needs of users and occupiers, with consideration given 
to impacts on neighbouring properties.  It sets out five criteria of which only a) and e) are 
relevant to the appeal proposals.  Criterion a) is the main consideration and seeks to 
ensure that the amenity of neighbouring developments is not adversely affected and that 
future occupiers have acceptable levels of amenity in relation to noise, daylight, sunlight, 
privacy or immediate outlook.  The works to form the flat, apart from the rooflights, would be 
internal to the existing building with only the new entrance door viewed from the communal 
landing of the internal stairwell.  I conclude below that the proposed rooflights are of an 
acceptable design and would not result in an unreasonable loss of privacy for neighbours.  
In addition, as the proposal is for a two bedroom flat in a residential tenement I consider 
that there would be no unreasonable disturbance from noise.  I find that there would be no 
adverse effect on the amenity of neighbours in the existing property from the formation the 
proposed flat. 
 

Page 325



PPA-230-2288 

Planning and Environmental Appeals Division 

4 The Courtyard, Callendar Business Park, Falkirk, FK1 1XR 

www.gov.scot/policies/planning-environmental-appeals 
 abcde abc a  

 

4 

12. In terms of the amenity for future occupiers the flat is of an appropriate size, has a 
dual aspect and is on the top floor and attic of the tenement.  This would provide good 
levels of daylight, sunlight, privacy and immediate outlook.  I find that the proposed flat 
meets the requirements of criterion a).  Criterion e) seeks the sensitive integration of related 
services including refuse/recycling facilities, cycle storage, plant and services.  As the 
proposed development would utilise existing services in the building and no additional cycle 
storage is required in this instance, I find that the proposal is acceptable in terms of 
criterion e).  The proposed development is in accordance with Policy Des 5. 
 
13. Local development plan Policy Des 12 Alterations and Extensions seeks to ensure 
that the impact of a proposal on the appearance and character of the existing building and 
street scene must be satisfactory.  The policy sets out three criteria that require to be met.  
Criterion a) advises that proposals in their design and form, choice of materials and 
positioning be compatible with the character of the existing building.  As already stated 
most of the works are internal and raise no issues of concern.  The rooflights would be 
external and are all of a conservation style; would lie flush within the roof-plane; and be 
finished in black with a central glazing bar.  The existing building is a four storey Victorian 
tenement with sloping roof finished in natural slate.  I find that the proposed rooflights given 
their style, materials and positioning are compatible with the appearance of the existing 
property.  The proposed development meets the requirements of criterion a). 
 
14. Criterion b) advises that proposals should not result in an unreasonable loss of 
privacy or natural light to neighbouring properties.  The five rooflights would introduce some 
potential for overlooking of the windows of surrounding properties to both the east and 
west.  I observed that the windows of most of the surrounding properties in Bruntsfield 
Gardens and Bruntsfield Place are already directly overlooked from the windows of the 
existing tenement flats to the east and west.  Given the position of the new rooflights they 
would be set slightly further back than the existing windows in the tenement and the views 
from them would be more acute and restricted due to the angle of the roof and the position 
of the existing chimney breasts.  I find that whilst the introduction of the five rooflights would 
result in some additional overlooking, over that which exists at present, it would not 
constitute an unreasonable loss of privacy to surrounding neighbours.  As only the 
rooflights would be external parts of the proposed development there would be no loss of 
natural light to neighbours.  The proposed development meets the requirements of 
criterion b). 
 
15. Criterion c) seeks to ensure that proposed developments would not be detrimental to 
neighbourhood amenity and character.  I have concluded above that the proposed 
development is acceptable in terms of residential amenity and that the rooflights are of an 
appropriate style, materials and position.  Local residents raised concerns about the 
adverse visual impact of the proposed rooflights on the appearance of the building and 
surrounding area.  I observed from my site visit that given the position of the rooflights they 
would not be visible from the street to the front or the communal garden to the rear of the 
property.  The only public vantage point where the rooflights would be visible at street level 
would be in the vicinity of the properties at 46-48 Bruntsfield Gardens.  I also observed that 
there were existing conservation style rooflights in the property at 29 Bruntsfield Gardens.  
These were smaller in size but more directly visible given the location opposite the junction 
in Bruntsfield Gardens.  Local residents submitted photographs showing that the rooflights 
would be visible from views within the some of the existing flats on the east side of 

Page 326



PPA-230-2288 

Planning and Environmental Appeals Division 

4 The Courtyard, Callendar Business Park, Falkirk, FK1 1XR 

www.gov.scot/policies/planning-environmental-appeals 
 abcde abc a  

 

5 

Bruntsfield Gardens and from some of the windows and stairwell windows of the flats in 
Bruntsfield Place to the west.  I acknowledge that these demonstrate that the rooflights 
would be more visible from some private vantage points.  However, I have already 
concluded that the design, materials and positioning of the rooflights are compatible with 
the character of the existing building.  In addition, only those on the front elevation would be 
visible from some limited public viewpoints in the surrounding area.  I find that the proposed 
rooflights would not be detrimental in terms of the visual impact on neighbouring amenity or 
character.  I find that the proposed development is in accordance with criterion c) and 
therefore overall with the provisions of Policy Des 12. 
 
16. Local development plan Policy Env 6 Conservations Areas (Development) and the 
council’s guidance on Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas requires new development 
within conservation areas to preserve or enhance the special character or appearance of 
the conservation area, be consistent with the conservation area character appraisal and 
require a high standard of design and materials appropriate to the historic environment.  
The Marchmont, Meadows and Bruntsfield Conservation Area Character Appraisal advises 
that the essential character is of an urban form comprising Victorian tenement perimeter 
blocks of a uniform height, massing and use of stone and slated roofs with most having 
small front gardens to the street.  In addition, the Scottish Government’s Scottish Planning 
Policy advises that proposals that do no harm to the character or appearance of the area 
should be treated as preserving it.  I have already concluded that the design, materials and 
positioning are of a satisfactory standard for the existing building and given that they 
include the conservation area style of rooflight they would be of an acceptable standard 
within a conservation area.  I have also found that the rooflights would not be highly visible 
from the surrounding streets.  I have also acknowledged that there would be some views 
from within existing properties.  I conclude that the proposed rooflights would do no harm to 
the appearance of the area and as a result would preserve the character and appearance 
of the conservation area.  I find that the proposed development is in accordance with the 
provisions of Policy Env 6, the guidance on Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas and 
the advice in Scottish Planning Policy. 
 
17. Local development plan Policy Tra 2 – Private Car Parking and the Edinburgh 
Design Guide set out parking requirements for new developments including the factors to 
be considered when assessing whether a lower parking provision is appropriate.  These 
include the accessibility to public transport stops on well served routes and to shops, 
schools and centres of employment by foot, cycle and public transport.  The parking 
standards would seek the provision of one parking space for the proposed development.  
No new parking is proposed as part of the development as there is no additional space to 
accommodate it.  The council roads authority advised that zero parking provision for this 
development was acceptable under the council’s parking standards as it was located within 
the extend controlled parking zone where the residents would be eligible for a residential 
parking permit.  In addition, the council advised that the proposals did not raise any 
concerns in terms of any impact on existing parking provision.  I find that given the size of 
the flat, the lack of space to provide additional car parking and its close proximity to the 
services and existing public transport routes within the Morningside and Bruntsfield town 
centre it would comply with the design guidance in terms of lower parking standards.  In 
addition, I do not consider that it would have any detrimental impact on the amenity of 
neighbours through additional on street parking demand or traffic safety issues.  I consider 
that the proposal accords with the provisions of Policy Tra 2. 

Page 327



PPA-230-2288 

Planning and Environmental Appeals Division 

4 The Courtyard, Callendar Business Park, Falkirk, FK1 1XR 

www.gov.scot/policies/planning-environmental-appeals 
 abcde abc a  

 

6 

 
18. Local development plan Policy Tra 3 seeks to ensure that cycle parking within new 
housing developments is in accordance with the standards set out in the Edinburgh Design 
Guidance.  The council have acknowledged the difficulty in achieving cycle parking in 
tenement properties.  No cycle parking is provided as part of the proposed development.  
As the new flat is located within the attic space of an existing four storey tenement I find 
that it is not practical to provide private cycle parking in this instance.  There was no 
objection from the council on this matter.  I find that the proposal is acceptable in terms of 
Policy Tra 3. 
 
19. There were concerns raised by neighbours to the proposed development in relation 
to the impact on the conservation area, impact on parking and traffic safety, inadequate 
living conditions for future occupiers, the impact on the amenity of neighbours within the 
tenement and the impact on local services.  I have taken these concerns into account in my 
assessment of the appeal proposal.  Concerns were also raised relating to the impact on 
neighbours from the disposal of domestic waste from the new flat.  I note that the council 
have advised that they can provide satisfactory collection of domestic waste in line with the 
service already provided to the existing residents in the property.  I do not find that the 
concerns raised in the representations from neighbours are sufficient to warrant dismissal 
of this appeal in this instance. 
 
20. I find, that the proposed flat is of an acceptable standard and location and would not 
have a detrimental impact on residential amenity or road safety.  In addition, I find that the 
proposed rooflights are of an appropriate design, materials and position and would not 
adversely impact the appearance of the property and surrounding area.  I conclude that the 
proposed development would be in accordance overall with the relevant provisions of the 
development plan.  There are no material considerations which would still justify refusing to 
grant planning permission.  Furthermore, the proposed development would preserve the 
character and appearance of the Marchmont, Meadows and Bruntsfield Conservation Area.  
I have considered all the other matters raised, but there are none which would lead me to 
alter my conclusions. 
 
 

Gordon S Reid 
Reporter 
 
Advisory notes 
 
1. The length of the permission:  This planning permission will lapse on the expiration of 
a period of three years from the date of this decision notice, unless the development has 
been started within that period (See section 58(1) of the Town and Country Planning 
(Scotland) Act 1997 (as amended)). 
 
2. Notice of the start of development:  The person carrying out the development must 
give advance notice in writing to the planning authority of the date when it is intended to 
start.  Failure to do so is a breach of planning control.  It could result in the planning 
authority taking enforcement action (See sections 27A and 123(1) of the Town and Country 
Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 (as amended)). 
 

Page 328



PPA-230-2288 

Planning and Environmental Appeals Division 

4 The Courtyard, Callendar Business Park, Falkirk, FK1 1XR 

www.gov.scot/policies/planning-environmental-appeals 
 abcde abc a  

 

7 

3. Notice of the completion of the development:  As soon as possible after it is 
finished, the person who completed the development must write to the planning authority to 
confirm the position (See section 27B of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 
1997 (as amended)). 
 

Page 329



This page is intentionally left blank



Planning and Environmental Appeals Division 

4 The Courtyard, Callendar Business Park, Falkirk, FK1 1XR 

www.gov.scot/policies/planning-environmental-appeals 
 abcde abc a  

 

Planning and Environmental Appeals Division 

Appeal Decision Notice 

T: 0300 244 6668 

F: 0131 244 8988 

E: dpea@gov.scot 

 

 
Decision 
 
I allow the appeal and grant planning permission subject to the 6 conditions listed at the 
end of the decision notice.  Attention is drawn to the 4 advisory notes at the end of the 
notice. 
 
Reasoning 
 
1.   I am required to determine this appeal in accordance with the development plan, unless 
material considerations indicate otherwise.  The appeal site is within Eskbank and Ironmills 
Conservation Area I must also have regard to the duty imposed by section 64(1) of the 
Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) (Scotland) Act 1997 (the 1997 Act).  
This requires that I pay special attention to the desirability of preserving or enhancing the 
character or appearance of the conservation area. 
 
2.   The development plan comprises the South East Scotland Strategic Development Plan 
(SESPlan) approved in 2013, and the Midlothian Local Development Plan 2017, (the local 
development plan).  Having regard to the development plan the key issue in this appeal is 
whether the design and scale of the proposed house is compatible with the character and 
appearance of Eskbank and Ironmills Conservation Area.  No relevant policies in the 
strategic development plan have been brought to my attention and my decision is based 
upon an assessment of the appeal proposal in the context of the local development plan. 
 
3.   The site comprises of an unused area of some 430 square metres of former garden 
ground previously associated with a house at 3 Eskview Villas built in the 1980’s and which, 
since the late 1990’s, has accommodated the Happy Days Children’s Nursery.  The appeal 

 
Decision by Chris Norman, a Reporter appointed by the Scottish Ministers 
 
 Planning appeal reference:  PPA-290-2053 
 Site address:  3 Eskview Villas, Eskbank, Dalkeith EH22 3BN    
 Appeal by Mrs. Christina Walters against the decision by Midlothian Council 
 Application for planning permission 18/00760/DPP dated 5 October 2018 refused by 

notice dated 30 January 2019. 
 The development proposed:  Erection of dwellinghouse, formation of access and car 

parking and associated works. 
 Application drawings listed in schedule 
 Date of site visit by Reporter:  6 May 2019 
 
Date of appeal decision: 23 May 2019 

Page 331



PPA-290-2053   

Planning and Environmental Appeals Division 

4 The Courtyard, Callendar Business Park, Falkirk, FK1 1XR 

www.gov.scot/policies/planning-environmental-appeals 
 abcde abc a  

 

2 

seeks planning permission for a two-storey, four-bedroomed detached house some 12.6 
metres wide, 8.6 metres deep and 5.1 metres high.  A 4.5 metre-wide vehicular access, 
acceptable to the council in road safety terms, would be taken from Eskview Villas to where 
three paved parking spaces would be formed.  To the rear of the proposed house an 
enclosed rear garden of some 130 square-metres would be provided.  To the council the 
modern design of the house does not respect the historic context of the surrounding area; it 
is neither complimentary to the character of its surroundings, nor is it an “assertive 
contrast”, making no attempt to interact with the character of the streetscape in the 
immediate surroundings.  In refusing the planning application the council has advised that it 
does not consider the proposal to constitute the over-development of the site, nor is it 
opposed to the proposed access and car parking arrangements. 
 
4.   Located south of the two-storey terraced houses at Eskview Villas the site is bordered 
by mature trees, a hedge and a fence.  The proposed building would be of a modern design 
with an irregular fenestration pattern which includes full height glazing.  It would be finished 
in a “contemporary palette” of finishing materials and would have a slate roof, ivory 
coloured render, untreated larch timber cladding and grey coloured aluminium-clad doors 
and windows. 
 
The Development Plan  
 
5.   The council’s sole reason for refusing the planning application was due to its conflict 
with local development plan policy ENV19 ‘Conservation Areas’ which requires there to be 
no adverse effect caused by new development on the character or appearance of a 
conservation area.  In coming to my view on the proposal I have had regard to other 
relevant local development plan policies.  Specifically, policy STRAT2: ‘Windfall Housing 
Sites’ allows housing on unallocated sites provided it meets specified criteria including its 
effect on the character of the area.  Policy DEV2: ‘Protecting Amenity within the Built-Up 
Area’ requires that new development must be appropriate to the area where it is located.  
Policy DEV6 ‘Layout and Design of New Development’ requires good design and a high 
quality of architecture and the layout and design of new developments must meet specific 
criteria.    
 
6.   The supporting text to policy ENV19 provides that although conservation areas require 
a higher level of control, this does not mean that development is necessarily opposed; 
preserving and enhancing the character and appearance of the area is the primary concern.  
The local development plan also advises that innovative, well-designed contemporary 
buildings may be acceptable provided that the character, appearance and materials used 
complement the location.  The council’s conservation area character assessment of 
Eskbank and Ironmills Conservation Area describes the area as a spacious, leafy, low 
density, late 19th century suburb which possesses high architectural quality with a variety of 
building styles.  The character assessment stresses the need to ensure that new infill 
development is sensitively designed and relates carefully to adjacent buildings. 
 
7.   On my site inspection I observed in detail the prevailing character and appearance of 
this part of Eskbank and Ironmills Conservation Area, particularly in the vicinity of the 
appeal site.  I agree with the council that the houses on the northern side of Eskview Villas 
are characterised by a well-integrated relationship between the existing terraced houses 
and the overall street-scene.  I note that the adjacent category ‘A’ listed Eskbank House is 

Page 332



PPA-290-2053   

Planning and Environmental Appeals Division 

4 The Courtyard, Callendar Business Park, Falkirk, FK1 1XR 

www.gov.scot/policies/planning-environmental-appeals 
 abcde abc a  

 

3 

identified as a ‘key building’ in the conservation area character assessment and I am 
satisfied that the proposal would not adversely impact upon its setting.  I also note that the 
trees around Glenesk House, to the west of the appeal site and visible from Eskbank Villas, 
are identified as a main tree group within the conservation area but because of the 
intervening distance I am satisfied that the proposal would not give rise to any threat to their 
integrity. 
  
8.   From my observations it was apparent to me that the part of the conservation area 
around the appeal site has seen pressure for new development.  Most notably, the modern 
steel roof and functional, blank rear elevation of ‘Wall Cottage’ acts as a dominant focal 
point of the street scene, unrelated to the character and appearance of the adjacent 
terraced villas.  The 1980’s architecture of the adjoining nursery school, adapted from a 
house to its current use, reflects the architectural style of its time.  Very recently the council 
has approved a large double-garage building some 22 metres east of the appeal site 
opposite Eskbank House, at the junction of Eskbank Villas and Glenesk Crescent.  South-
west of the appeal site planning permission has been granted on several occasions for 
extensive new building at Glenesk House in the conservation area, some of which is 
adjacent to and visible from the appeal site.  A little more distant, at the rear of 42 Eskbank 
Road, I observed a residential plot with planning permission being advertised for sale 
pursuant to the council’s approval of a new house in the grounds of an existing villa.  I 
conclude that development pressures within this part of the conservation area have been 
allowed with, to a greater or lesser extent, respect to the conservation area’s character and 
appearance.  
   
9.   I have taken into account the design and finish of some of the more recent 
developments around the site.  Located in a well-screened site at the west end of Eskbank 
Villas the proposed house, even after the formation of its new access, would be markedly 
less visible than the double garage currently under construction at the corner of Eskbank 
Villas and Glenesk Crescent.  While I am in little doubt that the house would be of a 
contemporary design I do not consider it to be “awkward and contrived” as suggested by 
persons opposing the proposal.  The use of slate for its roof will be complimentary to the 
character and appearance of the conservation area, as recognised by the council.  I find 
that this choice of finish would be more appropriate than both the red brickwork of the 
former house now used by the nursery and the steel roof on the building which dominates 
the west end of Eskbank Villas.  I find that the contemporary design of the proposed house 
makes more of a positive contribution than several of these other developments and, 
overall, I conclude that it would not have an adverse effect on the conservation area. 
 
10.   Having regard to the findings I set out above and the character assessment for  the 
conservation area I conclude that the innovative, well-designed contemporary building 
complies with local development plan policies STRAT2, DEV2 and DEV6.  In accordance 
with policy ENV 19 ‘Conservation Areas’ I conclude that the scale, choice of materials and 
design of the proposed house preserves and enhances the character and appearance of 
Eskbank and Ironmills Conservation Area. 
 
Material Considerations  
   
11.   I have carefully assessed the representations that have been received for and against 
the proposal, including that received from Eskbank and Newbattle Community Council and 

Page 333



PPA-290-2053   

Planning and Environmental Appeals Division 

4 The Courtyard, Callendar Business Park, Falkirk, FK1 1XR 

www.gov.scot/policies/planning-environmental-appeals 
 abcde abc a  

 

4 

which is supportive of residents.  However, as I set out above, I disagree with those 
comments that are made on the potential adverse effects of the proposal on Eskbank and 
Ironmills Conservation Area and on existing amenity.  I have noted the lengthy planning 
history of the both the site and the adjacent children’s nursery.   
 
12.   I have observed that there is little, if any, provision of off-street parking available to 
residents of Eskbank Villas.  However I am mindful of the absence of any objection from the 
council on road safety grounds and the proposal would provide 3 off-street car parking 
spaces within the appeal site.  The council’s planning officer advises that this provision 
complies with the council’s parking standards.  Overall, I conclude that the limited additional 
traffic that would be generated by a single house would not exacerbate, in any significant 
way, any current difficulties relating to on-street car parking, or road safety generally, in 
Eskbank Villas and its adjacent streets.   
 
13.   Given the intervening distance between the front elevation of the proposed house and 
the houses at Eskbank Villas, set out by the council’s planning officer, there are no grounds 
to oppose the proposal on the basis of the suggested loss of privacy, daylight and sunlight 
to existing houses at Eskbank Villas.  I am satisfied that proper statutory publicity has been 
given to the proposal and matters relating to perceived impacts on child safety are not 
material planning considerations.    
 
14.   Scottish Planning Policy (SPP) provides that design is a material consideration and I 
have set out above, in accordance with SPP, why I conclude that the appeal should be 
allowed on design grounds. 
 
15.   Having regard to the statutory duty imposed by the 1997 Act, I conclude that the 
appeal site at 3 Eskbank Villas, Dalkeith does have the capacity to absorb the scale and the 
visual impact of the proposal and consequently it would not be to the detriment of the 
character and appearance of Eskbank and Ironmills Conservation Area.   
 
16.   I therefore conclude, for the reasons set out above, that the proposed development 
does accord overall with the relevant provisions of the development plan and that there are 
no material considerations which would still justify refusing to grant planning permission.  I 
have considered all the other matters raised, but there are none which would lead me to 
alter my conclusions. 
 
  

Chris Norman 

Reporter 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 334



PPA-290-2053   

Planning and Environmental Appeals Division 

4 The Courtyard, Callendar Business Park, Falkirk, FK1 1XR 

www.gov.scot/policies/planning-environmental-appeals 
 abcde abc a  

 

5 

Conditions 
 
1.   Development shall not begin until a scheme to deal with any contamination of the site 
and/or previous mineral workings has been submitted to and approved by the planning 
authority.  The scheme shall contain details of the proposals to deal with any contamination 
and/or previous mineral workings and include:  
 
i. the nature, extent and types of contamination and/or previous mineral workings on the 
site;  
ii. measures to treat or remove contamination and/or previous mineral workings to ensure 
that the site is fit for the uses hereby approved, and that there is no risk to the wider 
environment from contamination and/or previous mineral workings originating within the 
site;  
iii. measures to deal with contamination and/or previous mineral workings encountered 
during construction work; and  
iv. the condition of the site on completion of the specified decontamination measures. 
 
Reason:  To ensure that any contamination and/or previous mineral workings on the site 
are adequately identified and that appropriate decontamination measures are undertaken to 
mitigate the identified risk to site users and construction workers, built development on the 
site, landscaped areas, and the wider environment.  
 
2.   On completion of the decontamination works referred to in Condition (1) above and prior 
to any dwellinghouse on the site being occupied, a validation report or reports shall be 
submitted to the planning authority confirming that the works have been carried out in 
accordance with the approved scheme. No part of the development shall be occupied 
unless or until the planning authority have approved the required validation.   
  
Reason:  To ensure that any contamination and/or previous mineral workings on the site 
are adequately identified and that appropriate decontamination measures are undertaken to 
mitigate the identified risk to site users and construction workers, built development on the 
site, landscaped areas, and the wider environment.  
  
3.   Development shall not begin until temporary protective fencing is erected around all 
trees on the site to be retained.  The fencing shall be positioned in circumference to the 
trunk at a distance from it which correlates to the trees canopy unless otherwise agreed in 
writing with the local planning authority.  No excavation, soil removal or storage shall take 
place within the enclosed area.  
  
Reason: To ensure the development does not result in the loss or damage of trees which 
merit retention in accordance with local and national planning guidance and advice.  
  
4.   Prior to any external finish materials, hard surface materials; and fences/boundary walls 
being installed details and, if requested, samples of the materials shall be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the planning authority. Thereafter development shall comply with the 
approved details unless otherwise approved in writing by the planning authority  
  
Reason: To safeguard the character of the conservation area.  
  

Page 335



PPA-290-2053   

Planning and Environmental Appeals Division 

4 The Courtyard, Callendar Business Park, Falkirk, FK1 1XR 

www.gov.scot/policies/planning-environmental-appeals 
 abcde abc a  

 

6 

5.   The parking and access arrangements shown on the approved site plan (drawing no. 
HD ESKH 04A) shall be completed and operational prior to the house being occupied.  
  
Reason: To ensure that the house is provided with safe and adequate access and parking; 
and to protect the amenity of local residents.  
  
6.   Prior to the house being occupied the brick boundary wall shown on the approved site 
plan (drawing no. HD ESKH 04A) shall be completed.   
  
Reason: To protect the amenity of future occupants of the dwellinghouse and to protect the 
amenity of children attending the neighbouring nursery.  
  
 
Schedule of Plans 
 
Location Plan HD ESK 01A                         
Block Plan HD ESK 02A                                
Site Plan (Existing) HD ESK 03                  
Site Plan (Proposed) HD ESK 04A                 
Proposed Floor Plan HD ESK 05A                
Proposed Floor Plan HD ESK 06A                
Roof Plan  HD ESK 07A                               
Proposed Elevations West HD ESK 08A      
Proposed Elevations North HD ESK 09A      
Proposed Elevations South HD ESK 10A     
Proposed Elevations East HD ESK 11A        
Proposed Cross Section AA HD ESK 12A   
Proposed Cross Section BB HD ESK 13A   
Root Protection Details 1712.L.G(92)003     
Access Statement                                          
Coal Mining Risk Assessment                        
Design Statement                                           
Landscape Architect Report                          
 
Advisory notes 
 
1. The length of the permission:  This planning permission will lapse on the expiration of 
a period of three years from the date of this decision notice, unless the development has 
been started within that period (See section 58(1) of the Town and Country Planning 
(Scotland) Act 1997 (as amended)). 
 
2. Notice of the start of development:  The person carrying out the development must 
give advance notice in writing to the planning authority of the date when it is intended to 
start.  Failure to do so is a breach of planning control.  It could result in the planning 
authority taking enforcement action (See sections 27A and 123(1) of the Town and Country 
Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 (as amended)). 
 
3. Notice of the completion of the development:  As soon as possible after it is 
finished, the person who completed the development must write to the planning authority to 

Page 336



PPA-290-2053   

Planning and Environmental Appeals Division 

4 The Courtyard, Callendar Business Park, Falkirk, FK1 1XR 

www.gov.scot/policies/planning-environmental-appeals 
 abcde abc a  

 

7 

confirm the position (See section 27B of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 
1997 (as amended)).    
 
Reason: To accord with section 27B(2) of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997, as 
amended by the Planning etc (Scotland) Act 2006.] 
 
4. Display of notice:  A notice must be displayed on or near the site while work is being 
carried out.  The planning authority can provide more information about the form of that 
notice and where to display it (See section 27C of the Town and Country Planning 
(Scotland) Act 1997 Act (as amended) and Schedule 7 to the Town and Country Planning 
(Development Management Procedure) (Scotland) Regulations 2013).    

Page 337



This page is intentionally left blank



SCOTTISH BORDERS COUNCIL 
 

APPLICATION TO BE DETERMINED UNDER POWERS DELEGATED TO  
CHIEF PLANNING OFFICER 

 
PART III REPORT (INCORPORATING REPORT OF HANDLING) 

 
REF :     20/00453/FUL 
 
APPLICANT :    Mr & Mrs D & C Morrison 

 
AGENT :   Ferguson Planning 
 
DEVELOPMENT :  Demolition of garage and erection of dwellinghouse 
 
LOCATION:  Garden Ground Of Clifton Cottage 

High Street 
Kirk Yetholm 
Scottish Borders 
 
 

 
TYPE :    FUL Application 
 
REASON FOR DELAY:   
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
DRAWING NUMBERS: 
 
Plan Ref      Plan Type  Plan Status 

        
P01  Proposed Plans & Elevations Refused 
P03 B  Location Plan Refused 
P02 B  Proposed Site Plan Refused 
 
NUMBER OF REPRESENTATIONS: 11  
SUMMARY OF REPRESENTATIONS: 
 
13 neighbours were notified and adverts were placed in The Southern Reporter and on 
tellmescotland.gov.uk.  No site notice has been erected owing to covid-19 restrictions.   
 
There were 4 support comments noting: 
 
-Sympathetic building design proposals will fit well to the adjacent buildings. 
-Off-road parking 
-Enhancement of an overgrown, dilapidated site and adjacent the Green. 
-Discreet and positive addition to the Conservation Area. 
 
There were 6 objection comments citing: 
 
-Access to the site is part of the highway and not a parking space. 
-The garden has already recently lost a beautiful large tree. 
-Loss of view from neighbouring properties. 
-Loss of business from holiday home rental due to loss of tradition and loss of vistas from windows. 
-The building would be out of character with CA. 
-The land should be protected for beauty and the natural environment. 
-Proposed development size and elevation would irreversibly impact special views in Kirk Yetholm. 
The lland should be protected as Greenspace. 
-Overshadowing by deep sided/ long elevation.  
-Overlooking. 

Page 339



-House layout is perpendicular to the other buildings on street. 
-Height would be out of place. 
-The site is historically undeveloped and proposals set a precedent on this whole side of the street, 
which has survived in layout, (bar garages and no9 and 11) since the first settlers. 
-This site is central to the principal and iconic view and gateway which brings town and country 
together at the start/end of the Pennine Way.  
-Footprint and mass is significant for plot. 
-Large detached dwellings are not common place in the Conservation Area . 
-Tall building rather than 1.5 storey vernacular. 
-Dwelling sits back on plot rather than roadside vernacular. 
-No alignment with adjacent dwellings. 
-Land formerly subdivided as allotments during WW2, the Open Space Audit reflects the historic and 
largely current use, the growing of vegetables and flowers, and not tenure. "Allotment" is the 
predominant land use despite not being; "a plot of land rented by an individual for growing vegetables 
or flowers". There are nuances between definition and actual use of this area of Greenspace/ open 
space defined by PAN65. 
-The need for development does not outweigh loss of greenspace, ample brownfield sites in Kirk 
Yetholm and allocations in Local Development Plan 2016.  There is no social, economic or community 
justification. 
-No compensatory greenspace proposals. 
-The site is too small to accommodate rainwater SUDS. 
-Public road is a recognised timber extraction route. 
 
There was one neutral comment noting concerns for the Conservation Area; height of the building, 
loss of view and concerns for parking. A neutral comment was issued and a request that the decision 
to be deferred until the covid-19 restrictions are lifted. 
 
A Planning Statement has been submitted: 
 
-This design is heavily informed by existing dwellings in Kirk Yetholm and particularly on High Street. 
-Private garden and balcony would not be visible from within village. 
-Design reflects the appearance and scale of existing dwellings. 
-Scale is contained by the secondary element on south gable. 
-Key greenspace allocation 003 is erroneous.  This site is within ownership of applicant and the village 
allotments are kept nearby on land to the south of the site. 
-The site is distinct (75m) from The Green. 
-The existing and previous uses are material considerations on this site. 
-Development would not result in the loss of an allotment garden, any allotment space, or any other 
Greenspace. 
-Use, appearance, footprint, and scale would be complementary to the "special architectural and 
historic character" of the Conservation Area. White roughcast render and slate roof are particularly 
prevalent in the Conservation Area. Timber windows are proposed. 
-Garage makes little contribution to the Conservation Area: development will be an enhancement of 
the site and Conservation Area. 
-Two in-curtilage parking spaces plus on-street for Clifton Cottage complies with parking standards of 
the Local Development Plan 2016. 
-The Proposal respects the falling land and will appear a step from residential use to allotment/ 
country. 
-2 storey design respects vernacular. 
-Overlooking, overshadowing, inter-visibility/ privacy are all satisfied.  Burnsyde, 20m to the north, 
does not have windows in its south gable. 
 
Further supporting comments to rebut consultation responses, dated 28 May: 
 
- On-street parking provision prevalent and proposals will not significantly alter or impact current road 
or parking arrangements. 
- It is not accepted that the views eastward from the High Street to the landscape beyond contribute to 
the characteristic historic layout of Kirk Yetholm and distinctive close visual and spatial relationship 
with the surrounding landscape.  These views are already intervened by surrounding houses and 
hotel. Garages break up the visuals. 

Page 340



-There is intervening screening/landscaping which will obscure views from the principal views in The 
Green. 
-The street façade has been designed to replicate that of Clifton Cottage. 
-The Category C listing of the High Street has limited bearing and is due to historical interest rather 
than architectural interest.  The site was gifted to Messrs Young, a gypsy, by Captain Bennett after 
saving his life at the Siege of Namur. 
-New development within Conservation Area should not be pastiche architecture and the building has 
been chosen/ designed in this light. 
-Proposal is not set within the curtilage or setting of the Conservation Areas core assets nor will it have 
any impact upon them. Nor does it impinge on any core or protected viewpoints. No overdevelopment 
of significant adverse impacts identified. 
 
Consultations 
 
Roads Planning: Object.  Policy PMD2 Road Safety. There is currently capacity to park two vehicles 
out with the public road. The proposal would remove this existing parking without accommodating the 
loss elsewhere. Clifton Cottage would have no designed off-street parking and would be forced to park 
on-street. 
 
Education: A contribution of £2,978 is required toward Kelso High School. No contributions to Yetholm 
PS. 
 
Forward Planning: No objection. It is confirmed that there is no community purposes for this part of 
Key Geenspace therefore no demonstrable social, economic or community loss arising. Green Space 
can be in both public and private ownership. Land in question has not been used as allotment recently 
therefore it has little amenity public open space values. No allocation of housing in Kirk Yetholm but 
Town Yetholm has two housing allocations RY1B Deanfield Court and RY4B Morebattle Road. 
 
Community Council - Neutral response. Half agree with proposals and half object. 
 
Heritage and Design Officer: Object. Some very limited-scale structures (e.g. garages and sheds) 
have been introduced over the years to the east side of the High Street. Due to their small size and 
secondary-structure character they do not notably disrupt the characteristic connection to the wider 
landscape and historic layout of the area. There may be scope for the introduction of a small, modest 
structure similar to a garage, shed or possibly small garden studio form as this would not disrupt this 
established positive contribution to the Conservation Area. However, development on this site on the 
scale of a dwellinghouse would disrupt these positive characteristics, and therefore constitute harm to 
the character and appearance of the Conservation Area. Cannot support the principle of introducing a 
dwelling on the site and no detailed comment is given.  However, it is clear that the scale and design 
proposed will not preserve or enhance the character and appearance of the Conservation Area. 
 
Archaeology Officer: Further information required in the form of an archaeological evaluation prior to 
determination.  The garage for demolition is of low archaeological interest.  A site adjacent to an 
historic main road in to the settlement is likely to be of high archaeological importance.  It is anticipated 
that there may have been some Medieval or early Post-Medieval buildings present at this location and 
that any archaeological remains, features or finds should be identified and recorded. An evaluation 
should be carried out prior to the determination of this application. Reporting of this evaluation may 
result in comments leading towards an objection from the Archaeology Officer. 
 
Neighbourhood services: No objection. 
 
PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS AND POLICIES: 
 
Local Development Plan 2016  
 
PMD2 Quality Standards 
PMD5 Infill Development 
HD3: Protection of Residential Amenity 
EP8: Archaeology 
EP9: Conservation Areas 

Page 341



EP11: Protection of Greenspace 
EP13: Trees, Woodlands and Hedgerows 
IS2: Developer Contributions 
IS7: Parking Provision and Standards 
IS9: Waste Water Treatment Standards and Sustainable Urban Drainage 
 
Supplementary Planning Guidance: 
 
Developer Contributions, 2018 
Guidance on Householder Developments, 2006 
Placemaking and Design, 2010 
Landscape and Development, 2008 
Greenspace 2009 
  
 
Recommendation by  - Euan Calvert  (Assistant Planning Officer) on 16th June 2020 
 
This is a report of handling considering full planning permission for a dwellinghouse within garden ground of 
Clifton Cottage, High Street, Kirk Yetholm. It has not been possible to visit the site owing to Covid-19 
restrictions. Assessment of the application has been reliant on the agent supplying photographs; my 
photographs from a site visit to the adjacent property in 2017; viewing Streetview; and aerial images. 
  
Site and Location  
Clifton Cottage forms part of an irregular terrace of dwellings on the west side of the High Street in Kirk 
Yetholm.  The terrace is staggered as the hill rises away from The Green.   The downhill (northern) 
neighbour is Glenview and the uphill (southern) neighbour is former Valleydene / a hostel known as the "The 
Singing Donkeys Hostel". All three buildings are category C-Listed. This site is garden ground on the 
opposite side of the street from the property.   
  
The Terrace dates from the early 19th century with significant historic character arising from the irregular 
appearance. It was formerly known as Tinkers Row and is historically significant as having been gifted to 
travellers who then settled in the village. 
  
The proposed site is a garden on the opposite side of the street from Clifton Cottage.  The garden is set 
back from the black top road by a grass verge which is 10m in depth.  This mown verge extends to about 
65m in length and tapers in width as it fronts the other gardens both north and south.  This verge features a 
cast iron water pump by Glenfield & Kennedy and dates from the late 19th century.  It is of historic 
significance to this village. There is an identical pump in the north-west corner of The Green which is 
Category C-listed.  The verge is broken by a hedge which divides the drive of this site with the adjacent drive 
of Vallydene.   
 
A loose stone drive gives access across the verge to a white coloured concrete rendered garage which is 
3m in width x 6 m in length. This garage features an alloy up-and-over door in the gable wall fronting the 
street.  The roof is dual pitched cement asbestos sheet clad with clipped verge and eave detail.   
 
The frontage of this garden is ~16m in width and is characterised by a tall hedge (privet or mixed species) 
which obscures views from the street.  The plot is almost 21m in depth with a shorter rear boundary 
measuring 12m, forming a rectangular shape.  The regular shape suggests a feu plot.  The garden has not 
been levelled and appears to correspond with the fall of the hill. The eastern boundary is a wire stock fence 
beyond which there is a rotational agricultural field.  Streetview shows a mature tree characterising the site 
but this is not evidenced by recent photos of the site.  
 
The southern mutual boundary with Valleydene garden has no fence.  A new garage has been constructed, 
17/01086/FUL, 6.4m in length x 4.7m in width.  The garage is on a concrete platform constructed behind a 
concrete platform which was the foundation of a former timber garage.  This former garage would have been 
situated parallel to the garage on this site.  The siting of this new garage, 17/01086/FUL, therefore allows 
parking for 2 vehicles off the road.  This garage is block construction and is to be timber clad.  It features a 
single up-and-over door under an overhanging and boxed slate clad gabled roof with over-sailing verge 
detail.   
 

Page 342



The north boundary of the site is also unfenced.  I assume that the neighbouring garden to the north is 
Glenview, being the corresponding northern neighbour of Clifton Cottage.  This neighbour plot is about half 
the width (7m) and is similar in depth. The site is occupied by a prefabricated concrete garage under 
asbestos sheet roof which measures 3m in width x 11m in depth.  It too is set behind the grass verge. A 
track gives access to this garage and gives access to the east side of The Green. Burnsyde and the 
neighbouring Hill House enjoy frontages which address the track and overlook The Green. 
  
Planning History 
A pre-application decision was issued in 2019, 19/00406/PREAPP in which the Planning Authority confirmed 
objection to development of a dwellinghouse on this site. 
  
Policy 
The garden is both within the settlement boundary and Conservation Area of Yetholm. This wider area 
measuring 0.12ha has been identified as Key Greenspace (GSYETH003).  Policy EP11 Protection of 
Greenspace and the Greenspace SPG, 2009 identifies protection and sets criteria for considering proposals 
in on these sites. 
  
Development within the settlement boundary will be considered against Infill Development Policy PMD5. A 
set criteria is given to consider any proposals. 
  
Clifton Cottage is category C-listed but this area of garden is separate therefore I do not consider the 
development to be within the curtilage of the Listed building.  I will not consider Policy EP7 on Listed 
Buildings.  
  
Policy EP9 on Conservation Areas states that development must be located and designed to preserve or 
enhance the special architectural or historic character and appearance. Scale, proportions, alignment, 
density, materials, and boundary treatment of nearby buildings, open spaces, vistas, gardens and 
landscapes will all be considered. Design Statements will be required for all applications for alterations, 
extensions, or for demolition and replacement which should explain and illustrate the design principles and 
design concepts of the proposals. 
  
PMD2, Placemaking and design requires all development to be high quality and be compatible with the 
character and neighbouring built form.  Development must be of a scale, massing, density and height 
appropriate for the setting.  
 
The development should be sufficient in terms of road adoption standards and in-curtilage parking and 
turning, policy IS7, in the interests of road safety.  There should be no significant adverse impacts to 
residential amenity, policy HD3. 
  
Policy EP13 seeks to protect trees and hedgerows. 
  
Placemaking and Design 2010 SPG seeks for new development to contribute to the locally distinctive built 
character. 
  
Proposal 
The block built garage is to be demolished to give way for a parking court.  A two bay, one and three-
quarter-storey dwellinghouse is proposed to be situated 2.8m behind the current hedge line, central to the 
plot.  A three bedroom house is proposed. The building would be orientated to align with boundary hedge.  
The hedge is proposed to be half removed and half retained to the north.  The current drive would be 
improved and two in-curtilage spaces would be formed immediately forward of the house. The proposed 
southern gable would feature a secondary single storey gable roofed building 2.8m x 6m.  It would be 
contiguous to the house and include vestibule and utility rooms. The front door to the property would be in 
this secondary building, set back from the building line by the in-curtilage parking.  
 
The main building would be rectilinear in plan, 7.7m in width x 12m in depth, under a T-plan intersecting pair 
of dual pitched roofs. Eaves would be 4.6m high and the ridge would be 7.4m in height. The principal 
elevation would feature symmetry in the fenestration with pairs of single windows in wallhead dormers 
breaking the eaves.  They would be given smooth banding and pitched gables. Eight solar PV panels would 
be installed on this west pitch. The eaves and verges of the roof would be clipped to the wallheads on north, 

Page 343



west and south elevations. At ground floor there would be pairs of 1.2m tall windows in each bay featuring 
timber mullions and surrounded by smooth stone coloured bands.  
  
The north and south elevation would feature asymmetric fenestration.  Windows on this elevation would also 
receive smooth stone coloured banding.  Walls would all be finished in a wet dash roughcast coloured a 
white/ offwhite/ yellow tone. The east elevation would be unashamedly modern in appearance with full-
height glass doors and flanking fixed lights.  There would be an armoured glass balustrade to a first floor 
balcony under a 35° over-sailing roof. There would be a pedestrian door in the rear of the secondary 
building.  
 
Notional landscape and boundary treatment details have been provided including post and rail fencing and 
retaining a northern portion of the existing privet hedge.  A scatter of green bubbles, shaded areas of green 
or blue/grey all suggest an approach to landscaping the garden grounds but there is no specification.  
  
Assessment 
Demolition. 
There is no requirement for Conservation Area Consent for demolition of a garage of the size/capacity in this 
location.  The loss of garage has been confirmed by both Archaeology and Heritage and Design Officers to 
be of neutral impact and I'd agree that it makes little contribution to Yetholm Conservation Area (Policy EP9). 
  
Principle 
Non-allocated or infill opportunities within settlement boundaries may only be considered where the proposal 
fulfils all of Policy PMD5 criteria: 
 
a) where relevant, it does not conflict with the established land use of the area; and  
b)    it does not detract from the character and amenity of the surrounding area; and  
Amenity Green Spaces; and; 
c)    the individual and cumulative effects of the development can be sustained by the social and economic 
infrastructure and it does not lead to over-development or 'town and village cramming'; and 
d)    it respects the scale, form, design, materials and density in context of its surroundings; and 
e)    adequate access and servicing can be achieved, particularly taking account of water and drainage and 
schools capacity; and 
f)    it does not result in any significant loss of daylight, sunlight or privacy to adjoining properties as a result 
of overshadowing or overlooking. 
 
The established land use in the surroundings is residential and I find a dwellinghouse an appropriate 
contribution which would have no obvious conflicts in terms of amenity. Criteria a) is satisfied. 
  
Key Greenspace 
This specific site has been allocated as a Key Greenspace in the LDP. The designation given arises from 
the Green Space SPG, Oct 2009 where the site was identified in an Audit by Halcrow consultants as 
"Functional green space". This is significant.  The LDP policy seeks to offer protection to two typologies.  
Functional green spaces (outdoor sports facilities such as playing fields, play areas, allotments, cemeteries, 
churchyards, green corridors such as rivers or former railway lines); and amenity green spaces (parks and 
gardens, natural green spaces, woodlands and green spaces within residential areas used informally). 
  
This parcel of land (GSYETH003) was identified as meeting criteria defined as B2 Allotments. Within 
Appendix D of the SPG the Green Space Strategy for the Borders, Page 19 defines quality and value.  In 
Appendix G (Page 5) the area in question is outlined in black, shaded red and coded 606.  The red shade 
signifies Low Quality and Low Value. Within Appendix I there was further assessment of the site where 
quality and value of this site were assigned 55%. There has been a clear and methodical process of 
identifying and assessing this Key Greenspace which now appears in the LDP. However, this application 
has some interesting revelations.  
 
The SPG identifies "Detailed Provision Standards" for considering "B2 Allotments". I have concerns that this 
site does not fit the definition of "B2 Allotment"; "Land laid out and managed as a statutory or non-statutory 
allotment site". I have received representations and consultations that both confirm that these "Allotments" 
are owner/occupied private gardens.  There has been no objection from both the Community Council and 
Neighbourhood Services. Contrary to several representations received, the fact that the land is in multiple 
ownership is not something which would be incompatible with B2 allotment use.   

Page 344



  
Functional green space  
I conclude that the SPG and Policy EP11 are erroneous in this designation in that this Key Greenspace is 
neither a statutory or non-statutory allotment site.  I can find no definition for "statutory" in the SPG but the 
meaning is clear. 
 
Fruit, flowers or vegetables are produced on this land only by the exclusive use of the owner in title and not 
by a third party. I suspect the "allotment" designation has been derived directly from OS mapping data which 
places a label; "Allot Gdns" over this site.  My inspection of photos, streetview and aerial images all confirm 
that several owners are using the land for agricultural production but this private use does not constitute 
"Allotment" as defined by Oxford Dictionaries; "A plot of land rented by an individual for growing vegetables 
or flowers."  These are gardens and not allotments - there is no manager or committee and there is no 
evidence presented that a consideration payment can be made for a third party to use the land for 
production. 
  
If this is not an allotment (Key Greenspace) I have no requirement to consider arguments of social, 
economic and community justification for this proposal. There is no requirement for me to consider need or 
consider compensatory provision of function open space. The owner has submitted a Title Plan which 
confirms the land belongs Clifton Cottage. 
 
Other Greenspaces 
Key Greenspaces are not a comprehensive list of all those spaces which satisfy PAN 65 typologies. I 
consider the roadside verge forward of the site to be a strong candidate for satisfying "Other Greenspaces" 
of EP11.  This verge makes a significant and strong contribution as an "Amenity green space"(SPG).  It 
contributes significantly to the appearance of this gateway to the Village and The Green itself.  This is the 
Pennine Way and the verge contributes significantly to the visual amenity of this avenue.  Somewhere under 
this verge is a stone cundy (a culverted stream) running right through the centre of The Green and down to 
Blunty's Mill. The two water pumps on its route signify the importance of this spring as a former water source 
for the Village long ago. Historically, it has dictated the layout of the street. 
  
This proposal would result in development of a drive over this verge.  No Design Statement and no 
topographic data has been supplied but I strongly believe that development of a drive will significantly 
adversely impact both this Greenspace and the water pump feature in future.  Both are historic features of 
the Conservation Area.  They would be adversely affected by a dwellinghouse on this site. There would be 
direct impacts through the physical erosion of the green verge by vehicles but indirect impacts will be the 
loss of public feel to this space. 
 
I conclude that there would be no quantifiable loss of functional open space arising from the proposal but 
there would be harm in the form of damage caused to "Other Greenspaces" (the roadside verge and water 
pump) which front the site (Policy EP11). In this respect criteria b) of policy PMD5 is not satisfied.  
 
Conservation Area 
Principle 
The Heritage and Design Officer objects to the proposal and states the principle of introducing a dwelling on 
the site is unacceptable. This development would disrupt the positive characteristics of the Conservation 
Area. Similar arguments surrounding the history of settlement of Kirk Yetholm have been raised by 
objectors.  I would add that the neighbouring pattern of development (nos9 and 11 to the south) further 
emphasises the historic context of this land as being unsuitable for a residential dwellinghouse.  
  
The historic perspective of this site is most clearly articulated in policy terms by the Heritage and Design 
Officer. At this location, the east side of the High Street makes a positive contribution to both the 
characteristic historic layout of Kirk Yetholm as well as its distinctive visual and spatial relationship with the 
surrounding landscape.  
  
The Officer has noted that a small, modest structure similar to a garage, shed or possibly small garden 
studio form would not disrupt the established positive contribution this site makes to the Conservation Area.  
However a change of use of the site to a dwellinghouse would disrupt and harm the character and 
appearance of Kirk Yetholm.   
  

Page 345



I support the Heritage and Design Officer's conclusion and note that there are secondary buildings adjacent 
to this site but they do not adversely affect the appearance of the wider Conservation Area. The phrase 
"largely undeveloped" has been used by the Heritage and Design Officer to describe the nature of this east 
side of the High Street. This is a reference to current plot/ building ratio and also the garden/ garage use.   
  
Several objections received throughout this process have highlighted the importance of this historically 
undeveloped feature within Kirk Yetholm.  
  
The value of the site is twofold.  Firstly in the visual backdrop it provides to the Conservation Area but 
secondly, and significantly, in the wider history of the Terrace and development of Kirk Yetholm. The use of 
this land always has been part-and-parcel of the character of "Tinkers Row" and to change this relationship 
would change the character of the Street and the wider history surrounding the settlement of Kirk Yetholm. 
  
This is a significant gateway to the village at the start/end of the Pennie Way and also part of the St 
Cuthbert's Way. Owing to the elevated prominence of the site it does define the landscape and townscape 
structure around it.  The garden is publicly visible both from The Green and transiently, in the passing. It 
contributes significantly to the identity of the settlement and the Conservation Area.  
 
I conclude that development of a dwellinghouse would distort this interpretation and harm the Conservation 
Area (policy EP9). Development must be considered to fail criteria b) of Policy PMD5. 
 
Archaeology 
The archaeologist requires archaeological evaluation of the site prior to any recommendation of approval. 
This is required to understand whether the site yields Medieval or early Post-Medieval buildings. There is a 
moderate or high potential in this location (so close to the heart of the settlement) and I am satisfied that 
archaeological remains, features or finds should be identified and recorded prior to any acceptance of the 
proposal. Policy EP8 makes clear that development which will adversely affect an archaeological asset of 
regional or local significance will only be permitted if it can be demonstrated that the benefits of the proposal 
will clearly outweigh the heritage value of the asset. At this time, the ground needs further investigation. It's 
worth noting for record that a site evaluation yielding in-situ archaeology could pave the way for objection on 
archaeological grounds. 
 
PMD2, Placemaking and Design SPG, 2010. 
Design 
There has been no Design Statement submitted in support of the application which is a requirement of 
Policy EP9.  The Planning Statement attempts to reconcile design with the location but I find no working and 
little fact to the statement that the design heavily reflects the character of existing dwellings. 
 
The choice of design is overtly large in scale and mass resulting in a domineering appearance.  There are 
traditional ques to the design with dual pitched slate roofs, wallhead dormers and rendered bands however 
both the north and south elevations would be overbearing on the surroundings.  The north elevation would 
be seen from The Green owing to its mass, absence of neighbouring buildings and this prominent position.  
The consequence would be harm to the Conservation area. Specimen trees throughout The Green would 
intervene views but no amount of further landscape or boundary planting would soften these impacts and my 
conclusion has to be that this is the wrong design for this chosen site (Policy PMD2).  
  
The addition of solar panels on a pitched roof fronting the principal elevation of a Conservation Area is also 
objectionable.   
 
The development fails criteria d) of policy PMD5 in this respect.  
 
Site and Layout 
The building has been pushed back from the grass verge by attempts to provide in-curtilage car parking. I 
can accept that a proposal for a dwellinghouse being set back on the site lessens the potential impacts from 
size and scale, but the choice is in contrast to vernacular. Adjacent dwellings all have a strong street 
presence/ frontages.  
 
The layout has been conceived around providing all the private (bedroom) space on the principal elevation 
to allow modern/ open plan living to the rear. This layout contrasts with traditional plans whereby the 
principal rooms are left and right of a main door at ground floor.  The result is a confused appearance to the 

Page 346



main building which would detract from the rhythm of the Conservation Area. The front door is proposed in a 
secondary building, back from building line jarring with the defining character of the neighbouring buildings. 
  
Scale, form and density. 
The scale is not significantly different to the detached dwelling to the north of the site.  However, the building 
would be significantly higher in the slope and viewed in isolation to these neighbours therefore the impacts 
would be dramatic.  The dual pitched roof and T-form plan is a tried-and-tested design however this design 
fails owing to the scale, height and massing of the rear projection.  There is no reduction in plan or pitch 
height that would give the rear projection a subordinate/subservient appearance.  The consequence is that 
the north and south wing walls would be of a scale which would be dominant and prominent on both north 
and south approaches to the site. My conclusion must be that the building scale/ plot ratio would be 
inappropriate. The effects would be magnified by the absence of any residential buildings in the surrounding.  
  
The design is not in keeping with vernacular and fails Policy PMD2, in that the design fails to make an 
appropriate contribution to the settlement. On a prominent site like this, the strength of objection must be 
reiterated in that the chosen rectilinear plan would adversely affect the appearance of the street and village.  
The subordinate secondary building on the south gable does little to mitigate any impacts to the body of the 
Conservation Area. 
 
External Appearance: Materials, Fabrics and Colours 
I acknowledge attempts to finish the property with vernacular harl and smooth bands but this does not 
distract from the fact that a house of this character is better suited to a location away from the Conservation 
Area designation.  The choice of uPVC rainwater goods is a good example of a product which fails to protect 
or enhance the Conservation Area. I acknowledge the presence of uPVC in the surroundings but use of 
such a material is inappropriate, suburban and does not satisfy Policy EP9, which seeks to preserve or 
enhance character and appearance. The brick basecourse is an equally poor contribution.  
 
Boundaries 
I acknowledge attempts to retain a hedge on the principal elevation and maintain distinction between private 
garden and open space however the overarching issues with scale of the building and prominence of the 
site are irreconcilable. The prominence of the site and the absence of any mature boundary features will 
compound to harmful effects.  
 
Fenestration 
This is a core frontage in the Conservation Area and window choices on the principal elevation are 
considered to fail requirements of size, design, opening method and configuration. I acknowledge that timber 
mullioned form may be in use in the surroundings.  I also acknowledge that there are several poor examples 
of modern window replacements in the surrounding however the choice of fenestration in this application 
does not conform to any of the unique characteristics supportable under Policy EP9 today.  Again, the LDP 
demands that proposals within Conservation Areas will not just preserve but enhance character or 
appearance.  New dwellings should be exemplary to the Conservation Areas and not a pastiche of 
surrounding policy failings. 
 
 
My conclusion is the proposals fail the requirements of the Placemaking and Design SPG, 2010 and policy 
PMD2 and fails criteria b) and d) of PMD5. 
 
I have no concerns about social and infrastructure capacity of the village in respect of this village. (criteria c) 
of policy PMD5). 
  
Developer Contributions 
Policy IS2 can been resolved and the agent has confirmed that the applicant would consent to a s.69 
agreement and for a contribution to Kelso High School to be made in advance of any consent. 
 
Access  
The Roads Planning Officer has objected. They state that the proposal will remove existing parking for 
Clifton Cottage without accommodating the loss elsewhere. Two in-curtilage spaces are a requirement for a 
new build and whilst this has been provided, it would displace Clifton Cottage's off-street parking.  Parking 
on-street is not an acceptable alternative. 
 

Page 347



I agree with the Road Planning Officer, in that development will result in the loss of parking against provision 
standards and will result in a compromise of road safety and road design standards and cannot be 
supported in accordance with Policy IS7.  This is further emphasised by the fact that this road is an identified 
timber haulage route which will shortly to be used for extraction of timber in a neighbouring woodland. 
 
My conclusion is that development fails criteria c) and d) of policy PMD5.  Without adequate off-street 
parking provision proposals are by definition; "over-development". My concern is that attempts to reconcile 
parking requirements would have consequential harm on open space and the Conservation Area. 
 
Servicing (Water supply, foul drainage and surface water disposal) 
Public mains water supply is proposed.  In this Village location waste will be required to sewer. In respect of 
SUDS/ surface water drainage these details can similarly be secured by condition. The proposals can satisfy 
criteria e) of policy PMD5, subject to further design details.  
  
Neighbouring residential amenity 
I have considered loss of daylight, sunlight and overshadowing and impacts on privacy arising from 
overlooking.  The agent has provided a plan demonstrating shadow cast from the proposed building which I 
must presume is demonstrating summer impacts. In winter there would be greater shadow cast to the north 
and impacts to the northern neighbouring gardens are inevitable from this elevated site. However I do not 
identify any significant loss of light or overshadowing to habitable rooms therefore development respects the 
parameters of policy HD3.  Impacts of overlooking have not been addressed by the agent.  There is a 
habitable room in the gable of the neighbouring building to the north. There would be a direct line of sight 
from the northern gable window of the proposed master bedroom.  The intervening distance is 18m or 
thereby and there are intervening trees therefore privacy would be protected. I am satisfied that 
development could meet Policy HD3 and criteria f) of policy PMD5. Levels of visual impact have already 
been covered adequately above under Policy EP9: Conservation Areas. 
 
I acknowledge the Supporting Statement of 27 May which rebuts objections and makes observations of 
planning decisions in Conservation Areas within the Local Authority Area. I cannot place any weight to such 
advocacy.  This decision is based on clear sound reasoning informed by representations from respective 
professions having considered the proposals against LDP Policies of 2016. This position is not a 
precautionary principle approach owing to Covid-19 restrictions.    Those professionals consulted are best 
placed to consider issues of heritage, traffic safety, and archaeology and it would be a dangerous precedent 
to disregard the quality of these representations. 
 
The Community Council has placed a neutral comment with the committee split equally in opinion. 
 
I also acknowledge all comments that highlight (what is best termed) blight allegedly arising from the 
unkempt gardens and poorly maintained garage buildings in the surroundings. This decision would have 
little bearing on these matters. The maintenance of neighbouring properties is beyond the scope of this 
report, beyond the control of the Planning Authority and beyond the control of this applicant.  Future 
planning decisions will control development on these neighbouring sites as they are all within the 
Conservation Area designation. 
 
 
 
REASON FOR DECISION : 
 
It is considered that a dwellinghouse on this site would not comply with policy PMD5 of the Local 
Development Plan 2016.  It would detract and harm the character and amenity of the surrounding area.   
 
The proposals would not comply with Policy EP9 in that there would be significantly harmful adverse impacts 
to Yetholm Conservation Area. The site provides a visual backdrop to the Conservation Area and makes 
significant contribution to the history of the Terrace and development of Kirk Yetholm. The characteristic 
historic gateway of The Pennie Way and the St Cuthbert's Way would be harmed. 
 
The proposals represent piecemeal loss to development which is guarded against by Policy EP11 in that 
there would be direct and indirect adverse impacts and harm caused to the public open space (the roadside 
verge and water pump) which front the site.   
 

Page 348



The proposals are contrary to Policy IS7 in that no provision for off-street parking for Clifton Cottage has 
been made, resulting in road safety concerns.  
 
The proposal would not respect the scale, form and design of the surroundings thereby failing Policy PMD2, 
Policy PMD5 and the Supplementary Planning Guidance on Placemaking and Design.   
 
Development is contrary to Policy EP8 in that a site evaluation is required in order to quantify the medium to 
high potential of encountering Medieval or early Post-Medieval archaeology. 
 
There are no material considerations that outweigh these conflicts with policy. 
 
 
 
Recommendation:  Refused 
 
 1 A dwellinghouse on this site would not comply with policy PMD5 of the Local Development Plan 

2016 as it would would detract from and harm the character and amenity of the surrounding area.   
 
 2 The proposals would not comply with Policy EP9 of the Local Development Plan 2016 in that there 

would be significantly harmful adverse impacts to Yetholm Conservation Area. 
 
 3 The proposals are contrary to Policy EP11 of the Local Development Plan 2016 in that there would 

be direct and indirect adverse impacts and harm caused to the public open space (the roadside 
verge and water pump) which front the site, to the detriment of the visual amenities of the area. 

 
 4 The proposals do not comply with Policy PMD2 and Policy PMD5 of the Local Development Plan 

2016 and the Supplementary Planning Guidance on Placemaking and Design 2010 in that they do 
not respect the scale, form, and design of the surroundings, to the detriment of the visual amenities 
of the area. 

 
 5 Without further field evaluation, the development is contrary to Policy EP8 of the Local Development 

Plan 2016 in that there is a medium to high potential of the site yeilding archaeology of local or 
regional importance which could be harmed or destroyed by the development. 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

“Photographs taken in connection with the determination of the application and any other 
associated documentation form part of the Report of Handling”. 
 

 

Page 349



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

 

 

 

Mr & Mrs D & C Morrison 
per Ferguson Planning 
54 Island Street 
Galashiels 
Scottish Borders 
TD1 1NU 
 

Please ask for: 
 
 

Euan Calvert 
01835 826513 

Our Ref: 20/00453/FUL 
Your Ref:  
E-Mail: ecalvert@scotborders.gov.uk 
Date: 19th June 2020 

 
Dear Sir/Madam 
 

PLANNING APPLICATION AT Garden Ground of Clifton Cottage High Street Kirk Yetholm 
Scottish Borders   

 
PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT:  Demolition of garage and erection of dwellinghouse 
 
APPLICANT:  Mr & Mrs D & C Morrison 
 
 

Please find attached the formal notice of refusal for the above application. 

 

Drawings can be found on the Planning pages of the Council website at 

https://eplanning.scotborders.gov.uk/online-applications/.   
 
Your right of appeal is set out within the decision notice. 
 
Yours faithfully 
 
John Hayward 
 
Planning & Development Standards Manager 
 

Page 351

https://eplanning.scotborders.gov.uk/online-applications/


 

                                                                                                                                                                                

                  Regulatory Services 
 

 

Visit http://eplanning.scotborders.gov.uk/online-applications/ 
 

         

TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING (SCOTLAND) ACT 1997 (as amended) 
 

Town and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) (Scotland) Regulations 2013 

 

Application for Planning Permission   Reference : 20/00453/FUL 

 

To :     Mr & Mrs D & C Morrison per Ferguson Planning 54 Island Street Galashiels Scottish Borders 
TD1 1NU   

 
With reference to your application validated on 29th April 2020 for planning permission under the Town and 
Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 (as amended) for the following development :- 
 

 
Proposal :   Demolition of garage and erection of dwellinghouse 
 

 

 
At :   Garden Ground of Clifton Cottage High Street Kirk Yetholm  Scottish Borders   

 

 
The Scottish Borders Council hereby refuse planning permission for the reason(s) stated on the attached 
schedule. 
 
Dated 17th June 2020 
Regulatory Services 
Council Headquarters 
Newtown St Boswells 
MELROSE     
TD6 0SA   

                   
   John Hayward 

Planning & Development Standards Manager 

Page 352

http://eplanning.scotborders.gov.uk/online-applications/


 

                                                                                                                                                                                

                  Regulatory Services 
 

 

Visit http://eplanning.scotborders.gov.uk/online-applications/ 
 

         

 
APPLICATION REFERENCE :  20/00453/FUL 
 
Schedule of Plans and Drawings Refused: 
 
Plan Ref  Plan Type    Plan Status 

 
P01  Proposed Plans & Elevations  Refused 
P03 B  Location Plan    Refused 
P02 B  Proposed Site Plan   Refused 
 
 
REASON FOR REFUSAL 
 
 1 A dwellinghouse on this site would not comply with policy PMD5 of the Local Development Plan 

2016 as it would detract from and harm the character and amenity of the surrounding area.   
 
 2 The proposals would not comply with Policy EP9 of the Local Development Plan 2016 in that there 

would be significantly harmful adverse impacts to Yetholm Conservation Area. 
 
 3 The proposals are contrary to Policy EP11 of the Local Development Plan 2016 in that there would 

be direct and indirect adverse impacts and harm caused to the public open space (the roadside 
verge and water pump) which front the site, to the detriment of the visual amenities of the area. 

 
 4 The proposals do not comply with Policy PMD2 and Policy PMD5 of the Local Development Plan 

2016 and the Supplementary Planning Guidance on Placemaking and Design 2010 in that they do 
not respect the scale, form, and design of the surroundings, to the detriment of the visual amenities 
of the area. 

 
 5 Without further field evaluation, the development is contrary to Policy EP8 of the Local Development 

Plan 2016 in that there is a medium to high potential of the site yielding archaeology of local or 
regional importance which could be harmed or destroyed by the development. 

 
FOR THE INFORMATION OF THE APPLICANT 
 
If the applicant is aggrieved by the decision of the Planning Authority to refuse planning permission for or 
approval required by a condition in respect of the proposed development, or to grant permission or approval 
subject to conditions, the applicant may require the planning authority to review the case under Section 43A 
of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 (as amended) within three months from the date of 
this notice.  
 
The notice of review must be submitted on the standard form and addressed to the Clerk of The Local 
Review Body, Democratic Services, Scottish Borders Council, Council Headquarters, Newtown St Boswells. 
TD6 0SA or sent by email to localreview@scotborders.gov.uk.  The standard form and guidance notes can 
be found online at Appeal a Planning Decision.  Appeals to the Local Review Body can also be made via the 
Scottish Government Planning and Environmental Appeals Division by clicking on the following link PEAD 
 
If permission to develop land is refused or granted subject to conditions, whether by the Planning Authority 
or by the Scottish Ministers, and the owner of the land claims that the land has become incapable of 
reasonably beneficial use in its existing state and cannot be rendered capable of reasonably beneficial use 
by the carrying out of any development which has been or would be permitted, the owner may serve on the 
Planning Authority a purchase notice requiring the purchase of his interest in the land in accordance with the 
provisions of Part 5 of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 (as amended). 
 
 

Page 353

http://eplanning.scotborders.gov.uk/online-applications/
mailto:localreview@scotborders.gov.uk
https://www.scotborders.gov.uk/info/20050/planning_applications/533/appeal_a_planning_decision
https://www.dpea.scotland.gov.uk/


This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

PLANNING STATEMENT   

  

 

 

SITE ADDRESS  

LAND EAST OF HIGH STREET, KIRK YETHOLM, TD5 8PH 

 

PROPOSAL   

DEMOLITION OF GARAGE AND ERECTION OF A DWELLING 
TOGETHER WITH ACCESS, LANDSCAPING AND ASSOCIATED 

WORKS    

  

APPLICANT   

MR & MRS D & C MORRISON 

  

 APRIL 2020 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 355

Agenda Item 6b



 

 

 

                                              CONTENTS 

 

                                        1.    INTRODUCTION AND PROPOSAL DESCRIPTION 

                                        2.    PLANNING POLICY CONTEXT 

                                        3.   ASSESSMENT OF DEVELOPMENT PROPOSAL 

                                        4.   CONCLUSIONS 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 356



 

 

1. INTRODUCTION AND PROPOSAL DESCRIPTION 

1.1 This Planning Statement, prepared by Ferguson Planning, is submitted to Scottish Borders 

Council on behalf of the Applicants Mr & Mrs Morrison. The Statement supports an application 

for Planning Permission for the demolition of a garage and erection of a dwelling together with 

access, landscaping and associated works on land to the east of High Street, Kirk Yetholm.  

1.2 The purpose of this Statement is to provide a good level of understanding of the application site 

and the context within which it lies, before providing background to the proposed development 

and its accordance with planning policy. 

1.3 The site lies to the east of High Street in Kirk Yetholm. The site sits opposite a terrace of existing 

dwellings to the west of the highway. Concise private garden plots sit adjacent to the north and 

south of the site while a rectangular parcel of allotment gardens lie beyond to the south. 

1.4 The site comprises a private garden in a single ownership with Clifton Cottage, on the opposite 

side of the road. The site represents Clifton Cottage’s secondary garden with the primary 

outdoor amenity space located to the rear of the property. A single garage of render-on-block 

elevations and profiled sheet roof stands upon the site close to the south boundary. A tall hedge 

runs across the site from north to south precluding views from the adopted highway into the 

private garden. An existing vehicle access which comprises compacted gravel runs from the 

highway to the garage.  

1.5 The extract below indicates the application site in red together with other land within the 

Applicant’s control in blue. The existing dwellings nearby and other buildings are also indicated. 

Page 357



 

 

  
Fig.1. Extract from AH073-P03(A) Location Plan, High Street and the Applicants’ home are visible 

to the west of the site (Source: Aidan Hume Design) 

Proposal 

1.6 The layout and access arrangements of the proposed dwelling are conceptually illustrated on 

AH073-P02 Site Layout Plan. The proposal is for the demolition of the existing garage and 

erection of a single dwelling on the site together with access, landscaping and associated works. 

Page 358



 

 

 

Fig.2. Extract from AH073-P02(A) Site Layout Plan (Source: Aidan Hume Design) 

1.7 The proposed dwelling comprises a two storey detached house, the design of which is heavily 

informed by existing dwellings in Kirk Yetholm and particularly on High Street. The new dwelling 

is proposed relatively centrally within the plot and set back from the boundary with the adopted 

highway to enable the retention of the mature established hedge. 

1.8 The construction of the proposed dwelling will comprise wet dash roughcast elevations set upon 

a brick plinth and a roof of natural slate. The wet dash roughcast has been selected with 

achieving a sensitive design specifically in mind. Smooth cement bands shall be set around 

timber frame windows. 

1.9 The east elevation faces into the garden of the proposed dwelling and has been detailed to 

provide for the amenity of future occupiers. Sensitive folding doors are proposed from the 

ground floor to the garden. The doors shall open to a patio and will enable the kitchen and 

dining space to redeem maximum benefit from morning light. It is also proposed that a covered 

balcony, accessed by glazed doors from the living room, shall project from the first floor. The 

Page 359



 

 

balcony would not be visible from within the village but would benefit from natural views 

created by land falling away to the east of Kirk Yetholm. 

1.10 The scale of the new dwelling would be contained by partition into a principle element and a 

secondary subservient (albeit conjoined) element to the south. This design reflects the 

appearance and scale of existing dwellings which face the application site opposite. 

1.11 Works are not proposed at Clifton Cottage, the Applicants’ existing dwelling, which would retain 

its primary rear garden. The proposed dwelling will be serviced by connection to the public foul 

drainage network which serves Kirk Yetholm. The Applicant proposes to connect to the existing 

mains water supply network. 

1.12 The remainder of this Statement considers relevant planning policy and thereafter provides a 

reasoned justification within the policy context. Together with this Statement the following 

drawings have been submitted to support the application:  

• AH073-P01(A) Floor Plans, prepared by Aidan Hume Design; 

• AH073-P02(A) Site Layout, prepared by Aidan Hume Design; and 

• AH073-P03(A) Location Plan, prepared by Aidan Hume Design. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 360



 

 

2. POLICY CONTEXT 

2.1 This section provides an overview of key planning polices relevant to the proposed 

development. Scottish Planning Policy (SPP) sets out national planning polices and is a key 

material consideration in the determination of planning applications. The Development Plan is 

made up of the Strategic Development Plan for South East Scotland (SESPlan) and the Scottish 

Borders Local Development Plan (2016). 

Scottish Planning Policy (SPP) 2014  

2.2 SPP supports the creation and protection of successful and sustainable places which support 

sustainable economic growth and regeneration, and the creation of well-designed, sustainable 

places. This outcome sits side-by-side with the other three outcomes which target the delivery 

of low carbon places which reduce carbon emissions and adapt to the changing climate, natural 

and resilient places which protect and make use of natural and cultural assets, and better 

connected places which support and capitalises on transport and digital infrastructure. 

2.3 SPP creates a presumption in favour of development that contributes to sustainable 

development and establishes that the planning system should support economically, 

environmentally and socially sustainable places by enabling development that balances the 

costs and benefits of a proposal over the longer term. The aim is to achieve the right 

development in the right place; it is not to allow development at any cost. Specifically, policies 

and decisions should be guided by key principles, including:  

• giving due weight to net economic benefit; 

• responding to economic issues, challenges and opportunities, as outlined in local 

economic strategies; 

• supporting good design and the six qualities of successful places; 

• making efficient use of existing capacities of land, buildings and infrastructure includ-

ing supporting town centre and regeneration priorities; 

• supporting climate change mitigation and adaptation including taking account of 

flood risk; 

• improving health and well-being by offering opportunities for social interaction and 

physical activity, including sport and recreation; 

• having regard to the principles for sustainable land use set out in the Land Use Strat-

egy; 

• protecting, enhancing and promoting access to natural heritage, including green in-

frastructure, landscape and the wider environment; 

• reducing waste, facilitating its management and promoting resource recovery; and 

Page 361



 

 

• avoiding over-development, protecting the amenity of new and existing develop-

ment and  

• considering the implications of development for water, air and soil quality.   

2.4 SPP sets out how successful, sustainable places includes protecting and enhancing the vibrancy 

of rural, coastal, and island areas, with growing, sustainable communities supported by new 

opportunities for employment and education. The character of rural and island areas and the 

challenges they face vary greatly across the country, from pressurised areas of countryside 

around towns and cities to more remote and sparsely populated areas. 

2.5 In rural areas the Government intends the planning system to: 

• in all rural and island areas promote a pattern of development that is appropriate to 

the character of the particular rural area and the challenges it faces; 

• encourage rural development that supports prosperous and sustainable communi-

ties and businesses whilst protecting and enhancing environmental quality; and 

• support an integrated approach to coastal planning. 

Scottish Borders Local Development Plan  

2.6 Local planning policy relevant to the proposal is contained within the Scottish Borders Local 

Development Plan (2016). Key policies include:  

• Policy PMD2: Quality Standards 

• Policy PMD5: Infill Development 

• Policy HD3: Protection of Residential Amenity 

• Policy EP9: Conservation Areas 

• Policy EP11: Protection of Greenspace 

 

Policy PMD2: Quality Standards 

2.7 The Policy sets out a range of sustainability, placemaking and design, accessibility and open 

space/ biodiversity requirements, whereby the proposal must: 

• Take appropriate measures to maximise the efficient use of energy and resources, in 

terms of layout, orientation, construction and energy supply;  

• Make provision for sustainable drainage;  

• Incorporate appropriate measures for separate storage of waste and recycling;  

• Incorporate appropriate landscaping to help integration with the surroundings;   

• Create a sense of place, based on a clear understanding of context;  

• Be of a scale, massing and height appropriate to the surroundings;  

Page 362



 

 

• Be finished externally in materials, the colours and textures of which complement the 

highest quality of architecture in the locality;  

• Be compatible with, and respect, the character of the surrounding area, neighbouring 

uses and neighbouring built form; 

• Be able to be satisfactorily accommodated within the site;  

• Provide for appropriate boundary treatments to ensure attractive edges, and to help 

integration with the surroundings;  

• Incorporate access for those with mobility difficulties;  

• Not have an adverse impact on road safety in terms of the site access;  

• Incorporate adequate access and turning space for vehicles including those used for 

waste collection purposes.  

• Retain physical or natural features which are important to the amenity or biodiversity 

of the area.  

Policy PMD5: Infill Development  

2.8 The Policy permits “development on non-allocated, infill, or windfall sites, including the re-use 

of buildings within Development Boundaries as shown on proposals maps will be approved 

where the following criteria are satisfied: 

a) where relevant, it does not conflict with the established land use of the area; and 

b) it does not detract from the character and amenity of the surrounding area; and 

c) the individual and cumulative effects of the development can be sustained by the social 

and economic infrastructure and it does not lead to over-development or ‘town and 

village cramming’; and 

d) it respects the scale, form, design, materials, and density in context of its surroundings; 

and 

e) adequate access and servicing can be achieved, particularly taking account of water 

drainage, and schools capacity; and 

f) it does not result in any significant loss of daylight, sunlight, or privacy to adjoining 

properties as a result of overshadowing or overlooking. 

All applications will be considered against the Council’s Supplementary Planning Guidance on 

Placemaking and Design. Developers are required to provide design statements as 

appropriate.” 

Policy HD3: Protection of Residential Amenity 

2.9 The Policy states that “development that is judged to have an adverse impact on the amenity of 

existing or proposed residential areas will not be permitted. To protect the amenity and 

character of these areas, any developments will be assessed against: 

Page 363



 

 

a) the principle of the development, including where relevant, any open space that 

would be lost; and 

b) the details of the development itself particularly in terms of: 

i. the scale, form, and type of development in terms of its fit within a residential 

area, 

ii. the impact of the proposed development on the existing and surrounding prop-

erties particularly in terms of overlooking, loss of privacy and sunlight provi-

sions. These considerations apply especially in relation to garden ground or 

‘backland’ development, 

iii. the generation of traffic or noise, 

iv. the level of visual impact.” 

Policy EP9: Conservation Areas 

2.10 The Policy establishes the Council’s support for “development proposals within or adjacent to a 

Conservation Area which are located and designed to preserve or enhance the special 

architectural or historic character and appearance of the Conservation Area. This should accord 

with the scale, proportions, alignment, density, materials, and boundary treatment of nearby 

buildings, open spaces, vistas, gardens and landscapes.” 

2.11 Conservation Area Consent is stated to be acceptable “in the context of appropriate proposals 

for redevelopment and will only be permitted where: 

a) the building is incapable of reasonably beneficial use by virtue of its location, physical 

form or state of disrepair, and 

b) the structural condition of the building is such that it can not be adapted to accommo-

date alterations or extensions without material loss to its character, and 

c) the proposal will preserve or enhance the Conservation Area, either individually or as 

part of the townspace.” 

2.12 Following the grant of Conservation Area Consent “demolition will not be permitted to proceed 

until acceptable alternative treatment of the site has been approved and a contract for the 

replacement building or for an alternative means of treating the cleared site has been agreed.” 

Policy EP11: Protection of Greenspace 

2.13 The Policy identifies a distinction between two categories of greenspace – (A) Key Greenspaces 

(copied below) and (B) Other Greenspaces. 

“(A) Key Greenspaces 
Key Greenspaces as identified on Proposal Maps will be protected from development that will 
result in their loss. Development that protects and enhances the quality of Key Greenspaces 
will be supported.” 

Page 364



 

 

2.14 Paragraph 1.1 of the Policy’s supporting text states that “the aim of the Policy is to give 

protection to a wide range of defined types of greenspace (also known as open space) within 

settlements and to prevent their piecemeal loss to development. The policy also aims to protect 

and safeguard the most important spaces within settlements.” 

2.15 Paragraph 1.2 continues “the Local Development Plan identifies Key Greenspaces within 

Development Boundaries. The spaces identified within the Plan are those spaces which are 

considered to be of greatest value to the community and are therefore worthy of protection.” 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 365



 

 

3. ASSESSMENT OF DEVELOPMENT PROPOSAL  

Principle of Development 

3.1 The proposal is for the demolition of a garage and erection of a single dwelling on a secondary 

garden plot in Kirk Yetholm. Development on “non-allocated, infill, or windfall sites, including 

the re-use of buildings within Development Boundaries” is permitted by Policy PMD5. The 

application site lies entirely within the Development Boundary defined for Yetholm. As the 

proposal is for the erection of a new dwelling on a site within a defined Development Boundary, 

it is considered to accord with Policy PMD5. 

3.2 The application site lies within the designated “Key Greenspace” GSYETH003. GSYETH003 is 

identified as “Kirk Yetholm Allotments” within the Yetholm Settlement Profile. Unfortunately, 

the designation represents a major error of fact. The application site sits entirely within the 

sole ownership of the Applicants and has always been in use as private garden. While the village 

allotments are kept nearby on land to the south of the site, they are fully beyond the ownership 

of the Applicants and are both functionally and visibly distinct from the application site. For the 

purposes of clarity neither the application site or any constituent land is in lawful use as an 

allotment garden; the site is not available for the purposes of allotmenting and never will be. 

The site also sits distinct from the village green which lies either side of Main Street, 

approximately 75 metres north-west of the site. The application site is not and has never been 

held in shared ownership or trust with the local authority, community council, or any other 

charitable or community trust. 

3.3 It is beyond the scope of this representation to identify the origin of the incorrect designation. 

However the Applicants believe that the error may originate from the “Open Space Audit” 

conducted by the Halcrow Group upon the Council’s behalf in 2008. An extract from the Audit 

has been included in Appendix 1. 

3.4 Both the existing and previous uses and lawful use of the site are material considerations in the 

determination of the application and should be afforded significant weight. While the 

designation of the site under Policy EP11 is factually incorrect, it cannot simply be ignored. 

However it is considered that the significant weight afforded to existing and previous uses and 

lawful use of the site are sufficient to outweigh the adopted policy which is supported by a 

factually incorrect assessment of the village’s Greenspace. Therefore the erection of a new 

dwelling upon the garden plot which comprises the application site, is considered to be 

acceptable in planning terms as it would not result in the loss of an allotment garden, any 

allotment space, or any other Greenspace. 

3.5 The principle of development for the demolition of a garage and erection of a dwelling together 

with access, landscaping and associated works is considered to be acceptable as: the application 

Page 366



 

 

site lies within a defined Development Boundary where development is permitted in 

accordance with Policy PMD5 and the application site comprises a private garden plot which is 

entirely within the Applicants’ ownership and private use. The proposal represents the erection 

of a single dwelling on a site within a Development Boundary which would make more efficient 

use of the existing capacity of the land and the rural community. 

Conservation Area 

3.6 As the application site lies within Yetholm Conservation Area, Policy EP9 is material to the 

determination of the application. The character of Kirk Yetholm is defined by dwellings of render 

elevations and slate roofs which are in active residential or holiday let use. The beautiful 

eponymous Kirk together with a small number of dwellings comprising rubble and dressed stone 

elevations add variety to the local character. A few dwellings are also roofed in thatch which 

create an atmospheric feel to the village. The proposal is for a new dwelling (residential use) 

which reflects the existing local land use. Furthermore the proposed design incorporates both 

white render elevations and a slate roof which are particularly prevalent on High Street. It is 

considered that by means of its use, appearance, footprint, and scale the proposed dwelling is 

complementary to the “special architectural and historic character” of the Conservation Area. 

3.7 The proposal includes the demolition of the Applicants’ garage, which is not a Listed Building. 

The garage itself is an un-remarkable building of render-on-block elevations and profiled sheet 

roof. It makes little contribution to the built character of Kirk Yetholm and significant scope is 

considered to exist for replacement with a more sympathetic building. 

3.8 The proposed development would remove an existing building which makes minimal 

contribution to the Conservation Area and replace with a sensitively designed dwelling. Due to 

its limited physical form and the unsuitability of extensive modification and extension to create 

a new dwelling, the existing building cannot provide “reasonably beneficial use” in its current 

form. The proposed development is considered to represent an enhancement of the site and of 

this part of the Conservation Area more widely. 

3.9 It is therefore considered that the proposal represents a sensitive addition to the Conservation 

Area which would enhance “the special architectural and historic character” and accord with 

Policy EP9. 

Access and Parking 

3.10 It is proposed to retain the existing vehicle access to provide access from the highway to the 

proposed dwelling. The surface of the existing access may be re-laid should it be prove 

desirable, however it is understood that existing visibility sightlines are acceptable within the 

30MPH speed restricted zone in Kirk Yetholm. 

Page 367



 

 

3.11 Sufficient space shall be provided on the proposed drive to park two cars. This is considered to 

accord with the Parking Standards contained within Appendix 3 of the Local Development Plan 

2016. 

3.12 Clifton Cottage and the existing dwelling Valley Dene (adjacent to the south) are unique in the 

street as they both benefit from off-street car parking in secondary garden plots on the opposite 

side of the road. On-street parking is common on High Street, particularly on the north bound 

carriageway. It is considered that on-street parking capacity exists to accommodate the 

occupants of Clifton Cottage’s vehicles and does not present a threat to highway safety. 

Impact on Local Character 

3.13 The proposal is considered to represent a sensitive design which respects the local built 

character. The local character along High Street is defined by minimalist and simply constructed 

dwellings which comprise white render elevations under slate roofs. It is acknowledged that the 

frequency of roughcast render in new buildings has decreased over recent decades however it 

is considered that incorporating the building method into the proposal is necessary to achieve 

a sensitive design. 

3.14 Buildings along both sides of the street are limited in scale and make frequent use of distinct 

but integral components to break up the building mass. The proposed dwelling has been 

designed to reflect this characteristic and makes use of a secondary, subservient element in the 

south of the site. Along High Street land falls away from south to north, with both the eaves and 

ridge of existing dwellings on higher land standing taller than those on lower lying land. The 

proposal respects this characteristic and represents a ‘step’ between residential development 

north and south of the site. 

3.15 The design of the proposed dwelling has been heavily informed by the local character of Kirk 

Yetholm and would represent a sensitive new dwelling, in accordance with Policy PMD2. 

Residential Amenity 

3.16 The proposal has been prepared to provide for good amenity for the occupiers of the proposed 

dwelling and surrounding dwellings. With regard to the criteria of Policy HD3: 

a) As addressed above, the principle of the proposed development is considered to be 

acceptable. 

b)  

i. The type of development (a single detached dwelling) is considered to be 

appropriate to the site and the local area. At two storeys the height of the  

proposed dwelling is typical of existing dwellings on High Street and the rest of Kirk 

Yetholm. It is acknowledged that this is fairly unusual in the rural areas of the 

Page 368



 

 

Borders, but nonetheless existing dwellings within Kirk Yetholm are predominantly 

two storey in design.  

The form of the proposed dwelling is also heavily informed by existing dwellings in 

the village, reflecting the Conservation Area designation. Accordingly the proposal 

represents a simple, traditional design which makes use of slate for the roof and 

white render elevations. It is considered that the proposal clearly fits with the 

existing residential area within Kirk Yetholm. 

ii. The location of the site is generally conducive to good residential amenity with a 

frontage of existing dwellings fronting onto High Street to the west and a general 

lack of other dwelling to the north, east, and south.  

The closest dwelling to the south lies approximately 50/55 metres from the 

proposed dwelling and windows are not set into the first floor of the elevation 

which faces the site. ‘Burnsyde’, the closest dwelling to the north of the site lies 

approximately 20 metres away and does not have first floor windows in its south 

elevation – negating privacy concerns such as overlooking and intervisibility. Both 

substantial vegetation and a small garden shed exist on the third party land 

between the application site and ‘Burnsyde’.  

The possibility of views opening between the two properties are finally closed-off 

by the large roof structures of the contiguous rear element and lean-to garage at 

‘Burnsyde’. Therefore the risk of privacy loss is negligible as there are no windows 

to be overlooked, or to open lines of intervisibility with, or to obstruct sunlight 

from. The substantial existing roof structures also prevent overlooking of the 

garden. 

The substantial distance which the proposed dwelling is set back from the 

developed frontage to the west of the highway – assisted by the substantial verge 

east of the highway – negates the risk of sunlight obstruction. As a pattern of 

development, developed frontages contiguous with the adopted walkway negate 

the risk of overlooking.  

The orientation of the proposed dwelling within the site and the alignment (angle) 

of the first floor windows in the west elevation would not allow lines of 

intervisibility to be opened with existing dwelling to the west. There are no existing 

dwellings nearby which lie to the east of the application site.  

c) It is considered that the highway safety and noise generation impacts of development 

will be negligible. 

d) Views of the site from public vantage points are primarily from the adopted highway to 

the west. These views are set in the context of an existing settlement which has been 

defined by a Development Boundary in the Local Development Plan. The proposal 

represents the enhancement and enlargement of the existing settlement at Yetholm by 

Page 369



 

 

a single new dwelling and the retention of the established, mature hedge will serve to 

soften views of the proposed dwelling from the adopted highway, in a similar manner 

to the existing dwelling and established hedge at 11 High Street, to the south of the 

site. Overall the visual impact of the proposal on the local area is considered to be slight 

in degree. 

3.17 As the proposal provides for good amenity on-site and in the surrounding area it is considered 

to accord with Policy HD3. 

Site Servicing 

3.18 The proposed dwelling will be serviced by connection to the nearby mains water supply 

network. Foul water drainage will be managed by connection to the public network. Satisfactory 

connection arrangements can be achieved, subject to further details to be provided at the next 

stage in the planning process. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 370



 

 

4. CONCLUSION 

4.1 Ferguson Planning has been appointed by the Applicant to submit an application for Planning 

Permission for the demolition of a garage and erection of a dwelling together with access, 

landscaping and associated works on land to the east of High Street, Kirk Yetholm. 

4.2 The proposal represents the erection of a new dwelling upon a site which lies within the 

Development Boundary defined for Yetholm, incorporating both the Town and the Kirk. The site 

does fall within the Key Greenspace GSYETH003 designation, however the site lies within the 

sole private ownership of the Applicants and is not burdened or subject to shared rights. Simply 

put, the site is not and never has been an allotment garden. Therefore the principle of the 

development of a new dwelling upon the site is considered to be acceptable in accordance with 

Policy PMD5. 

4.3 The design of the proposed dwelling heavily reflects the character of existing dwellings within 

the Conservation Area and is considered to represent a sensitive addition to the local built 

environment. The proposal would also involve the demolition of the Applicants’ existing garage 

which is not of sensitive design and makes almost no positive contribution to the Conservation 

Area. It is considered that the proposal would make a positive contribution to the Conservation 

Area by removing an insensitive building and erecting a high quality, sensitive new dwelling; in 

accordance with Policy EP9. 

4.4 It is proposed to retain the existing vehicle access to serve the new dwelling. This both reflects 

local character and would benefit from the 30MPH speed restriction in place on the local road 

network. Two parking spaces are included within the proposal. The proposed development is 

considered to be acceptable in transport terms. 

4.5 The proposal is considered to accord with Policy PMD2 as the proposed dwelling reflects and 

incorporates the minimalist and simple design which defines local built character as well as 

limiting the proposed visual scale of development. 

4.6 The proposal has been designed in accordance with Policy HD3 and represents an acceptable 

form of development in this location. It is considered that the proposed dwelling would benefit 

from good amenity and safeguard the privacy of surrounding dwellings. 

4.7 The proposal represents appropriate rural housing development within the Borders. In addition 

to delivering local direct investment, future occupants of the proposed dwelling would expand 

purchasing power in the local economy and support existing rural services. It is considered that 

the proposal accords with relevant adopted policy of the Local Development Plan and is not 

afflicted by any other material considerations. It is respectfully requested that planning 

permission is granted. 

Page 371



This page is intentionally left blank



P
age 373



P
age 374



P
age 375



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Page 377



Page 378



Page 379



Page 380



Page 381



Page 382



Page 383



Page 384



Page 385



Page 386



Page 387



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 389



Page 390



Page 391



Page 392



Page 393



Page 394



Page 395



Page 396



Page 397



Page 398



SCOTTISH BORDERS COUNCIL

APPLICATION TO BE DETERMINED UNDER POWERS DELEGATED TO 
CHIEF PLANNING OFFICER

PART III REPORT (INCORPORATING REPORT OF HANDLING)

REF : 17/01086/FUL

APPLICANT : Mr & Mrs R Lawrie

AGENT : Stuart Patterson Building & Timber Frame Design

DEVELOPMENT : Alterations and single storey extension to dwellinghouse and erection of 
garage

LOCATION:  Valley Dene
High Street
Kirk Yetholm
Scottish Borders
TD5 8PH

TYPE : FUL Application

REASON FOR DELAY:
______________________________________________________________________________________

DRAWING NUMBERS:

Plan Ref    Plan Type Plan Status
       
17-592-1004 Location Plan Approved
17-592-1001 Existing Layout Approved
17-592-1002 Existing Layout Approved
17-592-1003 Existing Elevations Approved
17-592-2001 Planning Layout Approved
17-592-2002 Planning Layout Approved
17-592-2003 Elevations Approved
17-592-3002 Sections Approved
17-592-4001 garage Elevations Approved

NUMBER OF REPRESENTATIONS: 0 
SUMMARY OF REPRESENTATIONS:

12 neighbours were notified by the Council and adverts for development within the Conservation Area 
placed in the Southern Reporter and on PINS website.  No representations were received.

Consultations were received as follows:

Roads Planning: No objections to this proposal provided the first two metres of the verge crossing for 
the driveway to the new garage is surfaced to my specification i.e. 75mm of 40mm size single course 
bituminous layer blinded with bituminous grit all to BS 4987 laid on 375mm of 100mm broken stone 
bottoming blinded with sub-base, type 1.

It should be borne in mind that only contractors first approved by the Council may work within the 
public road boundary.

Archaeology: Valley Dene may contain remains of a single-story 18th century cottage and possible 
association with the Romany population that settled Kirk Yetholm at around that time.  There is a high 

Page 399



likelihood that stripping the interior of the building will reveal evidence for the 18th century phases of 
the structure, along with the later addition of a second floor. This evidence is of local historical interest 
and should be recorded prior to potential damage or the obscuring of features through development.  If 
consented, any internal strip the building should be recorded to an ENHANCED level by a suitably 
qualified buildings archaeologist. A Developer Funded Historic Building Survey is requested by 
condition.

Heritage and Design Officer: The principle architectural and historic interest in Valleydene relates to 
the front elevation and the contribution that the façade makes to the stepped streetscape of the High 
Street. Welcome the works to upgrade and repair, remodel and extend to the rear. The rear part of the 
existing building should retain its render finish rather than being over clad in timber boarding. Standard 
conditions requiring detailed submissions:

o Details to be provided of the replacement windows and external doors showing sections
o Samples of the external timber cladding including finish to be approved
o External decoration scheme

The new garage will have a neutral impact on the Conservation Area.

Principal elevation: Details of double glazing and doors to be submitted.
Rear elevation: 
1. No objections to removal of the existing single storey extensions (no architectural or historic 
interest).The rear elevation of the property is well concealed from public view and is set down slightly 
below the field level. A two storey flat roofed section provides a link between different elements of this 
rear.
2. Content with the proposed new flat roofed GF extension to provide the utility, kitchen and 
breakfasting area and for this to be clad in timber.
3. Rear wall of existing building should not be clad in timber but retained in render.
4. Double glazed casement timber windows to the rear are appropriate.
Interior:
The plan layout of the front part (earlier part) is being retained and this is appropriate for LBC.

PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS AND POLICIES:

Local Development Plan 2016

PMD1 Sustainability
PMD2 Quality Standards
HD3 Protection of residential amenity
EP7 Listed Buildings
EP8 Archaeology
EP9 Conservation Areas
IS7 Parking provision and standards

Supplementary Planning Guidance: Placemaking and Design, 2010 

Recommendation by  - Euan Calvert  (Assistant Planning Officer) on 29th September 2017

Householder planning permission and listed building consent applications have been made for partial 
demolition, alterations and single storey extension to Valley Dene, High street, Kirk Yetholm.  A garage is 
also requested to be constructed in-curtilage. This is proposed to be sited in unfenced garden ground on the 
opposite side of the road located slightly downhill from the property.  

LOCATION AND SITING 
Valleydene forms part of a terrace of properties on the west side of the High Street.  The terrace is 
staggered into the hillside from The Green.  There are reports of the building formerly running as a hostel 
"The Singing Donkeys Hostel" although no formal change of use is recorded.  The property is bounded to 
the north by Clifton Cottage and south by no8.  Valleydene.  This is a sprawling property owing to an 

Page 400



expansive extension to the rear.  It also includes a "wing" that runs the full width of the rear of no.8 High 
Street, which is the end terrace building.

The house dates from the early 19th century and comprises a 3 bay two storey house and also a secondary 
single storey building on the north gable.  This secondary building faces the street and reads as being an 
independent cottage. The property has had extensive alterations and additions to the rear since the 1920s 
(based on the historic OS maps). This house shows significant signs of neglect and the significant 
extensions within the rear garden ground are now displaying signs of dilapidation.  

The property was added to the statutory list of Listed Buildings at category C in 1993 as part of the resurvey 
of the parish.

Policy and History
There is only one record in the system for previous changes:

99/0132/LBC 99/01133/FUL Single storey extensions.

Policies PMD2 and HD3 seek to ensure that building quality standards are maintained, and neighbouring 
residential amenity is protected, when considering development proposals. Policy IS7 seeks to ensure that 
in-curtilage car parking is maintained in the interests of maintaining the safety and sufficiency of the road 
network.

A material consideration of this application is the C listed status of the building. Policy EP7 - Listed Buildings 
states that the Council will support development proposals that protect, maintain and enhance active use 
and conservation of Listed Buildings. Policy EP9 - Conservation Areas states that development within or 
adjacent to a Conservation Area that would have an unacceptable adverse impact on its character and 
appearance will be refused.

PROPOSAL 
The existing plans demonstrate 7no bedrooms:  3-bedrooms upstairs in the main house, 2-bedrooms in the 
secondary building behind no.8 and 2 bedrooms in the extension which shares a party wall with Clifton 
Cottage.  This proposal is for a family home with bedroom, lounge study and sitting room in the existing GF 
building.  At FF, 2 bedrooms would be in the main house, a bathroom in the flat roofed extension and a 
bedroom and plant room in the secondary rear wing.

Interventions 
1. The single storey rear extensions are to be demolished leaving only the party wall in place.  The window 
in the party wall is to be blocked closed.
2. The utility room is proposed for demolition which features an intersecting slate clad piend roof with 
chimney.
3. In place of demolition is the proposed construction of a large flat roofed open plan kitchen/breakfast/utility 
and shower room 12m x 8.6m, attached to the flat roofed 2 storey extension and accessed from the current 
lounge and kitchen.
4. Amongst a host of internal partition changes, the main interventions proposals are; 
a. Closing the door for window in the rear wing behind no.8; 
b. Changing the fenestration to the existing FF flat roofed extension by blocking 2 windows; 
c. Installing two velux in place of the intersecting roof; 
d. Closing access from the second front door;
e. Photovoltaic panels on the FF roof;
f. Garage set back 7 metres from the edge of the public road within garden ground.
g. Air source heat pump.

Site visit
I visited the site with the Heritage and Design Officer on 11 August 2017 when only an external inspection 
was possible.  Interval renovations had commenced and scaffolding fronted the property.

ASSESSMENT
PMD2 and Placemaking and Design SPG 
Siting and orientation, size and scale.

Page 401



The siting and orientation of the proposed extensions are considered to be to be appropriate in that they are 
to the rear of the property and are replacements for rather poorly constructed interventions in the past.  The 
development will largely be hidden from any public view owning to the appropriate orientation and siting 
(within a hollow) in the garden.  The land to the rear is an agriculture enclosure.  I conclude that there will be 
no visible impact to the character and appearance of the Conservation Area, and that the size and scale of 
extension is appropriate (Policy EP9). The proposal is large but not too large for the accepting house and 
garden (Policy PMD2).

Mass and form
The flat roof extension will make a good relationship to the building in that its form will contrast with the 
traditional design. The development will appear modern and high quality in construction with large expanses 
of glazing and a cupola roof light.  The development will actually be on a reduced footprint to the current 
configuration therefore the mass may be considered a net reduction.  Removal of a section of intersecting 
piend roof ensures that this extension will appear smaller in form to that which currently stands.  The size of 
open plan footprint will be successfully concealed by its proposed flat roof design, which is appropriate for 
this rear elevation.  

Conservation Area
As above, the extensions will be of no impact to the Conservation Area and the Heritage and Design Officer 
confirms likewise (Policy EP9).  Casement windows and timber cladding are appropriate interventions on the 
rear elevation, which is not publicly visible and less sensitive to change.  The garage will have no impact on 
the Conservation Area however to ensure that the Council are able to control development I shall require 
horizontal timber boarding as shown and not dry dash render (as is specified in the adjacent specification).  
The photovoltaics are on a concealed flat roof away from the principal elevation therefore concealed from 
public view and appropriately sited for the Conservation Area (Policy EP9).

Listed Building
I identify the element of greatest sensitivity to be the principal elevation of this building which retains 
significant character in design and form.  It makes significant contribution to the character of this street.  The 
Heritage and Design Officer supports the interventions on the the principle elevation; Sash and case 
windows with double glazing in timber frames and central glazing bar; timber/ composite door, style and 
colour to be agreed (vertical timber lining shown); Walls to be patched and repainted in white to match 
existing.

I am satisfied that the proposals demonstrate an understanding of the sensitivities in this building.  The 
building will be enhanced and protected in the long term (Policy EP7).  

These window and door proposals are in accordance with the Windows and Doors SPG, but further 
specifications are required to be certain that they make an appropriate contribution to the Conservation Area 
and the Listed Building.

Conditions are required to secure:

o Details of replacement windows and external doors showing sections, colours and materials 
(Anthracite grey is mentioned)
o External decoration scheme (white wash is to be retained)

REAR ELEVATION
The Heritage and Design Officer objects to the use of horizontal timber cladding on the rear elevation of the 
existing house and extension.  I agree that the use of timber panel causes confusion to the appearance of 
the Listed Building.  There should be a clear distinction between new and old architecture to ensure the 
appearance of this Listed Building.  The existing rear walls should be rendered in traditional harl and a 
condition will ensure that this is implemented.

The extension; casement windows; alterations to fenestration; installation of Velux windows; and air source 
heat pump are all considered to be acceptable and are supported for this C Listed Building in that these 
changes will be a net improvement and will not harm the appearance of the Principal elevation (of significant 
character).  The interventions will maintain and enhance active use of this building in accordance with Policy 
EP7.

Page 402



INTERIOR
Much of the interior fabric has been altered or removed by the time of application however the Heritage and 
Design Officer is satisfied that the layout of the early part of the building is being maintained in traditional 
form (with central turn stair and hall in bay 2 leading to rooms either side.) Policy EP7 is satisfied.

Amenity
Loss of a door behind No.8 (for a window) is a net improvement in amenity in that there will be less impact 
on neighbouring privacy.  A window in the northern party wall is to be blocked closed and this will also 
actually create net improvement in terms of neighbouring residential amenity.  These changes ensure that 
there is no direct overlooking to garden ground or the houses beyond (Policy HD3).  I identify no impacts in 
terms of overshadowing or loss of light in relation to the extension or the garage.  There have been no 
representations in respect of development therefore I must assume that development of the garage; 
extension; and air source heat pump have all been considered and accepted by nearest neighbours.  I do 
not identify any impact from development of any of these items and I am satisfied that the Council have 
discharged their duties in terms of Policy HD3 and PMD1 in that there will be no harm to neighbouring 
residential amenity and public health and safety are satisfied.

Access
The Roads Planning Officer notes no objection but cites need for a condition to ensure implementation of a 
sealed surface verge crossing.  I am satisfied that these details should be a matter for condition to ensure 
protection of road safety and design standards.  The first two metres of the verge crossing for the driveway 
to the new garage shall be surfaced to specification;
75mm of 40mm size single course bituminous layer blinded with bituminous grit all to BS 4987 laid on 
375mm of 100mm broken stone bottoming blinded with sub-base, type 1.  It should be borne in mind that 
only contractors first approved by the Council may work within the public road boundary.

Archaeology
The archaeologist wishes a record of condition.  The interior may be of local historical interest and should be 
recorded prior to potential damage or the obscuring of features through development.  A Developer Funded 
Historic Building Survey is requested.  I am happy to secure this provision through condition, in the interests 
of record an historic asset of local significance (Policy EP8).

No third party representations have been made.

REASON FOR DECISION :

Subject to compliance with the schedule of conditions, the development will accord with the relevant 
provisions of the Local Development Plan 2016 and there are no material considerations that would justify a 
departure from these provisions.

Recommendation:  Approved subject to conditions

 1 The development hereby permitted shall not be carried out otherwise than in complete accordance 
with the plans and specifications approved by the Planning Authority.
Reason: To ensure that the development is carried out in accordance with the approved details.

 2 A schedule of all external joinery (windows and doors), including colour, finish, opening method and 
profile, proposed to be used on the principal elevation of development hereby approved shall be 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Planning Authority before the development commences. 
The approved scheme to be implemented as part of the development.
Reason: To protect the character of the Category C-Listed Building and the Yetholm Conservation 
Area.

Page 403



 3 Sample panels of the external wall render and any colour treatment to be prepared on site for prior 
approval by the Planning Authority.  The development then to be completed in accordance with the 
approved details.
Reason: The materials to be used require further consideration to ensure a satisfactory form of 
development, which contributes appropriately to its setting.

 4 Notwithstanding the approved plans, the rear walls of the existing house shall be finished in a harl 
(rough cast) and not horizontal timber board unless the prior written approval of the Planning 
Authority has been granted for the use of an alternative product.
Reason: To ensure that the alterations make an appropriate contribution to the Listed Building.

 5 Notwithstanding the approved plans, the walls of the garage shall be finished in horizontal timber 
board and not dry dash render unless the prior written approval of the Planning Authority has been 
granted for the use of an alternative product.
Reason: To ensure that the alterations make an appropriate contribution to the Conservation Area.

 6 Prior to construction of the garage hereby approved the first two metres of the verge crossing for the 
driveway (giving access to the new garage) shall be surfaced to specification; 75mm of 40mm size 
single course bituminous layer blinded with bituminous grit all to BS 4987 laid on 375mm of 100mm 
broken stone bottoming blinded with sub-base, type 1.  It should be borne in mind that only 
contractors first approved by the Council may work within the public road boundary.  
Reason: To ensure safe access and egress to the public road and to ensure lose material does not 
foul the public road, in the interests of road safety.

 7 No development shall take place until the applicant has secured the implementation of a programme 
of archaeological work (which may include excavation) in accordance with a Written Scheme of 
Investigation outlining a Historic Building Survey which has been formulated by, or on behalf of, the 
applicant and submitted to and approved in writing by the Planning Authority. Access should be 
afforded to allow archaeological investigation, at all reasonable times, by a person or persons 
nominated by the developer and agreed to by the Planning Authority.  Results will be submitted to 
the Planning Authority for review in the form of a Historic Building Survey Report.
Reason: To preserve by record a building of historical interest.

“Photographs taken in connection with the determination of the application and any other 
associated documentation form part of the Report of Handling”.

Page 404



Page 405



Page 406



Page 407



Page 408



Page 409



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 411

Agenda Item 6c



Page 412



 

Council Headquarters, Newtown St Boswells, MELROSE, Scottish Borders, TD6 0SA 
Customer Services:  0300 100 1800    www.scotborders.gov.uk  

 

PLANNING CONSULTATION 
 
To:        Archaeology Officer 
 
From:      Development Management Date:   30th April 2020 
 
Contact:  Euan Calvert       01835 826513  Ref:  20/00453/FUL 
  

PLANNING CONSULTATION 
 
Your observations are requested on the under noted planning application. I shall be glad to have 
your reply not later than 21st May 2020. If further time will be required for a reply please let me know. 
If no extension of time is requested and no reply is received by 21st May 2020, it will be assumed 
that you have no observations and a decision may be taken on the application. 
 
Please remember to e-mail the DCConsultees Mailbox when you have inserted your reply 
into Idox. 
 
Name of Applicant:  Mr & Mrs D & C Morrison  
  

Agent:  Ferguson Planning 
    

Nature of Proposal:  Demolition of garage and erection of dwellinghouse 
Site:  Garden Ground Of Clifton Cottage High Street Kirk Yetholm Scottish Borders   
_________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Page 413

http://www.scotborders.gov.uk/


 

Council Headquarters, Newtown St Boswells, MELROSE, Scottish Borders, TD6 0SA 
Customer Services:  0300 100 1800    www.scotborders.gov.uk  

 

CONSULTATION RESPONSE TO 

PLANNING OR RELATED APPLICATION 

Comments provided 
by 

Officer Name and Post: 
Keith Elliott 
Archaeology Officer 

Contact e-mail/number: 
Keith.Elliott@scotborders.gov.uk 
01835 824 000 ext 8886 

   

Date of reply 02.06.2020 Consultee reference: 

Planning Application 
Reference 

20/00453/FUL Case Officer: 
Euan Calvert      

Applicant Mr & Mrs D & C Morrison  

Agent Ferguson Planning 

Proposed 
Development 

Demolition of garage and erection of dwellinghouse 

Site Location Garden Ground Of Clifton Cottage, High Street, Kirk Yetholm, Scottish Borders   
 

The following observations represent the comments of the consultee on the submitted application 
as they relate to the area of expertise of that consultee. A decision on the application can only be 
made after consideration of all relevant information, consultations and material considerations. 

Background and  
Site description 

This application seeks the demolition of an existing garage and its replacement with 
the construction of a new house, associated landscaping to improve vehicular 
access, in the garden ground of Clifton Cottage on the eastern side of High Street, 
Kirk Yetholm. 
 
This archaeological consultation has been prompted by the site lying immediately 
opposite a number of historic buildings of the village which have been recorded by 
the Scottish Borders Historic Environment Record (HER). It is thought a moderate 
to high potential that there may be some archaeological remains of Medieval or 
early Post-Medieval date that would need recording here. 
 

Key Issues 
(Bullet points) 

 Impact upon the potential archaeology of the site. 

Assessment I have assessed the application against what is recorded in the Scottish Borders 
Council Historic Environment Record (HER). I have also consulted historic editions 
of the Ordnance Survey mapping of the area. 
 
The site of this application can be identified in the various Ordnance Survey map 
editions since the first edition surveyed and published in the mid-19th century. 
Whilst the garden plots on the eastern side of the street – then called Tinker’s Row 
– are largely featureless apart from divisions into the plots and paths, their regular 
layout may suggest the former presence of buildings prior to the survey. The 
presence of a small stream or burn is also shown by the first edition. By the 
Ordnance Survey second edition mapping of later 19th century date the stream 
appears to have been culverted. 
 
This application is composed of two parts. 
 
The first of these is the demolition of the existing garage building. Through 
examination of the Google StreetView photographs of the existing garage, and 
confirming the location with the submitted application details, this can be identified. 
It is not thought to be of particular archaeological importance for any historic 
building recording, though a double take was made to check that it had not been 

Page 414

http://www.scotborders.gov.uk/
mailto:Keith.Elliott@scotborders.gov.uk


 

Council Headquarters, Newtown St Boswells, MELROSE, Scottish Borders, TD6 0SA 
Customer Services:  0300 100 1800    www.scotborders.gov.uk  

 

constructed out of an old police force telephone box. 
 
The second part of the application is the construction of the new house as a whole. 
This will involve groundworks for foundation and service trenches. Given the 
location of the proposed property on one of the main roads into the village which is 
of some age it is suggested that an evaluation be carried out prior to the 
determination of this application. It is anticipated that there may have been some 
Medieval or early Post-Medieval buildings present at this location and that any 
archaeological remains, features or finds should be identified and recorded. Given 
how little we know of the archaeological origins of the smaller villages of the 
Scottish Borders it is felt that the level of this work is an appropriate response. 
Should the evaluation be carried out, the application pursued and be granted 
planning permission further archaeological conditions should be expected, if not 
more of an objection raised at that time. 
 
This archaeological work may also have the benefit of establishing the course of 
the culverted stream given the location of the proposed house and useful for the 
placement of the associated service trenches. 
 

Recommendation  Object  Do not object  Do not object, 
subject to 
conditions 

 Further information 

required 

Recommended 
Conditions 

An archaeological evaluation is recommended prior to determination of the 
application. Further archaeological conditions may be recommended upon the 
completion and reporting of this first initial work, and if necessary to comments 
leading towards an objection. Details for what the evaluation work should be 
composed of are given below. 
 
ARCH02   Archaeology: Developer Funded Evaluation 
 
No development shall take place until the applicant has secured the implementation 
of a programme of archaeological work in accordance with a Written Scheme of 
Investigation outlining an Archaeological Evaluation.   This will be formulated by a 
contracted archaeologist and approved in writing by the Planning Authority. Access 
should be afforded to allow investigation by a contracted archaeologist(s) 
nominated by the developer and agreed to by the Planning Authority.  The 
developer shall allow the archaeologist(s) to conduct a programme of evaluation 
prior to development.  This will include the below ground excavation of evaluation 
trenches and the full recording of archaeological features and finds.  Results will be 
submitted to the Planning Authority for review in the form of a Data Structure 
Report.  If significant archaeology is discovered the nominated archaeologist(s) will 
contact the Archaeology Officer for further consultation.   The developer will ensure 
that any significant data and finds undergo post-excavation analysis, the results of 
which will be submitted to the Planning Authority. 
 
Reason: The site is within an area where ground works may interfere with, or result 
in the destruction of, archaeological remains, and it is therefore desirable to afford a 
reasonable opportunity to record the history of the site. 
 

Recommended 
Informatives 

 

Page 415

http://www.scotborders.gov.uk/


 

Council Headquarters, Newtown St Boswells, MELROSE, Scottish Borders, TD6 0SA 
Customer Services:  0300 100 1800    www.scotborders.gov.uk  

 

PLANNING CONSULTATION 
 
To:        Education & Lifelong Learning (Neil Hastie) 
 
From:      Development  Management Date:   30th April 2020 
 
Contact:  Euan Calvert       01835 826513  Ref:  20/00453/FUL 
  

PLANNING CONSULTATION 
 
Your observations are requested on the under noted planning application. I shall be glad to have 
your reply not later than 21st May 2020, If further time will be required for a reply please let me 
know. If no extension of time is requested and no reply is received by 21st May 2020, it will be 
assumed that you have no observations and a decision may be taken on the application. 
 
Please remember to e-mail the DCConsultees Mailbox when you have inserted your reply 
into Idox. 
 
Name of Applicant:  Mr & Mrs D & C Morrison  
  
Agent:  Ferguson Planning 
    
Nature of Proposal:  Demolition of garage and erection of dwellinghouse 
Site:  Garden Ground Of Clifton Cottage High Street Kirk Yetholm Scottish 

Borders   
_________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Page 416

http://www.scotborders.gov.uk/


 

Council Headquarters, Newtown St Boswells, MELROSE, Scottish Borders, TD6 0SA 
Customer Services:  0300 100 1800    www.scotborders.gov.uk  

 

CONSULTATION RESPONSE TO 

PLANNING OR RELATED APPLICATION 

Comments provided 
by 

Officer Name and Post: Contact e-mail/number: 

 Education & Lifelong Learning (Neil 
Hastie) 
(Officer to fill in own name) 

 

Date of reply 11 May 2020 Consultee reference: 

Planning Application 
Reference 

20/00453/FUL Case Officer: 
Euan Calvert      

Applicant Mr & Mrs D & C Morrison  

Agent Ferguson Planning 

Proposed 
Development 

Demolition of garage and erection of dwellinghouse 

Site Location Garden Ground Of Clifton Cottage High Street Kirk Yetholm Scottish Borders   
 

The following observations represent the comments of the consultee on the submitted application 
as they relate to the area of expertise of that consultee. A decision on the application can only be 
made after consideration of all relevant information, consultations and material considerations. 

Background and  
Site description 

 

Key Issues 
(Bullet points) 

 

Assessment I refer to your request for Educations view on the impact of this proposed 
development which is within the catchment area for Yetholm Primary School and 
Kelso High School. 
 
A contribution of £2,978 x 1 is sought for the High School, making a total 
contribution of £2,978. 
 
Contributions are sought to raise capital to extend or improve schools or where 
deemed necessary to provide new schools in order to ensure that over capacity 
issues are managed and no reduction in standards is attributed to this within the 
Borders area. 
 
This contribution should be paid upon receipt of detailed planning consent but may 
be phased subject to an agreed schedule. 
 
Please note that the level of contributions for all developments will be reviewed at 
the end of each financial year and may be changed to reflect changes in the BCIS 
index, therefore, we reserve the right to vary the level of contributions. 
 
If you require any further information please do not hesitate to contact me by 
emailing estatemanagement@scotborders.gov.uk 

Recommendation  Object  Do not object  Do not object, 
subject to 
conditions 

 Further information 

required 

Page 417

http://www.scotborders.gov.uk/
mailto:estatemanagement@scotborders.gov.uk


 

Council Headquarters, Newtown St Boswells, MELROSE, Scottish Borders, TD6 0SA 
Customer Services:  0300 100 1800    www.scotborders.gov.uk  

 

Recommended 
Conditions 

 

Recommended 
Informatives 

 

 

 
 
 
 

Page 418

http://www.scotborders.gov.uk/


 

Council Headquarters, Newtown St Boswells, MELROSE, Scottish Borders, TD6 0SA 
Customer Services:  0300 100 1800    www.scotborders.gov.uk  

 

PLANNING CONSULTATION 
 
To:        Forward Planning Section 
 
From:      Development  Management Date:   27th May 2020 
 
Contact:  Euan Calvert       01835 826513  Ref:  20/00453/FUL 
  

PLANNING CONSULTATION 
 
Your observations are requested on the under noted planning application. I shall be glad to have 
your reply not later than 17th June 2020, If further time will be required for a reply please let me 
know. If no extension of time is requested and no reply is received by 17th June 2020, it will be 
assumed that you have no observations and a decision may be taken on the application. 
 
Please remember to e-mail the DCConsultees Mailbox when you have inserted your reply 
into Idox. 
 
Name of Applicant:  Mr & Mrs D & C Morrison  
  
Agent:  Ferguson Planning 
    
Nature of Proposal:  Demolition of garage and erection of dwellinghouse 
Site:  Garden Ground Of Clifton Cottage High Street Kirk Yetholm Scottish 

Borders   
_________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Page 419

http://www.scotborders.gov.uk/


 

Council Headquarters, Newtown St Boswells, MELROSE, Scottish Borders, TD6 0SA 
Customer Services:  0300 100 1800    www.scotborders.gov.uk  

 

CONSULTATION RESPONSE TO 

PLANNING OR RELATED APPLICATION 

Comments provided 
by 

Officer Name and Post: Contact e-mail/number: 

 Forward Planning Section 
Sharon Renwick 
Assistant Planning Officer 

sharon.renwick@scotborders.gov.uk 

Date of reply 11/06/2020 Consultee reference: 

Planning Application 
Reference 

20/00453/FUL Case Officer: 
Euan Calvert      

Applicant Mr & Mrs D & C Morrison  

Agent Ferguson Planning 

Proposed 
Development 

Demolition of garage and erection of dwellinghouse 

Site Location Garden Ground Of Clifton Cottage High Street Kirk Yetholm Scottish Borders   
 

The following observations represent the comments of the consultee on the submitted application 
as they relate to the area of expertise of that consultee. A decision on the application can only be 
made after consideration of all relevant information, consultations and material considerations. 

Background and  
Site description 

This application seeks consent for the demolition of a garage and the erection of a 
dwellinghouse at the garden ground of Clifton Cottage, High Street, Kirk Yetholm. It 
is noted that the proposed development is on an area of Key Greenspace as 
safeguarded within the Scottish Borders Local Development Plan (LDP) 2016. 

Key Issues 
(Bullet points) 

 Loss of Greenspace 

 Development in a conservation area 

 Character and amenity of the surrounding area 

Assessment  
The application footprint is within the Development Boundary of Kirk Yetholm. The 
application is on allocated Greenspace GSYETH003 Kirk Yetholm Allotments and 
the application is also within the Conservation Area of Yetholm.  
 
The application site is located on part of a Key Greenspace as identified within the 
LDP and is therefore protected under Policy EP11: Protection of Greenspace. That 
Policy states: 
“Key Greenspaces as identified on Proposal Maps will be protected from 
development that will result in their loss. Development that protects and enhances 
the quality of Key Greenspaces will be supported.  
… development that would result in the loss of greenspace, including outdoor 
sports facilities, will only be permitted if it can be satisfactorily demonstrated that, 
based on consultation with user groups and advice from relevant agencies:  
d) there is social, economic and community justification for the loss of the open 
space; or 
e) the need for the development is judged to outweigh the need to retain the open 
space; and 
f) where appropriate, comparable open space or enhancement of existing open 
space may be provided and/or paid for by the developer at an alternative location 
within or immediately adjacent to the settlement where this will provide adequate 
and acceptable replacement for the open space lost as a result of the development. 
In some cases, recreational provision in the form of indoor sports facilities may be a 
suitable alternative provided it is equally accessible and is judged to compensate 
fully for the loss of the open space resource. … 

Page 420

http://www.scotborders.gov.uk/


 

Council Headquarters, Newtown St Boswells, MELROSE, Scottish Borders, TD6 0SA 
Customer Services:  0300 100 1800    www.scotborders.gov.uk  

 

 
The Planning Statement submitted with the application states that: 
“The application site lies within the designated “Key Greenspace” GSYETH003. 
GSYETH003 is identified as “Kirk Yetholm Allotments” within the Yetholm 
Settlement Profile. Unfortunately, the designation represents a major error of fact. 
The application site sits entirely within the sole ownership of the Applicants and has 
always been in use as private garden. While the village allotments are kept nearby 
on land to the south of the site, they are fully beyond the ownership of the 
Applicants and are both functionally and visibly distinct from the application site. For 
the purposes of clarity neither the application site or any constituent land is in lawful 
use as an allotment garden; the site is not available for the purposes of allotmenting 
and never will be.” 
 
It is highly unusual to depart from policy on greenspace however the area in 
question is not used for community purposes and there does not seem to be of 
much social, economic or community loss in allowing development on the site. It’s 
also noted at time of writing Neighbourhood Services have not commented. It’s not 
unusual for some greenspace (also known as open space) to be in private 
ownership. It is understood that this area has not been used as allotments, at least 
in quite a considerable amount of time. It is therefore considered that the land has 
little amenity/public open space values and in the circumstances it is not considered 
the loss of this part of the designated key greenspace is a major issue.  
 
It is also noted that the site is located within the Yetholm Conservation Area and 
therefore any application will require to be assessed against Local Development 
Plan Policy EP9: Conservation Areas. The aim of that policy is to preserve or 
enhance the character or appearance of conservation areas. The policy states: 
“The Council will support development proposals within or adjacent to a 
Conservation Area which are located and designed to preserve or enhance the 
special architectural or historic character and appearance of the Conservation Area. 
This should accord with the scale, proportions, alignment, density, materials, and 
boundary treatment of nearby buildings, open spaces, vistas, gardens and 
landscapes”. 
It is therefore recommended that the views of the Heritage and Design Officer are 
sought and considered and the criteria test identified above within Policy ED9 are 
fully scrutinised.  
 
The application is within the Development Boundary of Kirk Yetholm therefore 
Policy PMD5: infill policy applies. Within this policy and in this instance 
consideration should be given to:-  
“Development on non-allocated, infill or windfall, sites, including the re-use of 
buildings within Development Boundaries as shown on proposal maps will be 
approved where the following criteria are satisfied: 
…. b) it does not detract from the character and amenity of the surrounding area;  
c) the individual and cumulative effects of the development can be sustained by the 
social and economic infrastructure and does not lead to over-development or ‘town 
and village cramming; and  d) it respects the scale, form, design, materials and 
density in context of its surroundings…”  
The Forward Planning team are supportive of housing within the Development 
Boundary where appropriate. Kirk Yetholm itself does not have any housing 
allocations although in close neighbouring Town Yetholm there are two housing 
allocations RY1B Deanfield Court and RY4B Morebattle Road. 
 
Consideration should be given to surrounding property as stated Policy HD3: 
Protection of Residential Amenity.  “Development that is judged to have an adverse 

Page 421

http://www.scotborders.gov.uk/


 

Council Headquarters, Newtown St Boswells, MELROSE, Scottish Borders, TD6 0SA 
Customer Services:  0300 100 1800    www.scotborders.gov.uk  

 

impact on the amenity of existing or proposed residential areas will not be 
permitted. To protect the amenity and character of these areas, any developments 
will be assessed against:... 
b) the details of the development itself particularly in terms of: 
(i) the scale, form and type of development in terms of its fit within a residential 
area, 
(ii) the impact of the proposed development on the existing and surrounding 
properties particularly in terms of overlooking, loss of privacy and sunlight 
provisions. These considerations apply especially in relation to garden ground or 
‘backland’ development,… 
(iv) the level of visual impact.” 
 
In conclusion, based on the above it will be important for the Development 
Management Section to consider the proposals against Local Development Plan 
Policies EP9: Conservation Areas and EP11: Greenspace, and Policy PMD5: infill 
policy, and Policy HD3: Protection of Residential Amenity. 
 
 

Recommendation  Object  Do not object  Do not object, 
subject to 
conditions 

 Further information 

required 

Recommended 
Conditions 

 

Recommended 
Informatives 

 

 

 
 
 
 

Page 422

http://www.scotborders.gov.uk/


CONSULTATION RESPONSE TO 

PLANNING OR RELATED APPLICATION 

Comments provided by Christina Sinclair 
Heritage & Design Officer 
Built Heritage & Design 

Contact e-mail/number: 
christina.sinclair@scotborders.gov.uk 
Ext 6511 

   

Date of reply 15/05/2020 

Planning Application 
Reference 

20/00453/FUL Case Officer: EC 
 

Proposed Development Demolition of garage and erection of dwellinghouse 

Site Location Garden Ground of Clifton Cottage, Kirk Yetholm 

The following observations represent the comments of the consultee on the submitted application as they 
relate to the area of expertise of that consultee and on the basis of the information provided. A decision on the 
application can only be made after consideration of all relevant information, consultations and material 
considerations. 

Background and  
Site description 

 
The Yetholm Conservation Area is broadly characterised for its two distinct areas – 
Town Yetholm and Kirk Yetholm – as well as its historic layout, rural setting and 
vernacular architecture.  
 
Within this context, the site in question forms part of the historically undeveloped 
land on the east side of the High Street. The associated views eastward from the 
High Street to the landscape beyond contribute to both the characteristic historic 
layout of Kirk Yetholm as well as its distinctive close visual and spatial relationship 
with the surrounding landscape. To a similar but lesser degree, this also contributes 
to the setting of the Category C Listed Buildings along the High Street, including 
Clifton Cottage.  
 
Some very limited-scale structures (e.g. garages and sheds) have been introduced 
over the years to the east side of the High Street, however due to their small size 
and secondary-structure character do not notably disrupt the characteristic 
connection to the wider landscape and historic layout of the area noted above. The 
garage currently on site makes no contribution to the special interest of associated 
heritage assets. 
 
What appears to be a historic cast iron water pump lies near to the site area – this 
is a feature of local interest seen in the Town and Kirk Yetholm area and is worthy 
of conservation.  
 
The advice below is provided on the basis of the information provided, and subject 
to the provision of relevant further information.  
 
 

Principal Issues 
(not exhaustive) 

The principal legislative and policy considerations from a heritage perspective in 
this case are; 
 

 Section 64 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) 
(Scotland) Act 1997 requires that local planning authorities ensure that, 
“special attention shall be paid to the desirability of preserving or 
enhancing the character or appearance” of any buildings or other land in 
a conservation area in fulfilling its planning functions. 

Page 423

mailto:mtdouglas@scotborders.gov.uk


 Section 59 of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 
Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) (Scotland) Act 1997 
requires the local planning authority to, “have special regard to the 
desirability of preserving the building or its setting or any features of 
special architectural interest which it possesses”, in considering whether 
the grant planning permission affecting a listed building.  

 One of the key outcomes for the planning system is to help protect and 
enhance our natural and cultural assets, and facilitating their sustainable 
use (Outcome 3, SPP). 

 The siting and design of development should take account of all aspects of 
the historic environment (paragraph 140, SPP) 

 Proposal for development within conservation areas and proposals 
outwith which will impact on its appearance, character or setting, should 
preserve or enhance the character and appearance of the conservation 
area (paragraph 143, SPP) 

 The Council will support development proposals within or adjacent to a 
Conservation Area which are located and designed to preserve or 
enhance the special architectural or historic character and appearance of 
the Conservation Area. This should accord with the scale, proportions, 
alignment, density, materials, and boundary treatment of nearby 
buildings, open spaces, vistas, gardens and landscapes (Policy EP9). 

 
 
Therefore, the principal consideration(s) from a heritage perspective from this 
case are; 
 

 Whether the proposed works would preserve or enhance the historic 
character and appearance of the Conservation Area  

 Whether the proposed works would preserve or enhance the contribution 
made to the special interest of the Listed Building made by its setting 
 

Assessment  
The garage in question does not make a positive contribution to the character and 
appearance of the Conservation Area, nor the setting and special interest of the 
Listed Building. There is therefore no objection to its demolition.  
 
As outlined above the largely undeveloped nature of the east side of the High Street 
makes a positive contribution to both the characteristic historic layout of Kirk 
Yetholm as well as its distinctive visual and spatial relationship with the surrounding 
landscape. There may be scope for the introduction of a small, modest structure 
similar to a garage, shed or possibly small garden studio form as this would not 
disrupt this established positive contribution to the Conservation Area. However, 
development on this site on the scale of a dwellinghouse would disrupt these 
positive characteristics, and therefore constitute harm to the character and 
appearance of the Conservation Area. We therefore cannot support the principle 
of introducing a dwelling on the site, in line with legislative and policy 
considerations outlined in the preceding section.  
 
For this reason, we do not provide detailed comment on the design of the proposed 
house, but do note that it is not clear that its scale or design preserves or enhances 
the character and appearance of the Conservation Area. Should the principle of 
development be considered appropriate for wider planning reasons, further design 
development to appropriately reinforce local character in line with legislative and 
policy requirements would be necessary.  
 

Page 424



The impact upon the historic water pump near the site boundary is unclear, and it 
should be noted generally that this historic local feature merits conservation insitu 
wherever possible.  

Recommendation ☒ Object ☐Do not object ☐Do not object, 
subject to conditions 

☐Further information 
required 

Recommended 
Conditions 

 
N/A 

Recommended 
Informatives 

N/A 

 

Page 425



Council Headquarters, Newtown St Boswells, MELROSE, Scottish Borders, TD6 0SA 
Customer Services:  0300 100 1800    www.scotborders.gov.uk  

 

PLANNING CONSULTATION 
 
To:        Neighbourhood Services 
 
From:      Development  Management Date:   27th May 2020 
 
Contact:  Euan Calvert       01835 826513  Ref:  20/00453/FUL 
  

PLANNING CONSULTATION 
 
Your observations are requested on the under noted planning application. I shall be glad to have 
your reply not later than 17th June 2020, If further time will be required for a reply please let me 
know. If no extension of time is requested and no reply is received by 17th June 2020, it will be 
assumed that you have no observations and a decision may be taken on the application. 
 
Please remember to e-mail the DCConsultees Mailbox when you have inserted your reply 
into Idox. 
 
Name of Applicant:  Mr & Mrs D & C Morrison  
  
Agent:  Ferguson Planning 
    
Nature of Proposal:  Demolition of garage and erection of dwellinghouse 
Site:  Garden Ground Of Clifton Cottage High Street Kirk Yetholm Scottish 

Borders   
_________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Page 426

http://www.scotborders.gov.uk/


Council Headquarters, Newtown St Boswells, MELROSE, Scottish Borders, TD6 0SA 
Customer Services:  0300 100 1800    www.scotborders.gov.uk  

 

CONSULTATION RESPONSE TO 

PLANNING OR RELATED APPLICATION 

Comments provided 
by 

Officer Name and Post: Contact e-mail/number: 

 Neighbourhood Services 
Craig Blackie 

CBlackie@scotborders.gov.uk 

Date of reply 27/05/20 Consultee reference: 

Planning Application 
Reference 

20/00453/FUL Case Officer: 
Euan Calvert      

Applicant Mr & Mrs D & C Morrison  

Agent Ferguson Planning 

Proposed 
Development 

Demolition of garage and erection of dwellinghouse 

Site Location Garden Ground Of Clifton Cottage High Street Kirk Yetholm Scottish Borders   
 

The following observations represent the comments of the consultee on the submitted application 
as they relate to the area of expertise of that consultee. A decision on the application can only be 
made after consideration of all relevant information, consultations and material considerations. 

Background and  
Site description 

 

Key Issues 
(Bullet points) 

  

Assessment  

Recommendation  Object x  Do not 
object 

 Do not object, 
subject to 
conditions 

 Further information 

required 

Recommended 
Conditions 

 

Page 427

http://www.scotborders.gov.uk/


Council Headquarters, Newtown St Boswells, MELROSE, Scottish Borders, TD6 0SA 
Customer Services:  0300 100 1800    www.scotborders.gov.uk  

 

Recommended 
Informatives 

 

 

 
 
 
 

Page 428

http://www.scotborders.gov.uk/


Council Headquarters, Newtown St Boswells, MELROSE, Scottish Borders, TD6 0SA 
Customer Services:  0300 100 1800    www.scotborders.gov.uk  

 

CONSULTATION RESPONSE TO 

PLANNING OR RELATED APPLICATION 

Comments provided 
by 

Roads Planning Service Contact e-mail/number: 

Officer Name and 
Post: 

Craig Johnston 
Roads Planning Technician 

craig.johnston@scotborders.gov.uk 
01835826856 

Date of reply 18th May 2020 Consultee reference: 

Planning Application 
Reference 

20/00453/FUL Case Officer: 
Euan Calvert      

Applicant Mr & Mrs D & C Morrison  

Agent Ferguson Planning 

Proposed 
Development 

Demolition of garage and erection of dwellinghouse 

Site Location Garden Ground Of Clifton Cottage High Street Kirk Yetholm Scottish Borders   
 

The following observations represent the comments of the consultee on the submitted application 
as they relate to the area of expertise of that consultee. A decision on the application can only be 
made after consideration of all relevant information, consultations and material considerations. 

Background and  
Site description 

The site was subject to a pre-application under 19/00406/PREAPP. Whilst there 
was no consultation with the Roads Planning Service, the Planning Officer’s 
response makes reference to the likely need for two in-curtilage parking spaces 
within the plot and accommodation for the parking spaces which would be lost.  

Key Issues 
(Bullet points) 

 

Assessment The site currently houses a garage and is accessed via a relatively short length of 
unsurfaced track. Therefore, there is the capacity to park two vehicles out with the 
adjacent public road. The current application would remove this existing parking 
without looking to accommodate the loss elsewhere. This would mean that the 
applicant’s property would have no designed off-street parking and would be forced 
to park on street. 
 
Given the above, I must object to this proposal.  
 
It should be noted due to the restrictions on travel as a result of the Covid-19 
pandemic at the time of writing, no site visit has been undertaken and the 
comments made above are based purely on the information submitted with this 
application and local knowledge. 
 

Recommendation  Object  Do not object  Do not object, 
subject to conditions 

 Further information 

required 

Reason for 
Objection: 

I object to this proposal as it does not comply with the Council’s Local Development 
Plan Policy PMD2 which ensures that a development has no adverse impact on 
road safety. 

 

AJS 
 
 
 

Page 429

http://www.scotborders.gov.uk/
mailto:craig.johnston@scotborders.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



Comments for Planning Application 20/00453/FUL

 

Application Summary

Application Number: 20/00453/FUL

Address: Garden Ground Of Clifton Cottage High Street Kirk Yetholm Scottish Borders

Proposal: Demolition of garage and erection of dwellinghouse

Case Officer: Euan Calvert

 

Customer Details

Name: Mr Barry Morrison

Address: 3 Deanfield Court, Town Yetholm, Scottish Borders TD5 8RW

 

Comment Details

Commenter Type: Member of Public

Stance: Customer made comments in support of the Planning Application

Comment Reasons:

Comment:Myself and my family live in Town Yetholm . We are often over at Kirk Yetholm and feel

that after looking at the plans this new build will make this area a lot more attractive. The house

itself is designed , in my opinion , to fit in well with the built up area surrounding the site and the

countryside. No negatives only positives

Page 431

Agenda Item 6d



Comments for Planning Application 20/00453/FUL

 

Application Summary

Application Number: 20/00453/FUL

Address: Garden Ground Of Clifton Cottage High Street Kirk Yetholm Scottish Borders

Proposal: Demolition of garage and erection of dwellinghouse

Case Officer: Euan Calvert

 

Customer Details

Name: Mr Brian Murdoch

Address: Briarley, Sandystones, Jedburgh, Scottish Borders TD8 6UP

 

Comment Details

Commenter Type: Member of Public

Stance: Customer made comments in support of the Planning Application

Comment Reasons:

Comment:Being keen hillwalkers we especially love to park in the lovely village of Kirk Yetholm

and make a day outing into the Cheviot Hills. As we walk up High Street on many occasions we

have commented that the area to the left of the road was a bit overgrown and in need of a

makeover.

We now find that an application has been submitted to build a new dwelling on this site. Having

looked at the proposal it seems that the applicant had been very sympathetic towards the build

appearance and off road parking as this is a conservation area. Hopefully the application will be

approved and the site will enhance the lovely village green area.

Page 432



Comments for Planning Application 20/00453/FUL

 

Application Summary

Application Number: 20/00453/FUL

Address: Garden Ground Of Clifton Cottage High Street Kirk Yetholm Scottish Borders

Proposal: Demolition of garage and erection of dwellinghouse

Case Officer: Euan Calvert

 

Customer Details

Name: Mr Brian Townsend

Address: 17 Queen's Croft, Kelso, Scottish Borders TD5 7NL

 

Comment Details

Commenter Type: Member of Public

Stance: Customer made comments in support of the Planning Application

Comment Reasons:

Comment:I feel that this application will overall enhance the look of the village green,

At present the top area of the green is shabbily overgrown, and the untidy looking garage do

nothing for the appearance of this part of the village, their removal will be a huge improvement.

Clearly the proposed property has been designed to sit comfortably and blend with other

surrounding houses and properties, whilst providing a modern, energy efficient dwelling.

In my view this house will be a positive addition to the Village conservation area.

Page 433



Comments for Planning Application 20/00453/FUL

 

Application Summary

Application Number: 20/00453/FUL

Address: Garden Ground Of Clifton Cottage High Street Kirk Yetholm Scottish Borders

Proposal: Demolition of garage and erection of dwellinghouse

Case Officer: Euan Calvert

 

Customer Details

Name: Mrs Carole Lawrie

Address: Valley Dene, High Street, Kirk Yetholm, Scottish Borders TD5 8PH

 

Comment Details

Commenter Type: Neighbour

Stance: Customer made comments in support of the Planning Application

Comment Reasons:

Comment:We live close to the site in Kirk Yetholm and have no concerns about the proposal as

we believe it has been thoughtfully designed and is relatively discreet.

Page 434



Comments for Planning Application 20/00453/FUL

 

Application Summary

Application Number: 20/00453/FUL

Address: Garden Ground Of Clifton Cottage High Street Kirk Yetholm Scottish Borders

Proposal: Demolition of garage and erection of dwellinghouse

Case Officer: Euan Calvert

 

Customer Details

Name: Mr Lee Logan

Address: 57 Inchmead Crescent, Kelso, Scottish Borders TD5 7LL

 

Comment Details

Commenter Type: Member of Public

Stance: Customer made comments in support of the Planning Application

Comment Reasons:

Comment:We as a family have spent many years visiting Kirk Yetholm and think that this

development will do nothing but enhance the area of ground to the east of the High street at the

top of the village green. We often stop and have a picnic on the green and have noticed over the

last few years that this area has become overgrown and looks dilapidated.

We think that the proposed development would help the overall appearance of the village green

area.

Page 435



This page is intentionally left blank



Comments for Planning Application 20/00453/FUL

 

Application Summary

Application Number: 20/00453/FUL

Address: Garden Ground Of Clifton Cottage High Street Kirk Yetholm Scottish Borders

Proposal: Demolition of garage and erection of dwellinghouse

Case Officer: Euan Calvert

 

Customer Details

Name: Mr Kenny McLaren

Address: Craggystanes, High Street, Kirk Yetholm, Scottish Borders TD5 8PH

 

Comment Details

Commenter Type: Neighbour

Stance: Customer objects to the Planning Application

Comment Reasons:

  - Designated Conservation Area

  - Detrimental to environment

  - Height of .....

  - Listed Building

  - Loss of light

  - Loss of view

  - Overlooking

  - Trees/landscape affected

Comment:The plot is across from Craggystanes, of which I was stayed at for six years, just moved

out a few weeks ago. The impact would be dramatic to the beautiful village of Kirk Yetholm, with

the views towards the English border impacted. The village is the end of the pennieway, and this

large build will impact the perception the of a lovely village, with mainly cottages the new build is

out of character. Looking at other comments, they are stating that this will be good for the village

due to mess of the plot - which is strange considering the a applicant owns the garage of land!!!

 

Craggystanes was not notified of this at all, considering the outlook from the front would be

impacted.

 

Kirk Yetholm is a conservation village and should be strongly protected from this proposal at first

opportunity. I strongly believe that this land should continue to be used for natural beauty, natural

growth and the natural environment

Page 437

Agenda Item 6e



Kristoffer Smith 
East View 

High Street 
Kirk Yetholm 

Roxburghshire 
TD5 8PH 

 
 

Dear Mr Calvert, 

I write in connection with the planning application 20/00453/FUL.  Whilst I entirely understand and 

appreciate the applicant’s reasoning for bringing this Planning Application forward, I feel I must object 

to it.  As the custodian of my family’s two allotment plots within the Greenspace referred to in the 

application, I feel it is incumbent on me to preserve and maintain this important aspect of the village 

for current and future generations.  The basis for my objection is: 

1. Conservation Area 

The aim of policy EP9 of the LDP is to “preserve or enhance the character or appearance of 

Conservation Areas” due to their “unique and irreplaceable contribution”.  The LDP Settlement Profile 

for Yetholm states, “Yetholm benefits from many views within and out of the settlement.”   

The High Street is of great significance to the story of Kirk Yetholm.  It is here the initial settlement 

was put down and from which the village has evolved ever since.  The layout, streetscape and 

greenspace of the High Street are therefore of vital importance to the history, character, and 

appearance of the Village.  

The proposed development would see the destruction of an area of green, open, undeveloped land 

which has survived since the time of the first settlers and which has become part of the character and 

appearance of the Village.  The proposal would irreversibly change what is a historic undeveloped 

space, which acts to bring the countryside and village together, into a developed site which has the 

potential to set a dangerous precedent of development.  As such the proposal goes against policy EP9 

of the LDP. 

One of the principal and most iconic views from the Village is from the Village Green uphill to 

Staerough, a view which has remained almost unchanged for well over a hundred years.  The 

exceptions being the erection of Numbers 9 and 11 High Street and a few small, basic garages resulting 

from more relaxed planning regulations in the mid-late 20thC.  Nevertheless, the view is one that 

would still be recognised by generations who have gone before us, even those earliest settlers    

The Village is famous for being the start / end point of the Pennine Way.  For these important walking 

tourists, the view up the High Street from the Green is not just pretty but, in a single snap, symbolises 

the long, steep struggle ahead or the long arduous route just completed – a unique and irreplaceable 

image.  This particular view from the village, outward to the hill-scape, is therefore of great importance 

to the Village’s character through its history of being and its iconic nature. 

The proposed development site is central within this special view and as such would serve to change 

it forever.  Owing to the orientation and elevation of the proposed plot in relation to the Village Green, 

the long and massive proposed north elevation would cause a significant interference in the view and 

Greenspace, negatively altering the character and appearance of the Conservation Area in the process 

Page 438



In addition, policy ED9 states proposed development should accord with the scale, proportions, 

alignment, density, materials and boundary treatment of nearby buildings, open spaces, vistas, 

gardens and landscapes.  Whilst not wanting to appear too critical of the plans, its clear a lot of time 

and effort has bene expended in their development, in my opinion the proposal does not accord with 

any of the required ED9 criteria.  

• The proposed building has a significant footprint and mass compared to plot size;  

• The proposal is for a significantly sized detached dwelling - such are not commonplace nor a 
characteristic of the conservation area; 

• The proposed building extends deeply into the plot whereby the proportions of the local 
vernacular is long and shallow dwellings; 

• The proposed building is tall in comparison to the local vernacular – typically 1.5 storey.  
Despite having dormers to the front, going off the proposed ceiling heights, in all intents and 
purposes this is a 1 ¾ storey / 2 storey building; 

• The proposed dwelling sits back from the edge of the plot whereby the local vernacular is for 
the dwelling to be at the front, roadside edge with gardens behind; 

• The proposed development shares no alignment with the dwellings on the east of the Green. 
 

2. Principle of Development / Land Use 

How the land east of High Street has evolved into current usage is like many other land uses and 

ownerships in the village, an unknown quirk.  In the earliest OS map of the area (1859) the land now 

referred to as Greenspace GSYYETH003 appears to have been an extension of the Village Green with 

a path crossing it to the field beyond and a ditch or water course running through.   Subsequent 

revisions to mapping demonstrate the loanings further up and this extension to the Village Green 

becoming larger parcels of land transferred into individual ownership.  As can be seen on the 1920 

revision, the land referred to as GSYYETH003 formed a single, large parcel of land stretching up to 

what is now 9 and 11 High Street.  Our deeds indicate this larger parcel of land was sold as strips 

around the late 1930’s / early 40’s – perhaps as a result of demand for land on which people could 

grow their own as part of the war effort.   

Post war the land remained as “allotment” strips and owing to more relaxed planning regulation, the 

placement of garages and the development of Nr’s 9 and 11 was permitted.  The result is the mix of 

gardens often with small garages on the street side that we see now.   

Whilst the Greenspace GSYYETH003 has been identified as Yetholm allotments in the Settlement 

Profile of the local plan, realistically the area of land has not been allotments in the truest sense, “a 

plot of land rented by an individual for growing vegetables or flowers” for almost a century.  It is my 

belief the term “allotment” has been assigned to this area of land by the open space audit to reflect 

its historic and largely current use, the growing of vegetables and flowers, and not tenure.  Of all the 

strips within the designated greenspace, the proposed site is the only one being used as a recreational 

garden.  The proposed site is nestled amongst “allotments” so it would appear to make sense to term 

the overall parcel of greenspace land as “allotments” – the predominant land use.  

The time at which the proposed development site moved from a space for the growing of vegetables 

and flowers is unknown but it’s certainly relatively recent.  Photographs from as late as the 60’s show 

the area being open, cultivated land.  However, just because the proposed site is a “recreational 

garden”, nestled amongst a series of allotments, does not mean it cannot be designated Greenspace.  

LDP policy EP11 states its aim as giving protection to a wide range of defined types of greenspace (also 

Page 439



known as open space).  It continues to state the types covered by this policy are based on those in 

PAN65. 

PAN65 describes an open space as “greenspace consisting of any vegetated land or structure, water, 

path or geological feature within and on the edges of settlements”.  It continues “All spaces, regardless 

of ownership and accessibility (i.e. public and private spaces) contribute to the amenity and character 

of an area and can be taken into account by councils when undertaking their open space audits and 

strategies.” 

Table 1 of the same document specifically lists Private Gardens or Grounds as being a type of open 

space.  

Whilst there are some nuances between definition and actual use for this area of Greenspace in which 

the development is proposed, the material fact is that the proposed development site clearly lies 

within the bounds of a longstanding Greenspace that is integral to the story of Kirk Yetholm. 

The above demonstrates that policy EP11 is applicable to the proposed development site and it should 

not be supported because: 

• It would mean the loss of Greenspace; 

• There is no social, economic or community justification; 

• The need for development does not outweigh the loss of greenspace – there are ample 

brownfield sites in the village and; 

• There is no proposal to provide compensatory greenspace. 

 

3. Drainage capacity 

The settlement profile for Yetholm makes mention of limited wastewater capacity.  Presumably 

Building Standards and Scottish Water would resist anything other than foul water connection to the 

existing mains drainage.   

From the site plan, the plot does not look sufficiently large enough to accommodate the proposed 

building and a rainwater soakaway, bearing in mind a soakaway should be a minimum of 5m from a 

boundary or building.   

In addition, just a point to note, there is a significantly sized concrete tube cundy going under the 

proposed site which takes wastewater from the dwellings uphill and storm water runoff from 

Staerough.  Inevitable there will be work needed to the cundy at some point in time, concrete tubes 

do not have an infinite life.  The development raises the prospect for significant impact on the 

effectiveness of the storm water removal system, not to mention the proposed dwelling should access 

to the cundy be required at any time.   

4. Overlooking & Overshadowing 

Whilst there is no automatic right to light, the slightly elevated nature of the proposed plot and the 

sheer scale and height will inevitably result in an unacceptable loss of daylight and more significantly 

sunlight, to the most immediate plot and garage building the north.  Point 3.6 in the Privacy and 

Sunlight Guide states “Overlooking and overshadowing of adjoining garden ground can also impact on 

people’s privacy and undermine their amenity and general enjoyment of their property”.  Point 4.1 of 

the same guidance states “If the new building will cause a significant loss of sunlight to an existing 

building then it is unlikely to be supported.” 

Page 440



The proposal would result in significant overshadowing of the plots to the north and overlooking from 

what would be the kitchen and master bedroom windows.  In addition, the building on the plot 

immediately north of the proposed site (admittedly a garage) as well as the garden itself, will be 

robbed of almost every minute of sunlight of which it currently enjoys.  The proposal would therefore 

result in an unacceptable loss of amenity and enjoyment of land by adjacent landowners.   

5. Irregularity 

Until recently, either 2018 or 19, there was a significantly sized broadleaf tree on the proposed plot.  

The tree has since been removed and roots dug out.  I understand works to trees within a conservation 

area need to be notified to the local authority.  There is no online record of this.   

 

I should be grateful if you can confirm receipt of this letter. 

With kind regards. 

 

Yours sincerely 

 

Kristoffer Smith 
 

Page 441



Euan, 

Whilst I do not want to enter into a tit for tat, having viewed the numerous responses to this 

application, I’d just like to clarify a couple of important points: 

I have not spoken to any of the other objectors, however, from the comments made I think the 

underlying tone is not one of an anti-development perspective.  In fact, I’d say we as a community are 

very much the opposite, I think the community is very supportive of development in general, providing 

it is appropriate and adds to the character of the village.  What is clear from the objection comments 

is that the local community feel the proposed development is not appropriate and would have a 

significant adverse impact on conservation area and village. 

Much has been made by supporters about the development tidying up this part of Kirk Yetholm.  It is 

credit to the applicant that their garden is by far the tidiest on the street!  Therefore, removing a tidy 

garden and replacing it with a building will do nothing to tidy up the gardens either side of the 

proposed plot.  The applicant has no control over neighbouring plots; thus the areas of untidiness will 

remain regardless of what happens on the proposed site. 

The dilapidated buildings referred to by some supporters are not on the proposed site but are owned 

by others on different plots of land in and out with the Greenspace.  The applicant has no control over 

these so they will remain, in their current dilapidated state! 

There are several mentions of the development being screened by various bits of soft landscape.  The 

only bits of screening provided by the applicant is the already established hedge to the front, street 

side elevation.  None of the large trees referred to in the documents are on the applicant’s land and 

are therefore not within their control.  Given this, they cannot be considered as “screening”.  

Additionally, the street side hedge screen is not a feature seen elsewhere in the conservation area so 

cannot be said to be in keeping. 

The proposed building may sit “behind” the garage to the north but the garage to the north does 

nothing to screen the proposed building.  The high street slopes steeply downward south to north, 

thus the garage sits low in relation to the proposed site and will leave the massively deep side 

elevation on full display to the village green. The impact of the gradient, height and mass of the 

proposal is highlighted by the shadow cast plan which shows the neighbouring plot being devoid of 

sunlight as a result of the proposal. 

There are not 4 garages between the allotments and Burnsyde.   There are 3 garages within the 

Greenspace and 1 out with, to the north of the proposed site.  The garages referred to in the proposal 

do not bring a lot in the way of architectural merit I agree, but they are utility buildings, small in scale, 

spaced out and surrounded by vegetation and as a result do not detract from the conservation area 

either.  Compare this to the solid mass of the proposed 12m long 2 storey gable end/ side elevation 

which will always be visible, particularly from the key vista – from the village green up to Staerough.   

I’m not qualified in road safety, but I feel the roads department make very valid comments.  Having 

only recently discovered the High Street is a recognised timber extraction route, I feel there is clear 

and valid safety concerns – particularly with the size of vehicles used not only in forestry but in modern 

day agriculture too.  The picture provided showing the vehicle parked outside Clifton Cottage is not 

an image familiar to me.   

Reference has been made to various other consents through the years in Kirk Yetholm.  These do not 

in my opinion set a precedent for the proposed development.  None of the developments shown are 

within the core of the village; none can be seen from the village green for example.  They do not 

Page 442



impose on the conservation area or intrude on important visual aspects of the village.  They have been 

constructed on recognised infill sites or brownfield land, they are not within an allocated Greenspace 

and none have received objections from the community in which they have been constructed.  

You will note all the objections for the proposed development stem from members of the local 

community, all concerned about the impact this development will have on the character of our village.  

Whilst they are entitled to make comment, you will note all but one of the support comments come 

from out with the immediate, affected community. 

I think we all recognise the need for housing in the Borders, but I for one would certainly argue there 

needs to be an emphasis on affordability in that supply – there is ample supply of mid-upper market 

type property locally.  The community of Yetholm has already contributed to the need for additional 

housing through the allocation of new build sites in the LDP.  Additionally, there are ample brownfield 

sites in and around the village that are ripe and appropriate for development.   

Having checked back the planning history for the passed 5 years in Bowden I can see no record of a 

“similar” new build proposal.  There have been a couple of small garden building type structures 

passed and some extensions but nothing to the size and scale of the proposed.  Importantly none of 

the construction in Bowden have encroached on an allocated Greenspace.  The site mentioned in 

Newstead is only similar in that it is a new build in a conservation area!  It is located on the very 

peripheries of the village and on a significantly larger site than the proposed, which allows for a larger 

garden to help soften the impact.  The site at Newstead does not form part of a significant vista from 

the village and the site cannot be seen from any key greenspace – it is in all ways hidden other than 

from the small number of houses adjacent to the site.  Crucially however, the site is not within a 

designated Greenspace. 

It’s clear those on both side of the fence on this debate are at polar opposites regarding the 

appropriateness of design and impact on the conservation area.  The professional charged with 

making that decision on behalf of the authority and us the public, has provided their judgement and 

settled the debate.  However, I think it is worth reiterating the objection comments highlight the 

strength of feeling locally – specifically the adverse impact we believe it will have on a key and 

fundamental part of our conservation area.  This part of the conservation area is not only key to the 

visual streetscape of the village today but is also important historically, having been part of the green 

and the Gypsy’s commons.  These key characteristics make it worth protecting, as it rightfully is 

through the Greenspace allocation.   

As mentioned previously, whilst it is unfortunate the description of this key Greenspace in the LDP is 

a bit woolly, the proposed site nevertheless is within the Greenspace boundary.  Just because it is a 

private garden makes it no less capable of being Greenspace.  I do not believe there is a land allocation 

issue, PAN 65 is quite clear of what can be considered as Greenspace.  My family’s two plots are owned 

by us and are our garden too.  This is the case for all of the plots within the Greenspace – they are all 

owned and used as gardens.  Some are used for growing of vegetables and fruit, some parking, some 

part recreational, some set aside!  The point being we accept them as being within the Greenspace 

and the restrictions that entails.  Should this development proceed I and many others in and out with 

this community will see it as a dangerous precedent.  There is little point in allocating Greenspace for 

protection if the land use can be overturned and built upon anyway.   

Yours 

Kris  

Page 443



Comments for Planning Application 20/00453/FUL

 

Application Summary

Application Number: 20/00453/FUL

Address: Garden Ground Of Clifton Cottage High Street Kirk Yetholm Scottish Borders

Proposal: Demolition of garage and erection of dwellinghouse

Case Officer: Euan Calvert

 

Customer Details

Name: Mr Piers Holmes-Smith

Address: Lintonrig, High Street, Kirk Yetholm, Scottish Borders TD5 8PH

 

Comment Details

Commenter Type: Neighbour

Stance: Customer objects to the Planning Application

Comment Reasons:

  - Designated Conservation Area

  - Height of .....

  - Inadequate drainage

  - Loss of light

  - Overlooking

Comment:1.Conservation Area.

The view up High Street is an iconic one for many tourist to the village starting or finishing the

Pennine Way and those visiting The Gypsy Palace just up from the proposed development. The

mostly undeveloped side of the road creates a gradual flow between the village & open country.

However, the proposed developments sheer size and elevation would irreversibly & hugely impact

that special view for all visitors & residents in & around Kirk Yetholm.

 

2.Destroy the Green Space.

 

3.Drainage.

I would question the waste water capacity & what the potential effect of rain water run off on to my

plot would be.

 

4.Notification.

I am the neighbour to the north of the proposed development and was never notified.

 

5.Loss of Light and Overlooking.

My property to the north of the proposed development will be negatively impacted as it would

tower above my property and would overshadow it in every respect resulting in me loosing a lot of

sunlight for most of the day. My property would also be overlooked by the Kitchen, Stair & Master
Page 444



Bedroom windows which would negatively impact my enjoyment of the garden space &

outbuildings on my land.

 

Page 445



Comments for Planning Application 20/00453/FUL

 

Application Summary

Application Number: 20/00453/FUL

Address: Garden Ground Of Clifton Cottage High Street Kirk Yetholm Scottish Borders

Proposal: Demolition of garage and erection of dwellinghouse

Case Officer: Euan Calvert

 

Customer Details

Name: Miss Amanda Douglas

Address: Rathgar, 4 High Street, Kirk Yetholm, Scottish Borders TD5 8PH

 

Comment Details

Commenter Type: Neighbour

Stance: Customer objects to the Planning Application

Comment Reasons:

Comment:I have read and considered the pro planning document.

The applicant took the photos himself featured on the pro planning document, seen by myself

taking them at the desired angles to show a positive spin on the outlooks and effects on the views

, both from the green upwards and from the diagonal up the high street. The untidy aspect of the

high street on the left hand side is due to other building work over the last two years, the garages

and the cars parked at these two addresses in front of the garages does not indeed add to the

beauty of the natural outlook. Infact the photos concerning parking are not the norm as it was put

for clifton cottage. The access to the garden and garage are not a personal parking space. They

are part of the highway. The photos do not reflect a true picture of how the views or the green

would be impacted. And since the applicant has ready cut down a beautiful large tree, I'm very

concerned about the conservation of this site. There was no mention of this tree , with regards to

the objections, from planning. Neither has it been established if this tree had a preservation order,

which I have been told Mr Calvert as representative of planning , and tree preservation being part

of it, you can supply this information.

Page 446



Comments for Planning Application 20/00453/FUL

 

Application Summary

Application Number: 20/00453/FUL

Address: Garden Ground Of Clifton Cottage High Street Kirk Yetholm Scottish Borders

Proposal: Demolition of garage and erection of dwellinghouse

Case Officer: Euan Calvert

 

Customer Details

Name: Miss Amanda Douglas

Address: Rathgar, 4 High Street, Kirk Yetholm, Scottish Borders TD5 8PH

 

Comment Details

Commenter Type: Neighbour

Stance: Customer objects to the Planning Application

Comment Reasons:

  - Designated Conservation Area

  - Loss of view

  - Trees/landscape affected

Comment:I am a tenant /neighbour residing opposite proposed site, the site intended in no way

needs to be developed, it's a natural area, having been a garden and allotment area set aside

many years ago for this purpose, this is a green belt area of land. The loanings themselves are

steeped in history and care should be taken on any development here Containing an ancient

hedgerow , in part of a conservation area, I'm concerned that the building work will damage the

hedgerows. Already a tree has been removed from this plot of land.

Page 447



Comments for Planning Application 20/00453/FUL

 

Application Summary

Application Number: 20/00453/FUL

Address: Garden Ground Of Clifton Cottage High Street Kirk Yetholm Scottish Borders

Proposal: Demolition of garage and erection of dwellinghouse

Case Officer: Euan Calvert

 

Customer Details

Name: Mr Geoff Stenhouse

Address: Burnsyde, The Green, Kirk Yetholm Kelso, Scottish Borders TD5 8PQ

 

Comment Details

Commenter Type: Neighbour

Stance: Customer objects to the Planning Application

Comment Reasons:

  - Designated Conservation Area

Comment:I have a very old map of Kirk Yetholm showing many of the boundaries, extending up to

the full length of 'The Loanings' on the Halterburn road.

In my honest opinion, I question the ownership of the designated area marked as the 'Garden

Ground Of Clifton Cottage'. To my knowledge the area is part of the historic 'The loaning' allotment

land allocated to houses of Kirk Yetholm, for growing their own food \ vegetables during hard

times, many years ago. Boundaries set; land allocated for each house.

 

I have witnessed the removal of an old large tree from this site in recent months.

 

The proposed building is perpendicular to the rest of the buildings in the area and will look

completely out of place, as you enter from the South.

The height of the proposed building will look completely out of place, as the land starts to make an

increasing incline, restricting current neighbours beautiful views down the Bowmont Valley.

 

Kirk Yetholm is a conservation village and should be strongly protected from this proposal at first

opportunity. I strongly believe that this land should continue to be used for natural beauty, natural

growth and the natural environment.

Page 448



Comments for Planning Application 20/00453/FUL

 

Application Summary

Application Number: 20/00453/FUL

Address: Garden Ground Of Clifton Cottage High Street Kirk Yetholm Scottish Borders

Proposal: Demolition of garage and erection of dwellinghouse

Case Officer: Euan Calvert

 

Customer Details

Name: Mr John Woods

Address: Glenview, 5 High Street, Kirk Yetholm Kelso, Scottish Borders TD5 8PH

 

Comment Details

Commenter Type: Neighbour

Stance: Customer objects to the Planning Application

Comment Reasons:

  - Designated Conservation Area

  - Height of .....

  - Inadequate screening

  - Increased traffic

  - Land affected

  - Listed Building

  - Loss of view

  - No sufficient parking space

  - Overlooking

  - Privacy of neighbouring properties affec

  - Road safety

  - Trees/landscape affected

  - Value of property

Comment:Due to the continued lock down restrictions, we are still unable to travel from England to

Scotland to fully access this application. However, in reviewing the latest information, we feel we

must now object to the application. It would appear that the view that we and our customers have

previously enjoyed, to the east of my holiday rental property, aptly named "GLENVIEW", will no

longer be available to them, if the planned building is erected.

 

We feel that building and the inevitable building work required, can only have a negative and

detrimental effect on our business in general, returning trade, our customers enjoyment of the

property and the tradition and vistas of the village and surrounding area in general.

Page 449



This page is intentionally left blank



Comments for Planning Application 20/00453/FUL

 

Application Summary

Application Number: 20/00453/FUL

Address: Garden Ground Of Clifton Cottage High Street Kirk Yetholm Scottish Borders

Proposal: Demolition of garage and erection of dwellinghouse

Case Officer: Euan Calvert

 

Customer Details

Name: Mr John Woods

Address: Glenview, 5 High Street, Kirk Yetholm Kelso, Scottish Borders TD5 8PH

 

Comment Details

Commenter Type: Neighbour

Stance: Customer made comments neither objecting to or supporting the Planning Application

Comment Reasons:

  - Designated Conservation Area

  - Height of .....

  - Loss of view

  - No sufficient parking space

Comment:My property is a holiday let, (currently closed), and whilst the applicant has kindly

notified me of the application, I am not able to retrieve the letter of notification or visit the property

to fully assess the physical/aesthetic impact, due to the Covid 19 restrictions.

 

In reviewing recent comments, it appears to me that the lock down restrictions may not have

afforded the opportunity for a fair and open appraisal of the application. As such, I believe it would

be prudent to extend the current deadline on the application to allow for a fair review, once

restrictions are lifted.

 

 

Page 451

Agenda Item 6f



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 453

Agenda Item 6g



Page 454



Page 455



Page 456



Page 457



Page 458



Page 459



Page 460



Page 461



Page 462



Page 463



Page 464



Page 465



Page 466



Page 467



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 469



Page 470



Page 471



Page 472



Page 473



Page 474



Page 475



Page 476



Page 477



Page 478



Page 479



Page 480



List of Policies

1

Local Review Reference: 20/00018/RREF
Planning Application Reference: 20/00453/FUL
Development Proposal:  Demolition of garage and erection of dwellinghouse
Location: Garden ground of Clifton Cottage, High Street, Kirk Yetholm
Applicant: Mr & Mrs D & C Morrison

Scottish Borders Local Development Plan 2016

POLICY PMD2: QUALITY STANDARDS

All new development will be expected to be of high quality in accordance with sustainability 
principles, designed to fit with Scottish Borders townscapes and to integrate with its 
landscape surroundings.  The standards which will apply to all development are that:

Sustainability 
a) In terms of layout, orientation, construction and energy supply, the developer has 

demonstrated that appropriate measures have been taken to maximise the efficient 
use of energy and resources, including the use of renewable energy and resources 
such as District Heating Schemes and the incorporation of sustainable construction 
techniques in accordance with supplementary planning guidance.  Planning 
applications must demonstrate that the current carbon dioxide emissions reduction 
target has been met, with at least half of this target met through the use of low or 
zero carbon technology,

b) it provides digital connectivity and associated infrastructure,
c) it provides for Sustainable Urban Drainage Systems in the context of overall 

provision of Green Infrastructure where appropriate and their after-care and 
maintenance,

d) it encourages minimal water usage for new developments,
e) it provides for appropriate internal and external provision for waste storage and 

presentation with, in all instances, separate provision for waste and recycling and, 
depending on the location, separate provision for composting facilities,

f) it incorporates appropriate hard and soft landscape works, including structural or 
screen planting where necessary, to help integration with its surroundings and the 
wider environment and to meet open space requirements. In some cases 
agreements will be required to ensure that landscape works are undertaken at an 
early stage of development and that appropriate arrangements are put in place for 
long term landscape/open space maintenance,

g) it considers, where appropriate, the long term adaptability of buildings and spaces.

Placemaking & Design
h) It creates developments with a sense of place, based on a clear understanding of the 

context, designed in sympathy with Scottish Borders architectural styles; this need 
not exclude appropriate contemporary and/or innovative design,

i) it is of a scale, massing, height and density appropriate to its surroundings and, 
where an extension or alteration, appropriate to the existing building,

j) it is finished externally in materials, the colours and textures of which complement the 
highest quality of architecture in the locality and, where an extension or alteration, the 
existing building,

k) it is compatible with, and respects the character of the surrounding area, 
neighbouring uses, and neighbouring built form,

l) it can be satisfactorily accommodated within the site,
m) it provides appropriate boundary treatments to ensure attractive edges to the 

development that will help integration with its surroundings,
n) it incorporates, where appropriate, adequate safety and security measures, in 

accordance with current guidance on ‘designing out crime’.

Page 481

Agenda Item 6h



List of Policies

2

Accessibility 
o) Street layouts must be designed to properly connect and integrate with existing street 

patterns and be able to be easily extended in the future where appropriate in order to 
minimise the need for turning heads and isolated footpaths,

p) it incorporates, where required, access for those with mobility difficulties,
q) it ensures there is no adverse impact on road safety, including but not limited to the 

site access,
r) it provides for linkages with adjoining built up areas including public transport 

connections and provision for buses, and new paths and cycleways, linking where 
possible to the existing path network; Travel Plans will be encouraged to support 
more sustainable travel patterns,

s) it incorporates adequate access and turning space for vehicles including those used 
for waste collection purposes.

Greenspace, Open Space & Biodiversity
t) It provides meaningful open space that wherever possible, links to existing open 

spaces and that is in accordance with current Council standards pending preparation 
of an up-to-date open space strategy and local standards. In some cases a 
developer contribution to wider neighbourhood or settlement provision may be 
appropriate, supported by appropriate arrangements for maintenance,

u) it retains physical or natural features or habitats which are important to the amenity or 
biodiversity of the area or makes provision for adequate mitigation or replacements.

Developers are required to provide design and access statements, design briefs and 
landscape plans as appropriate.

POLICY PMD5: INFILL DEVELOPMENT

Development on non-allocated, infill or windfall, sites, including the re-use of buildings within 
Development Boundaries as shown on proposal maps will be approved where the following 
criteria are satisfied:
a) where relevant, it does not conflict with the established land use of the area; and
b) it does not detract from the character and amenity of the surrounding area; and
c) the individual and cumulative effects of the development can be sustained by the 
social and economic infrastructure and it does not lead to over-development or ‘town and 
village cramming’; and
d) it respects the scale, form, design, materials and density in context of its 
surroundings; and
e) adequate access and servicing can be achieved, particularly taking account of water 
and drainage and schools capacity; and
f) it does not result in any significant loss of daylight, sunlight or privacy to adjoining 
properties as a result of overshadowing or overlooking.
All applications will be considered against the Council’s Supplementary Planning Guidance 
on Placemaking and Design. Developers are required to provide design statements as 
appropriate.

POLICY HD3 : PROTECTION OF RESIDENTIAL AMENITY

Development that is judged to have an adverse impact on the amenity of existing or 
proposed residential areas will not be permitted. To protect the amenity and character of 
these areas, any developments will be assessed against:

Page 482



List of Policies

3

a) the principle of the development, including where relevant, any open space that 
would be lost; and

b) the details of the development itself particularly in terms of:
(i) the scale, form and type of development in terms of its fit within a residential area,
(ii) the impact of the proposed development on the existing and surrounding properties 

particularly in terms of overlooking, loss of privacy and sunlighting provisions. These 
considerations apply especially in relation to garden ground or ‘backland’ 
development, 

(iii) the generation of traffic or noise,
(iv) the level of visual impact.

POLICY EP8: ARCHAEOLOGY

(A) NATIONAL  ARCHAEOLOGICAL SITES
Development proposals which would destroy or adversely affect the appearance, fabric or 
setting of Scheduled Monuments or other nationally important sites will not be permitted 
unless:

a) the development offers substantial benefits, including those of a social or economic 
nature, that clearly outweigh the national value of the site, and
b) there are no reasonable alternative means of meeting the development need.

(B) BATTLEFIELDS
The Council may support development proposals within a battlefield on the Inventory of 
Historic Battlefields Register, or a regionally significant site, that seek to protect, conserve, 
and/or enhance the landscape characteristics or important features of the battlefield.
Proposals will be assessed according to their sensitivity to the battlefield.

(C) REGIONAL OR LOCAL ARCHAEOLOGICAL ASSETS
Development proposals which will adversely affect an archaeological asset of regional or 
local significance will only be permitted if it can be demonstrated that the benefits of the 
proposal will clearly outweigh the heritage value of the asset.

In all of the above cases, where development proposals impact on a Scheduled Monument, 
other nationally important sites, or any other archaeological or historical asset, developers 
may be required to carry out detailed investigations.

Any proposal that will adversely affect a historic environment asset or its appropriate setting 
must include a mitigation strategy acceptable to the Council.

POLICY EP9: CONSERVATION AREAS

The Council will support development proposals within or adjacent to a Conservation Area 
which are located and designed to preserve or enhance the special architectural or historic 
character and appearance of the Conservation Area. This should accord with the scale, 
proportions, alignment, density, materials, and boundary treatment of nearby buildings, open 
spaces, vistas, gardens and landscapes.

The Council may require applications for full, as opposed to Planning Permission in Principle 
Consent.

Conservation Area Consent, which is required for the demolition of an unlisted building 
within a Conservation Area, will only be considered in the context of appropriate proposals 
for redevelopment and will only be permitted where:

Page 483



List of Policies

4

a) the building is incapable of reasonably beneficial use by virtue of its location, physical 
form or state of disrepair, and
b) the structural condition of the building is such that it can not be adapted to 
accommodate alterations or extensions without material loss to its character, and
c) the proposal will preserve or enhance the Conservation Area, either individually or as 
part of the townscape.

In cases a) to c) above, demolition will not be permitted to proceed until acceptable 
alternative treatment of the site has been approved and a contract for the replacement 
building or for an alternative means of treating the cleared site has been agreed.

Design Statements will be required for all applications for alterations, extensions, or for 
demolition and replacement which should explain and illustrate the design principles and 
design concepts of the proposals.

POLICY EP11 PROTECTION OF GREENSPACE

(A) KEY GREENSPACES
Key Greenspaces as identified on Proposal Maps will be protected from development that 
will result in their loss. Development that protects and enhances the quality of Key 
Greenspaces will be supported.

(B) OTHER GREENSPACES
Greenspace within the Development Boundary of settlements will be protected from 
development where this can be justified by reference to any of the following:

a) the environmental, social or economic value of the greenspace;
b) the role that the greenspace plays in defining the landscape and townscape structure 
and identity of the settlement;
c) the function that the greenspace serves.

In both cases development that would result in the loss of greenspace, including outdoor 
sports facilities, will only be permitted if it can be satisfactorily demonstrated that, based on 
consultation with user groups and advice from relevant agencies:

d) there is social, economic and community justification for the loss of the open space; 
or
e) the need for the development is judged to outweigh the need to retain the open 
space; and
f) where appropriate, comparable open space or enhancement of existing open space 
may be provided and/or paid for by the developer at an alternative location within or 
immediately adjacent to the settlement where this will provide adequate and acceptable 
replacement for the open space lost as a result of the development. In some cases, 
recreational provision
in the form of indoor sports facilities may be a suitable alternative provided it is equally 
accessible and is judged to compensate fully for the loss of the open space resource.

Development that would result in the loss of functional open space where a quantifiable 
demand can be demonstrated must in addition be justified by reference to:

g) the levels of existing provision and predicted requirements for the settlement;
h) the extent to which current or predicted future demand can be met on a reduced 
area.

POLICY EP13: TREES, WOODLANDS AND HEDGEROWS

Page 484



List of Policies

5

The Council will refuse development that would cause the loss of or serious damage to the 
woodland resource unless the public benefits of the development clearly outweigh the loss of 
landscape, ecological, recreational, historical, or shelter value.

Any development that may impact on the woodland resource should:

a) aim to minimise adverse impacts on the biodiversity value of the woodland resource, 
including its environmental quality, ecological status and viability; and
b) where there is an unavoidable loss of the woodland resource, ensure appropriate 
replacement planting, where possible, within the area of the Scottish Borders; and
c) adhere to any planning agreement sought to enhance the woodland resource.

POLICY IS2: DEVELOPER CONTRIBUTIONS

Where a site is otherwise acceptable in terms of planning policy, but cannot proceed due to 
deficiencies in infrastructure and services or to environmental impacts, any or all of which 
will be created or exacerbated as a result of the development, the Council will require 
developers to make a full or partial contribution towards the cost of addressing such 
deficiencies.  

Contributions may be required for one or more of the following:

a) treatment of surface or foul waste water in accordance with the Plan’s policies on 
preferred methods (including SUDS maintenance);

b) provision of schools, school extensions or associated facilities, all in accordance with 
current educational capacity estimates and schedule of contributions; 

c) off-site transport infrastructure including new roads or road improvements, Safer 
Routes to School, road safety measures, public car parking, cycle-ways, bridges and 
associated studies and other access routes, subsidy to public transport operators; all 
in accordance with the relevant standards and the provisions of any Travel Plan;

d) leisure, sport, recreation, play areas and community facilities, either on-site or off-
site;

e) landscape, open space, allotment provision, trees and woodlands, including costs of 
future management and maintenance;

f) protection, enhancement and promotion of environmental assets either on-site or off-
site, having regard to the Local Biodiversity Action Plan and the Council’s 
Supplementary Planning Guidance on Biodiversity, including compensation for any 
losses and/or alternative provision;

g) provision of other facilities and equipment for the satisfactory completion of the 
development that may include: measures to minimise the risk of crime; provision for 
the storage, collection and recycling of waste, including communal facilities; provision 
of street furniture and digital connectivity with associated infrastructure.

Wherever possible, any requirement to provide developer contributions will be secured by 
planning condition.  Where a legal agreement is necessary, the preference for using an 
agreement under other legislation, for example the 1973 Local Government (Scotland) Act 
and the 1984 Roads (Scotland) Act will be considered.  A planning obligation will only be 
necessary where successors in title need to be bound by its terms. Where appropriate, the 
council will consider the economic viability of a proposed development, including possible 
payment options, such as staged or phased payments.

POLICY IS7: PARKING PROVISION AND STANDARDS

Page 485



List of Policies

6

Development proposals should provide for car and cycle parking in accordance with 
approved standards. 

Relaxation of technical standards will be considered where appropriate due to the nature of 
the development and/or if positive amenity gains can be demonstrated that do not 
compromise road safety.

In town centres where there appear to be parking difficulties, the Council will consider the
desirability of seeking additional public parking provision, in the context of policies to  
promote the use of sustainable travel modes.

POLICY IS9: WASTE WATER TREATMENT STANDARDS AND SUSTAINABLE URBAN 
DRAINAGE

WASTE WATER TREATMENT STANDARDS
The Council’s preferred method of dealing with waste water associated with new 
development will be, in order of priority:

a) direct connection to the public sewerage system, including pumping if necessary, or 
failing that:
b) negotiating developer contributions with Scottish Water to upgrade the existing 
sewerage network and/or increasing capacity at the waste water treatment works, or failing 
that:
c) agreement with Scottish Water and SEPA where required to provide permanent or 
temporary alternatives to sewer connection including the possibility of stand alone treatment 
plants until sewer capacity becomes available, or, failing that:
d) for development in the countryside i.e. not within or immediately adjacent to publicly 
sewered areas, the use of private sewerage treatment may be acceptable, providing it can 
be demonstrated that this can be delivered without any negative impacts to public health, the 
environment or the quality of watercourses or groundwater.

In settlements served by the public foul sewer, permission for an individual private sewage 
treatment system will normally be refused unless exceptional circumstances prevail and the 
conditions in criteria (d) above can be satisfied.

Development will be refused if:
a) it will result in a proliferation of individual septic tanks or other private water treatment 
infrastructure within settlements,
b) it will overload existing mains infrastructure or it is impractical for the developer to 
provide for new infrastructure.

SUSTAINABLE URBAN DRAINAGE
Surface water management for new development, for both greenfield and brownfield sites, 
must comply with current best practice on sustainable urban drainage systems to the 
satisfaction of the council, Scottish Environment Protection Agency (where required), 
Scottish Natural Heritage and other interested parties where required. Development will be 
refused unless surface water treatment is dealt with in a sustainable manner that avoids 
flooding, pollution, extensive canalisation and culverting of watercourses. A drainage 
strategy should be submitted with planning applications to include treatment and flood 
attenuation measures and details for the long term maintenance of any necessary features.

OTHER MATERIAL CONSIDERATIONS

 SBC Supplementary Planning Guidance on Placemaking & Design 2010
 SBC Supplementary Planning Guidance on Development Contributions 2011

Page 486



List of Policies

7

 SBC Supplementary Planning Guidance on Landscape and Development 2008
 SBC Supplementary Planning Guidance on Trees and Development 2008
 SBC Supplementary Planning Guidance on Privacy and Sunlight  2006
 SBC Supplementary Planning Guidance on Green Space 2009
 Scottish Planning Policy 2014
 PAN 65 “Planning and Open Space”
 PAN 71 “Conservation Area Management

Page 487



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4a Additional information provided by applicant
	Item 4(a) - Project Specification
	Sheets and Views
	Model


	Item 4(a) - Proposed Basement Layout - Rev.A
	Sheets and Views
	Model


	Item 4(a) - Proposed Elevations - Rev.A
	Sheets and Views
	Model


	Item 4(a) - Proposed Ground & First Floor Layouts
	Sheets and Views
	Model


	Item 4(a) - Proposed Section & Details - Rev.A
	Sheets and Views
	Model



	4b Comment from officers on additional information
	4c Review Papers
	Item 4(c) - NOR 2 - PLANNING_APPEAL_STATEMENT-3325416
	Item 4(c) - NOR 3 - EXISTING_BASEMENT_LAYOUT-3325412
	Sheets and Views
	Model


	Item 4(c) - NOR 4 - EXISTING_GROUND_AND_FIRST_FLOOR_LAYOUTS-3325413
	Sheets and Views
	Model


	Item 4(c) - NOR 5 - LOCATION_PLAN-3325414
	Sheets and Views
	Model


	Item 4(c) - NOR 6 - PROPOSED_BASEMENT_LAYOUT-3325418
	Sheets and Views
	Model


	Item 4(c) - NOR 7 - PROPOSED_ELEVATIONS-3325419
	Sheets and Views
	Model


	Item 4(c) - NOR 8 - PROPOSED_SECTION_AND_DETAILS-3325420
	Sheets and Views
	Model


	Item 4(c) - NOR 9 - PLANNING_DESIGN_STATEMENT_AND_PHOTOGRAPHS-3325809
	Item 4(c) - NOR 10 - ADJACENT_BUSINESS_LIST-3325410
	Sheets and Views
	Model


	Item 4(c)  -_DECISION_NOTICE-3325856
	Item 4(c) - OFFICERS_REPORT-3325855
	Item 4(c) -  PRT 1 - Application Form
	Item 4(c) - PRT 2_-_REFUSED_DRAWINGS-3325858
	Item 4(c) -  PRT 3 - 18_01381_FUL-APPROVAL
	Item 4(c) -  PRT 4 - 18_01381_FUL-OFFICERS_REPORT
	Item 4(c)_-_CONSULTATION_REPLIES-3325857
	Item 4(c)_-_REPRESENTATION -3325859
	Item 4(c) - List of Policies

	5a Notice of Review
	Item 5(a) - NOR 2 - SANDYSTONES_TREEHOUSE_APPEAL_STATEMENT-3362769
	Item 5(a) - NOR 3 - DECISION_NOTICE-3362754
	Item 5(a) - NOR 4 - _TREEHOUSE_BLOCK_PLAN-3362770
	Item 5(a) - NOR 5 -_TREEHOUSE_LOCATION_PLAN-3362771
	Item 5(a) - NOR 6 - _TREEHOUSE_PLANNING_STATEMENT-3362772
	Item 5(a) - NOR 7 - MCKAY___PARTNERS-3362761
	Item 5(a) - NOR 8 - SUPPORT_LETTER_FROM_CANOPY___STARS-3362765
	Item 5(a) - NOR 9 - _WATER_LEVEL_MEMO-3362773

	5b Officer's Report
	5c Papers referred to in Officer's Report
	Item 5(c) - PRT 2 - 20_00132_PPP_-_REFUSED_DRAWINGS-3362780
	Item 5(c) - PRT 3 - 19-00812-PPP REFUSAL-3284183
	Item 5(c) - PRT 4 - 19-00812-PPP OFFICER_S_REPORT-3284184

	5d Consultations
	5e List of Policies
	6a Notice of Review
	NOR 2 - LOCAL_REVIEW_STATEMENT-3366794
	NOR 3 - APPLICATION_FORM-3366791
	NOR 4 - LOCATION_PLAN-3366782
	Sheets and Views
	Layout2


	NOR 5 - SITE_LAYOUT_PLAN-3366781
	Sheets and Views
	Layout1


	NOR 6 - FLOOR_PLANS_AND_ELEVATIONS-3366780
	Sheets and Views
	Layout1


	NOR 7 - SHADOW_PLAN-3366783
	Sheets and Views
	Layout3


	NOR 8 - REPRESENTATION LETTER
	NOR 9 - WEBPAGE_LOCAL_AUTHORITY_WEBSITE-3366799
	NOR 10 - NATIONAL_PLANNING_ADVICE_NOTE-3366796
	NOR 11 - APPEAL_DECISION_ISSUED_BY_DPEA-3366786
	NOR 12 - APPEAL_DECISION_ISSUED_BY_DPEA-3366785
	NOR 13 - APPEAL_DECISION_ISSUED_BY_DPEA-3366784
	NOR 14 = APPEAL_DECISION_ISSUED_BY_DPEA-3366787
	NOR 15 - APPEAL_DECISION_ISSUED_BY_DPEA-3366788
	NOR 16 - APPEAL_DECISION_ISSUED_BY_DPEA-3366789
	NOR 17 - REPORT_OF_HANDLING-3366797
	NOR 18 - DECISION_NOTICE-3366793

	6b Papers referred to in Officer's Report
	Item 6(b) PRT 2 - 20_00453_FUL_-_REFUSED_DRAWINGS-3367787
	Item 6(b) PRT 3 -  20_00453_FUL_-_SITE_PHOTOS_AUGUST_2017
	Item 6(b) PRT 4 -  20_00453_FUL_-_SITE_PHOTOS_JUNE_2020
	Item 6(b) PRT 5 - SUPPORTING_INFORMATION_-_RESPONSE_FROM_CONSULTATIONS-3372549
	Item 6(b) PRT 6 - 17-01086-FUL OFFICERS_REPORT
	Item 6(b) PRT 7 - 17-01086-FUL - DECISION NOTICE
	Item 6(b) PRT 8 - 17-01086-FUL LOCATION_PLAN

	6c Consultations
	6d Support Comments
	6e Objection Comments
	6f General Comment
	6g Additional representation from objector and response from applicant
	Item 6(g) - APPLICANTS_RESPONSE_TO_ADDITIONAL_REPRESENTATION

	6h List of Policies



